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A firee translation of the report on the consolidated annual accounts originally issued in Spanish
and prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in Spain. In the event
of a discrepancy, the Spanish language version prevails

AUDITOR’S REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
To the Sole Shareholder of Unicaja Banco, S.A. - Sociedad Unipersonal,

We have audited the consolidated annual accounts of Unicaja Banco, S.A. - Sociedad Unipersonal (the
Parent Company) and its subsidiaries (the Group), consisting of the consolidated balance sheet at 31
December 2012, the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of recognised income
and expenses, the consolidated statement of changes in equity, the consolidated cash flow statement
and related notes to the consolidated annunal accounts for the year then ended. As identified in Note 1.3
to the accompanying consolidated annual accounts, the Parent Company’s Directors are responsible
for the preparation of the Group’s financial statements in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards, adopted by the European Union, and other provisions of the financial reporting
framework applicable to the Group. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the consolidated
annual accounts taken as a whole, based on the work performed in accordance with legislation
governing the audit practice in Spain, which requires the examination, on a test basis, of evidence
supporting the consolidated annual accounts and an evaluation of whether their overall presentation,
the accounting principles and criteria applied and the estimates made are in accordance with the
applicable financial reporting framework.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated annual accounts for 2013 present fairly, in all material
respects, the conscolidated financial position of Unicaja Banco, S.A. - Sociedad Unipersonal and its
subsidiaries at 31 December 2013 and the consolidated results of its operations and consolidated cash
flows for the year then ended, in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards,
adopted by the European Union, and other provisions of the applicable financial reporting framework.

The accompanying consolidated directors’ report for 2013 contains the explanations which the Parent
Company’s Directors consider appropriate regarding the situation of the Group, the development of its
business and other matters, and does not form an integral part of the consolidated annual accounts.
We have verified that the accounting information contained in the consolidated directors’ report is in
agreement with that of the consolidated annual accounts for 2013. Our work as auditors is limited to
checking the consolidated directors’ report in accordance with the scope mentioned in this paragraph
and does not include a review of information other than that obtained from the accounting records of
the Group. %@5
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UNICAJA BANCO, S.A. - SOCIEDAD UNIPERSONAL
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
(UNICAJA BANCO GROUP)

Consolidated Annual Accounts at 31 December
2013 and Consolidated Director's Report 2013
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UNICAJA BANCO, 8.A. - SOCIEDAD UNIPERSONAL
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES (UNICAJA BANCO GROUP)

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 DE DECEMBER 2013 AND 2012

{Thousands of euros)
ABSETS Nota 2013 012 LIABILITIER AND EQRUATY HNots 213 Fiakd
CASH AND BALANCES AT CENTRAL BANXS 7 1983257 518 4562 | LIABILITIER
FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD FOHR TRADING At 124 833 | FINANCIAL LIABILITIES HELD FOR TRADNG ] 11981 7580

{oans wnd advances fo oredi! nstitutions . -] Depostts fram centra harks - -

Loana wnd advances to other debtors - =t Depostis from cradt instittiors - -

Debt sacurities I e Y16 767 | Daposiis from other creditors - -

Equity Instruments B42A 5754 | Debteecurities Issusd - .

Trading derivatives 8237 2112 | Trading derivatives 11821 T 680

orandum ke’ Losxad or ndvanced as collters! 108 818 28781 Ehert positions . -
Cther finencinl [iskdties - -
OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT DR LOSS - « | THROUGH PROFIT OR LDSS - -
Mamorandum ftem: Loansd o wavanced as callaferal “ -
FINANCIAL LIABIITIES AT AMDRTISED COST 19 38547300 | 37 827 67N
AVAILABLE-FDR-GALE FINANCIAL ASSETS ] 2585027 1 2743958 | DCeposits from central banks 4562045 | 61788

Dabt sacuritios 19519581 9024250 [ Dleposits from cred!t instinstions 1558514 | 1030828

Equity Instruments 614 0a1 BZ21 €89 Creposits fre athar oreditors 28712081 | 28 TIT 165
Mamorandum fert Losned or advanced as colleteral 1387108 | 1309538 |  Dedt sacurities issued 2501648 | 3122104

Subordnated lisbilltes BORT7R 204 352
Cither financial labiities 15085 B35 004
LOANS AND RECEIVABLEB 19 28886 G50 | 2735
Loars and ndvances to cract institutiens 8011 525 2§74 520
1oans and ndvences to ottt deblors 21760300 | 24 11590t | CHANGES IN THE FAIR VALVE OF THE HEDGED {TEMS IN - -
Dabt sacurities 1100644 | 10BRTOZ PORTFOLIO HEDGES OF INTEREST RATE RISK
Memorandum #tem: Loaned or advanced as cellateral BBE2383] 8100811
HERGING DERVATIVES 11 44 088 164 488
LEABILITIES ASSOCIATED WITH NON-CURRENT ASSETS

HELD FOR BALE - "

HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS ] 4242653 | €325 81
KMemorandum Yem: Loaned or sdvancad as coliersl I Q16 484 5 155 837 | INSURANCE CONTRACTS LIABILITIES L] ST4 B 534
CHANGES IN THE FAIR VALUE OF THE HEDGED ITEMS IN - - | PROVIBIONS i7 345 1281 335274
PORTFOLIO HEDGER OF INTEREST RATE RISK F rp and simliar 183 950 184 267
Provisicna for taxas and athet legal contingendies - -
HEDGING DERIVATRVEB 1 SATAS 748 081 |  Provisions for contingent iabilites and commitments 2p B8S 28 053
Qther provisicrs 132548 112 044

NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE 15 201912 93 554
TAX UABILTIES 3 §11 518 17707
Currant 28 417 14218
INVESTMENTS 12 ZTR 760 31566 |  Deferred B3098 103 492

Asscolates 78758 333 566

Acintly-cortclied sntitas - -

Greup antides - - | WELFARE FUNDS - -
INSURANCE CONTRACTS LINKED TO PENSIONS 18 12207 110 358 | DYHER LIABILITIES 8 98 858 123711
REINSURANCE ASSETS - -

TANGIBLE ASSETE 13 751804 778 020 TOTAL LIABILITIES 39 159764 { 38 &83 180

Property, plant and squipment 991N £20283

For own use 58 31 20 263
Leazed out under operating feasa . - | EQUITY
Assigned to weltare projects B .

investment properties 182 300 8T

Memaorandum fem: Acquirad under finanze iesse 5413 1 147 | EHAREHOLDERS EQUITY Ny 2068641 | 2047556
Asgigned oapltal A00 000 BOA GO0
Registered 200 008 Bs00 Doa
INTANGIBLE ABSETS 14 aesp a0 Less: Non-dwnandsd captal - -
Goodwill - «| Sharas gremium 1 E49 044 1 648 044
Other imangibls axsels 1868 3485 | Heserves ( 453513} 175 BG5S
Ascurmiintad reserves (lossas) (328 334) 254 78

Reserves {losazs) of antifes accourdsd fot wsing the equity
mathod { 127188 {( 7917y
TAX ABSETS 23 6852 420 £27 624 | Othar equity Instruments - -
Current 051y 31574 E component of compound finansal instrumerds - -
Peleted 31 554 D30 Non-vating equity units and sssociatad funds (savings banks) - -
Crihar - -
Less: Treasury sharss " -
OTHER ABSETS 15 T0Z 914 755378 | Proft of lovs atributed to the group TI430 | { 577353
tventary L1114l 8348184 {  Lesw: Dividends and remunsration - -

Cther 28243 8Os

VALUATION ADJUSTMERTS 11734 | (50188}
Avalladls-for-sala finarcial sssets ] 37EM 22408
Cash fiow hedgex ¢ 2430 | t2s40)
Hedges of net investments in operatana abfoad - .
Exchangs dfferances { 1204 | ¢ @
Ertities acoounted far using the equity methed 2 { Bad} | { z28221)
Nor-current assets held for aaln ( 28 { ( 738)
Other valustion adjustments { 3) -
MINCRITY INTERESTS 4484 2688
Valuadion adjustmants { ATEN i 284y
Cinar 20 5289 8839
] TOTAL EQUITY ZOR3 180 ¢ 4 B41 104
TUTAL ASSETE 41242921 | 4D Ti4 264 TOTAL LIABILITIES AND ECUITY 49342921 | 4D T14 264
MEMURANDUM ITEMB
CONTINGENT EXPOSURER 30.1 £82 851 1103834
CONTINGENT COMMITMENTS 34502329 | 3233080

The accompanying Notea + 1o 48 and Appendices | 31 and (1] form an integrat part of the consclidated balance shset ut 31 December, 2013
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UNICAJA BANCO, 8.A, - SOCIEDAD UNIPERSONAL
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES (UNICAJA BANCO GROUP)

c DATED ING END
31 DECEMBER 2013 AND 2012
{Thousands of euros)
{Deblt} Crecit
Note 2013 2012
INTEREST AND SIMILAR INCOME i 1103 287 1166 887
INTEREST EXPENSE AND SIMILAR CHARGES a2 [ 491 201) { 557 061}
NET INTEREST INCOME 612 066 608 626
RETURN ON EQUITY INSTRUMENTS 33 24 889 28732
LOSS/PROFIT OF COMPANIES VALUED AT EQUITY METHOD 34 15 627 { 2128)
FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME 35 156 436 156 778
FEE AND COMMISSION EXPENSE 36 { 19487} { 20824)
GAINS/ALOSSES) ON FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (NET) a7 241 406 11717
Financial assets held for trading 2966 [ 15675
Other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - -
Financial instruments not camled at fair vaiue through profit or loss 234 922 27 114
Other 3518 278
EXCHANGE DIFFERENCES (NET) 24 { 23 802
OTHER OPERATING INCOME 38 88 705 43783
Insurance and reinsurance premiums collected - -
Sales and Income from the provision of nen-financial services 33088 27 320
Other operating income 35817 16 473
OTHER OPERATING EXPENSE s { &7738) { 73868)
Expenses relating to insuzrance and reinsurance contracts - -
Variation in inventories { 785) -
Other operating expenses [ &5853) { 73898)
GROSS OPERATING INCOME 1041 857 754 488
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 40 { 358 026) ( 370 228)
Staff costs { 268838)| { 273536)
Other general administrative expenzes { 8%067) { BE602)
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION 13y 14 { 34732) { 37181)
PROVISIONS (NET) 17 { 4676%9) { 37805)
IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON FINANCIAL ASSETS (NET) { 454 566) { 807 571)
Loans and receivablas 10y 2B ( 446 00B) { €88 443)
Other financial instruments not measuned at fair value through profit or loss g ( 8558) { 108 128)
PROFIT/{LOSS) FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 144 504 { 488 28B7)
IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON OTHER ASSETS (NET) 41 { B1B52) { 338 225)
Goodwill and other intangible assets - -
Other assats { 61852)| ( 33m225)
GAINSHLOSSES) ON DiSPOSAL OF ASSETS NOT CLASSIFIED AS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FCR SALE 42 205 150
NEGATIVE GOODWILL ON BUSSINESS COMBINATIONS - -
GAINSHLOSEES) ON DISPOSAL OF NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE
NOT CLASSIFIED AS DISCOUNTED OPERATIONS 42 { 13285) { 21568)
PROFIT/(L.OSS) BEFORE TAX 68 562 ( 857 330)
INCOME TAX 23 2157 2B0 125
MANDATORY TRANSFER TO COMMUNITY PROJECTS AND WELFARE FUNDS - -
PROFIT/(LOSS) FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 71718 { 677 205}
INCOME FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (NET} - -
NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 71719 { 577 208)
Profitt oss attributable fo parent entity 71410 { 577 253)
Profit/Loss atirbutable {0 minority interasts 20 308 4B
The accompanying Nates 1 to 48 and Appendices {, I and I}l form an Intagral pent of the d income at 31D 013,
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UNICAJA BANCGQ, §.A. - SOCIEDAD UNIPERSONAL
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES (UNICAJA BANCD GROUP)

C EDC DATED INC Jo]
BER 2
{Thousands of euros)
Note 2013 2012

A) CONSOLIDATED PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 71718 (577 205)
B) OTHER RECOGNISED INCOME AND EXPENSES 30 922 66 645
B.1) Items not to be reclassified to profit or loss {383 -
Actuarial galns/{fosses) on defined-benefit penston plans 40 { 518) -
Non-current assets held for sale - -
Companies accounted for using the equity method - -
Income tax on items not to be reclassified to profit or loss 156 -

B.2) ltems eliglble to be rectassifled to profit or loss 31285 66 645
Avallable-for-sale financial assets g 21827 B4 358
Valuation gains (losses) 123 652 117 518
Amounts transferred to the Income statement {101 825) ( 23 180)

Other reclassifications - .

Cash flow hedges 11 { 18 803} { 9589)
Revaluation gains/(losses) { 28 530} { 9589)
Amounts transferred to income statement 11727 -
Amounts transferred to the initial value of hedged Hems - -

Other reclassifications - -

Hedges of net investments In operations abroad - -
Valuation gains (losses) - -

Amounts transferred to the income statement - -

Other reclassifications - -
Exchange differsnces 24 { 33 {187}
Valuation gains (losses) { 33) { 167)
Amaounts transferred to the Income statement - -

Cther reclassifications - -
Non-current assets held for sale 15 730 { B82)
Valuation gains (losses) 730 { 982)

Amaounts transferred to the income statement - -

Other reclassifications - -

Equity method entities 22 38 671 115886
Valuation gains (losses) ag o7 11598
Amaunts transferred to the income statement - -

Other reclassifications - -

Othar recognised Income and expanses - -
income tax 23 { 13 407} [ 28 562)

C) TOTAL INCOME AND EXPENSES RECOGNISED (A+B) 102 641 {510 560)
C.1}) Attrlbuted to the parant company 102 332 (510 608)
C.2) Attributed to minority interests 309 48

boed

| S

=1

The nccompanying Notes 110 48 and Appendices |, §| y 1 form an Integre! part ef the recngrised consalidated incoma and experssa #t 31 Desember 2013,




[

AU R SO S AU SO R AN B SR R SN B SR ANOUS J SN0 S SN S S B SN SR S S A N S R S
UNICAJA BANCO, §.A. - SOCIEDAD UNIPERSONAL
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES {UNICAJA BANCO GROUP)
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN CONSOLIDATED EQUITY FOR THE YEARS ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2013 AND 2012
{Thousands of euros)
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE 10 PARENT COMANY
ECinTY
Minority
Reserves Profit for the Valuation Total Equity
Capitalf Less: Total Interests
year atiributed Total Own sdjustrents
Endowment lag;:::;‘nd et eniies tapannt | Divklends and Funds
losses) R pany
Balance at 3112211 2449 p4a 148 004 {_B2 643) 106 815 (22000){ 2628214 { B5 83} 2 542 381 3 578 2 545 859
Adjustments dua to changes In accounting palicy {Nota 1.12) - - - - - - - - - -
Adjustments made to comect erars - - - - - - - - - -
Adjusted beginning balance 2449044 148 004 | 52 843} 106 816 |22 o00) 2628 214 { 85833 2542 381 3 678 2 5AE D69
Total recognised Income and expense . - - (6577 253) . [ 677 28)) &6 645 { 510 608} 48 | 610 560)
Other changes In equity - 106 874 { 28524) {105 815) 22000 | { 336E) - [ 3385 { 9am| ¢ 4285
Capital increases - - - - - - - - - -
Capital reductions - - - - “ - - - - -
Cotwersion of inancial fiabilities into equity - - - - - - - - - -
increases in other equity instruments - - - - - - - - - -
Retinysification of inancial liabilifies to other equity instruments - - - - - - - - - -
Reclassification of olher equity instruments o Bnandial abllities - - - - - - - - - -
Distribution of dividends (c) - - - { 22 000) 22000 - - - - -
Transactions involving own equity instruments {nef) - - - - - - - - - -
Transfers betwser equity items - 108 974 { 26 524) { B3815) -| ¢ 3385 - { 3385 - { 3355}
Increasel{Decreass) due 1o business combinations - - - - - - - - - N
DOptional ranster to welfare funds - - - - - - - - - -
Equity-instrument-based payment - - - - - - - - - -
Oither increases/{decreases) in eguity - - - - - - - - { BaO) { 830)
Balance at 311127212 2449 D44 254878 { T8 173} (5T 253} ~ | 2047 596 { 19 1BB) 2028 408 26896 2031 104
Adjustments due to changes in aceounting palicy (Nota 1.12) - - - - - - - - - -
Adjustrments mada ta comect emrors - - - - - - - - - .
Adjusted beginning batance 2449 044 254 878 [ 78173} {677 253) - | 2047 596 { 19 188) 2 028 408 2536 2031104
Total recognized income and expense - - - Tt410 - 71410 30 822 102 a2 308 102 541
Other changes In equity . {51 332) { 47 988) 577 251 - | { B2085) - [ 520E8) 1479 [ &0885)
Capitsl increases - - - - - - - - - -
LCapital reductions - - - - - - - - - -
Conversion of financial Eabilities inte equity - - - - - - - - - -
Increases in other equily instruments - - - - - - - - - -
Retlassification of financial kabilities to other equily instrumeants - - - - - - - - - -
Reclassification of nther equity instruments to financial liabilities - - - “ - - - . - -
Ristribution of dividends [c) - - - - - - - . - -
Transactions involving own equily instruments {net} - - N - - - - - - -
Transfers between equily ems - (581332} { 47 986) 517 253 - { 520B65) - - 1478 { 50586)
Increase/{Decrease) dus to business combinations - - - - - - - - - -
Optianal fransfer lo welfare fungs - - - - - - - - - -
Equity-instrurent-based payment - - - - - - - - - -
Oiher increasesH{decreasas} in equity - - - - - - - - N -
Ealance at 33/12/2013 2 445 D44 {326 354} {127 158) 71410 - 2 058 841 11734 2078 875 4484 2 083 15%
The accampanying Notes 1 ko 43 snd Appendices [, B and Iil fosm &n lntayra) part of the statement of changes in equity at 31 D hes 20413,
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UNICAJA BANCO, S.A. - SOCIEDAD UNIPERSONAL
AND [TS SUBSIDIARIES (UNICAJA BANCO GROUP)

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEARS ENDED
D2

ECE
{Thousands of muros}
Nots 2013 2012
A) CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES { 838 685) { 113 538)
Net profit for the year TiT9 { 57T 205)
Adjustmants to profit and loss 134 250 [ 102 638)
Depreciation end amaortization 13y14 34 762 37 181
Other adjustments 2.19 89 458 { 139 818)
Nat Increase/decrease in oparating assets {1289 611} {2 696 035)
Financial assets held for trading B.t { 167 138} { 72120)
Other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - -
Avaiable-for-sale financial assets 8.1 178 821 (3438 2688)
Loans and receivables 10 {1 503 436) B42 244
Other operating assets 201042 T t08
Net increase/decraase In operating Habititios 482 783 3027 614
Financiai liabllities he!d for trading 8.2 4401 4 041
Other financial llabllities at fair value through profit or loss - -
Financial liabilities at amortised cost 186 614 422 2 8B6 481
Other cperating iiabilities { 1356030) 130 882
Collectlons/Payments of Income tax { 388386) 133 825
B} CAZH FLOWS FROM INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES 2182296 { 82994)
Payments { 13 E46) { 146 676)
Tangible sssets 13 { 11753) { 70701)
Intangible essets 14 ( 1661) { 23)
Investments 12 { 235 { 3350)
Other businesa units - -
Non-current assets and associated fiabllities for sale 18 - -
Held-to-maturity investments 8.4 - ( 7z801)
Other payments related to Investing activities - -
Collactions 2195 941 63 681
Tangible asesta 13 12324 15 788
Intangible asseis 14 - 121
Investments 12 500 851
Other business uniis - -
Non-currant assets and associated lisbilities for sale 15 - -
Held-te-maturity investmeants 84 2183117 46 510
Other payments related to investing activities - -
{Continued)
“Ihe mccompanying Notes 1 to 48 and Appencizes |, H and Bl form en tntegral part of the caah flow 2t Dy 2013,
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) UNICAJA BANCO, 5.A, - SOCIEDAD UNIPERSONAL
nj AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES (UNICAJA BANCO GROUP)
LiD [») E YEA
DEC
(Thousands of euros)
- Nate 2013 2012
C) CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES { 113 413) §921
B Payments { 113 413) { 22 000)
Dividends 3 - { 22 000y
Subordinated [iabllities 16.5 { 113413) -
Redemption of own equity Instruments - -
Acnuisition of own equity instruments - -
Cther payments refated to financing activities - -
g
Coliections - 28 921
Subordinated liabilities 16.5 - 28 821
A lssuance of own equlty instruments - -
& Dispogal of own equity instruments - -
ik Other eollections related to finanting activities - -
D} EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE FLUCTUATIONS - -
M E) NET INCREASE {DECREASE} IN CASH AND CASH EQIIVALENTS (A+B+C+D) 1428187 (189 612)
; F) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALNETS AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD 518 482 708 094
gt
G) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF PERIOD 1947 679 518 482
MEMORANDUM ITEMS:
ol
COMPONENTS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FOR THE PERIOD
Cash 218 211754 220 487
Cash equivalent balances at central banks 2.19 1701 563 297 985
Other financial asseats 219 34 422 -
i Less: bank overdrafts repayable on demand
Total cash and cash equivalents at end of period 219 1947 679 518 482
Of which held by consclidated entifies but not drawabie by group - -
The seenmparnylng Notes 1 ta 43 and Appendices 1, 1§ and 1l form an trtegral part of the ligd zash flow atd D 2013,
o
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Moreover, the Bank is the parent of a subgroup of subsidiaries that engage in diverse activities and make up
Unicaja Banco Group. In accordance with Article 6 of Royal Decree 1158/2010 (17 September) which
approves the Rules for Preparing Consolidated Annual Accounts and amends the General Accounting Plan
approved by Royal Decree 1514/2007 (16 November) and the General Accounting Plan for SMEs approved
by Royal Decree 1515/2007 (16 November), the Bank is obligated to prepare consclidated annual accounts as
it has issued securities that are traded on a regulated market in any European Union Member State, applying
International financial reporting standards adopted by European Union Regulations. Consequently, the Bank
has prepared the consolidated annual accounts for Unicaja Banco, S.A. - Sociedad Unipersonal and its
subsidiaries (Unicaja Banco Group), in addition to its own annual accounts, In accordance with current
legistation.

The companies that form part of Unicaja Banco Group at 31 December 2013 are as follows:

Company name

Activity

Alterig Corporacidn Unicaja, 5.L.U.

Alos de Jontoya Residencia para Mayores, S.L.U.
Analistas Econdmicos de Andalucia, 8.L.L),
Andaluza de Tramltacionas y Gestiones, AL,
Cartara de inversiones Agroglimentarias, S.L.
Consultora Técnica TASA, 5.L.U.

Corporacidn Uninser, 5.ALL
Escuela Superior de Estudios de Empresa, S.A

Gestidn de Actividades y Servicios Empresarates, 5.A.U,

Gestldn de Inmuebles Adquirides, S.L.U.
Intnobiliara Adinipo, S.L.U.

Inmaobiiiaria Uniex Sur, S.L.LL

Mijas Sof Resort, S.L.U.

Pamue Indusiral Humilladero, 5. L.
Privandalus Inversiones | SICAV, S.A.
Promotora Guadalnervidn, 5.1.U.

Renta Porfolio, S.L.U.

Sepurandalus Mediacldn, Comeduria de Seguros, 8.AL.
Tasaclones Andaluzas, 5.A.U,

Unica)a Gestién de Activos Inmobiliaros, 5.A.4,
Urécarlera Caja 2, S.L.U.

Unicartera Gastion de Activos, S.L.U.
Unlcartera intemaclonal, S.6.U.

Unlcarters Renta, S.L.LJ,

Unlc-as Promociones Inmobliliadas, S1.
Unilcorp Corporacién Financiera, S.L.,

Unicorp Patrimenio, Sociedad dae Valores, 5.A.U,
Unigest, S.G.11.C., 5AU.

Unimediacion, S.LU,

Unimediterrédnec de Inverslones, S.1.

Unlwindst Parque Edlico Las Lomillas, 5.1,
Uniwindet Parque Ediicn Loma de Ayala, S.L.
Uniwindet Parque Edlico Los Jarales, S.L.
Uniwindet Pargue Edlico Tras Villas, S.L.
Uniwindet, B.L.

Urbasur Actuaclones Urbanlsticas, 8.1,

Investment on assets, real estate and financial socleties
Geriatric care

Studies and analysis

Management of documents and deeds

Food industry

Consyiting, advisory, manapemant and technical developtent of land,
urban ptanning and building

Financlal services

Studles and analysis

Electronlc recording and data-processing

Resl estate

Real estate

Real estate

Real astate

Industrial land developmant

Collective investment tnstitution

Real estats

Rental property

Insurance brokerage

Real estate valuation

Real estate

Promotlon and financing of R&D in the field of medicine
Debt recovery and litigation menagement

Investmant In assets, securities and finence companles
Investment In assets, securities and finence companies
Real esiate

Prestacidn de servicios

Asset management

Asset management

insurance brokerage

investment in assets, securities and finance companias
Renewable enemy

Renewsble energy

Renewable energy

Renewable snery

Renewable snargy

Real estate
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In accordance with current legisiation, the Board of Directors of the Parent Company has prepared the Bank's
individual annual accounts. The effect on conselidation on the accompanying balance sheet at 31 December
2013 and 2012, the Income statement, the statement of changes in equity and the cash flow statement for
2013 and 2012 is summarised below:

Thousands of euros
2013 2012

Individual Consolldated Individual _Consolidated

Assets 41 796 027 41242821 41275164 40 714 264
Equity 2236738 2083 159 2132274 2031104
income for the year 107 017 71719 ( 531491) ( 577 205)

Total income and expense In the statement of

changes in equity 104 464 102641 ( 462889) { 510 560)
Net Increase/{decrease) In cash and cash egulvalents 1413 497 1428197 ( 180 285) { 188612)

The Group's consolidated annual accounts for 2013 and the annual accounts of most of its subsidiaries are
pending approval by its respective General Assambly or General Meeting. Nonetheless, the Entity's Board of
Directors expects thesa annual accounts to be approved without significant changes.

Set out below is a summary of the Parent entify’s individual balance sheet, individual income statement,
individual statement of changes in equity and individual cash flow statement for the years ended 31 December
2013 and 2012 which have been prepared in accordance with the same accounting principles and
measurement methods, gathered In the Clrcular 4/2004 of the Bank of Spain, as those applied in these
consolidated annual accounts;
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a) Individual Balance sheets for the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012

Thousands of suros
2013 2012
Cash and deposits at central banks 1013 155 518 419
Trading portfollo 282 514 117 875
Avallable-for-sale financlal assets 2 446 549 2 578 851
Loans and receivables 29 839 261 28 354 547
To-maturity investment portfolio 4 239 667 6322 382
Hedging derivatives 543 745 758 880
Non-current assets held for sale 263 918 2893 554
Shareholdings 715 734 781 031
Insurance contracts linked to pensions 132 067 119 359
Property, plant and equipment 530 376 548 272
Intanglble assets 1000 1724
Tax assets 822 988 815 287
Other assets 65 023 66 963
Total assets 41 796 027 41 278 164
Trading portfolio 11 981 7 580
Financial liabilities at amortized cost 38 636 801 38 092 D46
Hedging derivatives 251587 156 461
Provisiong 358 599 350 488
Tax llabliities 102 358 109 143
Welfare funds 424 393 430 172
Total liabliities 39 559 285 39 145 830
Valuation adjustments 20078 22 631
Equity: 2216 860 2 109 643
Share capital or assigned capital 800 000 800 000
Share premium 1762 616 1762616
Reserves { 452973) 78518
Other equlty Instruments - -
Income for the year 107 017 { 5314391
Less: Dividends and remuneration - -
Total equity 2 236 738 2132274
Total Habllitles and equity 41 796 027 41 278 164
Contingent risks 886 839 1 0BB 6685
Contingent commitments 3 548 087 3442 608
Total memorandum accounts 4 434 926 4 531 273
4




L

|

e

L

RN B

bs

b) Individual income statements for the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012;

Thousands of suros

2013 2012
Interest and simiar income 1106 720 1170 524
Interest expense and similar charges ( 486 8388) { 556 155)
Net Interest income 619 841 614 369
Retum on equity instruments 60 586 58 075
Fee and commission lncome 143 297 146 722
Fee and commisslon expense { 19825 ( 21408)
Gains/(losses) on financial assets and labliities (net) 238 725 11161
Exchange differences (net) { 237 802
Other operating income 33403 10 647
Other operating expense { 38432 ( 41375
Gross operating Income 1 038 558 779 882
Adminisirative expenses { 333528) { 345147)
Depreciation and amoriization { 25524) { 28813
Provisions (net) { 50275) { 4524B)
Impaiment losses on financial assels (net) { 452 884) {1 D45 754)
Profiti{loss) from operating activities 176 237 { 684 980)
impairment losses on other assels (net) { 55868) ( B84287)
Galns/{losses) on disposal of assets not classified as non-cument essets held
for sale 234 483
Negative goodwill on business combinations - -
Gains/{losses) on disposal of non-current assets held for sale not classified
as discounted operations ( 13294) { 21568)
Profiti{loss) before tax 107 208 ( 780372)
Income tax { 181) 258 881
Mandatory transfer to community projects and welfare funds - -
Profit/{loss) from continuing operations 107 017 { 531491)
Profit/{ioss) from discounted operations (nef) - -
Net profit for the year 107 017 { 531491)
5
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c} Individual statements of changes in equity for the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012:

Thousands of euros

2013 2012

Proflt for the year 107 017 (531 491)
Other Incoma and expenses { 2553) 68 602
Items that wil not be reciassified to Income { 363) -
Actuarial gains (losses) on penslon pians { §19) -
Non-current assets held for sale - -

Tax benefits related to items that will not
be reclassified to income 158 -
Items that may be raclassified to Income { 2180) 68 602
Financlal assets avallable for sale 13188 73 943
Hedges of cash flows { 17013) { 4179)
Hedges of net investments in forelgn operations - -
Exchange differences { 32) { 168)
Non-cument assets held for sale 728 { 981}
Entities accounted for using the participation method - -
Other income and expenses - -
Income tax related fo items that may

be reclassified to income 938 { 13)
Total income and expenses recognized 104 464 (462 888}

d) Individual statement qf changes in equity for the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012:

Thousands of euros
EQUITY
Capital’
Entowment|  Share Profitforthe| Dividendsand | &t Valuatk TOTAL
fund] premium | Resarves ysar} remunerations equlty | adjustsment EQUITY
Balanca at 31 of December 2011 80O 00D} 1 783 818 - 100 518 (22 000) 2641 134 (40 851)| 2600282
Adjustmaris dus to changes in accounting . R . . . .
pelicy
Adjustrants made to comect arors - - - . .
Adjusted beginning balznce 800 0560|1762 818 - 100 318 (22 ooO} 2841134 {40 831)| 2 e00 283
Total recognized Income and expense - - - (331 491) - { 531 491} BEEDZ] ( 482889
Other equity changes o «| Tasie] {100 518) 22 noo - (81200 [ 5120
Trensfers between equity itams - B R { 79 518; - - - -
Incraases (decreases) by combinations . . . _ . . .
business
Dividands distributicns/ Paymant
ta Partners (Note 3) : . - (22000 22000 - . -
Optionat fransfer to watfare funds - - - - - - - -
Otherincreases (decraases) - - - - . - {6120) ( 812}
Balance at 31 of December 2012 BOO OO0} 1 ¥E2816) TBS1E {831 481} - 2108 843 22831 | 2132274
Adfustments dua to changes in accounting . K . . . . . .
pokcy
Adjustments mada to comect amors - - - - . - - -
Adjusted baginning batance &0 000 1 FE2 618 TE SIS 1531 481) . 2100 843 22631 2132174
Total recognized income and expense - - - 107 017 - 107 037 { 2583 104 464
Other equity changes - - (531 401) 831 481 . - - -
Transfers batween aguity items - -F (B39 491} 831 41 - - - -
Increases (decreases) by carbinations . . R . . N
business
Dividends distibutions! Payment N . R . . .
to Partners (Note 3)
Optional transfer o weitare tunds - - - - - - .
Other increases {decreasas) - w - - - . .
Balance at 31 of December 2013 soooos| 1783 s2e73| sovour -l anmseso 20078 2738738
6
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e) Individual cash flow statemeants for the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012:

Thousands of euros
2013 2012
Cash flows from operating actlvities { 623177) { 171 958)
Net profit for the year 107 017 { 531491)
Adjusiments to profit and loss 178 891 { 211804)
Net increase/decrease in operating assets {1 312 683) {2 200 814)
Net increase/decrease in operating liabiities 420 184 2879218
Caliections/Payments of income tax { 14676) { 9B0&7)
Cash flows from investment activities 2146 449 { 24228)
Payments { 71937} ( 76034)
Collections 2218386 51806
Cash flows from flnancing activities { 1098 775) 6921
Payments { 108775) { 22000
Collections - 28 821
Effact of axchange rate fluctuations - -
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1413 497 ( 189 265)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 518 419 707 684
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 10831918 518 419

1.1.2 Segregation of the financial business

On 24 March 2011 Unicaja's Board of Directors approved an "Action Protocol for the Adaptation of Unicaja to
Indirectly carrying out financial activities" Subseguently, on 25 Juns 2011, the Savings Bank's General
Assembly approved the aferementioned indirect carrying out of financial activity by Unicaja through a Bank,
which is conceived as an instrument to better and more flexibly adapt to the current economic environment of
new regulatory requirements while allowing it to simultaneously maintain the basic Identity of a Savings Bank,
such as the Community Projects Fund, the association with a certain territory and mix the business efficiency
objective with social commitment.

Once the relevant authorisations were obtained and the period during which creditors could object after
publishing the relevant notices, on 1 December 2011 the public document executing the incorporation of the
Bank was signed and is wholly owned by Unicaja in order to indirectly carry out financial activities and to
which the institutions segregates its financial business. The Savings Bank continues to exist and maintains its
Community Projects Fund ("Obra Social y Monte de Piedad"). The Incorporation document was entered into
the Marcantile Registry on 2 December 2011,

In accordance with the provisions of Article § of Royal Decree-Law 11/2010 (8 July), on the goveming bodies
and other aspects of the legal system governing Savings Banks and Article 16 bis of Law 15/18389 (15
December) on Savings Banks in Andalusia, thelr governing bodies and other aspects of the legal system
governing Savings Banks, Unicaja transferred all of its assets and liabilities making up its financia! business to
the newly incorporated bank which acquired them through universal succession, based on the content of the
Segregation Project approved by the Savings Bank's governing bodies.

The Bank commenced operations the day following the date on which desegregation document was executed,
l.e. on 2 December 2011, and this does not represent any change in the products and services offered to
customers, or their contractual relationship with the entity, or the employment conditions of employees.
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The segregation involved the financial business carried out by Unicaja, considered to be the main and
secondary group of assets and liabilities that make up that financial business, which constitute a financial unit
with the excaption of the following:

(i) The assets and liabilities associated with Unicaja's "Monte de Pledad” ("savings bank secured loan
portfolio").

(i} The assets and liabliities associated with Unicaja's Community Project and Cultural Fund.

(i)  The interest hald in the basketball team "Club Balonceste Méalaga, S.A.D."

(iv}  Trademarks, brand names and other distinctive symbais.

(v)  The items classified by the Savings Bank as the artistic patimony of Unicaja.

(viy  Sufficient cash to attend to the liguidity needs of Unicaja.

(vii} The assets and liabilities that, during the time elapsed until the registration of the Segregation may
have been acquired by Unicaja as compensation or as a replacement of the aforementioned items.

Tha asset and liability is excluded from the calculation of the Segregated Equity are characterized by not
being assoclated with financial activities, but rather are of a benefit-foundation type, sponsorship or similar
gctivities.

For the purpases of the provisions of Article 36.1 and 73.1 of Law 3/2008 (3 April} on Structural Modifications
of Mercantile Companies (hereinafter SMMC), desegregation balance sheet was considered to be Unicaja's
individual balance sheet at 31 December 2010 included in the annual accounts for 2010 prepared by the
Board of Directors of the Institution on 24 March 2011.

In addition, the transaction is subject to the system established by Article 48 of the SMMC, which is applicable
to the general spin-off systems through the mission to article 73 of the SMMC and, as a consequence, a report
on the segregation project is not required. Since the transfer of the Segregated Equity constitutes, from the
point of view of Unleaja, a non-monetary contribution serving as the share capital of Unicaja Banco at the time
of Incorporation, the value has heen verified by an independent expert designated by the Mercantile Registry
for the purposes of Article 67 of the Spanish Companies Act 2010.

In compliance with the provisions of Royal Decree 11598/2010 (17 September) which approves the Rules for
Preparing Consolidated Annual Accounts and amends the General Accounting Plan approved by Royal
Decree 1514/2007 (16 November) and the General Accounting Plan for SMEs approved by Royal Decree
1515/2007 (16 November), the date of the Segregation for accounting purposes was established as 1 January
2011, which is understood to be the date as from which all of Unicaja's transactions relating to the Segregated
Equity are recorded by Unicaja Banco.

Unicaja Banco, S.A. - Sociedad Unipersonal was Incorporated with & share capital of €800,000 thousand,
consisting of 800 milllon shares with a par value of 1 euro each, fully subscribed and paid in by Monte de
Piedad y Caja de Ahorros de Ronda, Cédiz, Aimerla, Malaga, Antequera y Jaén through the contribution of
the Segregated Equity, as well as a share premium totalling €1,762,616 thousand, which has also been fully
paid in through the contribution of the Segregated Equity.

In compliance with Recognition and Measurement Rule 21 of the General Accounting Plan {GAPR), with the
amendments introduced by Royal Preview 1158/2010, which approves the Rules for Preparing Consolidated
Annual Accounts (RPCAA), the items making up the Segregated Equity have been measured at the amount
recognized in the Group's or sub group's consolidated annual accounts in accordance with the
aforementioned RPCAA, after the transaction.
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The segregation transaction applied the special tax system described in Title Vil, Chapter Vill and Additional
Provision Two of the Corporate Income Tax Act, approved by Legislative-Royal. 4/2004 (5 March) (hereinafter
the CITA), regarding the special system for mergers spin-offs, contributions of assets and share swaps. In
accordance with the above, Unicaja informed the Tax Autherities on 13 January 2012 its choice to apply the
tax neutrality system within the deadiine established by regulations after registering the segregation document
with the Marcantile Registry, In accordance with current tax legislation.

For the purposes of Article 83.1 of the Corporate Income Tax Act (hereinafter CITA) as the accounting
reporting obligations when considering and applying the Special Tax System regulated by Title VI, Chapter
Vil of the CITA, these notes to the annual accounts provide details of the segregated properties that may be
depreciated grouped together by year {Appendix |V) and the latest closed balance sheet for Unicaja (Appendix
V). There are no assets that have been included in the accounting records at a vaiue other than that at which
they were recognized in the transferring entity's accounts prior to the transaction. The rest of the information
required by that Article is not applicable to the Bank and therefore has not been included in these notes to the
annual accounts.

In addition, the transaction is not subject to value added tax in accordance with the provisions of Article 7 of
Lot 37/1892 (28 December) on Value Added Tax, or Transfer Tax and Stamp Duty applicable to Corporate
Operations in accordance with Article 19.2 and 15.1.B) 10 of the Law on Transfer Tax and Stamp Duty.

1.1.3 Restructuring of the management of real estate assets at Unicaja Group.

©n 31 October 2012 Law 8/2012 {30 October) on the write-down and sale of real estate assets in the financial
sector (herginafter Law 8/2012) was published and it stipulates that credit institutions must contribute to a
public limited liability company, in the terms established in Chapter |, all foreclosed asssts or those recelved
in lieu of payment as refarred to by Article 1.1. of Royal Decree-Law 2/2012 (3 February) i.e. those relating to
real estate developments and real estate construction or developments.

In general, the contributions to the asset management company will be recognized at fair value and must have
had besn completed at 31 December 2012. in the absence of a fair value or when it is difficult to obtain this
value, they will be recognized at their carrying valus, which will be calculated taking into consideration the
provisions created for the assets in accordance with Article 1.1. of Rayal Decree-Law 2/2012 (3 February) and
Article 1.1 of Royal Decree-Law 18/2012 {11 May). In the event that at the time they are contributed to the
Company the assets have not been covered by the provisions mentioned in the preceding paragraph, the
provisions must be created by the company benefiing from the contribution by the dates required in
accordance with hoth Royal Decrees. For the purposes of the provisions of Article 67 of the Spanish
Companies Act 2010, the measurement established in accordance with the preceding paragraphs will replace
the measurement carried out by an independent expert called for by that legisiation, provided that the
contribution takes place within the provision schedule to which the contributing entity is bound.

In compliance with the provisions of Law 8/2012, Unicaja Banco, S.A.U. has decided to restructure the
management of its real estate assets, concentrating the management of its foreclosed assets owned by
Unicaja Banco, S.A.U. and other companies pertaining to Unicaja Group in its investea company Gestidn de
Inmuebles Adquiridos, S.L.U. through several transactions of various types. Within the framework of this
restructuring and in accordance with the provisions of Law 8/2012, the shares in Gestitn de Inmuebles
Adquiridos, §.L.U. were subsequently transferred to an asset management company called Unicaja Gestion
de Activas Inmobiliarios, S.A.U., created for this purpose on 26 December 2012,
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The tax system established in Title VII, Chapter Vil of Legislative Royal Decree 4/2004 (5 March), which
approved the Corporate Income Tax Act, for the transactions mentioned in Article 83 of that Law, including the
effect on other taxes, will be applied to the transfers of real estate assets pertaining to the financial sector
even if thay do not relate to the transactions mentioned in Article 83 and 94 of that Law. Accordingly, Gestion
de inmuebles Adquiridos, S.L.U. -as the buyer of the assets- reported to the Tax Autharities on 27 February
2013 of its choice to apply the tax neutrality system within the deadline established by regulations,

In 2013, the Bank continued to segregate assets acquired through debt recovery processes, in compliance
with Law 8/2012, transferring the assets to the investee Gestién de Inmuebles Adguiridos, S.L.U., which is
wholly owned by Unicaja Gestitn de Activos inmaobiliarios, S.A.U. (Note 15.8)

1.2 Acquisition process of Banco de Caja Espafia de Inversiones, Salamanca y Soria, S.A,

On 15 July 2013, the Board of Directors of Unicaja Banco, S.A. agreed to initiate the necessary formalities to
submit an Offer to the shareholders and holders of necessarily and contingently convertible bonds of Banco
de Caja Espafa de Inversiones, Salamanca y Soria, 8.A. ("Banco CEISS"). Subsequently, the Board of
Directors of Unicaja Banco (on 5 October 2013) and the General Shareholders' Meeting of Unicgja Banco (an
11 October 2013) approved an Offer to exchange the shares and convertible securities of Banco CEISS
resulting from the action for the management of hybrid instruments resolved by the FROB in its rulings of 16
May and 15 July 2013.

In relation to this Offer, on 11 October 2013 Unicaja Banco's General Meeting adopted the following
resolutlons, subject to the terms and conditions described in the relevant fact published on that same date:

o Increase the Bank's share capital, estimating an incomplete subscription, in the amount of € 86,258
thousand, through the issue of 86,258,486 ordinary registered shares with 2 par value one euro each
and a unit share premium of 0.18827 euros per share (fotal share premium of € 16,240 thousand),
entailing a maximum capital increase of € 102,498 thousand (including share premiumy).

o Issue bonds necessarily and contingently convertible into new shares in Unicaja Banco, estimating
an incomplete subscription, for a maximum amount of € 115,754 thousand, in accordance with the
terms and conditions, and subject to the conversation regulations and types stated in the relevant
fact published by Unicaja Banco.

¢ |ssue perpetual bonds contingently convertible into new shares In Unicaja Banco, estimating an
incomplete subscription, for a maxirnum amount of € 115,754 thousand, in accordance with the terms
and conditions, and subject to the conversation regulations and types stated in the relevant fact
published by Unicaja Banco.

The Prospectus for the Offer to exchange shares, necessarily and contingently convertible bonds and
contingently convertible perpetual bonds of Unicaja Banco, to be subscribed by holders of shares and
necessarily and contingently convertible bonds of Banco CEISS, was authorized by the Spanish National
Securities Market Commission (CNMV) on 26 November 2013; an addendum was subseguently authorized on
30 December 2013,

According to the terms of the Prospectus, the exchange Offer was made conditional on acceptance by at
least; (i) 756% of the shares in Banco CEISS (the "Minimum Share Acceptance Condition”); and (b} 75% of the
sum of the shares in Banco CEISS and the necessarily and contingently convertible bonds of Banco CEISS
targeted (the "Minimum Total Securities Acceptance Condition”), Unicaja Banco reserving the possibility of
walving fulfilment of the Minimum Total Securities Acceptance Condition.

10
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Once the Offer acceptance period had elapsed, on 20 January 2014, the Offer was accepted by holders of
334,384,366 shares in Banco CEISS and 338,673,152 necessarily and contingently convertible bonds of
Banco CEISS. Accordingly, on 20 January, in view of tha result: (i) the Minimum Share Acceptance Condition
was fulfiled, acceptance amounting to 99.16% of the shares in Banco CEISS (including 18,356,056 shares
owned directly and indirectly by Unicaja Banco); (i} the Minimum Total Securities Acceptance Condition was
not fulfilled, acceptance totalling 60.66% of the sum of the shares and necessarily and contingently convertible
bonds of Banco CEISS (including 18,356,056 shares and 7,543,033 bonds owned by Unicaja Banco and
excluding 5,386,034 bonds owned by Banco CEISS itself).

Additionally, in connection with the exchange Offer, Unicaja Banco received & letter from the FROB stating (i)
that its Governing Board has agreed on the basic aspects of the modification of the Banco CEISS resolution
plan and, consequently, of the Term Sheet attached to the European Commission's decigion of 13 May 2013;
and (ii) that it intends to submit this change to the Bank of Spain and the Eurcpean Commission for approval,
The letter was accompanied by the nofification received by the FROB from the European Commission's
Directorate General for Competition Indicating that, although the final decision must be taken by the Coliege of
Commissioners, the planned modification to the Banco CEISS resclution plan is compatible with the EU's
state aid rules, based on its preliminary analysis, Unicaja Banco has received a letter from the Bank of Spain
Informing it that the Bank of Spain's Executive Committee has accepted the maodifications, for the purposes of
their inclusion in the modifications to the Banco CEISS resclution plan that the FROB wiil be asked to
approve.

Additionally, on 29 January 2014, Banco CEISS accepted, by means of a relevant fact, the basic aspects of
the modifications to its resolution plan. Moreover, as Banco CEISS states in its relevant fact, two agresments
supplementing the Term Sheet are to be adopted: (i) between Banco CEISS and SAREB, to establish the
adjustments derived from the agreement for the transfer of assets between SAREB and Banco CEISS,
concluded on 28 February 2013; and (ii) between Banco CEISS and FROB, to regulate an Offset Mechanism
n connection with the securities of Banco CEISS that the FROB will acquire as a resuit of claims from the
holders of necessarily and contingently convertible bonds of Bance CEISS in respect of which the Offer is not
accepted.

In accordance with the above-mentioned communications and relevant fact, the maodification of the Banco
CEISS resolution plan and thus of the Term Sheet would ba formalized in accordance with the following basic
aspects:

a) Distribution between the FROB and Banco CEISS of any negative effects of claim proceedings
instigated by helders of necessarily and contingently convertible bonds of Bance CEISS who do not
acecept the Offer, such that the FROB wiil absorb 71% of such impacts up to a maximum of € 318
million (€ 241 million net of the compensation that the FROB may receive under the Offset
Mechanism, as defined below}, Banco CEISS assuming the remaining 28%.

b) Acceptance of certain commitments and restrictions in connection with the future activities of Banco
CEISS which modify the ones initially envisaged in the Term Sheet, consisting basically of (i} the
maximum volume of the loan portfolio is reduced by a further 10%; (i) the maximum size of the
balance sheet is reduced by an additional 15%,; (iii) the target ratic of loans to deposits is 10% lower
than initially envisaged in Banco CEISS' maln business regions; (iv) the organisational restructuring
will include the closure of an additional 5% of its offices and the workforce reduction planned to 31
December 2014 is maintained, although there will be a further reduction of 5% by 31 December
20186. Additional restrictions are imposed on the distribution of dividends by Banco CEISS during the
resolution peried.

11
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Moreover, as declared in Banco CEISS' relevant fact and in the communications received, the two
agreements referred to above are expected to be adopted:;

a) A basic agreement, yet to hecome definitive, between the FROB and Banco CEISS in connection
with the securities of Banco CEISS that the FROB Is to acquire as a result of the claim that it will
assume under paragraph (a) ebove (the “Offset Machanism"), whereby the FROB will recsive, in
exchange for tha securities, an amount not lower than the value of the securities as appraised by the
consultant Cliver Wyman, which concluded that 100% of Banco CEISS had an equity value of € 334
miflion. If the maximum outlay stated in paragraph a) above (€ 319 million) is reached, the maximum
amourt receivable by FROB will be € 78 million, without any obligation for Banco CEISS to acquire
the securities in question prior to 1 January 2018. The agreement stipulates that the FROB will nat in
any circumstances become a shareholder of Unicaja Banco as a result of this mechanism.

b} The transactional settlement agreement to be concluded by Banco CEISS and SAREB to establish
the adjustments derived from the asset transfer agreement batween SAREB and Banco CEISS of 28
February 2013 (referred to in the "Risk Factors” section of the Registration Document). The
cenclusion of this transactional agreement, as indicated by Banco CEISS in its relevant fact of 29
January 2014, will not in any event mean that the amount charged to Banco CEISS reprasents a
significant departure from the figures contained in the Term Shest attached to the European
Commission's decision of 13 May 2013 (“State Aid SA36249 (2013/N)").

The basic agreements and proposals referred to above are subject to ratification and definitive formalisation
by Bance CEISS, FROB, Bank of Spain and SAREB, as well as definitive approval by the Spanish and EU
authorities.

On the basis of these agreements, and in view of Unicaja Banco's Interest in completing the acquisition of
Banco CEISS, Unicaja Banco undertakes, as stated in the relevant fact of 29 January 2014, to waive the
Minimum Total Securities Acceptance Condition once all the necessary authorizations have been obtained,
including definitive approval by Banco CEISS, FROB, Bank of Spain and SAREB of the abave-mentioned
agreements and proposals in the terms explained, and EU authorization, where applicable.

in the relevant fact of 28 January 2014, Unicaja Banco declared that, also in the event of acceptance below
75% of the Total Securities, the modification of the Resolution Plan and of the Term Sheet, and dispensation
from compilance with the Minimum Total Securities Acceptance Condition, the purpose stated in the
Prospectus, i.e. not to request the exemption from fulfilment of the capital adequacy ratio by Banco CEISS on
an individual basis, is maintained.

Accordingly, the following steps were agreed to complete the Offer:
a) Registration at the CNMV of an Addendum to the Offer Prospectus and opening of a period of three
business days in which new Offer acceptance orders may be submitted, as well as orders revoking
the acceptance orders already received.

b) When the above-mentioned agreements and proposals are approved and formalized in the terms
explained, Unicaja Banco will waive the Minimum Total Securities Acceptance Condition,

c} |If, by 31 March 2014, such approval has not been obtained, Unicaja Banco will waive dispensation
for the Minimum Total Securities Acceptance Condition and the Offer will be automatically rendered
ineffective.

12
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The Prospectus Addendum was approved and registered by the CNMV on 30 January 2014, the period for
submitting new Offer acceptance orders and revoking acceptance orders already received being 31 January,
3 February and 4 February 2014.

As indicated in the relevant fact of 28 January 2014, Unicaja Banco undertakes to announce to the market, at
the earliest opportunity and as soon as it becomes aware of it, any decision that may be taken by the Spanish
or EU authorities in relation to the matters described.

At the preparation date of these 2013 consolidated annual accounts, the conditions precedent defined for the
purposes of the integration with Banco CEISS have not been fulfilled and no formal notification has been
recelved from the competent authorities in ralation to this process.

1.3  Basis of presentation of the consolidated annual accounts

The Group's Consolidated annual accounts are presented in accordance with that established under
International Financial Reporting Standards adapted by the European Union (hereinafter, "IFRS - EU"),
bearing in mind Cireular 4/2004 of the Bank of Spain, of 22 December, which is the development and
adaptation to the Spanish credit entity sector of the International Financial Reporting Standards approved by
the European Union, and its subsequent amendments.

In this report the abbreviations “IAS" and “IFRS” are employed to refer to International Accounting Standards
and to International Financlal Reporting Standards, respectively, and the abbreviations “ICIFRS" and "CAS", to
refer interpretations of the Interpretations Committee on International Financial Reporting Standards and the
former Interpretations Committee respectively, all of these having been approved by the European Union
{(hereinafter, “EU"), is the basis on which these consolidated annual accounts were prepared.

The present consolidated annual accounts were prepared applying the total of the accounting principles and
norms and the valuation principles of obligatory application that have a significant effect on these, so that they
reflect the frue image of the equity and of the financial situation of the Group as at 31 December 2013 and the

results of operations, changes in net equity and cash flows that have arisen in the Group in the financlal year
ended on that date,

Note 2 summarises the principles and polices and the most significant valuation criteria applied in the
preparation of consolidated annual accounts of the Group for the year 2013.

The consolidated annual accounts have been prepared based on the accounting records of the Bank and
other Group entities. Nonetheless, and given that the accounting principles and standards applied in the
preparation of the Group’s consolidated annual accounts for 2013 may differ from those used by some of the
consolidated entities, during the consolidation process the necessary adjustments and reclassifications have
been made to standardise such principles and standards and bring them into line with the IFRS-EU applied by
the Entity.

Unless otherwise stated, these consclidated annual accounts are presented in thousand euros.
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1.4  Responsibility for the information and estimates

The informatien contained in the present consolidated annual accounis is the responsibility of the Directors of
the Bank.

In the consclidated financial statements of the Group for the year 2013, estimates were occasionally made by
the Directors of the Group to quantify some of the assets, liabilities, incoms, expenses and obligations
reported herein. Basically, these estimates refer to:

- Impairment losses on certain assets (Notes 9, 10, 12, 13, 14 and 15).

- Assumptions used in actuarial calculations of liabilittes and commitments relating to post-
employment benefits and other long-term commitments with employees (Notes 2.12 and 40).

- Useful life of property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets (Notes 2.14, 2,15, 13 and 14).
- Measurement of goodwill on consolidation (Notes 2.16 and 4).

- Estimation of the probabliity of ocgurrence of events classed as contingent liabilities and, if
applicable, estimation of the provisions necessary to cover thase events (Notes 2,18 and 17).

- Reversal period of temporary differences (Notes 2.13 and 23.4).

- Fair value of certaln unlisted assets (Note 25),

- The realisable value of certain guaranteas related to the collection of assets (Note 45).
These estimates were made based on the best information available at 31 December 2013 concerning the
facts analysed. Nonstheless, future events could generate significant adjustments (upward or downward} in
coming years, which would be made prospectively, in accordance with prevailing regulations, to recognize the
impact of the change in the estimate on the consolidated income statement for the years in quastion.

In 2013 there were no changes to the Group's accounting estimates having a significant impact on either the
consolidated results for the year or the consolidated balance sheet.

1.5  Comparabllity of the information

As required by IAS 1, the information contained in this consolidated report referred to the year 2013 is
presented only for comparison purposes with the information on the year 2012 and therefors does not
constitute the Group's consolidated financial statements for the year 2012,

The legislative developments during 2013 have not affected the comparability of the financlal information of
the Group, so it was not necessary any adjustment or reclassification of the quantitative information for 2012
which was published In the annual accounts of the previous year.

As regards the seasonal nature of income and expenses, the most significant transactions completed by the

Unicaja Banco Group entities relate basically to the typical activities of financial institutions, so that these
consclidated annual accounts are not significantly affected by seasonal factors.
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1.6 Investments in credit institutions

in accordance with Article 20 of Royal Decreg 1245/1995 (14 July), there follows a list of the Group's share in
domestic and foreign credit institutions that exceed 5% of their capital or voting rights at 31 December 2013

Entity % share
Baneo Europeo de Finanzas, S.A. (%) 40,7%
EBN, Sccledad Espafiola de Banca de Negoecios, S.A. 24,1%
Banco de Caja Espafia de Inversiones, Salamanca y Soria, S.A. 5,0%

()  Direct investment of 1,2% and indirect investmant of 38.5% through Alteria Corporacién Unicaja, S.L.U.

At 31 December 2013, no domestic or foreign credit institution {or groups as defined in Article 4 of the Stock
Market Law that include a domestic or foreign credit institution) owns a share of 5% or more in the capital or
voling rights of any credit institution that should be regarded as a Group entity.

1.7 Agency agreements

At 31 December 2013, the following agents of the Group's Parent entity meet the requirements of Article 22 of
RD 1245/1885 and Bank of Spain Circular 4/2010;

1}  Entity’s Authorized Signatories

i
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]

Ld Beed b

s TN SO | -

Name

Anget Malgler Unguetti
Aplagest Consulting, S.L.

Construcciones y Promociones Taberno, Gestlones

Inmoblilarias, 5.L.
Maria Eugenia Sanchez Berjaga
Maria Dolores Asenslo Agulla
Contaestrella, S.L.
Pablo Femandez Rivera
Antonio Sdnchez Rulz
Antonio Sanchez Escobar
José Antonlo Arrebola Benitez
Gestion 3 Uleila, S.L.
Pablo Feméndez Enriquez
José Manuel Alcaraz Forte
Antonla Castellano Yeste
Matia Isabel Judrez Padilla
Maria Dolores Abellan Berruezo

Geographlcal scope

Muontizén y Venta de los Santos (Jaén)
Campo de Criptana (Ciudad Real)

Taberno (Almeria)

Hornos de Segura (Jaén)

Palema del Rlo y Bayéreal (Almeria)
Puebla de los Infantes (Sevilla)
Fondén (Almerla)

Villarodrigo {Jaén)

La Joya (Antequera - Malaga)
Estacién de Salinas (Archidona - Malaga)
Uleila del Campo {Almerfa)

Alcolea (Almeria)

Ragal e Instincién (Almeria)

Hijate (Almerla)

Rioja (Almeria)}

Mojacar (Almeria)
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2} List of Bank nominees for customer retention or promotion and marksting operations or services.

Name

Viada Asesores, S.L.

Sistemas Interactivos Malaguefios S.L.

Avances Tecnolégicos y Diseflo S.L.

Sistema Asesores Malaga, S.L.

Manuela Jurado Oliero

Mario Navarro Diaz

Sur Finanz Agentes, S.L

Grupo Inmoblliario Soto Jimenaz, S.L.

Francisco Javier Bazan Viriudes

Francisco Javier Arroyo Lorca

Antonio Acasta Oller

Manueia Joyar Montliia

Matilde Cuerva Tortosa

Jara-Inversiones e Intermedtfacion, S.L.

Carlos Lorente Martinez

Gestem Planificacién y Desarrollo Integral de
Empresas, S.L.

Catalina Castro Jurado

Maria del Carmen Avila Andrés

José Melero Verdsjo, S.L.

Del Ferrio Inversiones, S.L

Manuel Angel Garrido Rengel

Orvel 21, S.L,

Dalmlel Asesores inmobiliarios, S.L.

Jarava Barrera, S.L.

Antonia Marfa Manso Sanchez

Explotaciones de Mingos Verdes, S.L

1.8  Environmental impact

Geographical scope

Puertoliano (Cludad Real)
Torrematines (Mataga)
Marbetla (Mélaga)
Malaga

Marmolejo (Jadn)
Estepona (Mélaga)
Fuenglrola (Malaga)
Pinos-Puente (Granada)
Mélaga

Valverde Del Camino (Huelva)
Tijola (Almeria)

Jaén

Almerla

Almeria
Deifontes(Granada)

Méalaga

Terrox (Mélaga)
Granada

Cordoba

Estepona (Mélaga)
Moguer (Huslva)
Vélez-Malaga (Mélaga)
Daimiel (Ciudad Real)
Cludad Real

Faclnas (Cadiz)

Alcala de Henares (Madrid)

The Unicaja Banco Group entities global transactions are subject to environmental protection regulations
{environmenta! laws). The Entity considers that the Group substantially meets the requirements of
anvironmental laws and that it has procedures In place to guarantee and encourage complianca,

The Entity considers that the Group has adopted the necessary measures with respect to the protection and
improvement of the envionment and the minimisation of environmental impact, where applicable, in
accordance with current envireonmental iaws. In 2013 and 2012 the Entity did not make any significant
environmental investments and did not identify any need to make provision for environmental risks and
charges ar any significant contingencles in connection with environmental protection and improvement.

1.8  Minimum ratios

1.9.1 Minimum capital requirement

On 22 May 2008, the Bank of Spain issued Clreular 3/2008, on the determination and control of
minimum capital requirement, partially modified by Circular 8/2010 (22 December) regulates the
minimum equity that Spanish credit institutions must maintain and the manner in that equity must be
calculated, as well as the various capital self-assessment processas must be carried out together with

the public information that must be provided to the market.
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Additionally, Royal Decree Law 2/2011, of February 18, on Strengthening the Financlal System
required that banks count with a minimum ratic of 8% core capital (cbtained by dividing the resources
of higher guality, with certain deductions, and risk-weighted assets), This ratio should be 10% if the
entity had no private investors in their capital by an amount graater than 20% or If the entity held a
depandence on wholesale funding more than 20%.

In 2012, the Law 9/2012, of 14 November, restructuring and resolution of credit institutions repeals
Decree-Law 24/2012, of February 18, for strengthening the financial system, transformed generally
established requirements of 8% core capital and 10% set for entities with limited access to capital and
markets for wholesale funding predominates, in a unigue requirement of 8% to be met by the
aforementioned entities and groups from January 1, 2013. The above Act also entalls a change to the
definition of core capital to conform it to the one used by the European Banking Authority {EBA).
Circular 7/2012, of November 30 of the Bank of Spain, to credit institutions on minimum capital
requirements principal develops the regime established by that law.

In 2013, by means of Circular 4/2013 (27 September), the definition of small and medium-sized
companies was changed for capital adequacy purposes. The definition of SMEs was extended,
bringing it into Hne with the European concept contained in Recommendation 2003/361/EC of the
Commission (6 May) on the definition of micro, small and medium-sized enterprises. This change
means that a larger number of credit institution exposures could be reclassified to the retail exposures
regulatory category, which Is afforded favourable treatment when calculating risk-welghted exposures.

Finally, on 5 February 2014, Bank of Spain Circular 2/2014 (31 January) was issued to credit
institutions, on the exerclse of various regulatory options contained in Regulation (EU) No. 5758/2013 of
the European Parliament and of the Council (26 June 2013) (CRR) on prudential requirements for
credit institutions and investment firms, and amending Regulation (EU) No. 648/2012. The purpose is
to establish which options must be fulfilled immediately by Spanish credit Institutions, as from the
effective date of the new capital adequacy regulatory framework, and the scope of these opticns,

The management of the Group adjusts its own resources, as conceptual definitions are concerned, to
what is gathered in the Circular 3/2008 of Bank of Spain and its subsequent amendments. In this
regard, the Bank considers as eligible capital specified in Rule B of Circular 3/2008 of Bank of Spain
and its subseguent amendments,

At 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Entity's equity, taking Into account the distributed surplus (Note 3)
amounted to €2,108,750 thousand and €2,211,250 thousand, respectively. This represents a surplus,
in respect to the minimum amount required by Bank of Spain Circular 5/1893 and subsequent
amendments, amounting to €628,408 thousand and €765,348 thousand, respectively.

Thousands of euros

2013 2012

Baslc equity 2060 621 49881 027
Of which: Core capital 2 060 326 1980 901
Additional equity 49128 230233
Total eliglble equity 2169 750 2 211 260
Total equity requirement 1 2B1 342 1445912
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The Entity carries out rigorouis action to malntain a prudent and balanced risk profile, preserving the
objectives of solvency, profitabllity and adequate liquidity, Risk management processes are guided by
the following basic principles;

« Permmanent rigorous action to maintain a prudent and balanced risk profile, preserving the
objectives of solvency, profitabllity and adequate liquidity.

+ Active participation and supervision by Senior Management, which approves the general
business strategles and policies applied by the Entity and establishes the general lines of risk
management and control at the Entity.

« (General interal control environment.

» Segregation of duties and the process of measuring and controlling the Entity's risk is
completely Independent from the risk taking function.

« Minimization of doubtful assets through prudent risk management, particuiarly by avoiding of
uncertain viability and quantitative imitations of investments based on sufficient guarantee
parameters,

= Selection of adequate risk measurement methodologies.

The Entity's policles, methods and procedures relating to Overall Risk Management are appraved by
the Board of Directors. The Control Cornmittee, the Audit Committee, the Asset, Liability and Budgst
Committee (ALBC) and the Internal Supervision and Risk Control Department at the Entity is
responsible for ensuring adequate compliance with those policies, methods and procedures, ensuring
that they are adequate, are effectively implemented and reviewed on a regular basis.

1.8.2 Minimum raserves ratio

At 31 December 2013 and 2012, and throughout 2013 and 2012, the Entity complied with the minimum
reserves ratio imposed by applicable Spanish regulations.

On 21 December 2011 the Officlal Jounal of the European Union {OJEU} published Regulation (EU)
1358/2011 of the European Central Bank (14 December), which amends Regulation (EC) 1745/2003,
relating to the application of minimum reserves. The aforementioned amendmeant consists of including
the reduction from 2% to 1%, approved by the Board of Governors of the European Central Bank on 8
December 2011, affecting the minimum reserve ratio to be held by entities subject to the regulations.
This amendment entered into force as from the reserve malintenance period starting on 18 January
2012,

1.10 Deposit Guarantee Fund
The Entity is a member of the Deposit Guarantee Fund. In the years 2013 and 2012, expenses incurred
through the ordinary and extraordinary contributions to this body amounted to €27 477 thousand and €31,807

thousand, respectively, that were booked under the heading “Other operating charges - Contribution to the
Depasits Guarantes Fund” in the attached consolidated profit and loss account (Note 39).
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Royal Decree-Law 16/2011 (14 Qctober) entered into force on 15 October 2011 and created the Deposit
Guarantes Fund for Credit Institutions (RD 16/2001). Article 2 of that Royal Decree-Law declares the
cancellation of the Deposit Guarantee Fund for Savings Banks, the Deposit Guarantee Fund for Banking
Establishments and the Deposit Guarantee Fund for Credit Cooperatives, the balances of which are integrated
into the Deposit Guarantee Fund for Credit Institutions, which subjugates to all of the rights and obligations of
the cancelled funds. As a result, as from that date the Savings Bank joined the new Deposit Guarantee Fund
for Credit Institutions.

Onto December 2011 Royal Decree-Law 18/2011 (2 December) entered into force and amended Royal
Decree 16/2011 which established that the amount of the contributions by Entities to the Deposit Guarantee
Fund for Credit Institutions would increase to 2 per thousand of the caiculation base. The aforementioned
Royal Decree is applicable to the contributions made as from the date on which it entered into force. In 2011
the amount of contributions was set at 1 per thousand of the calculation base.

On 4 July 2011 Circular Letter 3/2011 (30 June) entered into force for entities belonging to a deposit
guarantes fund and covers additional contributions to deposit guarantee funds. That Circular Letter
establishes mandatory quarterly additional contributions for member entities that obtain term deposits or settle
Interest-bearing current accounts ceding certain interest rate, based on the term of the deposit or the nature of
the on demand account. This contribution would derive from the weighting, of 500%, of deposits obtained or
settled that exceed those rates, of the calculation base that may be determined by ordinary contributions. On
31 August 2012 the additional contributions to the Deposit Guarantee Fund were repsaled with the
publication of Royal Decree-Law 24/2012,

The Deposit Guarantee Fund Management Committee, in order to restore the Fund's financial position
pursuant to Article 6.2 of Royal Decree-Law 168/2011 (14 October), resolved on 30 July 2012 to request
contributions from the member institutions, apportioned using the calculation base for the contributions at 31
December 2011, payable in ten equal annual instalments. The amount of the instalment payable on each date
may be deducted from the ordinary annual contribution paid by the institution, if applicable, on that same date,
up to the amount of the ordinary contribution.

Additionally, in order for the Deposit Guarantee Fund's financial position to remaln balanced, allowing the
proper performance of its functions to ensure the stability of Spain's financlal system, and pursuant to Royal
Decree-Law 6/2013 (22 March), a one-off spacial contribution was stipulated, equal to three ona thousandths
of the qualifying deposits. This contribution is arranged in two phases. Initial 40% contribution, for which there
are a number of deductions related to the size of the institution, its contributions to the SAREB and the recelpt
of state aid. A second 60% contribution payable as from 2014 and within @ maximum of seven years, in
accordance with the payment schedule to be established by the Deposit Guarantee Fund Management
Committes.

The expense incutred in 2013 includes the additional contribution of € 1,555 thousand reguired by Royal
Decree-Law 6/2013.

1.11  Subsequent events

During 2014, fo the issue date of these consolidated annual accounts, there have been new developments in
connection with the acquisition of Banco de Caja Espafia de inversiones, Salamanca y Saria, S.A. (Banco
CEISS) described in Note 1.2,

During the period from 31 December 2013 to the issue date of these consolidated annual accounts, thers
have been no particutarly relevant events that are not referred to in the notes to the accounts.
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1.12 Changes in accounting criteria,

In 2013, new accounting norms became effective and have, therefore, been taken into account in the

preparation of the Group's consolidated annual accounts for 2013:

Normms, modifications and

Obligatery application to
financial years heginning from

interpretations Description
1AS 1 Presantation of financiaf statements: presentation of items of other
comprehensive income

IAS 12 Defarred tax: Recovery of underdying assets
1AS 18 Empioyee benefits
IFRS 1 Severe hyperinflation and removal of fixed dates for first-time
adopters

IFRS 1 Govermnment loans
IFRS 7 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabliities
IFRS 13 Falr valus measurement
IFRIC 20 Stripplng costs in the production phase of & surface mine
Varlous IFRS Minor modifications of a set of rules

1 July 2012

t January 2013
1 lanuary 2013

1 January 2013
1 January 2013
1 January 2013
1 January 2013
1 January 2013

On the date of the preparation of these consolidated annual accounts, the following noms and interpretations
{the most important applied on that date} that had been published by the IASB had not come into &ffect, elther
because their effective data is after the date of these consolidated annual accounts, or because they have not

yet been adapted by the Eurcpean Union:

Norms, medifications and

Interpretations Deacription
IFRS1 First-time adoption: official loans
IFRS 7 Financial instruments: disclosures
Offsetting financial assets and fiabilites
|IFRS 8 Financial instruments
IFRS 10 Consolidated fnancial statements
IFRS 11 Joint arrangemants
IFRS 12 Details of interests in other entities
IFRS 13 Fair value measurament
Medification of [AS 18 Employes salaries
Modification of [AS 1 Presentation of firancial statement
Modification of I1AS Z7 Separats financial statements
Modification of |AS 28 Investments |n associates and jaint ventures
Modification of 1AS 32 Financial instruments: presentation
Offsetting financial assets and labilities
Improvements to IFRSs Minor medifications to a set of rules
Muodification of IFRS 10, 11 and Classification of transition niles of these rules
12
IFR5 1 First-time adoption: official loans

{")The Group has applied IFRIC 21 early in 2013,

Obligatory application to
financial years beginning from

1 January 2014
t fanuary 2014

1 January 2014
1 January 2014
1 January 2014
1 January 2015
1 January 2014
1 January 2014
1 January 2014
1 January 2018
1 January 2014
1 January 2014

1 July 2014
1 January 2014

1 July 2014

The Administrators of the Savings Bank believe that the application of the majority of these norms will not
have an important impact on the Group's consolidated annual accounts in the following years.
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Standards and interpretations In force in the current year

In 2013 the following amendments to International Financial Reporting Stendards (IFRS} or interpretations of
IFRS (IFRIC) came into effect and did not have a significant impact on the consolidated annual accounts:

o

IAS 1 (Amendment) “Presentation of financial statements™ This amendment to IAS 1 changes the
presentation of the other statement of comprehensive income (called the statement of recognized
income and expenses in Bank of Spain Circular 4/2004), requiring that the items included in other
comprehensive income ba grouped in two categories based on whether or not they will be taken to
the income statement. lems that will not finally be taken to the income statement, such as
restatements of property, plant and equipment, must be presented separately from items that will
affect the income statement in the future, such as losses and gains on cash flow hedges. This
amendment is mandatory for all financial years starting on or after 1 July 2012,

This standard has not had a material impact on the Group's consolidated annual accounts, although
the presentation of certain items in the consolidated statement of recognized income and expenses
has been changed.

IAS 12 (Amendment) “Deferred tax: Recovery of underlying asseis” The amendment to IAS 12
provides a practical approach to the measurement of deferred tax assets and liabllities related to
investment property carried at fair value, one of the measurement options provided by (AS 40
"Investment property”. Although this amendment was mandatory for all annual periods commencing
on or after 01 January 2012, as per the effective date stipulated by the IASB, for European Union
purposes the effective date refers to pericds commencing on or after 1 January 2013.

IAS 19 (Amendment) “Employee benefits”. The amendment to |IAS 19 changes the recognition and
measurement of defined benefit pension costs and of termination benefits, as welt as disclosures of
all employee benefits, The following aspects of IAS 18 have been changed, among others:

- Actuarial gains and losses (now called "recalculations”) may only be recognized in other
comprehensive incoms, .8, in the statement of recognized income and expenses, as items
that will not be taken to the income statement. The options of deferring actuarial losses and
gains through the corridor appreoach and of recognizing them directly in the income
statement have been eliminated. Revaluations recognized in other comprehensive income
may not be taken to the income statement.

- The cost of past services must be recognized in the period in which the plan is modified and
benefits not vested in a service period may not be deferred to future periods. Reductions
only occur when the number of employees included in the plan falls significantly, Losses
and gains derived from reductions must be recognized in the same way as past service
costs.

- This annual expense of a financed benefit plan must Include the net interest expense or
incame, calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit asset or abliity.

-  Banefits requiring the provision of future services will not be treated as termination benefits.

The amended IAS 18 is mandatory on a retroactive basis for all financlal years starting on or after 1
January 2013.
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IFRS 1 (Amendment) "Severe hyperinfiation and removal of fixed dates for first-time adopters™ The
amendments related to severe hyperinflation provide guidance on how to present for the first time, or
summarise when presenting financial statements under IFRS, following a period during which the
entity was unable to fulfil IFRS requirements because its functional currency was subject to sever
hyperinfiation. Although this amendment was mandatory for all annual periods commencing on or
after 1 July 2011, as per the effective date stipulated by the IASB, for European Union purposes the
effective date refers to periods commencing on or after 4 January 2013,

IFRS 1 {Amendment) "Govemment loans": The IASB has amended IFRS 1 “First-time adoption of
Internationsl Financial Reporting Standards” {o allow first-time adopters to apply the provisions of IAS
20 "Accounting for government grants and disclosure of government assistance”, applicable to
entities already applying IFRS, in connection with government loans at below-market interest rates.
This amendmant is mandatory for all financial years starting on or after 1 January 2013,

IFRS 7 (Amendment) "Offsetting financial assets and financial liabifities”. The amendment to {FRS 7
requires disclosure of quantitative information both on recognized financial instruments that have
been offset In the balance sheet and on financial instruments subject to master netting arrangements,
irrespective of whether ar not they have been offset in the balance sheet. The amendmentto IFRS 7
is mandatory for all financial ysars starting on or after 1 January 2013 and is applicable retroactively.

IFRS 13 "Fair value measurement”: IFRS 13 explains how to measure items at fair value; it is
designed to improve and extend fair value disclosure requirements, This standard does not establish
which elements must be measured at fair value or add any new fair value measurement
requirements. This new standard is mandatory for all financial years starting on or after 1 January
2013. The new standard is applied prospactively as from the start of the financial year in which it is
adopted for the first time. The disclosure requirements do not apply to the comparative information
presented for periods prior to the period of first-ime adoption of IFRS 13.

IFRIC 20 "Stripping costs In the production phase of & surface mine”: IFRIC 20 defines when
stripping costs must be recognized as an asset in the balance shest and how they must be measured
at initial recognition and subseguent measurement. This new standard is mandatory for all financiat
years starting on or after 1 January 2013.

improvements to IFRS Cycle 2008-2011: This IFRS irnprovement project brings In minor changes
and clarifications, relating mainly to IFRS 1 “First-time adoption of IFRS", |AS 1 "Presentation of
financial statements’, IAS 16 “Properly, plant and equipment’, IAS 32 “Financial hstruments:
Presentation” and 1AS 34 “Interim financial reporting”. The changes are applicable rstroactively to
financial years starting on or after 1 January 2013.

The application of above-mentioned accounting standards and interpretations has had no significant effect on
the Group's consolidated annual accounts.
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Standards and interpretations Issued and not in force

At the issue date of these consolidated annual accounts, new International Financial Reporting Standards and
interpretations of standards have been published that are not mandatory for periods commencing on or after 1
January 2013. At the present date, the analysis of the future effects, if any, that could arise from the adoption
of these standards has not yet been completed, although no significant impacts are envisaged. These
standards are as follows:

o

IAS 27 (Amendment) “Separate financial statements”. The requirements previously contained in 1AS
27 relating to the preparation of consolidated financial statements are included in the new IFRS 10.
The scope of IAS 27 is therefore reduced to the recognition of investments in subsidiaries, jointly-
controlled entities and assoctates in the Investing entity's individual financial statements under IFRS,
no changes having been made with respect to the previous standard. Although the amended IAS 27
is mandatory for all annual periods commencing on or after 1 January 2013, as per the sffective date
stipulated by the IASB, for European Union purposes the effective date refers to periods commencing
on or after 1 January 2014,

IAS 28 (Amendment) "Investments in associates and joint ventures”: 1AS 28 has been updated to
include references to joint ventures, which must be recognized using the equity method under the
new IFRS 11. Although the amended IAS 28 is mandatory for all annual periods commencing on or
after 1 January 2013, as per the effective date stipulated by the IASB, for Europsan Union purposes
the effactive date refers to periods commencing on or after 1 January 2014,

IAS 32 (Amendment) “Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities™ The Application Guidance is
modified to clarify some of the requirements for offsetting financial assets and financial liahilities in
the balance sheet. The amendment does not affect the offset mods! already provided In IAS 32,
which is still applicable when, and only when, an entity currently has the legally enforceable right to
offset the amounts recognized and the intention to settle the net amount or to realize the asset and
setftle the llabllity simultaneously. The amendment clarifies that the offset right must be available at
the current time, i.e. does not depend on a future event. Additlonally, the right must be legally
enforceable in the ordinary course of business of the counterparties involved in the transaction, even
in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy. The amendment to IAS 32 is mandatory for all
financial years starting on or after 1 January 2014 and is applicable retroactively. Early adoption is
perritted.

IAS 36 (Amendment) “Recoverable amount disclosures for non-financial assets™ The amendment
requires the presentation of supplementary information on fair value measurements made In the
event of Impairment or a reversal of impairmment. Among other aspects, this amendment: (i) removes
the requirement to disclose the recaverable amount when a cash-generating unit (CGU) contains
guodwill or an intanglble asset with an indefinite useful life, but no impairment loss has been
recognized, (i) requires disclosure of the recoverable amount of an asset or CGU when an
impairment loss has been recognized or reversed; and (jii) requires detailed disclosure of how fair
value less costs to sell or dispose of the asset by other means has been measured when an
impairment loss has been recognized or reversed. This amendment Is applicable retrospectively in
financial years beginning on aor after 1 January 2014, It may be early adopted, but never bafore IFRS
13.

IAS 32 (Amendment) “Novation of derivatives and continuation of hedge accounting™ Under this
standard, an entity is required to interrupt hedge accounting where a derivative designated as a
hedging instrument is novated to a Central Counterparty Clearing House (CCP), since the original
derivative ceases to exist. The new derivative with the CCP is recognized at the novation date. These
emendment will be applicable to financlal years commencing on or after 1 January 2014 and may be
early adopted,
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IFRS 8 "Financial instruments": IFRS 9 simplifies the accounting treatment of financial assets and
brings in new classification and measurement requirements. Financial assets held mainly to collect
cash flows representing principal and interest payments must be carried at amortized cost, while all
other financlal assets, Including assets held for trading, must be measured at fair value.
Consequently, an impairment model is required only for financial assets carried at amortized cost. As
part of this process, though unrelated to hedge accounting, IFRS 8 is also amandsd to allow entities
to early adopt the requirement to recognize, in other comprehensive income, fair value changes
attributable to changes in the entity's own credit risk for financial labifities carried at fair value (this
may be applied without having to adopt the rest of the standard). IFRS S will be applicable
retroactively, except in reletion to hedge accounting, which will be applicable prospectively (with
some exceptions). As regards the 1ASB, the effective date of the standard has been eliminated,
established for 1 January 2015, although entities may still choose to apply it immediately. It has not
yet been adopted by the European Union.,

IFRS 10 "Censalidated financial statements®: IFRS 10 brings in changes o the concept of control,
which is still defined as the factor determining whether an entity must or must not be included In the
consotidated financial statements. IFRS 10 replaces the control and consolidation guldance provided
by IAS 27 and elfiminates SIC 12, which is repealed. In order for control to exist, two elements must
be identified: power over an entity and variable returns. The standard provides extensive guidance
for cases in which it is difficult to determine whether or not control exists. The concept of unity of the
parent entity and its subsidiaries for the purposes of the consolidated financial statements, and 'the
consolidation procedures, have not changed with respect to IAS 27. Although this standard is
mandatory for all annual periods commencing on or after 1 January 2013, as per the effective date
stipulated by the IASB, for European Union purposes the effective date refers to parleds commencing
on or after 1 January 2014,

IFRS 11 "Joint arrangements™ This will replace the cumrent IAS 31, The fundamental change with
respect to the current standard is the elimination of the proportionate consclidation option for jointly-
controlled entities, which will be equity consolidated. Although this standard is mandatory for all
annual pericds commencing on or after 1 January 2013, as per the effective date stipulated by the
IASB, for European Union purposes the effective date refers to periods commencing on or after 1
January 2014,

IFR8 12 "Disclosura of interests in other entities”. This disclosure standard groups together all the
accounting disclosure reguirements applicable to interests in other entities (whether subsidiaries,
associates, joint ventures or other interests) and Includes new disclosure requirements. Although this
standard is mandatory for all annual periods commencing on or after 1 January 2013, as per the
effective date stipulated by the |ASB, for European Union purposes the effective date refers o
periods commencing on or after 1 January 2014,

IFRS 14 “Regulatory deferral accounts™ IFRS 14 applies only to first-fime adopters of IFRS 1 and
allows them to continue to recognize amounts related to rate regulation in accordance with the
policies applied prior to the adoption of IFRS with respect o the recognition, measuremant,
impairment and derecognition of these balances. However, in order to enhance comparability with
entities already applying IFRS that do not recognize those amounts, the standard stipulates that the
effect of such rate regulation must be presented separately from other items. An entity that already
presents its financial statements under IFRS cannot apply this standard. This standard comes into
force on 1 January 2016 and may be early adopted. it is not mandatory, but entities that will apply the
guidance should begin to consider their implications in relation to the adoption of IFRS,
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IFRS 10 {(Amendment), IFRS 11 (Amendment) and IFRS 12 {Amendment) "Consolidated financial
statements, joint arrangemants and disclosure of interests in other entities: Transltion Guidance™ The
differences between the "control" concept under IFRS 10 and |AS 27/SIC 12 may require an entity
previously not consolidated o consolidate and vice versa. If the conclusion regarding the need {o
consolidate changes on first-time adoption of IFRS 10, the comparative information for the
immediately precading period must be restated, unless this is impracticable. Any difference arising
from the application of IFRS 10 at the start of the comparative period Is taken to equity. Conversely,
when the decision on the need to consolidate does not change on first-time adoption of IFRS 10, no
accounting adjustment Is required. This assistance relating to the transition to the new regulations
also applies to investees disposed of prior to the date of first-time adoption. Comparative disclosures
are necessary under IFRS 12 in relation to subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures; this is limited
to the immediately preceding comparative pericd. No comparative information on non-consolidated
structured entities need be disclosed. The amendment of the above-mentioned standards is
mandatory for all pericds commencing on or after 1 January 2014, in accordance with the effective
dates of the amended standards. They must be early adopted if the standards in question are also
early adopted.

IFRS 10 (Amendment), IFRS 12 {Amendment) and IAS 27 (Amendment) “investment entities”™; This
includes amendments for entities that meet the definition of an "investment entity" and that have
specific characteristics. Amendments have also been made to IFRS 12 to bring in reporting
requirements that an entity of this kind must include in its consolidated annual accounts, The
amendment of these standards mandatory for all financlal years starting on or after 1 January 2014,
They may be early adopted, provided all the above-mentioned amendments are adopted at the same
time.

IAS 18 (Amendment) *Defined benefit plans: Employee contributions”. This amendment applies to
contributions by employees or third parties to defined benefit plans. The purpose is to simplify the
accounting treatment of contributions that are unrelated to the number of years of service, e.g.
employse contributions calculated based on a fixed percentage of their salary. 1AS 19 (revised in
2011) distinguishes between employee contributions related to and not related to service. The
current amendment also distinguishes between contributions related to service anly in the period in
which they arise and contributions related to service over more than one pericd. The amendment
allows contributions linked fo service that do not change based on the duration of the employes's
service to be deducted from the cost of benefits accrued in the period in which the relevant service is
provided. Contributions finked to service and which vary based on the duration of the employee's
service must be apportioned over the service provision period using the same allocation method
applied to the benefits; this means either applying the pension plan formufa or, where the plan
provides a significantly higher ievel of benefit for service in later years, applying a siraight-line
method. This amendment is applicable retrospectively in financial years beginning on or after 1 July
2014, Early adoption is permitted.

IFRIC 21 “Levies™: This is an interpretation of IAS 37 "Provisions, contingent assets and contingent
liabllities” that addresses the accounting treatment of levies imposed by public administrations, other
than income tax and fines or penalties imposed due fo the infringement of legislation. The main issue
raised is when the entity must recognize a liabllity due to the obligation to pay a levy recognized
under |IAS 37. |IAS 37 stipulates the conditions for the recognition of a liability, one of which is that
the entity must have a present obligation as a result of a past event The interpretation clarifies that
the event requiring and giving rise to a liability for the payment of a levy is the activity described in the
relevant legislation that causes the payment of the levy. The interpretation is mandatory in all periods
commencing on or after 1 January 2014, although it may be early adepted; the Group early adopted
this interpretation in 2013,
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2.1.2 Joint ventures

“Joint ventures” are investments in entities that are not subsidiaries but are confrolled jointly by two or
more unrelated entities.

The annual accounts of investees classified as joint ventures are consolidated with those of the Entity
using the proportionate consclidation method such that the balances on the consolidated balance
shest and consolidated income statement are aggregated and the balances and the effects of the
transactions carried out with Group companies are eliminated solely in proportion to the Group's shara.

The company “Liguidambar Inversiones Financieras, S.L." is treated as a jointly-controlled entity,
despite holding & 14.74% interest, as joint control is provided by a sharehoider agresment,

Appandix || provides relevant information on these entities.

In Note 12.3 provides information on the most significant acquisitions that have taken place In 2013
joint ventures and new shares in the capital of companies, that already had this whole business
condition at beginning of year.

2.1.3 Associates

“Associates” are all the entities over which the Entity has significant influence but not control or Joint
control. Stgnificant influence generally accompanies a direct or indirect shareholding of 20% or more of
the voting rights.

At 31 December 2013, Grupo Hoteles Playa, S.A., Alestis Aerospace, S.L. and Deoleo, S.A. are
deemed to be assoclates, since at least 20% their voting rights are held by the Group. The main
reasons for considering that the Group has significant Influence in these entities are described below:

o As regards the interest in Grupo Hoteles Playa, 5.A., the Unicaja Bance Group has entered
into shareholder agreements that provide a qualified majority vote. Among other aspects, the
agreements requires unanimous support for any alteration affecting capital, the company and
its by-laws, the annual budget, strategic plans, financing and any relevant investment or
divestment decisions.

o With respect to Alestis Aerospace, S.l., the Unicaja Bance Group has entered Into
shareholder agresments allowing it to sit on the Board of Directors, paricipate in the
organisation and activities of the goveming bodies and take part, or in some cases veto,
business decisions. The Group Is also authorized to appoint a total of three board directors
designated jointly with other shareholders, representing 50% of the total number of board
diractors.

o As regards the interest in Deoleo, S.A., the Unicaja Banco Group is entitied to a total of three
board directors.

In the consolidated financial statements, associates are consolidated using the eguity method, as
defined in prevalling legislation {JAS 28).

If as a result of iosses incurred by an associate its equity is negative, In the consolidated balance sheet
wouid appear of the Group with a nil value, unless the Group Is required to provide financial support.

Appendix il provides relevant information on these entities.
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The fair value of derivatives not traded in erganised markets, or traded in organised markets that are
not deep or transparent, is equal to the sum of the future cash flows generated by the Instrument,
discounted at the measurement date {"present value” or “theoretical close”), employing valuation
techniques accepted by the financlal markets: “net present value” (NPV), option pricing models, efc.

Amortized cost is the acquisition cost of a financlal asset or liability adjusted (upward or downward) for
capital and interest repayments and, where applicable, for the (higher or lower) portlan (recognized in
the consolidated income statement by applying the effective interest methad) of the difference bstween
the initial amount and the repayment value of the financial instruments. The amortized cost of financial
assets also includes Impairment adjustments.

Tne effective Interest rate is the discount rate that brings the initial value of a financlal instrument
exactly into line with total estimated cash flows throughout its residuat life. in the case of fixed-income
financial instruments, the effective interest rate is aqual to the contractual rate defined on acquisition,
adjusted for commisslons and transaction costs that must be included in the calculation of the effactive
interest rate, under IAS 39. The effective interest rate for variable-rate financial instruments is
estimated in the same way as for fixed-income transactions and is recalculated at each interest review
date stated in the contract, taking into consideration changes in the transactions future cash flows.

2.2.4 Classification and valuation of financial assets and liabilities

Financial instruments are classified Into the following categories in the Group's consolidated balance
sheet;

-  Financlal assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: This category
includes financial instruments for trading and other financial assets and Habilities classified as at
fair value through profit or loss:

- “Financial assets held for trading" are assets acquired in order to be realized in the
short term or which form part of a portfolio of financlal Instruments identified or managed
jointly, for which there is evidence of recent actions taken to obtain short-term gains, and
derivative financial instruments not designated as hedge instruments, including instruments
segregated from hybrid financial instruments {JAS 39).

- “Financial llabilities held for trading” are liabilities issued for repurchase In the near
future or that form part of a portfollo of financial instruments identified or managed jointly
for which there is evidence of recent actions to obtaln shori-term gains, short positions in
securities arising from sales of assets acquired under non-optional repurchase agresments
and loans of securities, and derivative financial instruments not designated as hedge
instruments, including Instruments segregated from hybrid financial instruments.

- “Other financlal assets or liabliitles at fair value through profit or loss” they are
designated as financial assets or liabilities in their initial recognition, the fair value of which
can ba estimated in a raliable manner and this designation can be applied to:

(i) hybrid assets and liabilities for which the implickt derivatives cannot be
separately valued in a reliable manner, the separation of these is obligatory,

(i) hybrid financial assets and liabilities as a whole, designated from their initial
recognition, except when the implicit derivatives do not significantly modify the cash flows
that, in ancther way, the instrument would have generated or when the hybrid instrument
was first considered the prohibition of separating from the implied dervatives was evident,

{iif) financial assets and liabilities on which mora relevant information is obtained
because with this there is a significant reduction in the incoherencies in the recognition or
valuation (also called accounting asymmetries) that would arise in the valuation of the
assets or liabllities, or through the recognition of gains or losses with different criteria,
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{iv) financlal assets and liabilities on which more relevant information is obtained
due to the existence of a group of financlal assets or liabilities in each case from which
more relevant information is obtained because there is a group of financial assets, or of
assets and financial liabilities that are managead and their yield is valued based upon thair
fair value, in accardance with a documented management risk or investment strategy and
the Information on this group is also supplied based upon the fair value to the key
management personnel.

- Held-to-maturlty investments: it includes debt securities with fixed maturities and
identified or identifiable cash flows that are classified by the Entity at initial date and
subsequently, with the intention and financial capacity to hold them until maturity date.

The debt securities included in this category are Initially carried at fair value, as adjusted for
transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset, which are
racognized in the income statement using the effective interest method as defined in IAS 39.
They are subsequently carried at amortized cost, calculated hased on the effective interest rate,

- Loans and receivables: this category includes unlisted debt securities, financing
provided to third parties arising from the ordinary credit and loan activities carried out by the
Entity, and debts Incurred by asset btiyers and by service users. It also includes finance lease

transactions where the entities are the lessors.

The financlal assets included in this category are initially carried at fair vaiue, as adjusted for
commissions and transaction costs directly attributable to the acguisition of the financial asset
and which, under Bank of Spain Circular 4/2004 (22 December), must be recognized in the
income statement using the effective interest method, to maturity. Following acquisition, the
assets are carried at amortized cost.

Asseis acquired at a discount are recorded at the cash amount paid and the difference between
the repayment value and that cash amount is recognized as financlal income applying the
effective interest method during the period to maturity.

In general terms it is the intention of the consolidated companies hold the loans and credits
granted to maturity, and therefore presented in the consolidated balance sheet at amortized
cost.

The interest accrued on these assets, calculated using the effective interest method, is
racognized in the caption “Interest and Similar Income” in the income statement. Exchange
differences on securities denominated in forelgn currency other than the Euro are registered as
mentioned in Note 2.4. Possible impalment losses on these assets are recorded as Indicated
In Note 2.7. Debt securities Included In fair value hedged fransactions are recorded as
mentioned in Note 2.3.

- Available-for-sale financial assets; this category includes debt securities net classified
as held to maturity, such as loans and receivables, or as at fair value through Profit or loss, and
equity instruments owned by Unicaja relating to entities which are not subsidiaries, joint
ventures or associates, and which have not been classified at fair vaiue through profit or loss.

The instruments included in this category are initially measured at fair value, adjusted for
transaction costs, which are recognized until maturity in the income statement using the
effective interest method. In the case in which the financial assets have nc fixed maturities, they
ara accounted to the income staternant when they become impaired or written off the balance
sheet. Following acquisition, the financlal assets included in this category are carried at fair
value,
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Nonetheless, equity instruments, which falr value cannot be determined in a sufficiently
objective manner, are carried at cost in these annual accounts, net of impairment as explained
in Note 2.7,

Balancing entries are registered in “Interest and Similar income” (calculated using the effective
interest method) and *Return on Equity Instruments” in the income statement, with respect to
changes in the fair value of financial 2ssets classified as avallable for sale, relating to interest or
dividends accrued, respectively. Impairment losses on these instruments are recorded as
mentioned in Note 2.7. Exchange differences on financlal assets denominated In foreign
currency other than the euro are accounted as mentioned in Note 2.4, Changes in the fair value
of financial assets covered by fair value hedges are registered as mentioned in Note 2.3,

A balancing entry Is made in *Valuation Adjustments”, in the Entity's equity, with respect to the
remaining changes to the fair value from the acquisition date of available-for-sale financial
assets until the financial asset is written off, when the balance is taken to “Gains (Losses) on
non-current assets held for sale not classified as discontinued operations” in the income
statement.

- Flnancial liabllities at amortized cost: this category of financial instruments relates to
financial liabilities that are not included in any of the previous categories. Financiat liabilities
included In this category are initlally carried at falr value adjusted for transaction costs that may
be directly attributable to the issue of the financial fiability, which will be allocated to the
consolidated income statement to maturity, using the effective interest rate msethod defined in
IAS 38. They are subsequently valued at amortized cost, calculated using the effective interest
rate method defined in IAS 38.

The liabliities issued by the consolidated entities which, having the legal nature of capital, do
not fuifil the conditions to be classified as equity under [AS 32, i.e., basically shares issued by
the consolidated entitles that do not carry voting rights and entitle the holders to dividends in
the event that certain conditions are met, are classified as financial liabilities at amortized cost
axcept if the Group has designated them as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss and provided that the relevant conditions are met.

Accrued interest on these securities, calculated through the effective interest rate method is
reflected under “Interest and similar charges” in the consolidated income statement. Exchange
differences on securities denominated in a currency other than the euro, included in this
portfolio, is refiected in accordance with Note 2.4. Financial liablities in fair value hedging
transactions are reflected in accordance with Note 2.3

Nonetheless, financial instruments which should be considered as non-current assets held for sale in
accordance with IFRS 5 are reflected in the consolidated financial statements as mentioned in Note 2.20.

Reclassifications between financial instruments portfollos are made according to the following assumptions:

Except in the case iv) stated below, the financial instruments may not be reclassified into or out of the
category assessed at falr value through profit and loss, once acquired, issued or assumed.

A financial asset, which intent or financlal capacity changes, is classified from "Held-to-maturity
Investments” to "Available-for-sale financial assets". In this case, the same treatment is applied to all
financlial instrumants held-to-maturity except under the circumstances stated by the applicable law
(sales close to maturity date, or once received major part of the financlal assets principal, or sales
attributed to a non-recurring event that could not have been anticipated by the Entity).

In 2013 the Group sold a part of its held-to-maturity debt securities (Note 8.4). The transaction fulfils
the requirements of paragraph GA22 of IAS 38 “Financial instruments: recognition and
measurement’ and therefore the remainder of the held-to-maturity debt securities need not be
reclassified to the avallable-for-sale portfolio.
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The fair value of derivatives not traded in organised markets, or traded in organised markets that are
not deep or transparent, Is equal to the sum of the future cash flows generated by the instrument,
discounted at the measurement date ("present valug" or “thearetical close”), employing valuation
techniques acceptad by the financial markets: "net presant valug" (NPV), option pricing models, etc.

Amortized cost is the acquisition cost of a financial asset or liability adjusted (upward or downward) for
capital and interest repayments and, where applicable, for the (higher or lower) portion {recognized in
the consolidated income statement by applying the effective interest method) of the difference betwsen
the initial amount and the repayment value of the financial instruments. The amortized cost of financial
assets also includes impairment adjustments.

The effective Interest rate is the discount rate that brings the Initial value of a financial instrument
exactly into line with fotal estimated cash fiows throughout its residual life. in the case of fixed-lncome
financial Instruments, the effective interest rate is equal to the contractual rate defined on acquisition,
adjusted for commissions and transaction costs that must be Included in the calculation of the effective
interest rate, under |AS 39. The effective interest rate for variable-rate financial instruments is
estimated in the same way as for fixed-income transactions and Is recalculated at each interest review
date stated In the contract, taking into consideration changes in the transactions future cash flows.

2.2.4 Classification and valuation of financial assets and labilities

Financial instruments are classified into the following categories in the Group’s consolidated balance
shest:

- Financlal assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: This category
includes financial instruments for trading and other financial assets and liabilities classified as at
fair value through profit or loss:

- "“Financial assets held for trading” are assets acquired In order to be realized in the
short term or which form part of a portfolio of financial instruments identified or managed
jointly, for which thera is evidence of recent actions taken to obtain short-term gains, and
derivative financial instruments not designated as hedge instruments, including Instruments
segregated from hybrid financial instruments (IAS 39).

- “Financial liablfities held for trading” are liabilities issued for repurchase in the near
future or that form part of a perifolio of financial Instruments identified or managed jointly
for which there is evidence of recent actions to obtain shori-term gains, short positions in
securities arising from sales of assets acquired under non-optional repurchase agreements
and loans of securities, and derivative financial instruments not designated as hedge
instruments, including instruments segregated from hybrid financial instruments.

- “Other financial assets or liabilities at falr value through profit or loss” they are
designated as financial assels or ligbilities in thelr initial recognition, the fair value of which
can be estimated in a reliable manner and this designation can be applied to:

(i) hybrid assets and liabllities for which the implicit derivatives cannot be
separately valued in a reliable manner, the separation of these is chiigatory,

{ii) hybrid financial assets and liabilities as a whole, designated from their Initial
recognition, except when the implicit derivatives do not significantly modity the cash flows
that, in another way, the instrument would have generated or when the hybrid instrument
was first considered the prohibition of separating from the implied derivatives was evident,

(i) financial assets and liabilities on which more relevant information is obtained
because with this there is a significant reduction in the incohersncies in the recognition or
valuation {also callad accounting asymmetriss) that would arise in the valuation of the
assets or liablliies, or through the recognition of galns or losses with different criteria,
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{iv} financlal assets and liabilities on which more relevant information is obtained
due to the existence of a group of financial assets or liabilities in each case from which
more relevant information is obtained because there Is a group of financial assets, or of
assets and financlal liabilities that are managed and their yield Is valued based upon their
fair value, in accordance with a documented management risk or investment strategy and
the information on this group Is also supplied hbased upon the fair valus to the key
management personnel.

- Held-to-maturity investments: it includes debt securities with fixed maturities and
identified or identifiable cash flows that are classified by the Entity at Initial date and
subsequently, with the Intention and financial capacity to hold them until maturity date.

The debt securities included in this category are initlally carried at fair value, as adjusted for
transaction costs directly afiributable to the acquisition of the financial asset, which are
recognized in the income statement using the effective interest method as defined in IAS 38.
They are subsequently carried at amortized cost, calculated based on the effective interest rate.

- Loans and receivables: this category includes unlisted debt securities, financing
provided to third parties arising from the ordinary credit and loan activities carried out by the
Entity, and debts incurred by asset buyers and by service users. |t also includes finance lease

tfransactions where the entities are the lessors.

The financial assets included in this category are initially carried at fair value, as adjusted for
commissions and transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset
and which, under Bank of Spain Circular 4/2004 (22 December), must be recognized in the
income statement using the effective interest method, to maturity. Following acquisition, the
assets are carried at amortized cost.

Assets acquired at a discount are recorded at the cash amount paid and the difference between
the repayment value and that cash amount is recognized as financlal Income applying the
effective interest method during the period to maturity.

In general terms it is the intention of the consclidated companies hold the loans and credits
granted to maturity, and therefore presented In the consolidated balance sheet at amortized
cost.

The interest accrued on these assets, calculated using the effective interest method, is
recognized in tha caption “Interest and Similar income” in the income statement. Exchange
differences on securities denominated in foreign currency other than the Euro are registered as
mentioned in Note 2.4. Possible impairment losses on these assets are recorded as indicated
in Note 2.7. Debt securities included in fair value hedged transactions are recorded as
mentioned in Note 2.3,

- Avallable-for-sale financial assets; this category includes debt securities not classified
as held to maturity, such as loans and receivables, or as at falr value through Profit or loss, and
equity Instruments owned by Unicala relating to entities which are not subsidiaries, joint
ventures or assoclates, and which have not been classified at fair value through profit or loss,

The instruments included in this category are initially measured at fair value, adjusted for
transaction costs, which are recognized until maturity in the income statement using the
effective interest method. in the case in which the financial assets have no fixed maturities, they
are accounted to the income statement when they become impaired or written off the balance
sheet. Following acquisition, the financial assets included in this category are camied at fair
vaiue.
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Nonetheless, equity instruments, which fair value cannot be determined in a sufficiently
objective manner, are carred at cost in these annual accounts, net of impairment as explained
in Note 2.7,

Balancing entries are registered in “Interest and Similar income” {calculated using the effective
interest method) and "Retum on Equity Instruments” in the income statement, with respect to
changes in the fair value of financial assets classified as avallable for sale, relating o interest or
dividends accrued, respectively. Impairmant losses on these instruments are recorded as
mentioned in Note 2.7. Exchange differences on financial assets denominated in foreign
currency other than the euro arg accounted as mentioned in Note 2.4. Changes in the fair value
of financial assets covered by fair value hedges are registered as mentioned in Note 2.3.

A balancing entry is made In *Valuation Adjustments”, in the Entity's equity, with respect to the
remaining changes fo the fair value from the acquisition date of available-for-sale financial
assets until the financial asset s written off, when the balance is taken to “Gains {Losses) on
non-current assets held for sale not classified as discontinued operations” in the income
statement.

- Financial liabliitles at amortized cost. this category of financial instruments relates to
financial llabilities that ara not included in any of the previous categories. Financial liabilities
included In this category are initially carried at fair value adjusted for transaction costs that may
be directly attributable to tha issue of the financlal liability, which will be allocated to the
consolidated income statement to maturity, using the effective interest rate method defined in
IAS 39. They are subsequently valued at amortized cost, calculated using the effective infarest
rate method defined in |AS 39,

The liabliities issued by the consolidated entities which, having the legal nature of capital, do
not fulfil the conditions to be classified as equity under JAS 32, i.e., baslcally shares issued by
the consolidated entities that do not carry veting rights and entitle the holders to dividends in
the event that certaln conditions are met, are classified as financial liabilities at amortized cost
except if the Group has designated them as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss and provided that the relevant conditions are met.

Accrued interest on these securities, calculated through the effective interest rate method is
reflected under *interest and similar charges” in the consolidated Income statement. Exchange
differences on securities denominated in a currency other than the euro, included in this
portfolio, is reflected in accordance with Note 2.4, Financial liabilities in fair value hedging
transactions are reflected in accordance with Note 2.3

Nonetheless, financial instruments which should be considered as non-current assets held for sale in
accordance with IFRS 5 are reflected in the consolidated financial statements as mentioned in Note 2.20.

Reclassifications between financial instruments portfolios are made according to the fellowing assumptions:

Except in the case iv) stated below, the financial instruments may not be reclassified into or out of the
category assessed at fair value through profit and loss, once acquired, issued or assumed,

A financlal asset, which Intent or financial capacity changes, is classified from “Held-to-maturity
Investments” to "Available-for-sale financial assets", In this case, the same treatment is applied to all
financial instruments held-to-maturity except under the circumstances stated by the applicable law
(sales close to maturity date, or once received major part of the financial assets principal, or sales
attributed to a non-recurring event that could not have been anticipated by the Entity).

In 2013 the Group sold a part of its held-to-maturity debt sacurities (Note 9.4). The transaction fulfils
the requirements of paragraph GAZ22 of IAS 39 ‘*Financial Insttuments: recognition and
measurement” and therefore the remainder of the held-to-maturity debt securities need not be
reclassified to the available-for-sale portfolio.
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in 2012 there were no sales or reclassifications of financial instruments in the portfolios addressed In
this point.

If a reliable valuation of a financial asset or llabllity becomes available, for which no such valuation
had been previously available, and i it were obligatory to value them a fair value, such as non-quoted
capital instruments and the derivatives that these have as underlying assets, these financial assets or
financial fabilities will be valued at their fair value and the difference from their carrying amount will
be treated in line with what is established for their portfolio class.

During the years 2013 and 2012 there has been no significant reclassification as described above,

if, as a result of a change In the intention or in the financial capacity of the Entity or, the expiry of the
two year penalty period imposed by the applicable norm for the case of the sale of financial assets
classified in the investment portfolio as at due date, financial assets {debt instruments) included in
the category of “financlal assets avallable for sale” may be reclassified to the “invesimant portfolio at
due date". In this case, the fair value of these financial instruments on the date of the transfer
becomes their new amortized cost and the difference between this amount and their reimbursable
value is charged to the consolidated profit and loss account applying the interest rate method
applicable, during the residual life of the instrument.

During the years 2013 there has been no significant raclassification as described above. During year
2012, the Group has reclassified financial assets amounting to €5,290,452 thousand from the
category "financial assets available for sale” to "held-to-maturity” (Note 9.4).

A financlal asset that is not a derivative may not be classlified under “financial assets held for trading”
if ceased to be maintained for the purpose of short term sale or repurchase, when one of the
following circumstances takes place:

» in rare and exceptional circumstances, unless the assets could have been susceptibly
included in the heading "Loans and receivables”. Rare and exceptional circumstances are
those that arise from a particular event, which Is unusual and highly uniikely to recur in the
foreseeable future.

« When the Entity's intention and financial capacity to maintain the financial asset in the
foreseeable future or untl maturity, provided that it fulfilled the definition of *l.oans and
receivables” at its initial recognition.

in these situations, the assets are classified at the reclassification date fair value, without reversing
the results, and considering this value as their cost or amortized cost. In no case these assets may
turn to be reclassified as "Financial asseis held for trading”.

During the years 2013 and 2012 there has been no significant reclassification as described above.

Hedging and mitigation of risks

The Group uses financial derivatives as part of its strategy to limit its exposure to interest rate, market and
foreign exchange risks, Inter alia. When the transactions fulfil the requirernents of IAS 39, they are treated as

e it

When the Group designates a transaction as a hedge, it does so as from the time of inception of the
transactions or the instruments included in the hedge, which Is appropriately documented. When documenting
these hedge transactions, the hedged Instrument(s) and hedging instrument(s) are duly identified together
with the nature of the risk which is intended {0 be hedged and the criteria or methods followed by the Entity to
measure the effectivenass of the hedge over the hedge term, taking into account the risk to be coversd.
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Only transactions that are considered highly effective throughout the hedge term are treated as hedge
transactions. A hedge is considered highly effective If during the specific term any changes in fair value or
cash flows attributed to the risk covered by the hedge of the financial instrument or Instruments are virtually
fully offset by the changes In fair value or cash flows, as appropriate, of the hedging instrument or instruments,

in order to measure the effectiveness of designated hedges, the Group analyses whether, from inception and
to the end of the defined hedging period, changes in fair value or cash flows of the hedged item that are
attributable to the hedged risk may prospectively be expected to be offset almost completely by changes in fair
value or cash flows, as applicable, of the hedging instrument or instruments and whether, retrospectively, the
hedge results have fluctuated within a range of 80% to 125% with respect to the resuits of the item hedged.

The Entity's hedges are classified as follows:

- Fair value hedges: These hedges cover exposure to changes in the fair value of financial
assets and Habillities or of Groups' commitments not yet recognized, or of an identified portion of such
assels, ligbilities and the Group's commitments, attributable to a specific risk, provided it might affect
the consolidated income statement.

- Cash-flow hedges: Thaese hedges cover changes in cash flows aftributed to a specific risk
associated with a financial asset or |iabllity or a highly probable transaction, provided it may affect the
income statement.

As regards the specific financial instruments designated as hedged items and hedging instruments,
measurement differences are recognized as described below:

- For fair value hadges, differences in hedges and hedged items (depending on the type of the
hedged risk) are recognized directly in the consolidated income statement.

- For cash fiow hedges, measurement differences arising on the effective portion of the hedge
are temporarily recorded in the equity item “Valuation adjustments - Cash flow hedges”. The financial
instruments covered by cash flow hedges are recognized as explained in Note 2.2 and no adjusiments
are made due to the fact that they are classifisd as hedged items.

In the latter case, measurement differences are not recognized in the income statement until the gains or
losses on the hedged item are recognized or, in the case of the hedge was related to a highly probable future
transaction whose consequence is the recognition of a not financial asset or liabliity, these measurement
differences would be recognized as part of the acquisition cost or until the maturity date of the hedged item.

Measurement differences on the hedging instrument relating to the ineffective portion of cash flow hedges are
recognized directly in "Gains/ (losses) on financial assels and liabilities (net)” In the consolidated income
statement.

The Group interrupts the hedge accounting when the instrument expires or is sold, when a hedge no longer
meets the criteria for the hedge accounting or whan the transaction ceases to be classed as a hedge.
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Where the hedge fair value is interrupted as stated in the previous paragraph, in the case of hedged items
carried at amortized cost, the adjustments macle for the hedge accounting purposes are recognized in the
income staterment untii the maturity date of the hedged items, applying the effective interest rate as
recalcutated on the interruption date,

Where cash flow hedge accounting is interrupted, the gain or losses accumulated on the hedging instrument
recognized in the equity caption *Valuation adjustments - Cash fiow hedges” in the consolidated balance sheet
remains In that heading until the hedged expected transaction {akes place, when the amount in question is
taken {o the consclidated income statement or, when the hedged item is an expected transaction that results
in the recognition of a financlal asset or Hability, an adjustment is made to the acquisition cost of the asset or
liability. In the case of expected transactions, when the transaction is not expected to be effected, the relevant
amount recognized In the equity item "Valuation adjustments - Cash fiow hedges” is iImmediately taken to the
consolidated income statement.

2.4  Foreign currency transactions
2.4.1 Functional currency

The Group's functional currency is the eurn. All balances and transactions denominated in currencies
other than the euro are considered as foreign currency bafances and transactions.’

The total equivalent value in euros of the Enlity’s foreign currency assets and liabilities at 31 December
2013 was €38,000 thousands and €14,617 thousands, respectively (€43,687 thousands and €14,129
thousand, respectively, at 31 December 2012), The 75% and 80%, respectively at 31 December 2013
was denominated in US dollars (73% and 66%, respectively at 31 December 2012) and 14% and 17%,
respectively at 31 December 2013 in pounds sterling (19% and 30% respectively, at 31 December
2012), y and the remainder in other foreign currencies traded in the Spanish markst.

2.4.2 Foreign currency translation

Foreign currency transactions effected by the Group are initially recognized in the financial statements
at their equivalent value in eurcs, using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
The Entity subsequently transiates the monetary balances in forelgn currency to the functional currency
using the year-end exchange rate. Additionally:

- Non-monetary items carried at historical cost are translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rate prevailing at their acquisition date.

- Non-monetary items carried at fair value are translated into the functional currency using
the exchange rate in force at the date on which fair value was determined.

2.4.3 Exchange rates applied
The exchange rates used by the Entity to translate balances denominated in the main foreign

currencies to euros when preparing the annuat accounts at 31 December 2013 and 2012 are the rates
published by the European Central Bank.
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2.4.4 Accounting for exchange differences

Exchange differences arising from the translation of foreign currency balances into the Group's
functional currency are generally recognized at their net amount in “Exchange differences (net)" in the
consolidated income statement, except for differences in financial Instruments carried at fair value
through the income statement, which are recognized in the consolidated income statement togethar
with any other change in fair value,

In 2013, exchange differences recognized in the Bank's consolidated income statement totaled a net
loss of € 237 thousand, as compared with a net gain of € 802 thousand in 2012,

Exchange differences in non-monetary items which fair value is adjusted by means of a balancing entry
in equity are recognized in *Valuation adjustments — Exchange differences” in the consolidated balance
sheet, until they are realized. Exchange differences arising on non-monetary items whose fair value Is
adjusted against the consolidated equity.

In 2013 and 2012, exchange differences recognized in the consolidated statement of recognized
income and expenses as "Other recognized income and expenses” amounted to € 33 thousand and €
167 thousand, respectively, relating in both cases to net losses on measurement.

Recognition of income and expense

Set out below is a summary of the most significant accounting policies empioyed by the Group to recognize
income and expense;

2.5.1 Interest income and expense, dividends and similar items

In general, Interast income and expense and simitar items are accounted in an accruals basis, applying
the effactive interest method defined in |AS 39. Dividends received from other companies are
recognized in the income statement when the Entity becomes entitied to receive them.

2.8.2 Commissions, fees and similar items
Income and expense relating to commissions and similar fees, which are not included in the calculation
of the effective interest rate of operations and/or do not form part of the acquisition cost of financial
assets or llabilities, except for those carried at fair value through the income statement, are recognized
in the income statement using different methods depending on their nature. The most significant
methods used are explained below:
- Amounts associated with the acquisition of financial assets and liabilities camied at fair
value through the income statement are recognized in the consolidated income statement at the
payment date,

- Amounts arising from long-term transactions or services are recognized in the
consclidated income statement over the term of the transactiocns or services.

- Amounts relating to a one-off event are recorded in the consolidated income statement
when that event takes place.

2.5.3 Non-financial income and expense

These amounts are accounted in an accruals basis.
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2 5.4 Deferred collections and payments

Deferred collections and paymants are carried at the amount abtained by discounting expected cash
fiows at markat rates.

2.6  Offset of balances

Only debtor and creditor balances arising from transactions which, under contract or legisiation, provide for
possible offset and are to be settled at their net amount, or simultanecusly realized and paid, are offset and
therefore presented in the consolidated balance sheet at their net amount.

2.7 Financial asset impairment

The carrying value of financial assets is generally adjusted against the consolidated income statement when
there is objective evidence that there are impairment losses. This is the case where:

- For debt instruments, i.e. loans and debt securities, when following thelr initial recognition there
Is an event or various events which have a negative impact on the relevant future cash flows.

- For equity instrumants, when following their initial recognition there Is an event or various events
making it impossible to recover their carrying amount.

In the event that the recovery of any amount in respect of the impairment recorded Is considered remote, such
impairment is written off the consolidated balance sheet, although the Group may take the necessary actions
to secure collaction until the final extinguishment of its debt claims due {o lapsing, remission or other reasons.

in the case of debt instruments carried at emortized cost, the amount of impaimment losses Is equal to the
difference between their carrying amount and the present valus of forecast future cash flows discounted at the
instrument's original effective interest rate, where a fixed rate was contracted, or at the effective interest rate
at the date of the financial statements, determined based on the contractual terms, In the case of a variable
rate. For listed debt instruments, the market value may be used, provided it is sufficiently reliable to be
representative of the amount that may be recovered by the Group.

Objective evidence of impairment will be determined individually for all debt instruments that are significant,
and Individually or collectively for groups of debt instruments which are not individually significant. Whenever a
specific instrument cannot be included in any group of assets with similar risk characteristics, it will be
analysed exclusively on an individual basis in order fo ascertain whether it is impaired and, whenever this is
the case, to estimate the impairment loss.

The collective assessment of a group of financial assets to estimate impaiment losses is as follows:

- Debt instruments are included in groups with similar credit risk characteristics, indicative of
debtor capacity to pay all amounts, principal and interest, in accordance with contractual terms. The
characteristics of credit risk which are taken into account in order to group together assets are, infer
alia, Instrument type, debtor's business sector, geographical location of the activity, type of guarantee,
age of amounts overdue and any other factor that may be relevant when estimating future cash flows.

- Future cash flows in each group of debt instruments are estimated based on the Entity's
experience of historical losses for instruments with similar credit risk characteristics to those of the
respective group, following the necessary adjustments to adapt historical data to current market
conditions.

- Impairment iosses in 2ach group are the difference between the carrying value of all the Entity’s
debt instruments and the present value of its estimated future cash flows.

36




| I I

bod

el L

i
PR |

Debt instruments not carried at fair value through the income statement, contingent risks and contingent
commitments are classified, on the basis of the Insolvency risk attributable {o the customer or transaction, in
the categories defined by Exhibit IX of Bank of Spain Circular 4/2004, and its subsequent amendments. Debt
instruments not classified as ordinary risks are specifically provisioned for estimated impairment in accordance
with the above-mentioned Circutlar, taking into account the age of the unpaid amounts, guarantees furnished
and the financial situation of the customer and any guarantors.

The above-mentioned financial instruments are also analysed to determine credit risk on the basis of country
risk, i.e. the risk incurred with respect to customers resident in a specific country due to circumstances other
than ordinary commercial risks.

In addition to the spacific provisions for impaiment mentioned o above, the Group covers losses affecting
debt instruments not carried at fair value through the income statement, and contingent risks classified as
ordinary risks, by means of a general provision, which is calculated based on historical impalrment data and
other circumstances known at the assessment date, in respect of inherent impairment lossas incurred at the
date of the financial statements that have yet to be assigned to specific {ransactions, calculated using
statistical methods.

In this regard, the Group has used the parameters established by the Bank of Spain, based on its experience
and industry date, which determine the method and amount to be used to cover inherant Impairment losses
incurred in debt instruments and contingent risks classifiad as normal risks, which are changed regularly on
the basis of the evolution of the data in question. This impairment loss provisioning method is based on the
fixed rates provided by Exhibit IX of Bank of Spain Circular 4/2004 and its subsequent amendments, which
varias based on the risk rating of the financial instruments as set out in Annex IX mentioned.

The recognition in the income statement of intersst accrued on the basis of the contractual terms is interrupted
for all debt instruments classified individually as impaired and for those for which impairment losses have been
calculated collectively because the amounts involved are more than three months past due.

The amount of impairment losses incurred in debt securities and equity instruments included in the item
“Available-for-sale financial assets” is equal to the positive difference between their acquisition cost, net of
principal repayments, and their fair value less any impaiment loss previously recognized in the consolidated
Income statement.

When there is objective evidence that the decline in fair value is afttributable to impairment, the latent losses
racognized directly as measurement adjustments in equity are recorded immediately in the consoclidated
income statement. If subsequently all or part of the impairment losses are recovered, the amount involved Is
recognized, In the case of debt securities, in the Income staterment for the recovery period and, in the case of
equity instruments, as valuation adjustments in consolidated equity.

In order to draw conclusions as to the existence of objective evidence of impaiment of listed and unlisted debt
instruments, the Group analyses any loss-causing events, such as circumstances causing significant financial
difficulties for the issuer or obligor, braaches of contractual clauses, such as defaults or delays in the payment
of principal or interest, increase in the probability of the fssuer beceming insolvent or undergoing any other
type of financial restructuring, disappearance of an active market for the financial instrument in question, due
to financial difficulties, and a credit rating cut, which couid be a sign of impairment if considered together with
other available information.
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In the specific case of listed equity instruments, the Group analyses whether a prolonged or significant fall in
the investment's fair value below cost Is objective evidence of impaiment. For the purposes of determining
when there is objective evidence that the price fall s due to impairment, in the event of exceptional
circumstances in the markets that delsrmine the price, the price effects derived from general market
movements are analysed separately from the movements relating to factors specifically attributable to the
issuer. Where there are no exceptional market circumstances but there are prolonged falls below the carrying
amount, representing a relevant percentage, the Group also analyses evidence of impalment. Unless there
are mora spacifically justifiable criteria, a standard 18-month period and a standard 40% referance rate are
used. Even where there are no exceptional market circumstances, an analysis is also performed to determine
whether there are objective reasons to consider that the security's price does not reflect its fair value and,
therefore, is not a valid figure for quantifying potential impairment. Objective reasons in this case may be
related to a very low free float, prolonged speculative actions affecting the share price, etc., all of which could
distort the price of equity instruments.

For debt and equity instruments classified under non-cumrent assets held for sale, the losses recorded
previously In equity are considered fo be realized and are recognized in the consolidated income statement at
the date of their classification.

For investments in subsidiaries, jointly-controlled entities and associates, the Institution estimates impairment
losses by comparing the racoverable amount with the carrying amount. Such impairment losses are recorded
in the consclidated income statemnent for the period in which they arise while subsequent recoveries are
recorded in the consolidated income statement for the recovery period.

28  Financial guarantees and related provisions

Financlal guarantees are contracts in which an entity undertakes to pay specified sums for the account of a
third party in the event that payment is not made by the third party, Irrespective of the form of the obligation:
guarantee deposit, financial or technical guarantee, irrevocable documentary credit issued or confimed by the
Entity, etc.

In accordance with IFRS-EU and the Group generally considers the financial guarantee contracts provided to
third parties as financial instruments within the scope of IAS 38.

At the time of their initial recognition the Group reflects financial guarantees provided under liabilities on the
consolidated balance sheet at fafr value plus the transaction costs that may be directly attributable, which
generally Is equal to the amount of the premium received, plus, if appropriate, the present value of
commissions and interest to be received an such contracts over their term, with a balancing entry, under
assets, of the amount of the likened commissions and interest collected at Inception and accounts receivable
for the present value of the commissions and Interest receivable. Subsequently, these contracts are carried
under lizbllities on the consolidated balance shest at the higher of the following two amounts:

- The amount calculated in accordance with 1AS 37, In this respect, the financial guarantees,
irrespective of the holder, arrangement or other circumstances, are analysed regularly to determine the
credit risk to which they are exposed and if appropriate, estimate the need for provision, determined by
applying criteria similar to those established to quantify impairment losses on the debt instruments
vaiued at amortized cost.

- The amount initially reflected for these instruments less amortization of this amount which,
under IAS 1B, Is charged on a straight-line basis over the term of such contracts to the consolidated
income statement.

Provisions for financlal guarantees are recorded in the item “Provisions - Provisions for contingent risks and

commitments” under liabliities in the consolidated balance sheet. A balancing entry is made in the caption
“Provisions (net)” in the consolidated Income statement.
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When a provision is regquired for financial gusrantees, commissions pending accrual on the guarantees,
carried on the liabilities in the consoclidated balance shest In the caption “Accrual accourts”, are reclassified to
the relevant provision,

29. Accounting for leases
2.9.1 Finance leases

Finance leases are those in which substantially all the risks and rewards carried by the leased asset
are transferred to the lessee.

Whenever the Entity acts as the lessor of an asset in a finance lease transaction, the sum of the
present valugs of the amcunts that will be received from the lessee plus the guaranteed residual value
(usually the purchase option price when the Jease expires) are recorded as financing provided to third
parties and therefore included in the caption “Loans and receivables" in the consolidated balance
sheet, in accordance with the nature of the Iessee.

When the Entity acts as the lessee in a finance lease operation, the cost of the leased assets is
recorded in the balance sheet on the basis of the nature of the asset leased and a Habliity Is carried in
the same amount (tha iower of the fair value of the leased asset and the sum of the present values of
the amounts payable to the lesser plus, If appropriate, the purchase option exercise price). These
assets are depreciated at similar rates to those applied {o the Group’s property, plant and equipment
for own use (Note 2.14),

in both cases, the financlal income and expense on finance leases Is credited and charged,
raspectively, to the consolidated income statement captions “Interest and similar income” and *interest
expensas and similar charges®, applying the effective interest rate on the lease, calculated in
accordance with the new regulations, to estimate accrual.

292 Operating leases

In operating leases, ownership of the leased asset and substantially all risks and benefits of ownership
are retained by the lessor.

Where the Group acts as the lessor in operating lease agreements, the acquisition cost of the leased
asset is carried under “Property, plant and equipment’ in *Investment property” or "Other assets leased
out under operating leasas”, depending on the nature of the leased assets. Such assets are
depreciated in accordance with the policies adopted for similar property, plant and equipment for own
use and the revenue from iease contracts is recognized in the consolidated income statement on a
straight-line basis in the caption "Other operating income”

Where the Group acts as the lesser in operating lease agreements, the lease costs, including any
incentives granted by the lessor, are charged on a straight-line basis to the consolidated income
statement caption “Other general administrative expenses”.

2,10 Managed assets
Managed assets by the consolidated enties and owned by third parties are not recognized in the
consolidated balance shest. Fees generated by this activity are recorded in the item “Fees and commission

income” in the consolidated income statement. Note 30.4 provides Information on third-party assets managed
by the Group during the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012,
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211  Investment funds managed by the Group

Investment funds managed by the consolidated entities are not recognized in the Group's consolidated
balance sheet as the fund assets are owned by third parties. Fees accrued during the year for services
rendered to the funds by the Group entiies (asset management, porifolio depository services, etc.) are
recorded in “Fee and commission Income” in the consolidated income statemant.

2.12  Staff costs
2.121 Post-employment commitments
212141 General description of commitments

Under the prevailing collective bargaining agreement, the Institution must supplement the social
security benefits of its employees or their beneficiaries in the event of retirement, widowhood,
orphanhood, permanent disability or major disability.

During 2002 the Institution reached an agreement with its employees to medify and transform the pre-
existing pension supplement arrangements for retirement and related contingencies and for
occupational hazard contingencies. As a consequence of that agreement, a part of the pension
commitments with employees were externalized to the fund Unifondo Penslonss V, Fondo de
Pensiones. The remaining pension commitments covered by the internal fund at 31 December 2001
were covered by insurance policies during 2004 and 2005 (Note 40.1).

The basic terms of the agreement entail a shift from a mixed company pension arrangement to group
defined contribution and defined benefit arrangements. As 2 consequence, the pension plan
contemplated in the agreement encompasses five groups into which the employees are classified
based on their length-of-service, post and applicable collective bargaining agresment. Depending on
the group, the benefits consist of minimum guaranteed sums for death and disabllity, and defined
contributions or benefits for each commitment.

As a result of the merger of Monte de Piedad y Caja de Ahorros de Ronda, Cadiz, Almerla, Malaga y
Antequera (Unicaja) and Caja Provincial de Ahorros de Jaén (Caja de Jaén), on 13 April 2011 the
"Employment Agreement for the Integration of the Empioyment Pension Plans at Monte de Piedad y
Caja de Ahorros de Ronda, Cadiz, Aimerfa, Malaga, Antequera y Jaén" was signed, and compliance
was obiained through the "Employment Agreement regarding the Procedure for Integrating the
Employment Pension Plant at Monte de Piedad y Caja de Ahorros de Ronda, Cadiz, Almerla, Malaga,
Antequera y Jaén” dated 26 July 2011,

The purpose of this agreement was to establish the foundation on which the Employment Pension Pian
for all Unlcaja employees would be regulated as a result of the merger and the procedure for unifying
the existing Employment Plans at both entitles by integrating the Pension Plan for Employees of Caja
de Jaén into the Unicaja Employee Pension Plan, which has resulted in the termination and liguidation
of the former and the creation of a new group consisting of the employees of that entity.

On 20 September 2011, the Emplayee Penslon Plan Control Committee at Unicaja approve the
amendment of the Pension Plan Specifications to adjust to the wording established in the
aforementioned employment agreement, immediately accepting the Integration of participants and their
consolidated rights and the beneficiaries of the Caja de Jaén Employee Pension Plan that registered
with the new plan on 28 Qctober 2011.

As a result of the creation of a bank at Unicaja, the Unicaja Employees Pension Plan Conirol Committee
agreed to authorize the Managing Entity to receive contributions from Unicaja Banco, even though it is
not yet recognized as a Promoter, and to start the process for converting the Unicaja Employee
Pension Pian into a Joint Promotion Plan within the one-year deadline established by law.
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At 31 December 2013 and 2012, the actuarial study calculations for the defined benefit systems have
been carried out using the following assumptions:

2013 2012
Technical Interest rate (*) See Note 40.1 4%
Wage growth 2% 2%
Soclal security coverage growth 1% 1%
Pension review rate 1% 1%
Mortality tables PERMF 2000-P PERMF 2000-P

(*} Relating 1o the uninsured commitments.

The commitments accruing to retired employess or beneficlaries at 31 December 2013 and 2012 are
externalized to the fund Unifondo Pensiones V, Fondo de Pensliones and covered by an insurance
policy that applies an insured interest rate of £.406% to 13 July 2041 and 2.5% as from that date, and
the PERMF 2000-# mortality tables.

- Defined contribution commitments

The contribution accrued during the year is recognized under the caption "staff costs” In the
consolidated income staternent.

At 31 Dacember 2013 and 2012 there were no pending contribution to external defined contribution
plans, :

- Defined banefit commitments

In the heading “Provisions — Provisions for pensions and similar liabilities” on the labilities side of the
consolidated balance sheet {or on the assets side, in the caption "Other assets — Other”, depending on
whether the difference is positive or negative and provided the conditions laid down in applicable
ragulations IAS 19 and to IFRIC 14, for its registry are fulfilled), the Group recognizes the present value
of its defined banefit pension commitments, net of the fair value of the assets that qualify as plan
assats and of deferred past service costs.

“Plan assefs” are assets allocated to a specific defined-benefit commitment that will be directly used to
settie these obligations and that fulfil the following conditions: they are not owned by the Group's entity
but rather by a legally independent third parly, they may only be used to pay or finance employees
post-employment remuneration and they may not be returned to the Group's entity, except when the
remaining plan assets are sufficient to comply with all the obligations of the plan or the entity ralated to
current or past employee benefits, or to reimburse employee benefits already paid by the Group.

Where the Group Is able to demand that an insurance company pay part or all of the disbursement
required to settle a defined benefit obligation, it being practically certain that insuranice company will
reimburse some or ali of the payments required to settie that obligation, but the insurance policy does
not qualify as a plan asset, the Entity recognizes its reimbursement right on the assets side of the
balance sheet in ‘Insurance contracts linked to pensions® and treats the balance in this item as a plan
asset in all other respects.

Actuarial gains and losses derive from differences between prior actuarial assumptions and actual fact,
and from changes in the actuarial assurmptions used.

Pursuant to JAS 19, the Group recognizes actuarial gains or losses that may arise in connection with its
post-employment commitments with employees in the period in which they arise, by charging or
crediting the consolidated statement of recognized income and expenses, through “Other recognized
income and expenses”, which are treated for such purposes as items that will not be taken to the
income statement.
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The “Cost of past services" arising from changes to existing post-employment remuneration or from the
inclusion of new benefits is the cost of Improving the benefits, relating to the years of service of each
employee, based on a iinear distribution of the cost using the projected credit unit method: it is
recognized immediately in the consolidated income statement for the period in question.

Post-employment benefits are racorded in the consolidated income statemeant as follows:

« Current service costs, i.e. the increase in the present value of the obligations arising from
the services provided by employees in the current year, are recognized in “Staff costs”;

s Interest costs, i.e. the increase in the present value of the obligations that occurs during
the year due to the pass of time, are recognized in "Interest expenses and similar
charges". Whenever the obligations are presented liabliities, net of related plan assets,
the cost of the llabilities recorded in the consolidated income statement will correspond
solaly to the obligations recognized on the liabilities side.

» The expected return on assets assigned to cover commitments and related losses and
gains, less any administrative costs and taxes, is recognized under “Interest and similar
incoma®.

2.121.2 Policies applied to post-employment remuneration

Having regard to the policies applied and the method for determining the discount rates applied fo post-
employment remuneration, the following must be considered:

» For Insured commitments: The policies applied are contained In IAS 12 and in Bank of
Spain regulations; specifically, when determining the discount rate, the approach
stipulated in Rule 35, section B.3), puint 10.d) of Bank of Spain Clrcular 4/2004 is applied,
cainciding with the provislons of IAS 19. At 31 December 2013, for commitments covered
by Insurance policies, the Bank has calculated the fair. value of the assets and
coemmitments using a discount rate based on the average term of the commitmenis,

= For non-insured commitments: The market reference rate used is the rate for issues of
cofporate bonds and debentures with high credit ratings, based on the IBOXX AA
Corporate curve (l.e. the curve for highly-rated corporate bonds in the Eurozone} at 31
December 2013.

21213 Defined-benefit post-employment commitments

At year-end 2013, the Unicaja Banco Group's defined-benefit post-employment commitments are
grouped into two plans, as described below:

Definition of Plan 1

a) Defined-benefit post-employment remuneration exiernalized under an employee pension plan
named "Plan de Pensiones de los Empleados de Unicaja y Unicaja Banca”, which Includes serving
employees and employee beneficiaries who already recelving post-employment benefits.

by) Defined-benefit post-employment remuneration externalized under an insurance policy qualifying for

the externalization of commitments pursuant to Royal Decree 1588/1998, as the legal limits on pension
plan contributions preciude the financing of these commitments under the pension plan.
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Definition of Plan 2

a} Defined-banefit post-employment remuneration externalized under an insurance policy qualifying for
the externalization of commitments pursuant to Royal Decree 1588/1899, covering pension
commitments derived fram the Collective Bargaining Agreements for Savings Banks and for Private
Banking for employees not covered by the pension plan named "Plan de Pensiones de Empleados de
Unicaja y Unicaja Banco”,

b) Defined-benefit post-employment remuneration externalized under an insurance policy qualifying for
the externalization of commitments pursuant to Royal Decree 1588/1898, covering pension
commitments for a group of early-retired employees.

¢) Defined-benefit post-employment remuneration externalized under an insurance policy qualifying for
the externalization of commitments pursuant to Royal Decree 1588/1999, covering pension
commitments for a group of sarly retirad employees.

2122 Other long-term remuneration - Phased early retirement

As explained in Note 40.1, the Institution reached an agreement for phased early retirement with the
employees representatives for specific situations affecting certain employee groups and to bring the
Institution's workforce into fine with its organisational needs. The agreement will be in force from 31
December 2015 and smployees must meet the following requirements in order o gualify For the
celculation of commitments to employees arising frem that agreement, the organization has been
based on assumptions made in accordance with market conditions and the characteristics of the group
covered.

During the years 2013 and 2012, the Group reached some agreements individually consistent, mainly
in early retirement agreements through contract suspensions, whose commitments are adequately
covered in each of the above dates.

2123 Death and disability

The commitments assumed by the Group to cover current employee death and disabliity contingencies
by means of insurance policles contracted with Unicorp Vida S.A. under the pension plan (Note 2.12.1)
are recognized in the consolidated income statement in an amount equat to the insurance premiums
accrued during the year,

2.12.4 Length-of-service awards

The Institution has taken its commitment to meeting employees & benefit to the same amount of €1,615
and €2,000, updatable by the percentage of basic salary revision of the Collective Agreement in the
event that the employee meets 20 and 35 years of service in the institution, respectively.
Pre-retirement commitments are recognized, for all applicable purposes, using the same criteria
explained above for defined banefit commitments, except that the entire cost of past services and the
actuarial gains or losses are recorded immediately when they arise.

2125 Severance indemnities

Under current legislation, Spanish entities sre required to pay severance indemnities to employees

dismissed for no justifiable cause. Thera is no workforce reduction plan in respect of which a provision
should be recorded for severance indemnities.
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2.13 income tax

Income tax expense is recognized in consolidated the income statement, except where it derives from a
transactfon whose results are taken directly to equity, in which case a balancing entry for income tax is aiso
made in the Group's equity.

Income tax expense for the year Is calculated as tax payable on taxable income for the year, as adjusted for
variations during the year in asset and lability balances arising from temporary differences, tax deductions
and aliowances, and any tax-loss (Nota 23).

The Group considers that there Is a temporary difference when there is a difference between the carrying
amount and the taxable amount of an asset or liability. The amount attributed to an asset er liability for tax
purposes is treated as the tax base. A taxable temporary difference is a difference that will generate a future
obligation for the Group to make a paymant to the relevant authority. A deductible temporary difference is a
difference that will generate a refund right or a reduction in a payment to be made to the relevant authorify in
the future,

Tax credits for deductions and allowances and tax credits for tax-loss carmy forwards are amounts that, though
generated on the completion of an activity or obtainment of a result, are not applied for tax purposes in the
relevant tax return until the conditions stipulated In tax legislation are fulfiled, and provided the Group
considers that application in future years is probable.

Current tax assets and liabilities are amounts that the Entity expecis to recover from or pay to the
corresponding tax authority within 12 months as from the date on which they are recognized. Deferred tax
assets and llabilities are amounts that the Entity expects to recover from or pay to the corresponding tax
authority in future years.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Nonetheless, deferred tax liabilities
resulting from the recording of goodwill are not recognized.

The Group only records deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences, tax credits for
deductions or allowances or for tax losses when the following conditions are fulfilled:

- Deferred tax assets are only recognized in the event that the Group wili probably record
sufficient tax gains in the future to offset the relevant amounts; and

- Deferred tax assets deriving from tax losses have arisen due to causes identified as unfikely to
arise again.

Deferred tax assets and liabifities are not recognized when an asset or liability is initially recorded in the
accounts, which does not result from a business combination and, at the recognition date, which does not
affect reported results or taxable income.

At each accounting close, deferred tax assets and liabilities are analysed to ensure that they remain valid and
any necessary adjustments are made accordingly.
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2.14 Tangible assets

2.14.1 Property, plant and equipment for own use

Property, plant and eguipment for own use comprise assets owned or being acquired under finance
leases that the Group holds for current or future use for purposes other than community projects or for
the production or supply of goods and which are expected to be used for more than one financial year.
Amaong other assets, this category includes property, plant and equipment received by the Group to
fully or partially settle financial assets representing debt claims against third parties and which the
Group plans to use iself on a continuous basis.

Property, plant and equipment for own use are carried at acquisition cost in the consolidated balance
sheet, which is the fair value of any consideration provided plus the total amount of cash payments
made or committed, less accumulated depreciation and any estimated losses determined by
comparing the carrying amount of each item with its recoverable amount. The acqguisition cost of the
material assets slements for own use and freely avallable includes the valuation of these that was
made on 1 January 2004 at fair valus. This fair value as at 1 January 2004 was obtained on the basis
of valuations performed by independent experts,

To this end, the acquisition cost of assets awarded to the Group and included in property, plant and
equipment for own use is equal to the carrying amount of the financial assets provided In exchange for
the award.

Depraciation Is calculated using the straight-line method based on the acquisition cost of the assels
less their residual value. The fand on which the bulldings and other structures stand is understood to
have an indefinite life and Is therefore not depreciated.

A balancing entry for annual depreciation charges for proparty, plant and equipment is recognized in
“Depreciation - Property, plant and equipment” in the consolidated Income statement. Depreciation is
charged at the following rates, based on average estimated useful lives;

Annual rate
Bulldings : 1% a 3%
Fumiture and installations 8% & 13%
Machinery and electronic equipment 13% a 27%

At each accounting close, the Group checks for internal or external indications that the carrying amount
of property, plant and equipment exceeds the recoverable amount, in which case the carrying amount
of the asset in question is written down to its recoverable amount and future depreciation chargss are
adjusted in proportion o the adjusted carrying amount and the new residual useful iife, if & new
estimate Is necessary. If applicable, this write-down of property, plant and equipment is charged to the

consolidated Income statement caption "Impalrment losses on other assets (net)". '
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Similarly, where there are Indications that the value of impaired property, plant and equipment has
been recovered, the Group recognizes the reversal of the impalrment loss shown In previous periods
by crediting the income statement caption “Impairment fosses on other assets (net)” and adjusting
future depreciation charges accordingly. The reversal of the impairment loss on an asset in no event
may entall an increase in its camying amount in excess of the amount that would be carried if no
impairment loss had been recognized in prior years,

Additionally, the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment for own use are reviewed at
least yearly to detect significant changes. If necessary, adjustments are made to depreciation charges
for future years In the income statement on the basis of the new useful lives.

Repair and maintenance costs for property, plant and equipment for own usa, are charged to the
consolidated income statement during the financial perod in which they are incurred, in the caption
“Other general administrative expenses”, Financial costs incurred to finance property, plant and
equipment for own use are recognized in the consolidated income statement when they accrue and do
not form part of the acquisition cost of the assets.

2.14.2 Investment property

“Investment property” in the consolidated balance sheet includes the carrying amounts of land,
buiidings and other structures held for rental or to obtaln a gain on the sale of the property as a result
of future market price increases.

The same methods applied to property, plant and equipment for own use (Note 2.14.1) are used {o
recognize the acquisition cost, depreciation, estimated useful life and impairment losses on investment
property.

2.14.3 Other assets leased out under operating leases

The consolidated balance sheet line "Other assets leased out under operating leases” records the
carrying amounts of property, plant and eguipment other than land and buildings leased out by the
Group under operating leases.

The same methods applied to property, plant and egquipment for own use (Note 2.14.1} are used to
recognize the acquisition cost of assets leased out, depreciation, estimated useful life and any
impairment Josses.

2144 Recovarable amount of tangible assets

The tangible assets for own use and investment property are carried at acquisition cost, recognizing
impairment adjustments if the assets recaverable amount is lowar than cost. According to IAS 38, the
recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and the value in use of the assets.
Where there Is no reliable measurement of fair value, the value In use of the assets is used as the
recoverable amount, entalling the estimation of future cash inflows and outflows derived from the
continued use of the assets and from thelr final sale or disposal through other means; a suitable
discount rate Is then appiled o the cash flows calculated,

According to IAS 36, an assets value in use must be determined, in general, as follows:

o Future cash flow projections must be based on reasonable assumptions that represent
managements best estimate of the economic conditions that will exist over the assets residual life
and on the most recent budgets or financial forecasts approved by management, excluding any
future estimated cash Inflow or outflow that is expscted from future restructurings or from
improvements In the return on assets originally planned. The estimates based on these budgets or
forecasts must cover a maximum period of five year, unless a longer period may be justified.
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o Cash flows projected beyond the period coverad by the most recent budgets or financial forecasts,
to the end of the assets ussful life, must be estimated by extrapolating the projections referred to
previously, applying a constant or decreasing growth rate, unless an increasing rate may be
justifisd which, in any event, must not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the relevant
products or industries, the country in which the entity operates and the market in which the asset is
used, uniess a higher growth rate may be justified.

The discount rate used is a pre-tax rate that reflects the current market evaluation of the time value of money
and specific risks affecting the asset that have not already been adjusted in the estimates of future flows.

A rate that reflects the current market evaluation of the time value of money and specific risks affecting the
asset is deemed to be the yield that investors would require were they to choose an investment that generates
cash flows the amounts, timing and risk profile of which are equivalent to the flows that the Group expects to
obtain from the asset in question. This discount rate is estimated on the basis of the rate implicit In current
market transactions involving similar assets. Where the discount rate for a specific asset is not directly
available from the market, substitutes are used to estimate the discount rate.

215 Intangible assets

Intangible assets are identifiable non-monetary and non-physical assets that arse from legal business or have
been developed internally by the Group. Intangible assets are only recognized when their cost may be rellably
and objectively estimated and the Group considers they will probably generate future economic benefits,

Intangible assets are initially racognized at acquisition or production cost and are subsequently measured at
cost less, where appropriate, any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses they experienced.

intangible assets are carried in the consolidated balance sheet at acguisition or production cost, net of
accumulated amortization and any impairment losses,

Intangible assets can have an "indefinite lifie" when, on the basis of an analysis of all relevant factors, we
conclude that there is no foresesable limit to the period over which is expected to generate net cash flows for
consolidated companles, or "finite useful life” in the remalning cases.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but rather at the end of each year, the
consolidated companies revise their remaining useful lives In order to ensure that they are still indefinite ar
otherwise proceed accordingly.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over the methods similar to those adopted for the amortization
of tangible assets criteria. The annual amortization of intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognized
under "Depreciation and amortization - intanglible Assets" in the consolidated income statement.

For intanglble assets with indefinite useful lives and the finite useful life, the consclidated companies
recognize any loss that may have occurred in the carrying amount of these assets due to impairment, using a
balancing entry in "losses impairment of other assats (net) - Goodwill and other intangible "assets of the
consolidated income statement. The criteria for recognizing impairment losses on these assels and, where
appropriate, the reversal of impairment fosses recognized in prior years are similar to those used for tangible
assets for own use (Note 2.14.1).
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2.16 Goodwill

2.16.1 Accounting of goodwill

The excess of the cost of shareholdings in entities measured using the equity method over their
acquired carrying amounts, adjusted at the date of first consolidation, is allocated as follows:

- Where the excess may be allocated to specific compenents of the acquired company's
equity, the value of assets (or liabilities) whose fair vatues are higher {or lower) than the carrying
amounts at which they were recognized in the balance sheets of the acquired companies is
increased (or reduced) accordingly.

- Where the excess may be allocated to specific intangible assets, it is recognized directly
in the consolidated balance sheet provided the fair value may be reliably measured at the
acquisition date.

- Any remaining differences are carried as goodwill, which is allocated to one or more
specific cash-generating units.

Goodwill Is only recognized when acguired for valuable consideration and therefore represents
advance payments madea by the acquiring entity in respact of future economic benefits deriving from
the acquired entity's assets that cannot be individually and separately identified and recognized.

As from 1 January 2013, the Group has recognized goodwill in associates as part of the acquisition
cost of the entities acquired, in the consolidated balance sheet item "Equity investments - Associates”,
as expiained in Note 4. Exclusively for comparabllity, the Group has restated the comparative figures in
the consolidated balance sheet at 31 December 2012, recognizing goodwill in associates in the iem
“Equity investments - Associates”.

Goodwill acquired as from 1 January 2004 is carried at acquisition cost and goodwill acquired prior to
that date is carried at the net amount recognized at 31 December 2003, calculated in accordance with
the regulations previously applied by the Group (Bank of Spaln Circular 4/1891, 14 June). In both
cases, at each accounting close, an estimate Is made to identify any impairment that would reduce the
recoverable amount to below the net cost recognized; if so, the goodwill is written down through the
item “Impaimment Josses an other assets {net)” in the consolidated income statement.

Goodwill impairment iosses are not subsequently reversed.
2,18.2 Negative goodwill

Negative differances between the cost of the shareholdings in consolidated entities and associates with
respect to the relevant carrying amounts, adjusted at the date of the first conselidation, are recognized
as follows:

- Where the excess may be allocated to specific components of the acquired company's
equity, the value of liabilities (or assets) whose fair values ara higher (or lower) than the carrying
smounts at which they were recognized in the balance sheets of the acquired companies, Is
increased (or reduced) accordingly.

- The remaining amounts which may not be aliocated are recorded under “Other gains” in

the consolidated income statement for the year in which capital is acquired in the consolidated
entity or assaociate.
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217 Inventories

This category of the consolidated balance sheet records non-financial assets that thea Group;
- Hold for sale in the ordinary course of business;
- Is currently producing, building or developing for this purpose, or
- Plans to consume in the production process or in the provision of services,

Therefore “inventories” include land and other properties the Group maintains for sale or for its real estate
activities.

Inventories are measured at the lowest cost, which incorporates all the outlays made for their acquisition and
subssquent transformation; the direct and indirect costs incurred to obtain their current condition and location;
the financial costs directly attributable to them, provided they need a pericd of time longer than cne year for
their sale (taking into account the previously-mentioned criteria for the capitalization of financial costs of
tangible assets for own use); and thelr “realisable net value®. The realisable net value is understood to be the
estimated price of their disposal during the ordinary course of busingss, less the estimated costs for finishing
their preduction and the necessary costs for carrying out thelr sale.

Both the reductions as well as, if applicable, the subsequant recoveries in the reallsable net value below their
net book value are recorded In the income statement far the year in which they take place under the caption
*impairment losses on rest of assets (net)”.

The carrying value of sold inventories is written off and recorded as an expense undar the caption "Other
operating expenses” on the consolidated income statement.

The assets allocated by the Group, considering these as those assets that the Group receives from its
borrowers or other debtors to satisfy , totally or partially, financial assets that represent collection rights
against these, independently of the manner in which the property rights are acquired, and that, in line with
their nature and the end to which they are applied, are classified as inventories by the Group, are booked
initiatly at their acquisition cost, understanding this to be the net book value of the debts from which they
originated, calculating this net value in line with the norm applicable to the Savings Bank. Afterwards the
allocated assets are subject to the estimation of the corresponding Impairments that, as may be the case,
arisa on these, calculated in line with the general determination criteria for the inventories indicated earlier,

218 Provisions and contingent liabitities
When preparing the consolidated entities annual accounts, their respective Directors distinguish between:

- Provisions: creditor balances that cover obligations in force at the balance sheet date deriving
from past events that could give rise to financlal losses for the entities. Although such losses are
regarded as probable and are specific in nature, the amount and/or settlement date involved cannot be
determined, and

- Contingent liabilities: possible cbligations deriving from past events which may materialise
subject to one or more future events beyond the control of the consolidated entities.

The Group's conselidated annual accounts include all significant provisions for obligations that are deemed
more likely to arise than not to arise. Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the consolidated financial
statements, although information is provided in accordance with applicable regulations In accordance with IAS
37 (Note 17).

Provisions quantified using the best information available regarding the consequences of tha event in
question, and re-estimated at the year end, are applied to meet tha specific obligations for which they were
originally recognized and fully or partially reversed should such obligations cease to exist or dacreasa.
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At year-end 2013 and 2012, a number of legal proceedings and claims had been instigated against the
consolidated entities, arising in the ordinary course of business. Tha Group's legal advisors and directors
consider that the outcome of these proceedings and claims will not have a significant impact on the
consolidated annual accounts for the years in which the judgements are issued.

Provisions deemed necessary as stated above are charged or credited to the consolidated income statement
caption “Provisions (net)".

2.18 Consolidated cash flow statements

The terms employed in the Group consolidated cash flow statements corresponding to the years 2013 and
2012 have the following meanings:

- Cash flows: Inflows and outflows of cash and cash equivalents (short-term, highly-liquid
investments in respect of which the risk of value fluctuations is low).

- Operating activities; typlcal credit institution activities and other activities that may not be
classified as investing or financing activities.

- Investing activities: acquisition, sale or disposal through other means of non-current assets and
other investments not included in cash and cash equivalents.

- Financing activities: activities that cause changes in the size and composition of equity and
lizbitities and do not form part of operating activities.

As part of the cash fiows from operating activities, certain adjustments are included to obtain the amount of
those flows on the basis of consolidated results for the period. At 31 December 2013 and 2012, "Other
adjustments" are included, in addition to depreciation and amortization, relating to consoclidated income
statement items that do not generate cash flows.

When preparing the consolidated cash flow statement, “cash and cash equivalents” consist of highly-liquid
current investments in respect of which the risk of value fluctuations is low. Accordingly, the Group Unicaja
Banco treats the following financial assets and liabllities as cash or cash equivalents:

- The Group's own cash, which is recognized in the consolidated balance sheet caption “Cash
and deposits at central banks”. At 31 December 2013, the Group's own cash amounted to €211,754
thousand (€220 487 thousand at 31 December 2012).

- The balances held with Central Banks, which are boocked under the heading "Cash and deposits
in Central Banks” on the asset side of the consolidated balance sheet , which as at 31 December 2013
amounted to €1,701,503 thousand (€287,995 thousand at 31 December 2012).

- Net demand deposits at credit institutions other than the balances at central banks and
excluding mutual accounts. Demand deposits at credit institutions other than central banks are
recognized, among other items, in “Loans and receivables — Deposits at credit institutions” on the
consolidated balance sheet, amounting to €93,933 thousand at 31 December 2013 (€69,374 thousand
at 31 December 2012).

- Demand deposits of credit institutions other than central banks are recognized, among other
itams, In “Financial liabilities at amortized cost — Credit institution deposits” on the consolidated balance
sheet, amounting to €598,511 thousand at 31 December 2013 (€175,380 thousand at 31 December
2012).

At 31 December 2013, the net amount of balances receivable from and payable to credit institutions, other
than balances relating to Central Banks, totals € 34,422 thousand, At 31 December 2012, this was a negative
balance of € 106,006 thousand (for the purposes of preparing the consolidated cash flow statement, being a
negative amount, it is not freated as “cash and cash equivalents”).

50




e S

g

i T g % E Z g 3

2.21 Business combinations

Business combinations are operations in which two or more entities or econemic units of the same entity or
group of companies are combined.

Those business combinations completed as from 1 January 2004 in which the Group acquires centrol of an
entity are recognized as follows:

- The Group estimated the cost of business combinations, defined as the fair value of the assets .
delivered, of the liabilities incurred and of the capital instruments issued, as may be the case, by the
acquiring entity.

- The fair value of the assels, liabllities and contingent liabilities of the target entity is estimated,
including any intangible assets that may not have been recognized by target company, which are
included in the consolidated balance sheet.

- The difference between the net fair value of the assets, llabilities and contingent liabilities of the
target entity or economic unit and the cost of the business combination is recognized in these
consolidated annual accounts as follows:

. Where the difference between the net fair value of the assets, liabllities and contingent
liabilities of the target entty or economic unit and the cost of the business combination is
negative, it is recognized In “Intangible assets — Goodwill® on the assets side of the consclidated
balance shest, in the event that the business combination has resulted in the merger or
absorption of the target entities or an economic unit other than an entity has been acquired.

. Where the difference between the net fair value of the assets, liabilities and contingant
liabilities of the target entity or economic unit and the cost of the business combination is
positive, will be registered a goocdwill of consolidation that in no case will be amortized, but will
be subject to annual impalmment analysis set out in the international Financial Reporting
Standards.

For acquisitions of shares in stages over a particular entity, for which, under one of the purchasas, control
over the investee is acquired, the following accounting policles applied by the Group:

- The cost of the business combination is the sum of tha cost of each individual transaction.

- For each acquisition of shares effected to the moment in which the Group gains cantrol over the
Investee entity, the goodwill or negative consolidation difference is calculated separately for sach
fransaction, following the procedure described previously in this note.

- Any difference between the fair value of the assets and liabilities of the investee entity at each

of the successive acyuisition dates and their fair value on the date the Group gaing control over the
entity is recognized as an adjustment to the value of the assets and iiabilities.
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2.22 Transfers of financial assets

The accounting treatment of transfers of financlal assets is subject to the manner in which the risks and
returns associated with the assets are transferred to third parties.

If all the risks and benefits of the assets transferred are substantially transferred to third parties, such
as in unconditional sales, sales under repos at falr value on the repurchase date, sales of financial
asseis with a call option acquired or put option Issued deeply “out of the money®, asset sacuritization
in which the assignor retains no subordinated financing and nor grants any type of credit
enhancement to the new holders and other similar situations, the financial instrument transferred is
written off the consolidated balance sheet and at the same time any right or obligation retained or
craated as a result of the transfer is recognized.

if the risks and benefits associated with the financial asset transferred are substantially retained,
such as in sales of financial assats under repos at a fixed price or at the selling price plus interest,
security lending contracts under which the borrower is required to return the same or similar assets,
the securitization of financial assets in which subgordinated financing is malintained or other types of
credit enhancement that substantially absorb expected credit losses on securitized assets and other
analogous cases, the financlal asset transferred Is not written off the consolidated balance sheet and
continues to be measured using the same criteria as those used prior to the transfer. Conversely, the
following items are recognized and not offset:

- A financlal liability associated with an amount equal to the benefit received; which is
jater valued at its amortized cost;

- Both revenue from the financial asset transferred but not written off and expense from
the new financial liability.

If neither the risks nor benefits associated with the financial asset transferred are substantially
transferred or retained, as in the sale of financial assets with a call option acquired or a put option
issued which are not deeply “in the money® or "out of the money’, financial asset securitization In
which the assignor assumes subordinated financing or other types of credit enhancements for part of
the asset transferred and other similar cases, the following distinetion is made;

- Where the assignor does not retain control of the transferrad financlal asset: in this
case, the asset transferred Is written off the consolidated balance sheet and any right
or obligation retained or created as a resuit of the transfer is recognized.

- Where the assignor retains control of the transferred financial asset the asset
continues to be recognized in the consolidated balance shest at an amount equal to
its exposure to value changes that could arise, also recognizing an associated
financial liability. The net amount of the asset transferred and associated liability will
be the amoitized cost of the rights and cbilgations retained if the asset transferred is
measured gt amortized cost or the fair value of the rights and obligations retained, if
the asset transferred is measured at fair value.
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3. Distribution of the Parent Entity's surplus

The proposal for the distribution of the Parent Entity's net income for 2013 that the Board of Directors will
submit to the General Assembly for approval is set out below along with the already approved for 2012 is as
follows:

Thousands aof euros

2013 2012
Legal reserve 10702 -
Cash dividends 17 830 -
Interim dividends paid - -
Dividends pending payment 17 830 -
Voluntary reserves 78385 -
Negative resulls of previous exercises - (531 491)
Not profit 107 017 {531 491)

In accordance with Legislative Royal Decree 1/2010 (2 July), which approves the Spanish Companies Act
2010, companfles that obtain profits must allocate 10% of profits for the year to a Legal reserve. Appropriations
must be made until the legal reserve reaches 20% of paid up share capital. The legal reserve can be used to
increase capital provided that the remaining reserve balance does not fall below 10% of the increased capital
stock amount. Until the balance exceeds the 20% threshold, the legal reserve may only be used to offset
losses, in the event of other available reserves being insufficient for this purpose.

Earnings per share of the Parent

Basic eamings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to the Bank by the
weighted average number of outstanding shares for the year, excluding the average number of treasury
shares held during the year,

Diluted earnings per share are determined in a similar manner to basic earnings per share, but the weighted
average number of outstanding shares is adjusted to account for the potentially dilutive effect of stock options,
warrants and convertible debt In force at the year end,

Set out below are Unicaja Banco, S.A.'s basic and diluted sarnings per share for the financial years ended 31
December 2013 and 2012:

2013 2012
Net profit/{ioss} for the year (thousand euro) 107 017 (531 481)
Weighted average number of nutstanding ordinazry shares
less treasury shares {thousand) 800 000 800 000
Earnings per share (in euros) 0,134 {0,664)
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2013 2092
Net Income {in thousands of eurcs) 107 017 (6531 491)
Finance costs of mandatory emisslons
convertible (in thousands of euros) - -
Adfusted profit (in thousands of euros) 107 017 (531 481)

Weighted average number of cuistanding ordinary shares
less treasury shares (thousand) B0OO 00O BOC 00D
Average number of shares from bonid converslon (thousand) - -
Adjusted tolal average number of shares for calculation of diluted
profit per share (thousand) 800 000 800 000

Diluted earnings per share (in suros) 0,134 (0,664)

At 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Bank had not issued potentially dilutive Instruments and therefore basic
earnings per share coincided with difuted earnings per share. No profit/{loss) from discontinued operations
was recognized during 2013 or 2012,

4, Goodwill of the Group entlties

At 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Bank recorded goodwill in assoclates pending impairment in the amount
of € 38,137 thousand and € 40,044 thousand, respectively. This goodwill was generated basically through a
comparison with the net fair value of the assets, liabilities and contingent Habilities acquired by the Bank when
it invested In the companies Autopistes del Sol, 8.A. and Hidralia, Gestidn integral de Aguas de Andalucia,
S.A. (formerly Aquagest Andalucia, S.A.}, through the company Hidrocartera, S.L. in the latter case. At 31
December 2013, the goodwill is recognized as part of the acquisition cost of the target companies in the
consolidated halance sheet item "Equity investments - Associates”. The amount pending Impairment at 31
December 2013 derives from the profits expected by the Bank's directors from the target companies, based
on the strength of their customer base and on their average income per customer.

At 31 December 2013 and 2012, in accordance with Note 2.18, the aforementioned goodwill was impaired in
an amount of €1,907 thousand in both fiscal years.

The following table shows the dates of initial recognition and the initial gross amounts of the goodwili in
assoclates, as well as cumulative Impairmant losses and the net amounts of goodwill at 31 December 2013
and 2012

Thousands of suros

Accumulated loss provislons Not amount
Initial
{nitfal registration
amount date 2013 2012 2013 2012
Autopista del Sol, C.E.S.A 34 833 Sep. 2005 { 7 B48) { 6797) 27 187 28 036
Hidralla, G.LAA., S.A.
(previously, Aquagest
Andalucia, 8.A.) 20 487 Jun. 2005 { 851N ( B 458) 10 850 12 008
55 300 {17 163} {15 256) 38137 40 044

As this goodwill relates to administrative concessions and licences held by the target companies for a certain
period of time, the Bank's directors consider that, barring other evidence of impairment, the recoverable value
of the goodwill recognized decreases in proportion to the number of years remaining to the end of the
administrative concession or licence.
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5, Segment information

The Group is engaged mainly in the retail banking business. Virtually all its business is conducted in Spain
and the directors consider that customer types are similar throughout its territorial area of infiuence.
Consequently, in compliance with prevailing regulations, the information on the Group’s business and
geographical segments Is not deemed to be relevant.

Set out below are details of the relative significance of the Unicaja Banco Group's operating segments at 31
December 2013 and 2012, for each of the segmentation fypes or parameters defined in paragraphs 32 to 34
of IFRS 8.

Sector information (products and services)

There follows a breakdown of the Unicaja Banco Group's consolidated balance sheet by sector at 31
December 2013 and 2012, including the same sector information reported to the Bank of Spain.

At December 31, 2013, the credit institutions sector accounts for 99.73% of total consolidated assets and
99.96% of consolidated equity. To this end, pursuant to Rule 70.2 of Bank of Spain Circular 4/2004, the item
“Credit institutions sector” includes the information on the consolidated group of credit institutions defined in
Rule 1 of Bank of Spain Circular 4/2004.

a) Consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2013

Distribution (thousands of suros)

Insurancea Other Adjustments and

Assets Total Sector banks _ companles entitles eliminations
Cash and balances at central banks 1913 257 1913 225 - 32 -
Financial assets held for trading 201 771 291 7T - - -
Avallable for sale financial assets 2 566 037 2 562 662 - 4 906 { 1531)
Loans and receivables 288869589 28913762 - 71344 ( 98 147)
Held to maturity Investments 4 242 658 4242 858 - - -
Hedging derivatives 5§43 745 543 745 - - -
Non-current assets held for sale 263 918 283 918 - - -
Investments 278 758 284 915 - - 14 B44
insurance contracts linked to penslons 132 087 132 097 - - -
Relnsurance assels - - - - -
Tanglble assets 753 691 623 418 - 130 273 -
Intangible assets 3689 1336 - 2353 -
Tax asseis 662 426 6§43 838 - 18 588 -
Other assels 702 914 734 888 - 57 518 { B9 503)
Total assets A1 242921 41132244 - 285014 (174 337)
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Distribution {thousands of suros)

Sactor Insurance Other Adjustments
Liabilities and Equity Total banks _ companles entities and eliminations
Financlal Habllities held for trading 11 881 11 881 - - -

other financlal llabilities at fair value
through profit or loss - - - -
Financlal Habifities at amortized cost 38 542 300 38 456 344 - 217 544 (131 588)
Changes in the falr value of the hedged
items in portfolio hedges of interest rate
risk - - -
Hedging derivatives 44 088 25157 - 18 931 -
Liabilitles Associated with non-current

assets held for sale -
Insurances Coniracls Liabilities 5740

- - - 5740
Provislons 345181 344 213 - 9468 -
Tax Liabliities 111 516 108 480 - 3026 -
Welfare Funds - - - - "
Cther lighilities 88 B56 103 718 - 3421 { 8183
Total Liabliitles 38 159 782 39 040 903 - 243 890 {134 031)
Equity 2086 941 2 066 941 - 49727 ( 48727)
Valuation adjustements 11734 11734 - { 9421) 9421
Minarity Interest 4484 3 686 - 818 -
Total Equity 2083 159 2 082 341 - 41124 { 40 308)
Total Liabiiitles and Equity 41242 921 41 132 244 - 285014 {174 337}
Memorandum items
Contingent exposures 882 851 819 706 - - { 26 855)
Contingent commitments 3 450 328 3 464 217 - - { 13 888)

b) Consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2012

Distribution (thousands of eurcs}

Adjustments
Sactor Insurance Other and
Assets Total banks companies antitles pliminations
Cash and balances at central banks 518 482 518 449 - 33 -
Financlal assets held for frading 124 633 124 633 - - -
Avaliable for safe financlal assets 2 745958 2743004 - 7728 ( 4774)
Loans and recelvables 27 383 523 27 465 812 - 42 723 (125 112)
Held to maturity investments 6 325 881 6 325 881 - - -
Hedging derivatives 745 061 745 061 - - -
Non-current assets held for sale 283 554 203 554 - - -
Investments 283 542 328 238 - 12 855 ( 47 351)
Insurance contracts linked to pensions 119 358 110 358 - - -
Reinsurance assets - - - - ) -
Tangible assets 778 020 641 148 - 136 872 -
Intangible assets 43 149 2130 - 875 40 044
Teax assels 627 624 611 633 - 15 881 -
Other assets 715379 682 479 - 102 708 { 69 808)
Total agsets 40714 284 40601 580 - 319685 (207 001)
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Distribution (thousands of auros)

Sector Insurance Other Adjustments
Llablilties Total banks companies ontities and eliminations
Financial Kabilities held for trading 7 580 7580 - - -

other financial liablities at fair value
through profit or loss - -
Financial liabiiities at amortized cost 37 927 878 37839318

- 228 703 (140 144)

Changes in the fair value of the hedged
items In portfolio hedges of interest rate
risk - - - - w
Hedging derivatives 164 496 145 271 - 19225 -
Liabilities Assoclated with non-cumrent

assets held for sale - . - . .
|nsurances Contracts Liabilities 6514 - - - 6514
Provisions 335274 334 320 - 954 -
Tax Liabilities 117 707 116 136 - 1571 -
Welfare Funds - - . - -
Other lizbliities 123711 128 528 - - { 4817}
Total Llabiiitles 38 683 160 38 6571 154 - 260 453 {138 447)
Equity 2 D47 598 2 047 596 - 78 928 ( 78 928)
Valuation adjustements { 19188) { 15 188) - { 9888 8 686
Minority Interest 2 696 2018 - - 678
Total Equity 2031104 2030426 - 69 232 { 68 554)
Total Liabllities and Equlty 40 714 264 40 801 580 - 310 685 (207 001)
Memorandum [tems
Contingent exposures 1103 814 1143 041 - - { 40127
Contingent commitments 3333 850 3348 270 - - ( 14 420)

Geographlc area information

The Unicaja Banco Group operates in Spain; customer types are similar throughout the country. The Group
theraefore considers a single geographic segment for its operations, the information breakdown required by
paragraph 33 of {IFRS 8 not being applicable.

Note 26 to the consolidated accounts provides information on risk concentration by activity and geographic
araa at 31 December 2013 and 2012

Main customer information
The Unicaja Banco Group is engaged malnly in the retail banking business and has ne customers accounting

for aver 10% of the Group's ordinary Income; the Group thus considers that the information breakdown
required by paragraph 34 of iIFRS 8 Is not applicable.
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6. Remuneration of the Board of Directors and Senior Management
6.1  Board of Directors' remuneration

The following table provides a breakdown of remuneration accrued fo the members of the Board of Directors
of the Parent Entity, Unicaja Banco, 5.A.U., exclusively in their capacity as Board directors during the periods
2013 and 2012, consisting of per diems and fixed remuneration relating solely to their roles as non-executiva
Board directors:

Thousands of euros

2013 2012

Arcas Cubero, Javier 32 39
Alencia Robledo, Manuel 30 28
Azuaga Moreno, Manue! 30 28
Bustinduy Barrero, Marla Luisa - 27
Casero Dominguez, Juan Ramdn 35 41
Cid Jiménez, José Luis 32 40
Dell” Olmao Garcla, Hdefonso M. 32 40
Fernandez Céspedes, Pedro 41 48
Fraite Cantdr, Juan 81 77
Herrera Nufiez, Francisco 3 39
Lépez Lépez, Antonlo 78 76
Medel Camara, Brautio 34 28
Molina Morates, Agustin 67 59
Torre Colmenero, José M® de la 50 42
Valle Sénchez, Victorio 88 B4

6.2  Senior Management remuneration

For the purposes of preparing these consolidated annual accounts, senior management is considered to be
made up of fourteen people (tweive peaple In 2012), who has described these effects as key personnal,
including three Executive Directors. The compensation received by the members of this group in the years
2013 and 2012 amounted to € 3,532 thousand and € 3,068 thousand, respectively. The obligations assumed
based on these guidelines in terms of post-employment benefits deriving exclusively from their status as
employees or bank executives totaled to € 408 thousand in 2013, having been charged € 309 thousand in
2012, amounts covered entirely by the relevant funds.

6.3  Other transactions performed with Board Directors and Senior Management

Note 44 on related parties provides the asset and liability balances of transactions effected with the Group's
Board Directors and senior management at 31 December 2013 and 2012, including a breakdown of income
and expenses recognized in the 2013 and 2012 consolidated income statements in respect of such
transactions, excluding the amounts referred to in Notes 6.1 and 6.2,

6.4  Post-employment benefits of former members of the Group's Board of Directors and Senior
Management

The consclidated income statements for 2013 and 2012 contain no charges for pension and similar obligations

relating to former members of the Group’s Board and senior managerment, as such commitments were entirely
covered in previous years by insurance policies.
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7. Cash and deposits at central banks
An analysis of the balances in this balance sheet caption at 31 Dacember 2013 and 2012 is as follows:

Thousans of euros

2013 2012

Cash 211 754 220 487
Deposits at Bank of Spain 1701 488 207 847
Measurement adjustments - Accrued interest 17 48
1913 257 518 482

The interest accrued during the years 2013 and 2012 for these deposits have been of €926 thousand and
€1,283 thousand, respectively, and are inciuded in "Interest and similar income” in the consolidated income
statemant (Note 31).

8. Flnancial assets held for trading
8.1  Breakdown of the balance and maximum credit risk — dehtor balances

The following table contains a breakdown of the financial assets included in this category at 31 December
2013 and 2012, classified by type of counterparty and by type of instrument:

Thousands of euros

2013 2012

By counterparty type -
Credit institutions 1152 859498
Resldent, public administrations 258 451 7127
Non-resident, public administrations 24 676 26 662
Resident, other sectors 7 402 4 845
291771 124 633

By Instrument typa -

Lsted shares 8428 5754
Listed bonds and debantures 277108 116 767
Derivatives traded on organised markels 41 1080
Derivatives not traded on organised markets 6 196 1022
291 771 124 633

The carrying amounts shown in the above table represent the credit risk exposure bomne by the Group &t each
year end with respect to the financial instruments indicated.

The Interest accrued during the years 2012 and 2011 for debt instruments classified in the trading portfolio
have been of €3,376 thousand and €439 thousand, respectively, and are included in "interest and similar
income” in the profit and loss account statement (Note 31).

The average effective Interest rate on debt instruments classified In this portfolic at 31 December 2013 was
2,46% (3.65% at 31 Decembar 2012).
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The negative flow included in the 2013 consclidated cash flow statement in respect of balances receivable
from financtal assets and Habilities held for trading amounted to € 167,138 thousand (negative flow of € 72,120
thousand in 2012).

B.2  Breakdown of the balance - creditor balances

The following table contains a breakdown of the financial liabilities includaed in this category at 31 December
2013 and 2012, classified by type of counterparty and by type of Instrument:

Thousands of euros

2013 2012

By counterparty type -
Credit institutions 4 576 80
Other resident seclors 7005 7 500
11 981 7 580

By instrument typa -

Derivatives traded on organised markels - 738
Derivatives not traded on organised markets 11881 6 842
11 981 7 580

The positive flow included In the 2013 consolidated cash flow statement In respect of balances payable from
financial assets and liabilities held for trading amounted to € 4,401 thousand (positive flow of € 4,041 thousand
in 2012).

8.3  Derivative financial instruments held for trading
Set out below is a breakdown by type of derivative of the fair value of the Group's derivatives held for trading

and their notional value (on the basis of which future payments and collections are calculated) at 31
December 2013 and 2012:

Thousands of suros

2013 2012

Debtor batances Creditor halances Debtor balances Creditor balances

Fair Notlonat Fair Notional Fair Notlonal Fair Notional

Value Vatue Value Value Value Value Value Value

Un-matured currancy purchases/sates: 396 € 987 291 6887 310 8702 306 9702
Currenties purchased against eurn - - 391 6 8587 - - 308 9702
Currencies sold against euro 3886 & 987 - " 310 g702 “ -
Equity and interest rate futures - - - 1244 - - - 158081
Purchasad - - - - - - - -
Sold - - - 1244 - - 158 091
Equity options: 41 10 968 6271 t762482 1203 45492 6638 1850081
Purchased 41 10 988 - - t 263 45 492 - -
Issued - - B271 17682482 - - 6839 1850081
Other equity transactions 199 87 490 287 180676 - - 635 86 924
Equity swaps &6 5000 - - - - 107 9838
Forward transactions 131 B2 430 287 1BDETS - - 528 86 586
Currency options: - - - - - - “ -
Purchased - - - - - . - -
Issued - - - - - - - -
Other Interest rate transactions 5601 54 588 5032 56 040 599 113845 - B
interest raie swaps 5 801 54 588 5032 85 040 588 113845 - -
Other products - - - - - - - -
8237 160033 11 881 2016 438 2112 168039 7 EBD 2114 808
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The notional amount of the contracts concluded does not represent the actual risk assumed by the Group,
since the net position in these financial instruments is obtained by offsetting andfor combining the relevant
amounts.

Note 11 provides the methods applied by the Group to measure the financial instruments classified in this
category.

8. Available-for-sale financial assets
8.1 Breakdown of the balance and maximum credit risk

The following table contains a breakdown of the financial assets included in this category at 31 December
2013 and 2012, classified by type of counterparty and by type of instrument;

Thousands of eurcs

2013 2012
By counterparty type
Credit institutions 125 802 200 319
Resident, public administrations 1084 334 1131388
Non-resident, public administrations 321778 324 105
Resident, other sectors 858 721 761 357
Non-resident, other sectors 66 788 282 150
2 587 423 2729330
(Impalrment losses) () { 68) { 131)
Other measurement adjusiments { 1320 18 759
2 566 037 2 745 958
By instrument type
Debt securities: 1951 956 1824 258
Spanish government securities 1023782 1088 601
Treasury bills - 259 536
Government bonds and debentures 7023782 828 065
Other Spanish public administration 70 552 42 798
Forelgn governmen! securities 321778 324 105
Issued by financiat institutions 80217 198 737
Other fixed-income securities 447 013 253 390
{impairment losses) (*) ( 66) { 131)
Other measurement adjustments { 1320) 16 758
Other equity Instruments: 614 081 821 699
Shares in listed Spanish companies 343 688 366 480
Shares in unlisted Spanish companies 161 813 152 552
Shares In listed foreign companles 57 768 244 548
Shares in unlisted foreign companles 19 19
Shares In Investment funds 50 783 58 050
2 566 037 2 745 958

{*)At 31 December 2013 and 2012 thts amount relates to impairment losses recognized to cover credlt riek,

The carrying amount shown in the table above represents the level of credit risk exposure of the Group at the
end of those ysars in relation o financial instruments included.

The tofal in the table above as "Other equity instruments” includes the December 31, 2013 a balance of
€251,719 thousand corresponding to impairment losses of the elements included in this section (€264,398
thousand at 31 December 2012), having recorded over exercise a net provision of this correction, not
Including other movements or transfers, amounting to €8,037 thousand, collected under the heading
"Impairment losses on financial assets {nef) "in the consolidated income statement (€108,232 thousand at
December 31, 2012).
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with respect to debt securities classified as financial assets available for sale, net provision of impairment
losses in 2013 amounted to €521 thousand, also collected under the heading of "losses impairment (nst) "in
the consolidated income statement (net recovery of impaiment losses €104 thousand at December 31, 2012).

Amang the most significant movements in the "Avallable-for-sale financial assets" portfolio in 2013 are the
following Group transactions:

- Sale of 9,049,768 shares in Sacyr Vallehermoso for € 19,950 thousand, generating a profit of € 4,958
thousand.

- Acguisition of 2,328,740 shares in Bankia for € 3,150 thousand (derived from a bond exchange).

- Acquisition of 3,477,551 shares in Catalunya Banc for € 6,300 thousand (derived from a bond
exchange).

- Acquisition of 1,751,055 shares in NCG Banco for € 2,700 thousand {derived from a bond exchange).

- Acguisition of 6,750,000 shares in Banco CEISS for € 6,750 thousand (derived from a bond exchange).

- Acquisition of 715,980 shares in Banco Popular Espafiol for € 3,000 thousand (derived from a bond

exchange).

Acquisition of 118,523 shares in Cartera Perseidas for € 2,893 thousand.

Sale of 3,796,247 shares in Metrovacesa for € 8,481 thousand, generating a profit of € 2,796 thousand.

Sale of 28,282 shares In Cea SICAV for € 181,000 thousand, generating & profit of € 2,513 thousand,

Sale of 4,006,062 shares in QMC for € 3,002 thousand, generating a profit of € 727 thousand.

Sale of 1,273,076 shares in Banco Popular Espafiol for € 5,296 thousand, generating a profit of € 828

thousand.

- Sale of 1,457,357 shares in Duro Felguera for € 7,287 thousand, generating a profit of € 6§51 thousand.

- Sale of 1,803,230 shares in CIE Automotive for € 5276 thousand, generating a profit of € 1,209
thousand.

Among the most significant movements in the "Available-for-sale financial assets” portfolio in 2012 are the
following Group transactions:

- Acquisition of 370,074 shares in Campofrio, for €2,625 thousand.

- Acquisition of 80,000 shares in Metro AG, for €2,012 thousand.

- Acquisition of 93,000 shares in RWE, for €2,885 thousand.

- Disposal of 1,835,280 shares in Metrovacesa, for €4,273 thousand, gave rise to a profit of €1,371
thousand,

- Disposat of 34,000 shares in BMW for €2,168 thousand, gave rise to a profit of €265 thousand.

- Disposal of 145,000 shares in ENI Spa, for €2,503 thousand, gave rise {o a profit of €238 thousand.

- Disposal of 257,310 shares in Privandalus Inversionss {l, SICAV, for €3,004 thousand, gave rise to a

profit of €222 thousand.

- Disposal of 375,000 shares in Banco Popular, for €687 thousand, which has resulied In a loss of €254
thousand.

- Disposal of 178,180 shares in Vivendi, for €2,713 thousand, which has rasulted in a Joss of €243
thousand,

- Disposal of 105,250 shares in RWE, for €3,351 thousand, gave rise to a profit of €173 thousand.

These amounts are registered under the "Gains on financlal assets (net)" in the consolidated at December 31,
2013 income statement, accounting for equity instruments classified as financial assets available for sale
{Note 37) .

The interest accrued during the years 2013 and 2012 for debt instruments classified as financlal assets
avallable for sale have been of €100,770 thousand and €97,021 thousand, respectively, are included in
"Interest and yields assimilated "in the consolidated income statement {Note 31).

The average effective interest rate on debt instruments classified in this portfolio at 31 December 2013 was
2.82% (4.03% at 31 December 2012},
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The positive flow included In the statement of consclidated cash flows for the year 2013 on financlal assets
available for sale In this caption amounts € 179,921 thousand (negative flow of € 3,436,268 thousand In
2012).

8.2  Credit risk coverage

Set out below are movements during 2013 and 2012 in impairment losses recorded to cover credit risk and
cumulative Impaiment losses recognized at the beginning and end of 2013 and 2012 in respect of debt
instruments classified as available-for-sale financial assets:

Thousands of euros

Balance at 31 December 2011 1 005
Net appropriations for the year -
Prior-year provisions avaliable { 104)
Other { 770}
Balance at 31 December 2012 131

Net appropriations for the year 561

Prior-year provisions available { 40)
Other (_586)
Balance at 31 December 2013 &6

8.3 Measurement adjustments to available-for-sale financiat assats

Set out below s the reconclliation of opening and closing balances of measurement adjustments to available-
for-sale financial assets in equity on the consolidated balance sheets for 2013 and 2012, against the amounts
recognized in the consolidated income statement as gains/(iosses) on financial assets and liabilities and as
impairment lesses on financial assets, and against the amounts recognized in the consolidated statement of
recognized income and expenses.

Thousands of euros

2013 2012
Value adjustments to assats held for sale at January 1 22 405 { 43 646)
Transfer to results {101 825) { 23 180)
Portion allocated to the consolidated income statement {144 018B) 43725
Changs In fair value of the securitles sold in the year from 1
January or fram the date of purchase to date of sale 42 183 ( BB 88S)
Other changaes in falr value 123 652 117 518
Income tax { 6548) { 28 308)
Value adjustments to assets held for sale at December 31 37 684 22 405
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Set out below Is a breakdown of the amount taken to the consolidated income statement during 2013 and
2012;

Thousands of eliros

2013 2012

Result of financial transactions (Note 37) (141 595) { 27 114)
Impaiment of avallable for sale registered at falr value { 2423 70 833
(144 018} 43 725

8.4  Held-to-maturity investment portfolio

At 31 December of 2013 and 2012 the heading "Held-te-maturity investment portfolio” mainly records Spanish
public dabt and guaranteed debt securities issued by credit institutions. As a rasult of the recent evolution of
debt markets, as well as the Group's intention and financial capacity to maintain those investments to maturity,
it decided to modify its investment strategy classifying assets that were initially classified under "Avaitable-for-
sale financial assets" to that heading {Note 30.5).

As a result of the recent evolution of debt markets, as well as the Bank's intention and financial capacity to
maintain those investments to maturity, it decided to modify its investment strategy classifying assets that
ware Initially classified under "Avallable-for-sale financial assets” to that heading. The first reclassification took
place on 31 March 2011 and involved a total of €1,107,496 thousand. Subsequently, on 1 April 2012 a new
reclassification totaliing € 5,280,452 thousand was carried out (Note 2.2.4).

Below is a breakdown of the financial assets included In this category at December 31, 2013 and 2012,
classified by type of counterparty and type of instrument:

Thousands of euros
2013 2012

By counterparty type
Credit institutions 727 806 985 258
Resident, public administrations 3027 150 4 802 482
Resident, other sectors 461 250 507 123
Non-resident, other sectors 26 352 30117
4 242 658 6 325 981

By Instrument type -

Debt securities: 2 750070 434121
Spanish government securities - 98 710
Treasury bills 2750070 4 242 561
Other Spanish public administration 277 080 481 212
Fareign government securities - -
Jssued by financial Institutions ’ 727 908 986 258
Other fixed-income securities 487 602 537 240
4 242 658 6 325 581

The carrying amount shown in the table above represents the lavel of credit risk exposure to the Bank at the
end of those years in relation to financlial instruments Included therein.

Interest accrued in 2013 and 2012 on these securities iotaled €237 663 thousand and €165,3088 thousand,
respectively and is included under the heading "Interest and similar charges" in the agcompanying
consolidated income statement (Note 31).

The effective average interest rate of the debt instrurments classified in this portfolio at 31 Decamber 2013 and
2012 stoed at 3,77% and 3.86%, respectively.
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In 2013 a part of the held-to-maturity debt securities, at a book cost of € 1,261,366 thousand, were sold,
generating a gain of € 93,044 thousand for the Group that is recognized in “Gains/{losses) on financial assets
and ligbilities - Securities held to maturity” in the consolidated income statement {Note 37).

The main aspects of the transaction are described below:

o The debt securities sold have a face value of € 1,266,000 thousand and a selling price of € 1,354,379
thousand.

o The transaction was completed as part of the acquisition of Banco de Caja Espafia de Inversiones,
Salamanca y Soria, S.A. (Banco CEISS) described in Note 1.2, based on the effect of a business
combination with an entity having a similar size to Unicaja Banco and in order to maintain the entity's
risk positions in interest rates and loans.

o This business combinations relates to a process which, due to its specific structure, is formalized
{hrough the CNMV's pubiication of the related terms of exchange. The terms were reviewed by the
CNMV prior to publishing the securities prospectus on 268 November 2013, in compliance with
applicable legislation. In accordance with the prospectus, a number of aspects are determined that
cause the process to be beyond the Bank's control, as regards the achievement of minimum offer
acceptance rates.

o Once the prospectus was published, the initial deadlines had been determined and the Bank was
able to analyse the business combination and its consequences and impacts for the purposes of
recognition in the 2013 consolidated annual accounts.

o Finally, for reascns not attributable to the Bank, and solely to achieve a higher rate of acceptanca
and more favourable circumstances in the Banco CEISS restructuring process, the deadiines weare
extended by means of Relevant Facts submitted to the CNMV, pending final approval at the issue
date of these consolidated annual accounts.

o The sale was completed as a one-off event and is therefore non-recurring, it was effacted for reasons
beyond Unicaja Banco's control and could not therefore be reasonably foreseen by the Bank's
directors.

For the reasons described, the Bank's directors consider that the transaction fulfis the requirements of
paragraph GA22 of |AS 38, such that the rest of the held-to-maturity debt securities need not be reclassified to
the available-for-sale financial assets portfolio (Note 2.2.4),

Net collections from held-to-maturity securities recognized In the 2013 consolidated cash flow statement total
€ 2,183,117 thousand (net payments of € 25 681 thousand in 2012).
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10, Loans and receivables
10.1 Breakdown of the balance and maximum credit risk

The following table contains & breakdown of the financial assets Included in this category at 31 December
2013 and 2012, classified by type of counterparty and by type of instrument:

Thousands of suros

2013 2012
By counterparty type
Credit Institutions 6039 593 2 207 888
Resident, public administrations 586 917 908 087
Non-resident, public administrations 1086 240
Resident, other sectors 23528014 251353 432
Non-reeldent, other sectors . 101 958 111 2585
30 266 588 28 581 812
{Impaimment losses) ( 1377104) (1203 529)
Other measurement adjustments { 2 525) 5140
28 886 959 27 383 523
By instrument type
Variable-rate credit iines and loans 18 D44 528 18924 400
Fixed-rate credit lines and loans 1271 580 1429 548
Debt securities 1 082 596 1051 115
Securities acquired under repurchase agreements 9 262 820 5624 059
Term deposits at credit instftutions 127 369 184 705
Other deposlts at credl instifutions 100 546 €0 374
Other financial assels 376 649 208 703
30 266 588 28581 813
(impairment losses) { 1377 104) {1203 §29)
Other measurement adjustments { 2 525} 5139
28 886 859 27 383 6§23

The carrying amounts shown in the above table represent the credit risk exposure borne by the Group at each
year end with respect to the financial instruments indicated.

The Interests accrued during 2013 and 2012 for loans to customers have been €693,907 thousand and
€845,171 thousand, respectively, and are included In "Interest and similar income” in the consolidated income
statement (Note 31). Meanwhile, interest earmed on deposits with credit institutions amounted to €29,376
thousand and €19,519 thousand, respectively, and Is included also in "Interest and similar income" in the
accompanying income statement (Note 31).

The average effective Interest rate of the debt instruments classified In this portfolio at December 31, 2013 for
customer loans was 3.37% (3.70% st December 31, 2012) and for deposits credit institutions was 0.81% (1.65
% at December 31, 2012).

The negative cash fiow included in the statement of consolidated cash flows for the year 2013 by credit
investments recorded under this heading amounted €1,503,436 thousand (positive flow of € 842,244 thousand
in 2012).
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Refinancing operations, refinanced and restructured

On 2 October 2012, the Bank of Spain Issued Circular 6/2012, on the rules regarding public and reserved
financing reporting and mode! financial statements that amend Circular 4/2004 (22 December), which
established the obligation to report certain information relating to refinanced and restructured transactions.

Additionally, on 30 April 2013 the Bank of Spain sent a letter explaining the approach agreed by its Executive
Committee in connection with the preparation and approval of the refinancing and accounting policles applied
to the transactions in question. This approach is treated as a reference framework by Unicaja Banco for
compiiance with Bank of Spain Circular 4/2004.

At 31 December 2013 and 2012, the breakdown of refinanced and restructured transactions (a) based on the
criteria of Bank of Spain Circular 6/2012, is as follaws:

Thousands of euros
2013
Fuil real estate mortgage
guarantes Other real guarantees (c} Unsecurad
No. of Gross No, of Gross No. of Gross Specific
transactions amount _transactlons amount transactions amount coverage
Normal Risk (b)
Public administrations 17 188 -] 185 433 61 876 -
Other individual legal persons
&nd businasses 2306 313 028 1002 303 237 1742 537475 -
Of which: Financing for
construction and
development 64 87 761 78 100 607 22 61828 -
Other natural persons 3537 303 852 461 35 434 2204 16 333 -
5 860 617 164 1 662 338 926 4429 616 184 -
Sub-prime risk
Public administrations 2 30 3 3 2 2 .
Other individual legat persons
and businesses 1M 382 826 821 274 B85 1017 117625 ( 239 926)
Of which: Financing for
construction and
development a7 281128 80 164 548 87 20148 ( 167 823)
Cther natural persons 2075 118 082 520 18 226 716 4253 { 35 376)
3848 501 938 1344 292 924 1735 121880 ( 278 an.l
Doubtful risk
Public administrations - - - - - - -
Other individual legel persons
and businesses 1 BB6 417 198 1074 423 025 €60 81133 ( 678731)
Of which: Financing for
construction and
development a7 257 8500 253 2B6 085 88 33944 [ 408477)
Other natural persons 2118 182 488 478 30314 341 2789 ( B6480)
4014 589 686 1553 453 938 1001 83832 [ 765211)
13722 1718 788 4 459 1085 789 7175 $21 888 {1 D40 513)
] S
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Thousands of seuros

2012
Fuli real astate mortgage
guarantes Other real guarantees (c) Unsecured
No. of Gross No. of Gross No. of Gross Specific
transactions amount transactions amoupnt transactions amount coverage
Normmal Rigk (b}
Public administrations 7 150 8 108 488 53 841 -
Cthar individusl legal persons 2740 5854580 1155 340 385 1874 220 241 -
and businesses
Of which: Financing for 357 313 882 109 112 288 59 83 831 -
construcfion and
development
Other natural persons 3 757 3I50 724 478 37 883 2124 20 380 -
6 504 955 364 1638 386 382 4 486 294 582 -
Sub-prime risk
Public administrations 5 48 ] 5 2 1 -
Other individual legal persons 1848 345 983 B8z 223 181 1082 123 060 (118 B62)
dnd businesses
OFf which: Financing for 177 242171 74 114 480 25 34 083 { 95823
construction and
devalopment
Other natural persons 2021 123 387 615 21229 742 5237 { 5822)
3 675 489 426 1 503 244 395 1826 128 298 {124 7841
Doubtful risk
Public administrations - - - - - - -
Other individual lagat parsons 1359 342 6B0 827 437 634 584 67 480 {476 ODE)
and husinesses
Of which: Financing for 337 234 251 186 289 155 74 33 142 {248 877)
construchion and
development
Other natural persons 1303 102 043 453 23100 340 aT20 { B7 225}
2662 444 723 1 ﬁg 450 734 924 71210 !543 231!
12 741 1 B6S 513 4421 4 081 621 7 236 494 070 ‘ssa 0152

(a) Includes all refinancing oparations, refinanced or restructured as defined in paragraph g) of paragraph 1 of Annex IX of the
Circular 4/2004,

(b} Risks classified us normal special monitoring as stated in polnt a) of paragraph 7 of Annex 1X of the Circutar 4/2004.

{c) Inctudes real estate morigage transactions not full, Le. loan to value greaisr than 1, and gther transactions secured by the real
estate masigage whatever your loan fo value.

The gross amount of additions of refinanced or restructured transactions classified as doubtful or substandard
by Unicaja Bank Group in 2013 and 2012 totaled €568,770 and € 648,217 thousand, respectively.

Thousands of euros

2013 2012

Public Administrations 35 48
Other legal entities and individua! entrepreneurs 4B4 485 547 037
Of which: funding for construction and development 323372 395 125
Rest of physical persons 84 240 101 132
5568 770 648 217

The Bank has a transaction refinancing, restructuring, renewal and renegctiating policy that has been
approved by the maximum governing body and is included in the Entity's credit policy and manual. This policy
details the requirements and situations under which a range of measures are offered to assist customers that
are undergoing financial difficulties.
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Although contral over refinanced risks has always formed part of the Unlcaja Banco's prudential monitoring of
the loan portfolio, the Bank has adapted its systems for managing, identifying and monitoring transactions
involving credit exposure to the definitions contalned in Bank of Spain Circular 6/2012. Specifically, the Bank
has policies for refinancing, restructuring, renewing and renegotiating loans which detall the requirements,
terms and situations in which a broad range of measures are available to help customers that are In financial
difficulties.

In general terms, these renegotiated loans do not include changes to conditions deemed substantial, besides
an Increase in the term of loans, the inclusion or extension of grace periods, or the improvement of loan
collateral, so that, for accounting purposes, this does not entall the write-off of the original assets or the
recognition of new assets at fair value.

As regards the accounting treatment of renegotiated loans, the Group complies with Annex (X of Bank of
Spain Circular 4/2004, applying the impalirment adjustment rates stated in section 17 and in paragraph 8 of
Rule 29 of Circular 4/2004 on changes to the terms of debt instruments caused by financial difficulties of the
borrower or debtor, in fine with paragraph GAB4 of IAS 39. According to the precedure applied by the Unicaja
Banco Group, if the new loan eliminates a doubtful exposure, the new [oan must always be classed as
doubtful, uniess the requirements of Annex X of Circular 4/2004 are fulfilied,

The policles and procedures applied when managing exposures allow the itemized monitoring of loans. In this
regard, any loan the terms of which must be modified due to the deterioration of borrower solvency already
has the refevant impairment provision at the novation date. Consequently, as the transactions are correctly
measured, no additional impairment provisioning requirements are applicable to the refinanced loans.

As regards the accounting treatment of interest, the Group does not recognize in the income statement
interest accrued after loans are reclassified as doubtful. If cutstanding interest is received as a result of a
doubtful loans refinancing or restructuring, the interest is recognized as incoms in the income statement for
the year.

Where the Bank is reasonably certain that the customer will comply with the payment schedule following the
refinancing of a loan, the loan is classed as a performing loan. Various factors are considered, such as the
contripution of new effective collateral. Consequently, in such cases, the need to hedge credit exposure on the
loan might be reduced.

Renagotiated or refinanced lcans are classified as defined in Bank of Spain Circular 4/2004. it should be
noted that the Bank of Spain has published criteria for the reclassification of these risks which basically
address aspects such as the detemmination of barrower payment capacity, discounted value of collateral
furnished and other factors, such as loan grace periods or the number of times a loan has been restructured.

Following the initial classification, in the case of loans classed as doubtful or substandard, prudent cure criteria
are applied so that subsequent developments may allow reclassification to parforming loan status, These
criteria are applicable where repayments have effectively been made on the loan refinanced, such that doubts
are dissipated as to collection, taking into account both the amount repald and the period in which the
borrower has been meeting payment obligations.
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10.2 Past-due and impaired assets

Set out below is a breakdown of financial assets classified as loans and receivables and considered to be
impaired due to credit risk at 31 December 2013 and 2012, and items that are not considered to be impaired
but include amounts that are past due &t that date, classified by counterparty and by age:

Assets impaired at 31 December 2013

Thousands of guros

Betweaen Between
Uptoé6 6and 9 9and 12 Over 12
maonths months months months Total
By counterparty type
Resident, public administrations B8O - 46 246 1152
Resident, other sectors 430 406 173 376 256383 10B5366 1934541
Nen-resident, pubtic administrations - - - - -
Non-resldent, other sectors 871 294 178 1104 2 447
441 137 173 670 256617 1066716 1938140
Assets impaired at 31 December 2012
Thousands of suros
Betwaen Betwean
Upto 6 6and 9 Sand 12 Over 12
months months months months Total
By counterparty type
Resident, public administrations 158 - 659 945 1762
Resident, other sectors 582 150 200 244 168 0B7 724 B8O 1875 361
Non-resident, public administrations . - - - -
Non-resident, other sectors
827 223 138 1052 2241
583 135 200 487 168 BBS

726 87T 1679364

At 31 December 2013 and 2012 the Institution records reclassified substandard risks relating basically to

property transactions (Nole 46),

Past-due balances not deemed to be impaired at 31 December 2013

Thousands of auros

Batween Betwean

Less than one 1and 2 Zand3
month months months Total

By counterparty typa

Credlt institutions 68 - - 68
Resident, public administrations 417 128 10 804 11 348
Resident, other sectors - - - -
Non-resident, public administrations 52 296 25178 101 609 178 083
Non-resident, other sectors 123 18 26 167
52 804 25324 112 439 190 667
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Past-due balances not deemed to be impaired at 31 December 2012

Thousands of auros

Betwsen Betwesn

Less than one 1and 2 2and 3
month months months Total

By counterparty type

Credit institutions 135 - 2 137
Resident, public administrations 1362 - 12 1374
Resident, other seclors 120 635 24 780 16 877 162 392
Non-resident, public administrations - - - -
Non-resident, other sectors 59 25 23 107
122 191 24 B80S 17 114 164 010

10.3 Credit risk coverage

Set out below are movements for 2013 and 2012 in impalment losses recorded to cover credit risk on debt
instruments classified as loans and receivables at the beginning and end of 2013 and 2012, together with

cumulative impairment losses,

Movements in impairments losses in 2013 are set below:

Thousands of auros

Specific General Provislon for
provislon provision substandard risk Total
Balance at 31 December 2012 1034 477 19 013 160 039 1203 529
Charged to the income for the year 871434 2882 176 915 1051 031
Recovered and credited to the surplus for the year { 582 4B5) { 6446) { 19495) { 608 426)
Cther movements { 268061) 3 - ( 269 030)
Balances applied to Instruments written off during
the year - - - -
Balance at 31 Decomber 2013 1 054 365 15 280 307 459 1317104
Of which:
Determined individually 531 414 - - 531 414
Determined collectively 522 851 15 280 307 459 845 6§30
1 054 365 15 280 307 459 1377104
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Movemenits in impairments losses in 2012 are set below:

Thousands of auros
Spacific Genaral Provislon for
_provision provision substandard risk Total
Balance at 31 December 2011 584 847 19 685 262 300 B66 B32
Charged to the Income for the year 1041433 83 87 605 1108121
Recovered and credited to the surplus for the year ( 247 384) {5 160) (179 BGS) { 432 419)
Cther movemenis ( 344 419) 4414 - { 340 005)
Balances applied to Instruments written off during
the year - - - -
Balancs at 31 Dacember 2012 1034 477 19 013 150 038 1203 529
Of which:
Determined individually 533 704 - - 533 704
Determined collectively 500773 19 013 150 039 6B 825
1034477 15 013 150 (38 1 203 529

Set out below is a breakdown by nature of the tem “Other movements® for the periods 2013 and 2012, based
on the amounts presented in the previous table:

Thousands of ouros

2013 2012

Utifization due to reclassification to non-periorming charged to asset impairment adjustments (192 363) (113 822)
Utilization due to repossession of tangible and other assels { 78 667) {227 487)
Reclassification of rent classed as doubtful - 1114
{269 030) (340 005}

11.  Hedging derivatives (debtors and creditors}

At 31 December 2013 and 2012, contracted derivatives designated as hedges and the items hedged
consisted baslcally of;

- Interest rate swaps hedging mortgage bonds issued by Unicaja and third-party bonds acquired
by the Group.

- Futures on listed equities hedging changes in the share price prior to the sale of the shares.
The measurement methods used to determine the fair value of derivatives are the discounted cash flow

method, applied to interest rate derivatives, and the Montecarlo technical simulation method, used to measure
structured products having an sptional compongnt.
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There follows & breskdown by product type of the fair values of receivables and payables relating to
derivafives designated as hedging instruments in fair value hedges and cash flow hedges at 31 December
2013 and 2012, indicating hedge types, hedging instruments and hedged items:

Type and countable
covar hedging
instrument

Thousands of euros

2013

2012

Dabtor falr
valug

Creditor falr
valus

Notlonal

Debtor falr
value

Creditor fair

vaiug Notional

Fair value hedges:

Buy sell

currencles against
euros
Sales of foreign
axchange euros
Other operations

securities
Swaps on securities
Options on
values
Operations in term
Currency options
Purchased currency
options
Curreney options Issued
Other operations on
interest ratoa
Financial interest rate
swaps {IRS bonds)
Financial interest rate
swaps (IRS balances
with central banks)
Financial interast rate
swaps (RS bonds)

Subtotat
Cash flow hedges:

Futures on securities
and interest rate
Gales of future interest
raie

Other operations on
interest rates
Financial interest rate
swaps (IRS Joan
portfolio)

Financial interest rate
swaps (iRS balances
with central banks}
Financial interest rate
swape (IRS bands)

Subtotal
Total

543 346
535 291

8055

2 664
2664

11471
11471

4 586 948
4415948

170 000

744 834
743 361

1 553

- 16 635
- 16 638

101 677 8752 454

68 B76 4189 740

370 2000 000
- 582 705

543 283

2 664

362

a2

41424

18 931

22 4893

4598 419

2 361 404

111 404

2000 o000
250 000

745 0614

101 577 5759083

43 €84 260 000
43 604 250 000
18 226 2108 896

18 225 108 B9&

- 20900 000

362

41 424

2381 404

£2 918 2 368 896

543 746

44 088

6 959 823

746 061

164 496 9 157 989

Hedgeditem

Hedge exchange

Loand agreamant
ard bonds |ssued

Balances with
central banks

Dett secusities

Cash fiow of
Credits

Cash flow of
Credits

Balances with
central banks

Debt securities

At 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Unicaja Banco Group does not record financlal instruments that must be

classed as hedges of net investments in foreign operations.

74




|

B

b

0 ) U0 Ly Ll

-

Tha Unicaja Banco Group only treats hedges desmed fo be highly effectiva throughout the term of the hedge
as “hedging transactions”. A hedge is deemed highly effective if, during the forecast hadge term, any changes
in the fair value or cash flows attributed to the financial insfruments hedged are almost entirely offset by
changes in the fair value or cash flows, as applicable, of the hedging instruments.

Designated “cash flow hedges” cover changes in the cash flows attributed {0 a specific exposure to a financial
asset or llability, or a highly probable forecast transaction, provided the consolidated income statement might
be affectad. Set out below is the Information required by paragraph 23 of IFRS 7 in connection with these cash
flow hedges:

= Periods in which the flows are expected to ocour: Flows relating to deposits in central banks will
oceur to March 2015, while flows associated with debt securities will ocour to October 2017,

- Periods in which the income statement is expected to be affectad: Same periods in which the cash
flows are expected to oceur.

- Amount recognized in the past year in the consolidated income statement item “Interest and similar
income” to rectify income from hedging transactions: Profit of € 134 thousand (loss of € 97 thousand
in 2012).

- Amount recognized in the past year in the consolidated income statement item “Interest expense and
similar charges” to rectify expense from hedging transactions: Loss of € 11,513 thousand (loss of €
4,553 thousand in 2012).

- Cash flow hedge ineffectivensss recognized in results for the year: Cash flow hedge ineffectiveness
recognized in the consolidated income statement in 2013 tolals € 3,083 thousand, relating to Interest
rate futures sales. In 2012, no cash flow hedge ineffectiveness was recognized in the consolidated
income statement.

Net losses on measurement recognized in the consolidated statement of recognized income and expenses for
2013 and 2012 in respect of cash flow hedges amounted to € 28,530 thousand and € 8,589 thousand,
respectively. Additionally, in 2013 net gains of € 11,727 thousand were taken to the consclidated income
statement.

Designated "falr value hedges" cover exposure to changes in the fair value of financial assets and liabilities or
of fim commitments not yet recognized, or of an identified portion of such assets, lfabilities or fim
commitments, attributable to a particular exposure, provided the consolidated income statement might be
affected. Set out below is the information required by paragraph 24 of IFRS 7 in connection with these fair
value hedges:

- Losses and gains on hedging instruments: See accompanying table showing a breskdown of losses
and gains on hedging instruments during 2013 and 2012,

- Losses and gains on the hedged item attributable to the exposure hedged: See accompanying table
showing a breakdown of losses and gains on hedged items that are actually attributable to the
hedged exposure during 2013 and 2012,

- Ineffectiveness of hedges of net investments in foreign operations recognized In results for the year;
The Group has no hedges of this kind,
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Thousands of suros

31 de diclambre da 2013 31 de diclembre de 2012
Resuits on hedging Results on hedging
Instruments Hedged resuits instruments Hedged results
Hedglng Instrumsnt Loss Profit Loss Profit Loss Profit Loss Profit
Buying and selling of foreign
currencies against euro - - - - “ . - -
Sales of foreign cumency on
securiies - - - - -
Other operations on values 187 30 309 21 297 62 754 56 135

Swaps values
Options on Securities

I |
’
LI A |

157 - 30 308 27 297 62 754 B6 135

Cperattons [n term - -

Currancy options 476 63 445 567 168 259 132 38
Purchased currancy options 476 363 445 557 185 258 132 a8
Currency options issued - - - - - - - -
Other operations on intarast

rates 367 183 188 127 185 448 336 107 221 543 366 407 394 140 248 185
Financial interest rate swaps

{IRS bonds) 351 617 156 234 154 337 348 BG4 180 382 354 215 381 648 157 692
Financial interest rate swaps

{IRS balances with central

banks) - - - - a0 964 ags 398 30 564
Financia! interest rate swaps

{IRS bonds) 15 576 31883 3z 111 16123 30 187 11784 11 886 30 528

367 669 188 480 187 060 366 664 252 017 393 863 457 026 316 358

The notional amount of the contracts formalized does not represent the actual risk assumed by the Group in
relation to such instruments.

The Group applies fair value hedge accounting basically to {ransactions in which it is exposed to changes in
the falr value of certain assets and labllities that are sensitive to interest rate fluctuations, i.e. assets and
liabilities Hinked to a fixed interest rate, which is converted into a variable rate by means of the relevant
hedges.

In the Group's opinicn, at 31 December 2013 and 2012 there are no doubts that the expected transactions will
be completed.

12.  Investments
i2.1  Investments - associates

Appendix Il contains a breakdown of the Group's shareholdings in associates entities at 31 Dacember 2013
and 2012 indicating the percentage held and other relevant information.
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The contribution frem the main assoclates to the consolidated balance shest item “Equity investments -
Assoclates” at 31 December 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

Thousands of auros

2013 2012
Alestis Aerospace, S.L. 7525 12 BBS
Hidralla, Geslién Integral de Aguas de Andalucla, S.A.

(previously, Aguagest Andalucia, 8.A.) 49 168 49 863
Autoplsta del Guadalmeding, Conceslonaria Espafiola, S.A. 22 383 26 032
Autopista del Sol, Conceslonarla Espafia, S.A. 30 164 33341
Deoleo, S.A. 63 223 71 859
EBN Banco de Negoclos, S.A. 10 564 9 883
Grupo Hoteles Playa, S.A. 11 376 15 358
Sacyr Vallehermoso, S.A. - 38 815
Sociedad Municipal de Aparcamientos y Servicios, S.A, 8135 7776
Unicorp Vida, Compafila de Seguros y Reaseguros, 5.A. 75930 53778
Cther entities 1280 8 996

279 759 333 586

Set out below is the reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of "Equity investments -
Associates” in the consolidated balance sheets for 2013 and 2012:

Thousands of euros

2013 2012

Nat book value at 1 January 293 542 354 716
Additlons for the year 3841 2260
Disposals for the year { 39 504) -
Outcome equity 15 627 { 2128)
Impalmment losses (Note 41) { 7837 { 32 261)
Distributed dividends ( 19333) ( 17 862)
Differences in valuation adjustments 27 280 8116
Transfers between assoclated and group / multigroup ( 1874) 30
Cther movements 8217 27 815
Net book value at 31 December 279 759 333 586

The item “Other movements” relates basically to capital increases and raductions in associates, which are not
recognized as additions or disposals provided the percentage shareholding does not change.

At 31 December 2013 and 2012 the Group recorded an amount of €7,837 thousand and €39,261 thousand,
respectively, in respect of impairment of Investments in associates, being recorded in the caption “impairment
losses on other assets (net) "( Note 41),

The balance of the caption " Investments - Associates " in the consolidated batance sheets at Decamber 31,

2013 and 2012 Includes €38,137 thousand and €40,044 thousand, respectively, related to goodwill associated
with this type of shares. Note 4 sets out information relating to this goodwill.
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12.2 Investments - jointly-controlled entities

Appendix ! contains a breakdown of the Group's shareholdings in jointly-controlled entities at 31 December
2013 and 2012 indicating the parcentage held and other relevant information. (Note 4 and Appendix |i)

12.3 Notification of shareholdings acquired and sold

Here are the notifications of acquisitions and sales of shareholdings in group entities, assocfates and jointly-
controlled entities that have been submitied in accordance with Article 86 of the Spanish Companies Act and
Article 53 of Stock Market Act 24/1988.

In 2013 the main acqulsitions and disposals of shareholdings in associated companies were as follows:

- Acquisition on 5 February 2013 and 23 September 2013 of 1,245 shares in Sociedad de Gestion San
Carlos, 8.A. (Sogescar) for € 418 thousand; the Group's interest in this company at 31 Decamber 2013
stands at 50.32%.

- Acquisitior on 11 February 2013 of 1,144 shares in Unic-as Promociones inmaobiliarias, S.L. for
€ 1,500 thousand; the Group's interest in this company at 31 December 2013 stands at 100%,

- Acquisition on 28 February 2013 of 3,130 shares in Inversiones Soclal Docente del Aharro
Bensfico Espafiol, S.A. (ISDABE).

- Liquiiation on 9 April 2013 affecting 1,185,704 shares in A.lLE. Alcione |, 1,222,546 shares in
A.LE. Alcione il, 1,959,000 shares in A.lLE. Naviera Urania. At 31 December 2013 the Group halds no
shares in these companies.

- Acquisition on 14 May 2013 of 100,000 shares in Urbasur Actuaciones Urbanisticas, S.L. for €
50,000 thousand; the Group's interest in this company at 31 December 2013 stands at 100%.

- Sale on B June 2013 of 12,375,755 shares in Participaciones Agrupadas, S.L. for € 25
thousand, generating a profit of € 25 thousand.

- Sale on 12 June 2013 of 250 shares in Hispaparking, S.L. for € 13,000 thousand, generating a
profit of € 12 thousand.

- Liquidation on 16 July 2013 of Andaluza de Control y Dispositivas de Seguridad, S.A.U.
(ACDS), affecting 10,148 shares amounting to € 436 thousand.

- Acguisition on 18 July 2013 of 38,571 shares In Titulizacién de Activos, Sociedad Gestora de
Foendos de Titulizacidn, S.A. {TDA) for € 2,797 thousand; the Group's interest in this company at 31
December 2013 stands at 38.57% and it is now classed as an associate.

- Sale on 6 November 2013 of 1,505 shares in Servicios Generales de Jaén, S.A. for € 3
thousand, which did not generate a profit.

- Sale on 16 December 2013 of 7,252 shares in Inversiones Social Docente del Ahorro Benéfico
Espafiol, S.A. (ISDABE) for € 379 thousand, generating a loss of € 430 thousand that is offset by an
impairment provision. At 31 December 2013 the Group holds no shares in this company.

- Subscription in a capital increase on 23 December 2013 of 31,220,000 shares in Unicaja
Gestidn de Activos inmobillarios, S.A.L., (UGAI) for € 31,220 thousand.

- Non-cash contribution on 23 December 2013 fo subscribe for a total of 30,040 shares in
Gestién de Inmuebles Adquiridos, 8.L.U. (GIA) in the amount of € 31,206 thousand.

- Liguldation on 31 December 2013 of 1,749,901 shares in A.L.E. Naviera Nerga. At 31 December
2013 the Group holds no shares In this entity.

- Acquisition on 31 December 2013 of 210,940 shares in Liquidémbar Inversiones Financieras,
S.L. for € 564 thousand; the Group's interest in this company at 31 December 2013 stands at 14.74%.

- Vertical merger of Unicorp Retall Properties, S.A.U. Into Unicorp Corporacién Financiera, S.L.,
affecting 6,051 shares, amounting to € 3,401 thousand.

- Liquidation of the securitization funds AYT Unicaja Financiacién |, FTA, Unicaja Andalucia FT
Vivienda TDA 1, FTA, Unicaja AYT Empresas |, FTA and Unicaja TDA VPO, FTA (Note 30.8).
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Also, In 2013, there have been the following changes in classification between Group companies, jointly
controlled entities and associates:

- Having regard to the shareholding in Sacyr Vallehermoso, S.A., with effect as from 1 January
2013 existing shareholder agreements were cancelled and the investment was reclassified to the
available-for-sale assets purtfalio at that date,

- The sharsholding in Urbasur Actuaciones Urbanlstacas S.L. increased from 50% ta 100%, this
company becoming & subsidiary of the Unicaja Banco Group.

- The shareholding in Unic-as Promociones Inmohiliarias, S.L. Increased from 48% to 100%, this
company becoming a subsidiary of the Unicaja Banco Group.

In 2012 the main acquisitions and disposals of shareholdings in associated companles were as follows:

- Acquisition dated January 30, 2012 of 947,439 shares in A.L.E. Naviera Cabo Udra for €947
thousand, and at 31 December 2012 a 26% stake in the company was held.

- Acquisition dated March 26, 2012 of 959,920 shares In A LE. Naviera San Simén for €960
thousand, and at 31 December 2012 a 26% stake in the company was held.

- Acquisition dated April 30, 2012 of 8,750 shares in Cartera de inversiones Agroalimentarias,
S.L. for €160 thousand, at 31 December 2012 a 82.50% stake in the company was held.

- Acquisition dated May 10, 2012 of 5,089 shares in Crupo Hoteles Playa, S.A, for €311
thousand, and at 31 December 2012 a 15.55% stake in the company was held,

- Acquisition of 972,399 shares, dated 25 June 2012, in A.LE. Naviera Malpica for €972
thousand, at 31 December 2012 a 26% stake in the company was held.

- Subscription dated December 26, 2012 of 56,805,400 shares In Unicaja Gestion de Activos
Inmobiliarios, S.A.U. for € 56,905 thousand, through a cash conkribution at the time of incorporation of
€55,379 thousand and €1,526 thousand in cash, with the percentage of participation in the equity of the
company at December 31, 2012 the 100.00 % {Note 1.1.3).

- Dispositicn dated Septembar 26, 2012 of 260,064 shares in Alcazaba Television, SL, which has
not brought benefits.

- Liquidation dated June 6, 2012 of 200 shares In assets Andalusians, SL, which has brought
benefits.

- Liguidation dated November 15, 2012 of 6,000 shares in Administration and Personnel
Management, ETT, SAU for € 513 thousand.

- Liquidation dated December 13, 2012 of 8,088 shares in Profingo, SA, for which assets have
been obtained, for € 1,949 thousand.

Also, in 2012, there have been the following changes In classification between Group companies, Jointly
controlled entities and associates:

- Reclassification from investments in Uniwindet, S.L., Uniwindet Parque Edlico Tres Villas, S.L.,
Uniwindst Parque Eélico Loma de Ayala, S.L., Uniwindet Parque Eélico Los Jarales, S.L. and
Uniwindet Parque E6lico Las Lomillas, S.L. which were classified as jointly controlled entities at
December 31, 2011 and have come to be classified as Group entities at December 31, 2012.

- Reclassification of the ownership interest in Cartera de Inversiones Agroalimentarias, S.L. which
was classified as an associate entity at December 31, 2011 and has come to be classified as Group
entity at December 31, 2012,

The net charges recorded in the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year 2013 recorded in this
caption cash holdings amounted to € 268 thousand (net payments of € 2,499 thousand in 2012).
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13.  Property, plant and equipment

The movements of “property, plant and equipment” in this balance sheets of 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

Cost

Balance at 31 December 2012
Additions

Disposals and other wiite-offs

Other transfers and other movements
Balance at 31 December 2013

Accumulated depreciation
Balance at 31 Docember 2012
Disposals and other write-offs
Charges

Other transfers and other movements
Balance at 31 December 2013

Impalmaent losses
At 31 December 2013

Net property, plant and equipment
Balance at 31 December 2013

Cost

Balance at 31 December 2011
Additions

Disposals and other write-offs

Other transfers and other movements
Balance at 31 December 2012

Accumulated depreciation
Balance at 31 December 2011
Disposals and other write-offs
Charges

Other transfers and cther movements
Balance at 31 December 2012

Impalrment losses
At 31 December 2012

Net property, plant and equipment
Balance at 31 December 2012

Thousands of euros
Investment
For own use property Total
1 168 800 203 951 1 372 B51
9188 3467 12 655
{ 12821} ( 13814) ( 26335
( 15929) 40 366 24 437
1148 638 233870 1 383 608
{ 520 914) { 16186} { 537 100)
8496 458 8885
{ 2081B) { 3797y ( 33718)
1058 {( 34490 (2391
( 541 278) {22833) { 564 211)
{( 17 049) ( 48 657) { 65706)
581 311 162 380 753 691
Thousands of euros
Investment
For own use proparty Total
1130 497 163 004 1 283 501
68 140 2698 70830
{ 8003 {12022y ( 20025
{ 21734) 50 270 28 836
1168 800 203 851 1372 851
{ 484 601) {12 502) ( 487 103)
4209 17 4 226
{ 31577 ( 4600) { 38177
{ BS845) BO9 { B8048)
{ 520 914} {16 186) { 537 100)
{ 18683) ( 39 038) ( 5§7731)
§29 283 148 727 778 020
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The above tables identify “Other transfers and other movements" in both the cost and accumulated
depreciation of the assets. Set out below is a breaskdown by nature of these movemants in 2013 and 2012:

Thousands of euros

2013 2012

Investmant For own investmant

For own usa Propaerty use Property

Transfers from non-current assets held for sale - 6708 - 18 970
Transfers between own uge and Investment properties (15 273) 15273 {20 517} 20 517
Transfers from inventories - 24 110 - 19035

Other movements 402 ~{ 8174) {10 162) { 7353)
{14 871} 36 917 {30 679} 51 169

The Group has taken out several insurance policies to cover risks that are subject property, plant and
equipment. The coverage of these policies is considered sufficient.

The net charges recorded in the statement of consolidated cash flows for the year 2013 by tangible assets
recorded under this heading amounted to € 571 thousand {net payments of € 54.902 thousand in 2012).

13.1 Property, plant and egquipment for own use
Set out below is a breakdown by nature of this balance sheet caption at 31 December 2013 and 2012;

Thousands of euros

Accumutated Impairment  Net balance
Cost depreciation losses

Data processing equipment and instaflations 90 388 ( B2 598) - 7791
Furniture, vehicles and other instaliations 535 786 (374 838) { 278) 160 571
Bulldings 472918 { 77 250) (13 DE5) 382 603
Work In progress 504 - - 904
Other ) 46 641 ( 6481 ( 3708} 30 442
Balance at 31 Dacember 2013 1149 628 {541 278) {17 0489) 591 311
Data processing equipment and installations 89 718 ( 85 224) - 4484
Fumiture, vehicles and other instaliations 534 860 {354 738) ( 352) 176 B70
Bulidings 486 525 ( 74 685) (14 228) 397 602
Work In progress 877 - - 877
Other 56 820 ( 6267) { 4113) 46 450
Balance at 31 December 2012 1 168 800 (520 914) (18 693) 629 293

As part of the net balance as of December 2013 contained in the above table, there are headings for an
amount of €5,413 thousand (€1,747 thousand at December 31, 2012) corresponding to plant and eguipment
net worth societies Group are acguired under leasing.

At 31 December 2013, property, plant and equipment for own use having a gross value of approximately
€355,854 thousand (€348,907 thousand at 31 December 2012) was fully depreciated.
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13.2 Investment property

The consolidated balance sheet item *Investment property” generally reflects the net vaiues of land, bulldings
and other structures held in order to be leased. Investment properly is carried in the consolidated balance
sheet at acquisition cost, which is formed by the fair value of any consideration paid plus all cash outiays
made or committed, less accumulated depreciation and any estimated losses calculated by somparing the net
valua of each item with its recoverable amount. Under |AS 36, the recoverable amount is the higher of fair
value less costs to sell and the value in use of the assets.

As these assets generate rental income and their value in use may be estimated, the Group does not foliow
the same appraised value update criteria applicable to irregular properties held exclusively for sale. The Group
calculates the recoverable amount of investment property based on the value in use derived from the rent
generated by the assets,

The Unicaja Banco does not have a relizble measurement of the fair value of investment property. As there s
no reliable measurement of the fair value of invastment property, the Group does not report on the
requirements of letters {d) and (e} of IAS 40, paragraph 75.

Direct operating expenses (including repairs and maintenance) recognized in the consolidated income
statements for 2013 and 2012 in relation to investment property, showing property that generates rent
separately from property that does not, are as follows:

Thousands of eures

2013 2012

Expenses associated with investment property that generates rent 4 678 aosz2
Expenses associated with investment property that does not generate rent 975 455
5 654 3 537

As regards the Investment property for which the Group acts as a lessor, regulations applicable to each lease
are observed, particularly the provisions of Law 29/1894 (24 November) on Municipal Leases and Law 4/2013
{4 June} on measures to develop and enhance the flaxibility of the home rental market.

In 2013 and 2012, income from leased cut under operating lease (investment property) owned by the Group
totaled €6,610 thousand and €6 460 thousand, respectively (Note 38).

With respect to the information required by 1AS 27, paragraph 56, in 2013 and 2012 the Group's annual

income from non-cance!lable operating Jeases, i.e. under the former lease regime, totaled € 7 thousand in
both periods.
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13.3  Impairment losses

Set out below is a summary of movements in impairment losses affecting property, plant and equipment
during 2013 and 2012;

Thousands of suros

Invastment

Own use property Total
Balance at 31 December 2011 22 855 23 311 46 266
Endowments - 7 888 7 898
Recoveries, sales - - -
Other recoveries { 79 - { 79
Gther transfers and reclassifications { 4183) 7 829 3646
Balance at 31 December 2012 18 693 39 038 57 731
Endowments - 8 008 8 008
Recoveries, sales { 410 { B3) { 473
Other recoveries { 89 - { 68)
Other transfers and reclassifications {1165 1673 508
Balance at 31 Dacomber 2013 17 049 48 657 65 706

14. Intangible assets

At 31 December 2013 and 2012, virually the entire balance of *Intangible assets” in the consolidated balance
sheet relates to computer software using in the course of business by the companies of the Unicaja Banco
Group.

Maovements In “intanglble assets” in the consolidated balance sheet during the periods ended 31 December
2013 and 2012 are as follows:;

Thousands of euros

Accumuiated Net book

Cost depreclation value

Balance at December 31, 2011 18 850 {15 642} 4 208

High cast / depreciation 239 { 1004) { 765}

Low cost / depreciation ( 428) 402 { 26

Other movements (255 ( 57) ( 312)
Balance at December 31, 2012 19 408 {16 301) 3105
High cost / depreciation 1798 (1077} 721

Low cost / depreclation { 383 ars ( B)

Other movements - { 129) { 129)
Balance at December 31, 2013 20821 (17 132) 3 689

The amount recognized in the consolidated Income statement item “Amortization - Intangible assets” totals €
1,077 thousand at 31 December 2013 (€ 1,004 thousand at 31 December 2012).

Fully-amortized intangible assets still in use at 31 Dacember 2013 and 2012 amount to € 14,003 thousand and
€ 13,545 thousand, respectively.

Net payments recerded in the statement of consolidated cash flows for the year 2013 for intangible assets
recorded under this heading amounted to € 1,651 thousand (net receipts of € 88 thousand in 2012).
83




e S o

TN
3

20 LlTd i

-

[ A

H

16. Other assets

a) Non-current assets for sale

Set out below is a breakdown of the item “Non-current assets for sale”, which includes the carrying amount of
assets that do not form part of the Bank's operating activiies and the carrying amount of which will
foreseeably be recovered through the transfer price. These assets amount to € 263,918 thousand at 31

December 2013 (€ 293,554 at 31 December 2012),

The Group has estimated the falr value of these assets based upon the valiue obtained in an updated

valuation, In line with the content of OM/805/2003, by a valuers authorized by the Bank of Spain.

Set out below is a breskdown of non-current assets classified by purpose af the end of the years 2013 and

2012:
Thousands of guros
2013 2012
Equity Instruments 42 1848
Resldentlal assets 181 582 173 760
Finished Propartias 41 398 56 723
Dwelling 12 442 28 873
Rest 28 858 27 850
Properties under construction 15119 10 408
Dweliing 14 279 9785
Rest 840 824
Solls 257717 50 814
263 918 283 554

Net gains recognized in the 2013 consolidated statement of recognized income and expenses on equity
instruments classed as non-current assets for sale total € 730 thousand (net losses of € 882 thousand in

2012).




B

. bU=2:

|

i

ey
o

Set out below is the reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of tangible assets included in the
consolidated balance sheet item “Non-current assets for sale” {(excluding equity instruments) for 2013 and
2012;

Thousands of euros
Tangible assets  Value adjustments

awarded for impalrment Net book value

Balances at December 31, 2011 233 832 _{29 828} 204 004
Additions for the year 218037 (10 0486) 207 991
Disposals and other transfers ( 60 336) 13 428 { 46 910)
Allocated to income (Note 43) { 6807 (25 243) ( 32 150)
Transfers to inventories {Nate 1.1.3) { 30789) §228 { 24 541)
Transfers to investment property { 18 870) - { 18970
Other moavements 2128 154 2 282
Balances at December 31, 2012 337 015 (45 308) 291 706
Additions for the year 126 130 { 7601 118 528
Disposals and other transfers ( 70728) 14 240 { 56 489)
Allocated to Income {Note 43) { 3334) (10 401) ( 13735)
Transfers to inventories (Note 1.1.3) { 83331 8338 ( 74 B92)
Transfers to investment property ( 6708) - { 6708)
Other movemenis 4 882 683 § 585
Balances at December 31, 2013 303 925 {40 049) 283 876

During 2013 and 2012 no significant collections or payments were reflected in the consolidated cash flow
statement in respact of non-current assats for sale.

Impairment [osses recognized in the consolidated income statement in 2013 and 2012 on non-current assets
for sale total € 10,401 thousand and € 25243 thousand, respectively; they are recognized in the item
“Gains/{losses) on non-current assets for sale not classified as discontinued operations” (Note 43).

All the “Non-current assets for sale” in the consolidated balance sheet were received by the Bank or by other
consolidated companies for the full or partial settlement of debtor obligations.

The Unicaja Banco Group applies market terms in buyer financing granted for the purchase of properties.
Lezns granted in 2013 for initial financing total € 6,062 thousand. At 31 Dacember 2013, galns on these loans
pending racognition amount to € 11,308 thousand.

Valuation companies

The main valuation company that issues reports on the Unicaja Banco Group's assets Is Tasaclones
inmobiliarias, S.A. (Tinsa). The following companies also issue valuation reperts on the Group's assets:
Sociedad de Tasacién, S.A. (Sotasa), UVE Valoraciones, S.A., Técnicos de Tasacion, S.A. {Tecnitasa) and
Eurovaloraciones, 5.A. (Euroval).

The Unicaja Banco Group has a procedure for selecting valuation companies that restricts assignments to
appraisals that are performed solely through slectronic means by valuation companies with an internal code of
cenduct that complies with applicable legislation, ameng other requirements. Pre-authorized valuation
companies are selected at random.

In general, the appraisals used by the Unicaja Banco Group, both for properties securing ioans and for assets

that are repossessed or received as payment for debts, must be performed by 2 veluation company
authorized by the Bank of Spain and in accordance with the requirements of Order ECQ/805/2003 {27 March).
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b} Other assets

A breakdown of the balances in this consolidated balance sheet caption at 31 December 2013 and 2012 is set
cut balow: ‘

Thousands of suros

2013 2012

Inventories 67367 635 184
Other 29243 B0 186
702 814 715 379

At 31 December 2013 and 2012, the consolidated halance shest item “Other” relates basleally to prepayments
and accrued income.

The consolidated balance sheet itsm “Inventories” includes non-financial assets that are held for sale by the
consolidated entifies in the ordinary course of business, are being produced, built or developed for that
purpose, or are expected io be consumed in the production process or in the provision of services.
Consequently, land and other properties heid for sale or for inclusion in a housing development, are treated as
invantories,

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost, which includes all outlays to acquire and transform the inventories,
direct or indirect costs incurred to bring them to their current condition and location, and directly attributable
financial costs, provided more than one year must elapse before they are sold, and net realisable valus. The
net realisable value of inventories is the estimated sefling price in the ordinary course of business less
estimated costs to be Incurrad to complete the prodiiction and sale of the inventories.

In accordance with paragraph 2 of IAS 36 “inventories”, both decreases and, i applicable, subsequent
recoveries of the net realisable value of inventories below their carrying amount are recognized in the
consolidated income statement In the period in which they occur, in the item “Impairment losses on other
assats (net) - Other assets”.

A breakdown by company of the asset item "Other assets - inventories” on the consolidated balance sheet at
31 December 2013 and 2012 is as follows:

Thousands of guros

2013 2012

Unicaja Banco, S.A.U. - 772
Unic-as Promociones inmobiiiarias, S.L.U. 23705 14 908
tnmobifiaria Acinipo, S.L.U, 10 861 8 866
Gestitn de Inmuebles Adquirdos S.L.U. : 634 277 587 036
Unicaja Gestién de Activos Inmobiliarios, S.A.U. 1526 1526
Promotora Guadalnervién, S.L.U. 29827 7513
Other entities 275 10 673
6873 671 635 194
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o With respect to the review of appraisal quality, the Unicaja Banco Group has procedurss in place to
review the appralsal repoit, particularly in relation to the determining factors; if there are doubts as to
the appraised value and/or determining factors, it is compared with values recently obtained for
properties that are similar and/or in the same zone. Internal controls are also in place to review the
consistency and adequacy of the valuations performed by each valuers.

o In the professional relationships with valuation companies, in order to safeguard valuer
independence and avoid conflicts of interest, the Group has put in place adequate mechanisms and
barriers to preclude the possibiiity of their activities being influgnced, for purposes unrelated to the
assurance of valuation quality, by the Bank's operating units or subsidiaries,

o As regards the frequency of appraisal reviews, pursuant to prevalling legislation, the values of assets
securing mortgage loans (at minimum, assats securing loans classed as doubtful or substandard),
repossessed assets and assets received as payment for debis are revised every three years at
minimum, depending on the status of the loan and the asset type,

o For appraisals that need not fulfil the requirements of Annex IX of Circular 4/2004, the Credit
Committee is responsible for establishing a procedure that can combine both valuations performed
under Order ECO 805/2003 without visiting the interior of the property and the estimation of the
appraised value using statistical or other methods permitted by reguiations.

Finally, at 31 December 2013 and 2012 the Unicaja Banco Group records no inventories in the consclidated
balance sheet that are pledged to secure the settlement of debts.

16.  Financial liabillitles at amortized cost
16.1 Deposits from Central Banks

A breakdown of this consolidated balance sheet heading at 31 December 2013 and 2012 Is as follows:

Thousands of auros

2013 2012

Central Bank of Spaln 4 500 000 6 000 000
Measurement adjustments - Accrued interest 62 045 17 688
4 562 045 6 017 688

The interest accrued during the years 2013 and 2012 for these deposits have been of €33,625 thousand and
€48 308 thousand, respectively, and are included in "Interest and similar charges” in the consolidated income
statement (Note 32).

16.2 Deposits from credit institutions

Set out below is a breakdown by nature of transactions of the consolidated balances in this balance sheet
caption at 31 December 2013 and 2012:

Thousands of euros

2013 2012

Term deposils 16¢ 804 155 423
Investments 150 000 150 000
Assets sold under repurchase agreements 1376 609 546 936
OCther accounts 1566 517 176 380
Measurerent adjusiments 5784 2 889
1 858 514 1 030 828
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Fixed-term deposits include unique mortgage bonds issued in accordance with the provisions of Law 2/1981
{256 March) on the mortgage market and a teritorial bond issued in accordance with Law 44/2002 (22
November), as detalled below:

Thousands of euros

Nominal amount

Issua date Maturity date Interast rate 2013 2012
11/03/2003 11/03/2013 {c) 4.007% - 250 000
02/12/2003 02/12/2013 (t) 4.507% - 7742
02/12/2003 02/12/2018 (8) 4.757% 16 258 16 258
19/11/2003 221172013 {c) 4.508% - 200 000
04/12/2003 D4/1212015 Eurtbor 3 months + 0.13% 100 000 100 000
25/02/2004 01/03/2016 (a) 4.385% 250 000 250 000
05/04/2004 05/04/2014 (&) 4.005% 250 000 250 000
05/04/2004 05/04/2014 (c) 4.005% 50 000 50 000
16/11/2004 16/M11/2014 {c) 4.007% 146 341 146 341
16/11/2004 16/11/2014 (c) 4.007% 21951 21 851
16/11/2004 16/11/2018 (8) 4.257% 53 650 53 658
16/11/2004 16/11/2018 (a) 4.257% 8 048 8048
241112004 2711112018 {c} 4.1258% 200000 200 000
28/03/2005 28/03/12015 {c) 3.753% 141 667 141 667
28/03/2005 29/03/2020 (2) 4.003% 58 333 58 333
18/05/2005 21/05/2025 () 3.875% 200 coo 200 000
16M6/2005 20/06/2017 {a) 3.500% 150 600 150 000
2B/06/2005 28/06/2025 (a) 3.754% 76 823 76 823
28/06/2005 2B/06/2015 Euribor 3 manths + 0.08% 73077 73077
16/11/2005 21/05/2025 (a) 2.875% 200 000 200 000
121122005 12/03/2016 {a) 3.503% 74074 74 074
1211212005 121272022 {a) 3.754% 51852 &1 852
20/02/2006 20/02/2018 Euribor 3 months + 0.12% 80 000 90 000
10/03/2006 1210312016 (8) 3.503% 40 000 40 000
22/03/20086 22103/2021 (2) 4.005% 100 0OC 100 000
08/04/2008 08/04/2021 (a)}) 4.125% 200 000 200 000
25/05/2006 06/04/2016 {b) Eurbor 3 months + 0.06% 250 000 250 000
26/05/2006 24/05/2017 Euribor 3 months + 0.08% 100 000 100 000
09/06/2006 12/06/2018 () 4.285% 100 000 100 000
19/10/2006 21/10/2018 {a) 4.000% 300 000 300 000
23/10/2008 24/05/2017 Euribor 3 months + 0.09% 100 600 100 000
23/10/2008 23/10/2023 (c) 4.254% 200 000 200 000
18/03/2007 1910312017 (g) 4.004% 200 000 200 000
23/03/2007 2610312027 {d) 4.250% 150 000 150 000
20/04/2007 08/04/2021 {2) 4.125% 200 000 200 000
23/05/2007 2210812019 Euribor 3 months + 0.08% 200 000 200 000
23105612007 23/05/2027 (a) 4.755% §0 Q00 50 000
23/0512007 23/05/2027 {a) 4.755% 50 000 50 000
29/06/2007 08/04/2031 (a) 4.250% 400 000 400 000
25/0712007 181272016 {a) 4.005% 300 000 300 600
18/10/2007 21M10/2017 furibor 3 months + 0.17% 250 000 250 000
19/40/2007 08/04/2021 4,125% €0 000 60 000
19/110/2007 26103/2027 4.250% 110 000 110 000
1911072007 08/04/2031 4.250% 180 000 180 000
057122007 20i102/2018 Euribor 3 months + 0.13% 145 000 145 QOO
10/04/2008 10/04/2048 {a) 5.280% 22 000 22 000

5919184 6376926

(8) The fixed interest rate bome by the Enfity has been converted to & varieble rate by contracting swaps on the
nominal amount.

{b) Issug bearing interest divided info two tranches, commencing with a fixed rate of 2.891% to 8 July 2006; the rate
then changes to the 3-month Euribor + 0.06.

(c) The fixed rate supported by the Bank has been made variable by financial swaps on the nominal amount. These
swaps were cancefed during 2012.
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(d) The fixed Interest rate paid by the Bank has been converted to a variable rate by contracting financial swaps
cavering the nominal value. The swap was canceled during 2013,

16.4 Marketable dabt securities
A breakdown of this consolidated balance sheet heading at 31 December 2013 and 2012 is as follows:

Thousands of suros

2013 2012

Promissory notes and bllls B9 427 557 268

© Mortgage securities 2 628 683 2780213
Other non-convertible securities 1450 000 1 450 000
Own securities (1 737 578) (1 778 B58)
Measurement adjustments - Accrued interest 72134 113478

2 503 646 d122101

16.4.1 Promissory notes and bills

During the years 2013 and 2012 have been in place four programs of notes, with the following key
features and balances for the end:

Thousands of euros
Nominal amount

subscribed
Nominal
amount of
Maturity date Issue 2013 2012
First commerctal paper program Unicaja Variable {*} 1 500 000 93 508 575 818
893 506 575 918

(*YThe notes were |ssued at any time from one week {0 elghteen months.

The "First Notes Programme of Unicaja Banco™ was registered with the Spanish National Securities
Market Commission (CNMV) in March 2012, targeting the general public, including retail and gualified
investors, consisting of notes with a nominal value of € 1,000 up to & maximum sum of € 1.5 biilion,
extendable to € 3 biilion de euros, The programme had a one-year term as from registration with the
CNMV and is no longer in force at 31 December 2013, although thers are unmatured notes.

Interest accrued during 2013 for such securities have been €12,955 thousand (€25,636 thousand in
2012), and are included in "Interest expense and similar charges”" In the consolidated income
statement (Note 32).

The average effective interest rate on the debt Instruments classified in this heading at 31 December
2013 was 3.71% {(3.62% at 31 Decermnber 2012).
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The movements of the account of promissory notes and other securities in 2013 and 2012 are as
follows:

Thousands of euros

2013 2012
Opening nominal balance 575919 282 040
lssues 28072 1 536 663
Redemption _ {611 485) {1 242 7B4)
Closing nominal balance 93 506 575 918
Prepaid interest (_4078) { 18651
Closing balance 88 427 557 268

All these financial instruments are denominated in euros.

The issue prospectuses, prepared in accordance with Circular 2/1899 from the Spanish National
Securities Market Commission (CNMV), were officially registered by the CNMV.

16.4.2 - Mortgage securities

detall of the mortgage bonds issued at December 31, 2013 and 2012 is as follows:

lssue ISIN code Issug data nlx:s::t:ﬂ B;.:ﬁ;:;t B;::;‘;‘.:;t M:t:gty Interest rate
Euribor 6m +
18t {ssue Unicaja ES0484872011 26/03/2008 50 oo - 50000 26/03/2013 0.25%
&th Issue Unicaja ES0484872052 24/07/2008 50 00D - AB BED  24/01/2013 3,320%
7th Issue Unicaja ES0484872060 06/10/2008 1000 000 694 489 po4 503 06/10/2014 3125%
Eurlbor 8m +
Bth Issue Unicaia ESN464872078 1711212000 70 000 70 000 70000 1722017 0.88%
Euribor 6m +
8ih Issue Unicaja ESDN45487 2086 17/12/2008 30 000 30 pon 30000 177122021 0.75%
10th issue Unicaja ES0464872054 27/01/2010 50 000 - S500D0 27/0B/2013 2.875%
1th Issue Unicaja ES0458759000 14/10/2010 750 000 744 207 745 217 14110/2015 4.375%
Euribor 6m +
2nd |zsue Unicaja ES0458750018 22/11/2010 70000 70 00O o600 22/11/2018 2.00%
Euribor 6m +
3rd Issus Unicaja ES0458758025 221112010 30 000 30 000 dopop  22/11/2022 2,00%
4th Issue Unicaja ESD458758034  23/03/2011 500 000 480 667 450 533  203/2018 5.500%
Euribor 3m +
1st Issue Linicaia ES04B0307015 21112/2012 200 000 200 00D 200000 211272020 4.40%

2629663 2780213
LB - — -}

These issues are admitted for negotiation on the fixed income market AIAF, and are guaranteed by a
mortgage on all those that at any time are registered in favour of the issuing entity and are not subject
to the Issue of morigage bonds, in addition to the overall equity liability for these,

Interest yield from the date of issue of these bonds at 31 December 2013 amounted to €83,548
thousand (€89,415 thousand at 31 December 2012), and included in "Interest expense and similar
charges” of the consolidated income statement {Note 32).

The average effective interest rate for these debt instruments at 31 December 2013 is 3.42% (3.43% at
31 December 2012).
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16.4.3 Other non-convertible securities

Other non-convertible securities at 31 December 2013 and 2012 relates to the outstanding balance of
the Group's bond and dsbenture issues.

Set out below is an analysis of outstanding bond and debenture issues at 31 December 2013 and

2012
Thousands of euros 2013
Kominal Maturity date
lssue ISIN code Issus date amount Outstanding Interast rate of Issus
poritorial bonds Unicaja ES04B0807007  27/03/2012 760 00D 700000  4.203% 27/03/2017
S;‘:d";":ﬂffsfu”e'“j Banco  eonampeo7ocs  2a/0S/2012 300 000 300000  6.250% 23/05/2017
Guarantod Unicaja Banc®  gso3g0g07016  20106/2012 300 000 300000 6.800% 20/0672017
Suaranieed Unicaja Banco  psoasosn7ozs  20106/2012 150 000 150000 6.150% 20/06/2015
1450000 1480 000
Thousands of etiros 2012
Nominal Maturity date
lssue ISiNeods = _lssue date amount Outstanding Interest rata of iasus
g:’;:g’ifﬁ:s":: Unicala. ES04B0807007  27/03/2012 700 000 700000  4,203% 27/03/2017
Suaraniees Unicaja Bance  psossosorons  23/05/2012 300 000 300000  8,250% 23/05/2017
Suarantoed wnoafa BaNC0  penasnsoTots  20/06/2012 300 000 300000  6900% 20/06/2017
Suarantase Lnicaja Banc>  g50380007024  20/06/2012 150 00D $50000  6,150% 20/06/2015
1450000 1450 000

Interest accrued on the bonds during 2013 totaled €5,021 thousand (€21,749 thousand in 2012) and is
included in the consclidated income statement item “Interest expenses and similar charges” (Note 32).

The average effective interest rate on the debt instruments classified in this heading at 31 December
2013 was 0.35% (1.53% at 31 December 2012).

All these financial instruments are denominated In euros.
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16.5 Subordinated liabilities

Set out balow is a breakdown of the balances and main faatures of subordinated liabilities in the consolidated
balance sheet at 31 December 2013 and 2012, consisting of the Group's issue of subordinated debt:

Euros Thousands of euros
No. of Nominal Balance at  Balance at Nominal
lgstie sacurities amount  31/12/13 It1212 Interest rate Matu
Twelfth - 300 - 51136 {*}interest rate ECSC + 0.5% 18/08/2013
Thirteenth 98 B&1 300 29 GEB 50711 {*}intarest rate ECSC + 0.5% 01/07/2014
Fourteenth B2 523 00 18 757 31804 (*}interest rate ECSG + 0.5% 01/07/2014
Fifteenth 106 161 300 31 848 &5 357 Euribor 12 months + 0.15% 26/07/2015
Caje Jaén First Issue 3102 800 1861 3487 Euribor 6 months + 0.25% 20/12/2014
Caja Jaén Sacond |ssue 1300 1000 1380 3147 Euribor 6 months + 0.30% 181 2/2015
Singular case Jaen
subordinated obfigation 1 8 000 000 7 044 7 844 Euribor 3 months + 0.8575% 08/11/2016
Valuation adjustments - Accrued interest 120 TOB
90 979 204 392

("} Since September 2012 ceased the publication of the differentlal, making it take effect the terms of the respective
prospectuses for such clrcumstances continue to apply the Interest type replacemeant.

These are repaid at par at maturity. All emissions are targeted at retail investors, except for the issue called
“singular case Jaen subordinated abligation", which Is assigned to subordinated debt | AyT background and it
is addressed to qualified investors.

All subcrdinated debt issues are behind the Institution's common creditors in terms of creditor priority.
Subordinated debts are classed as computable for the purposes of the Institution’s minimum equity ratio;
although amounis exceeding the percentages of tier-1 capital referred to in Article 23.2 of Royal Decree
1343/1892 (8 November) may not be included in the calculation of equity.

Interest on subordinated debt financing recognized in the consolidated Income staterment amounted to €2,671
thousand In 2013 (€5,380 thousand in 2012) {(Note 32).

The average effective Interest rate on the debt instruments classified in this caption at 31 December 2013 was
1.66% (2.47% at 31 December 2012).

Net payments recorded in financing activities of the cash flow statement Consolidated 2013 on subordinated
llabllities recorded under this heading amountad to € 113,413 thousand (net receipts of € 28,921 thousand in
2012).
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16.6 Other financial liabiiities
This balance In the balance sheets at 31 Dacember 2013 and 2012 breaks down as follows:

Thousands of suros

2013 2012

Amounts payable 47 353 52 088
Bails Received 73924 86 743
Collection accounts 23 859 22 567
Special accounts 640 730
Financial guarantees 669 179 872 475
815 055 835 804

The amount registered by the Entity as at 31 December 2013 and 2012 under the heading of guarantees
received corresponds, principally, to guarantees in favour of the Entity deposited in other financlal entities as a
result of its operation in derivative coverage products.

The positive flow included in the statement of consolidated cash flows for the year 2013 on financlal liabllities
at amortized cost amounts to € 614,422 thousand (positive flow of € 2,886,481 thousand in 2012).

17. Provisions

Set out below are the changes in provisions in 2013 and 2012 and the purpose of the provisions recorded In
the consoclidated balance sheets at 31 December 2013 and 2012;

Thousands of seures

Contingent
Penslons and Habiiitles and Other
similar obligations commitments provisions Total
Balance at 31 December 2011 194 409 31 503 117 147 343 059
Provision charged to income:
Charge to provisions 5 581 27038 33 588 66 208
Interest costs (Note 32) 6198 - - 6169
Recovery against income { 81) (19 BODY { 8413) { 28 403)
Provislons used { 21 841} - { 6936) { 28777)
Other movements - 330 { 23 342) { 23 012)
Balance at 31 December 2012 184 267 38 953 112 044 335 274
Provision charged to income:
Charge to provisions 5538 26 251 56 666 BB 455
Interest costs (Note 32) 5344 - - 5344
Recovery against income - {37 136) { 2550) ( 35 688)
Provisions used { 24 314) - { 22 487) ( 46 801)
Other movements 13115 807 { 11127 2 585
Balance at 31 December 2013 183 950 28 685 132 546 345 181
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The provisions recognized by the Group reflect best estimates of future obligations. The Bank's directors
consider that there is no significant risk, taking into account the amount of these provisions, that such
obligations could give rise to a material adjustment to the camying amount of the Group's assets and liabilities
in the following accounting period. The financial effect estimated in provision calculations and provisions
recoverad in 2013 and 2012 ware immaterial.

The Bank quantifies provisicns taking into account the best information avallable on the consequences of the
event giving rise to the provisions, which are re-estimated at each accounting close and are used to cover the
specific obligations for which they were originally recognized. Provisions are fully or partially reversed if such
obligations decrease or are eliminated.

The Group pericdically reassesses the risks to which its activities are exposed on the basis of economic
circumstances. Following the Initial measurement and recognition of provisions, they are reviewed at each
balanca shest date and adjusted, if applicable, to reflect best estimates at that time.

Provisions recognized are used to cover the specific obligations for which they were originally recognized and
are fully or partially cancelled when such obligations cease to exist or decrease.

Provisions for pensions and similar obligations

The breakdown of *Provisions for pensions and simiar obligations” corresponds to the amount of
commitments with employees of the Group described in Notes 2.12 and 40.

Provisions for contingent liabilities and commitments

This caption from the consolidated balance sheet includes the amount of the provisions registered to cover
contingent risks, understood as those transactions where the Group secures third-party oblfigations resulting
from the financial guarantees granted or other types of contracts and contingent commitments, understood as
irrevocable commitments which may lead to the recognition of financial assets.

Set out below is a breakdown by nature of the balance in the item “Provisions for contingent exposures and
commitments” at 31 December 2013 and 2012, and a breakdown of the related item "Other movements”
during 2013 and 2012:

Thousands of suros

Balance at end Other movements

2013 2012 2013 2012

Provislons for contingent liabilitles 28 685 38 883 607 330
Provislons for contingent labilities - - - -
28 685 38 963 607 330

“Other movements"” basically include increases and decreases in the provisions recognized for contingent
exposures due to reclassifications between amounts utifized and eentingent exposures.

The item “Provisions for contingent exposures” includes provisions operations in which the Group secures
third-party obligations under financial guarantees fumnished or other types of agreements, while the item
*Provisions for contingent commitmants” includes provislons for irrevocable commitments that could give rise
to the recognition of financial assets, there being a zero balance at 31 December 2013 and 2012,
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Other provisions

Set out below is a breakdown by nature of the balance in the item "Other provisions" at 31 December 2013
and 2012, and a breakdown of the related item *QOther movements” during 2013 and 2012:

Thousands of suros

Balance at end Other movements

2013 2012 2013 2012

Coverage for legal contingencies 49 304 46 627 - {11 374)
Coverage contingencles assoclated with investees 8703 29 865 {23 B85 -
Coverage of cther contingencies 73 449 35 552 12 738 (11 BEB)
132 546 112 044 {11 127) {23 342)

The main items included in "Other provisions” are described below;

» “Coverage of legal contingencles™ This relates to provisions for legal proceedings in respect of which
there is likely to be an outfiow of funds affecting profits. It covers customer claims and lawsuits with
public administrations, among other items. The definitive date of the outflow of funds depends varias;
in some cases, obligations have no fixed settiement period and, in other cases, this depends on fegal
proceedings in progress. The amounis to be provisioned are calculated using best estimates of the
sum necessary to settle the claim based, among other aspects, on an itemized analysls of the facts
and on legal opinicns of internal and external advisors.

« *Coveraga of contingencias relating to investees™ This includes contingencies related to the Group's
equity investments that are not due to impairment of the fair value or recoverable amount of
investments but to other types of contingencies that may arise from the holding of the shares. The
timing of the outflow of funds depends on each particular contingency and is estimated by Group
management using the best information avallable at the accounting clese.

= “Coverage of other contingencies™ This includes various risks for which provisions have been made
covering unresclved aspects that the Group expects will result in an outlay of funds, and probable
outlays envisaged by the Group in the ordinary course of business. The amounts to be provisioned
are calculated based on the best estimate of the funds that the Group will be required to pay to settle
the contingencies identified, also taking into account the timing of the fund outflows expected to be
caused by the obligation. At 31 December 2013, the balance in the item “Coverage of other
contingencies” includes the potential payment {0 Aviva Europe, S.E. (AVIVA) in connection with the
purchase and sale of the company Unicorp Vida, Compafila de Seguros y Reaseguros, S.A. On 24
February 2014, Unicgja Banco and AVIVA agreed the terms of the consideration payable by the
Bank for the Definitive Adjustment of the Final Price under the Share Purchase Agreement, based on
the amount determined by an actuarial expert.
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18,  Other liabilities

An analysis of the balance In this consolidated balance sheet caption at 31 December 2013 and 2012 is as
follows:

Thousands of euros

2013 2012

Accrued un-matured expenses 43 581 48 970
Operations In process 18 314 50 250
Other 37 081 24 421
98 856 123 711

19. Assets and Habilities for insurance contracts

At 31 December 2013 and 2012 “insurance contract’ of the consolidated balance amounts €132,097 thousand
and €118,359 thousand, respectively, (Note 40).

At 31 December 2013 and 2012 "Insurance policy labllities" maintained by the Group total €5,740 thousand
and €65,514 thousand, respectively.

20. Minority interests and income attributed to minority interests

A breakdown by consolidated company of the balances in the captions “Minority Inferests” and “Income
attributed to minority interests” in the consolidated balance sheet and income statement for 2013 and 2012 is
as follows:

Thousands of euros

2013 2012

income Income

attributed to attributed to

Minority minority Minority minority

interests Interests intarests Interests

Escuela Superior de Estudios de Empresa, S.A. 202 (183) 261 ( 48)
Privéndalus Inversiones |, SICAV, S.A, 3666 338 2018 128
Parque industrial Humilladero, 8.L. 706 { 20} 753 { 28)
Uniwindet Parque Edlico Las Lomilias, S.L. ( 320) 38 { 383) { 3)
Uniwindet Parque Edlico Loma de Ayata, S.L. ( 664) 34 { 707 6
Uniwindet Parque Edlico Los Jarales, S.L. { 440) 42 { 504) { 22)
Uniwindet Parque Edlico Tres Villas, 5.L. {1420) 108 (1 558) 7
LIniwindet, S.L. 2754 { 36) 2796 g
4 484 308 2 696 48

21. Capital and share premium

The Bank's capital stock to 31 December 2013 amounted to 800,000 thousand euro, comprising B00 million
issued shares of par value of ona euro, fully paid up and subscribed by Maonte de Piedad y Caja de Ahorros de
Ronda, Cédiz, Almerla , M&laga, Jaén and Antequera (Unicaja).

At 31 December 2013 and 2012 the Bank did not hold any treasury shares. During 2013 and 2012 no
operations wersa carried out involving treasury shares,
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The Segregation Project relating to the segregation operation described in Note 1.1.2 establishes that, due to
the dynamic nature of the banking business at Unicaja, as from the date of that project to the date on which
the operation is effectively registered, the Segregated Equity and its components may logically change during
the ordinary course of the financial business,

In this connection, and as is indicated in Note 1.1.2, any change in the value of the Segregated Equity that
arises as a result of changes in its composition as a result of the dynemic nature of Unicaja's financial
business, as from the date of the Segregation Project is considered to be an increase or decrease in the share
premium for the purposes of the Bank's incorporation, and therefore in no case does it affect share capital
figure,

In accordance with the Segregation Project, the share capital of the Bank would total €800 million, with a
share premium totalling €1,793 million. These amounis include the value of the Segregated Equity at €2,470
miflion and an estimate of changes In the Segregated Equity made by the Directors of Unicaja totalling €123
million.

Between 1 January 2011 (date of accounting effects) and 1 Decembar 2011 (date on which the segregation
operation effectively took place), there were movements that changed the amount of the "Share premium”
from €1,793 million as stated in the Segregation Project to €1,763 millien which was finally contributed. Taking
into consideration the rest of the Group's entities, the share premium at 31 December 2013 and 2012 totaled
€1,645 million in both fiscal years.

The breakdown and movements recorded under the heading “Equity” in the consolidated balance sheet for
2013 and 2012 are presented in the accompanying statement of total changes in consolidated equity, together
with an explanation of all movements that took place in this account over the course of 2013 and 2012.

22, Reserves

Appendix IV to these notes to the consolidated annual accounts presents, among other information, a
reconciliation of the carrylng amounts at year-end 2013 and 2012 recognized in the item “Equity -
Shareholders’ equity - Reserves” in the consolidated balance sheet, showing all movements during 2013 and
2012.

During tha first quarter of 2007, the Entity reclassified the balance included under “Equity - Accumulated
Reserves - Reserve for the revaluation of fixed assets”, amounting to €23,614 thousand, resulting from the
application of Royal Decree-Law 7/1996, of 7 June 1986, to "Equity - Accumulated Reserves - Other reserves”
that are freely available in nature and are carried under equity in the balance sheet.

212)
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22.1 Reserves in fully-consolidated or propartionately-consolidated entities

Set out below is a breakdown by consolidated entity of the balances recognized in “Equity - Reserves -
Accumulated reserves” in the consolidated balance sheets at 31 December 2013 and 2012, relating to the part
of that balance resulting from the consolidation process:

Thousands of suros

2012 2012
Urilcaja Banco, S.A.U. 142 308 325179
Unlcorp Corporacién Finanelera, S.L. 18 479 15798
Alteria Corporacion Unicaja, S.L.U. 0 ma 25 682
Inmablilaria Acinlpo, S.L.U. () (100 689) ( 63670)
Gestian de Actividades y Serviclos Empresariales, S.AU. 2694 2 665
Corporacién Uninser, S.A.U. 11 828 10 526
Banco Europeo de Finanzas, S.A. B 386 7117
Unimediterraneo de Inversicnes, S.L. 9227 g 182
Unicartera Gestidn de Activos, S.L.U. 22 184 20705
Andaluza de Tramiltaciones y Gestiones, S.A.U., 6 594 & 558
Unicartera Infernaclonal, S.L.U. 46 293 61 293
Unigest, 8.G.1.1.C., 5.AU. 2343 2312
Unlcartera Renta, S.L.U. 15 428 11 562
Participaciones Agrupadas, S.L. (*) - { 8031)
Mijas Sal Resort, S.L.U. () { 1918) { 1751}
Gestion de Inmuebles Adquiridos, S.L.U. () {480 398) {123 292)
Hidrocartera, S.L. 6 426 § 952

Pinares del Sur, S.L. (*} { 17 531) { 11116)
Liquiddmbar Inversiones Financleras, S.L. {%) ( 8138) ( 7217)
Unic-as Promociones Inmobiliarias, S.L. () { 8816) { 4088)
Innovacidn en Desarrolios Urbanos del Sur, S.A. (%) { BESH) ( 703%)
(

Espacio Medina, S.L. (%) 16 082} { 16 025)
Unimediacién, S.L.U. 2611 3 961
Renta Porfolio, S.LU. {} { 10 588) { 4689)
Oftras sociedades {*) { 8110) { 5636)
(326 354) 254 978

{*}Negative balances represent accumulated losses.
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222 Reserves and exchange differences in entities measured using the equity method

Set out befow is a breakdown by consolidated entity of the balances recognized in “Equity - Reserves -
Reserves in entities measured using the equity method” in the consolidated balance sheets at 31 December
2013 and 2012, relating to the part of that balance resulting from the consolidation process:

Thousands of euros

2013 2012
Autopista del Sol Conceslonaria Espafiola, S.A. () { 268 112) (24 085)
Autopista del Guadaimedina, Conceslonaria Espafiola, S.A. (%) { 3803) { 88
Grupo Hoteles Playa, S.A. () ( B8755) { 6234}
EBN Banco de Negoclos, 5.A, (%) ( 8387 { 4581)
Unicorp Vida, Cempafiia de Seguros y Reaseguros, S.A. (%) 2 486 22 445
Socledad Municipal de Aparcamientos y Servicios, S.A. 4078 3ro7
Ingenlerfa e integracién Avanzadas, S.A. (ingenia) 2025 2378
Hidralia, Gestidn Integral de Aguas de Andalucla, S.A. (%

(previously, Aquagest Andalucla, 8.A.) {( 3941) { 2863
ALE. Naviera Urania (%) - ( 1859)
AlE. Naviera Nerga (") - ( 32486)
A.LE. Naviera Attlla (%) { 2425) { 2425)
A.LE. Navlera Electra (*) { 2425) { 2425)
Sacyr Vallehermoso, S.A. () - {23 027)
Deoleo, S.A. (%) ( 62 112} {31 053)
Alestls Aerospace, S.L. (%) { ©880) 5348
Creaclén de Suelos e Infraestructuras, S.L. () { 2829 { 2103)
Otras socledades () { 5069) { 6 B843)

(127 159) {79173)

(*)Negative balances represent accurmulated losses.

22.3 Measurement adjustments to equity-consclidated entities

Set out below is a breakdown of the consolidated balance shest item recording measurement adjustments to
equity-consclidated entities at 31 December 2013 and 2012 and of net gains/(losses) on measurement
included in the consolidated statements of recognized income and expenses for 2013 and 2042 due to the
effect of equity-consolidated entities:

Thousands of suros

Balance in consolldated
statements _ Valuation Gains (losses)

2013 2012 2013 2012

Autopista del Sol Concesloneria Espafiola, S5.A. { 4924) { 4337) { 838 { 6187
Autopista del Guadalmedina, Conceslonaria Espafiola, 8.A. ( 5070) { 6452} 1974 { 4714)
EBN Bainco de Negocios, S.A. 1818 258 2228 2478
Unicorp Vida, Compafila de Seguros y Reaseguros, 5.A. 10 547 (13 230) 33987 11 583
Sacyr Vallehermoso, S.A. - { 17583} 2582 8 503
Deoleo, S.A. { 2488) { 2683) 279 { 80
Alestis Aerospace, S.L. ( 829) 12 ( 1202 -
Cther entifies 5 4 1 25
{ 941) {28 221) 38 871 11 596
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23. Tax situation
23.1 Consaolidated tax group

The Bank is part of the Tax Group number 680/10 which was created, parented by Monte de Piedad y Caja de
Ahorros de Ronda, Cédiz, Aimeria, Malaga, Antequera y Jaén {(Unicaja), taxed for the purposes of income tax
under the Tax Consolidation Regime special as regulated by Title Vil, Chapter VIl of the Corporate Income
Tax Act approved by Royal Decree Legislative 4/2004 (herainafter the CITA).

This Tax Group includes, as investes companies, subsidiaries of Unicaja Banco S.A.U., and which, together
with Unicaja, form part of the consolidated Tax Group in 2013:

Company

Monte de Piedad y Caja de Ahorros de Ronda, Cédiz, Almeria, Malaga, Antequera y Jaén (Unicaja)
Unicarp Corporacién Financlera, S.L.U.
Inmobitiaria Acinipo, S.L.U.

Unigest, S.G.LI.C., S.AU.

Corporacion Lininser, 5.A.U.

Gestion de Actividades y Serviclos Empresariales, S.A.U.
Andaluza de Tramitaciones y Gestiones, S.A.U.
Allerta Corporacion Unicaja, S.L.U.
Unimediterrdnec de Inversiones, S.1.

Analistas Econémicas de Andalucia, S.L.U.
Unleorp Patrimonio, Socledad de Valores, S.A.U.
Mijas Sol Resort, S.1.

Tasaciones Andaluzas, S.AU.

Unicartera Caja 2, S.L.U.

Inmobifiaria Untex Sur, S.A.U,

Unicartera Gestion de Activos, S.L.U.

Unicadera Imternacional, S.L.U,

Unimediacidn, S.L.U.

Unicartera Renta, S.L.LU.

Gestion de Inmuebles Adquirigos, S.L.U.
Segurandalus Mediacion, S.A., Correduria de Seguros
Consultora Técnica Tasa, S.L.U.

Renta Porfolio, S.L.U.

Pargue Industrial Humilladero, S.L.

Unlcaja Banco, 8.A.U.

Promotora Guadainervidn, S.L.LL

Altos de Jontoya Residencial para Mayores, S.L.U.
Unicartera Gestidon de Activos Inmobiliarios, S.A.U.
Cariera de Inversiones Agroalimentarias, S.L.
Uniwindet, S.L.

Baloncesto Malaga, S.A.D.

During 2013, the companles Cartera de |nversiones Agroalimentarias, S.L., Uniwindet, S.1.. and Baloncesto
Méalaga, S.A.D. were included in the tax consclidation scope. The company Andaluza de Contral y
Dispositivos de Seguridad, S.A. was liquidated in 2013 and the company Unicom Retall Properties, S.A.U.
was merged into Unicorp Corporacian Financlera, S.L.U.

During fiscal 2012 have joined the tax consolidated the following companies: Promotora Guadalnervién,
S.L.U.,, Altos de Jontoya Residencial para Mayores, S.L.U. y Unicartera Gestion de Activos Inmobiliarios,
S5.A.U. Moreover, the company Administracién y Gestion de Personal, ET.T.,, S.A.U. was liquidated on
November 28, 2012
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23.2 Financial years open to tax inspection

At the time of preparation of these consoclidated financial statements, the Bank is subject to audit by tax
authorities all tax obligations of state administration, since its inception in 2011.

As for the remaining taxes regional and local management, is subject to administrative review the fiscal years
2011 and 2013.

In relation to the other companies in the Group, these are pending a possible inspection by the tax authorities
for the years 2009 to 2012 for Corporate Income Tax and for the last four years for the rest of their obligations,
in line with article 66 of the General Tax Law.

Furthermore, dated July 11, 2012 the Tax Administration announced the initiation of a proceeding Inspector in
relation to the taxes which are detailed below, with respect to Monte de Piedad y Caja de Ahorros de Ronda,
Cadiz, Almeria, Méalaga, Antequera y Jaén (Unicaja), with CIF G29498086 and its consolidated tax group.

The tax audits, which are general in accordance with Article 148 of the Tax Code, are aimed at checking the
following tax assessments:

- Corporation Tax regime of corporate groups, years 2007 to 05/2010.

- Added Value Tax, peried 06 / 2008-05 / 2010,

- Withholding obligations Tax Personal Income Tax, Corporation Tax and [ncome Tax Nenresident and
annual tax information returns, period 06 / 2008-05 / 2010,

On 20 June 2013, the Tax Administration notified Unicaja of an additional 12-month extension to the period
during which the inspection proceedings are performed.

Due to the different possible interpretations of the tax regulations applicable to the business of financial
institutions, tax liabilities that may not be objectively quantified at the present time may arise in the event of a
tax Inspection. The Group's Directors and tax advisors consider, however, that the possibility of any significant
liabilities, in addition to the amounts recorded in the accounts, is remote.

23.3 Reconciliation of the accounting and tax results

Set out below is the reconciliation between income tax expenses calcutated at the general tax rate applicable
in Spain and reported tax expense in 2013, as well as the comparative data for 2012;

Thousands of euros

2013 2012
Profit before tax 68 582 (857 330)
Income tax (lax rate of 30%) 20 869 (257 189)
Due to efiminations in the consclidation process. {11 523) ( 18 367)
Positive permanent differences 16 407 14 857
Negative permanent differences { 4775) ( 7777)
Revaluation Law 16/2012 (13712) -
Deductions and allowances
Deduction for double taxation of dividends { 9104) ( 11142}
Deduction for reinvestment of extracrdinary gains { 319) {497
Income tax expense { 2157) {280 125)
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As regards the breakdown of the main income tax expensef{credit) items, the entire amount recognized as
income In the consolidated income statements for 2013 and 2012 (€ 2,157 thousand in 2013 and € 280,125
thousand in 2012) relates to current income for the period. No amounts were recognized in respect of
adjustments to current or deferred taxes in the current year or prior years, or due to other circumstances
envisaged in tax regulations, except for the effect on income tax expense of the restatement pursuant to Law
16/2012.

Set out below Is a breakdown of income tax credits recognized in the consolidated income statements for
2013 and 2012;

Thousands of euros

2013 2012
Income from temporary differences of birth {5 281) 78338
Income tax loss carry forwards to offset (1 985) 188 775
Income and deductions unapplied credited 5423 12012
Total income / (expense) Incoms tax 2157 280 125

With respect to the income tax recognized in the statements of recognized income and expenses for 2013 and
2012, the Group charged to consolidated equity a negative amount of € 13,251 thousand and € 28,562
thousand, respectively, for the following items:

Thousands of suros

2013 2012
Actuarnial gains and losses on defined benefit plans 156 -
Valuation of financial assets avallable for sale ( 6 548) {28 308)
Valuation of derivatives hedging of cash flows 5041 2 880
Valuation of the exchange differences 10 50
Valuation of non-current assels for sale { 218) 285
Valuation of entities using the equlty method {11 691) { 3478)
Total Income / (sxpense) Income tax (13 251) {28 562)

A lower rate was not applied in any of these adjustments and there are no deductible timing differences,
losses or {ax credits in respect of which deferred tax assets have not been recognized in the balance shest.
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23.4 Temporary differences

In accordance with current Spanish tax legisiation, in previous fiscal years certain temporary differences arose
that must be taken inte account when calculating income tax expense.

In the consolidated balance sheets at 31 December 2012 and 2011, deferred tax assets amount to €631,911
thousand and €594,050 thousand, respectively, and deferred tax labilities amount to €83,089 thousand and
€103,492 thousand, respectively.

Set out below is a breakdown of current and deferred tax assets and liabllities recognized In the consolidated
balance sheets at 31 December 2013 and 2012:

Thousands of auros

2013 2012

Assets Liabijlities Assets Llabliities

Current taxes 30 515 28 417 33 574 14 215
Defarrad taxes 631 811 B3 089 594 050 103 492
Loss canyforwards 186 700 - 188 775 -
Unused tax credits 33 468 - 26 452 -
Temporary differences - insclvencles 108 380 - 219 708 -
Temporary differences - pensions 44 336 - 33503 -
Temperary differences - foreclosed assets 15237 - 3 861 -
Other tems 153 700 25310 121 661 13 467
Revaluations - 63 848 - 77 836
Differances timing of recognition - { 6059) - 12 180
662 426 111 518 627 624 117 707

The Bank's directors consider that the tax assets recorded will be realized in the coming periods, as the tax
group obtains taxable income, which is expected to be the case in the coming years. The directors consider
that the Bank and its tax group will obtain taxable income in the coming years that will permit the recovery of
the tax assets within the deadiines stipulated in tax legislation for the offsetting of tax losses and application of
tax credits.

The effectiveness of Royal Decree-Law 14/2013 (29 November) on urgent measures te bring Spanish law into
line with European Union regulations on the supervision and solvency of financial institutions basically entails
that certain defarred tax assets recognized in the accompanying balance sheet may, subject to certain
conditions, be converled into recelvables payable by the Tax Administration.

Nonetheless, it should be noted that the Group of which the Bank forms part has made an initial estimate of
the amount of deferred tax assets that couid be converted into receivables from the Tax Administration and
are thus guaranteed by the Spanish authorities, which total € 449,762 thousand.

23.5 Income included in the Tax Regime for Holding Entities of Foreign Securities.

In lina with what Is established in article 118.3 of the Revised Test of the Comorate Incomne Tax Law, 1t is
stated that in the tax settlement of CIT corresponding to the tax period of 2013, exemption was declared from
ceriain income obtained by Unlcartara Internacional, S.L., applying the Tax Regime for Holding Entities of
Forelgn Securities, amounting to €766 thousand. in the year 2012, the corresponding amount was €483
thousand.

Unicartera Internacional, S.1. has paid taxes abroad amounting to €77 thousand in 2013 and €84 thousand in
2012,
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23.6 Reporting obligations deriving from the segregation
a) Information regarding the Special Tax System for Segregation with respect to Corporate Income Tax

in 2011, the General Assembly of Monte de Piedad y Caja de Ahorros de Ronda, Cédiz, Almerla, Malaga,
Antequera y Jaén (Unicaja) which approved the indirect carrying out of its financial equity through Unicaja
Banco S.A. - Socledad Unipersonal and its incorporation to the segregation of part of its equity, adopted a
resolution to apply the Special System for Mergers, Spin-off, Asset Contributions and Share Swaps to the
transaction, as regulated by Title Vil, Chapter VIIi of the Corporate income Tax Act.

The choice to apply the Special Tax System has been reported to the State Tax Agency in accordance with
the provisions of Article 42 of the Corporate Income Tax Regulations.

b} Accounting obligations

Regarding the fulfillment of the obligations of accounting established by Article 93.1 the TRLIS, In relation to
the application for segregation of the Special Tax Regime regulated in Chapter VIl of Title VIl of the TRLIS,
contained in the notes to the financiat statements 2011.

23.7 Information on fixed asset restatement under Law 16/2012

The Board of Directors of Monte de Piedad y Caja de Ahorros de Ronda, Cédiz, Almerla, Mélaga, Antequera y
Jaén {(Unicaja), in its capacity as the Single Shargholder of Unicaja Banco, held a General Meeting on 21 June
2013 to approve the proposal by the Bank's Board of Directors to restate fixed assets under Article 9 of Law
16/2012 (27 December), whereby various tax measures were adopted to consolidate public finances and to
encourage economis activities {“Law on Tax Measures”).

As a result, and in accordance with the proposal, revaluation reserves recognized under Bank of Spain
Circular 4/2004 relating to 516 own-use properties restated in the amount of € 54 850 thousand, aiready
included in equity, acquired tax effects.

The fixed asset restatement was camied out applying the following criteria stipulated in the Law on Tax
Measures for assets qualifying for the restatement;

- Assets forming part of property, plant and equipment were restated.

-  The assets restated were included in the first balance shest closed following the effective date of
the Law on Tax Measures. Consequently, as Unicaja Banco's financial year coincides with the
calendar year, the balance sheet closed at 31 December 2012 was used.

- Assets fully amortized at 31 December 2012 were not restated.

- The restatement was applied to 516 properties.

- The value of each asset restated does not exceed its market value at the restatement date.

The approach adopted by Unicaja Banco to update fixed assets was the subject matter of a reply to a request

for a binding ruling from the Ministry of Finance and Public Administrations Directorate General for Taxation,
issued on 19 June 2013.
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23.8 Information on the procedure for the recovery of state aid declared by the European Commission in
relation to the “tax lease system” for the financing of shipbuilding

On 30 October 2013, the Bank received forma! notification from European Commission's Directorate General
for Competition informing Unicaja Banco of the definitive Decislon adopted on 17 July 2013 on the tax regime
applicable to certain finance lease agreements, also known as the Spanish tax lease system, classifying the
system as "state aid" and urging Spain to take steps to recover the aid from the beneficiaries, which include
Unicaja Banco.

The Bank has filed an appeal against this Decision, together with Spain and other institutions affected, at the
European Court of Justice, which is pending a ruling,

Although the Tax Administration State Agency has already initiated proceduras for the recovery of this state
ald, the lack of information on the specific criteria applicable in the calculation precludes any quantification of
the potential effect, if any, on these consalidated annual accounts. Nonetheless, the Bank's directors and tax
advisors consider that the possibility of significant liabilities arising from this procedure, in addition to the
amounts already provisioned, is remote.

24,  Liquidity risk

Individual balances of the Parent represent substantially all of the consolidated assets, being representative
the infermation for liquidity risk of the financlal instruments in individual terms for the Group.

The Asset and Liability and Budget Committee (COAPP), formed by senior executives, is responsible for
managing liquidity risk affecting the business and the financial instruments to ensure that there Is sufficlent
liquidity at all times to meet payments on its liabllities at the due dates without undermining Unlicaja's capacity
to respond rapidly to strategic market opportunities.

Liquidity risk Is centralized using integrated software tools to analyse liquidity risk based on cash flows
estimated by the Group for assets and Habilities, and on collateral or other instruments available to guarantee
additional sources of liquidity as needed (e.g. liquidity lines not used by the Bank). The Bank's liquidity risk
position is determined by analysing a variety of scenarios. These analyses taken into account both ardinary
market circumstances and extreme conditions that could arise and could aifect the flow of collections and
payments, due {o market factors or intemal factors within the Bank.
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The following table shows contracted maturity dates at 31 December 2013:

-

. Thousands of eurcs
Betwaen Between Batween 1
Assets Upto1 tand3 Jdand 12 and 5 More than Demard and
month months months years Syears _ undstermined Total
Cash and balances at central banks - - - - - 1813156 1813156
Financial asssts held for trading 558 - - 261 807 13 272 - 218 217
Dabt securities 888 - - 281 907 13372 - 278 277
Other equity instruments - - - - - - -
Avallable-for-sale financial assets 1882 2486 8502 1680207 224 257 531226 2446 649
Debt securities 1852 2498 6502 1680207 224 267 - 1815324
Othar equity instrumants - - - - - 531 225 531 225
Loans and racelvables 4656612 3690681 3878523 5616606 110412349 1256490 29 839 261
Loans and advancas to credit
institutions 2985282 1078382 1691428 101 821 28 588 108 B50 5884 422
Losns and advances to otherdebtors 1871320 2611789 18683730 4874848 10513400 1146 640 22781785
Debt securiiies - 520 23 308 530 838 499 380 - 1063044
Investment portfollo held to maturity 108 622 B9 641 B36 586 3152 560 13 848 - 4238 687
Debt securities 165 622 BE B41 838 596 3 182 860 13848 - 4239867
Investmants - - - - - 715 734 T16 734
insurance contracts linked to pensions - - - - - 132 087 132 087
Property, plant and equipment - - - - - 630 376 530 376
Other assets - - - - - 11628280 1152 829
Total assets 4766 084 3782818 4421621 10751680 11292836 6231006 41245046
Thousands of euros
Betwean  Between
Llabilities Upto1 1and3 dand12 Between1 Morethan Dsmand and
month months maonths and & Gyears undetermined Total
years
Financial ilabliitias held for trading - - - - - - -
Financial Habllities at amortized
cost 7 264 449 916289 5691034 11713564 3380872 9691583 38635801
Deposits from Central banks 62 045 - - 4500000 - « 4 5B2045
Deposits from credit institution 1248 608 11 487 32230 a3e 727 74 512 BS 477 1783041
Deposits from other creditors 5636 119 B91 521 4688249 5580751 3026387 B786 653 28 BS9 460
Debt securities 17 588 12 439 817 011 1273 288 258 983 37 620 2517 960
Subordinated liabllities 78 42 53 544 42788 - - 96 452
Other financial liablities . - - - - 781 843 791 843
Hedging derivatives 4 580 - . - - - 4 580
Provisions - - - - - 358 B39 368 589
Other liabHitles - - - - - 526 751 526 761
Total llabliities 7 269 029 915289 5691034 11711564 3360872 10576 943 38 528 T
Difference (2502 846) 2867 528 (1269413} ( 961884) 7931 064 [ 4345837) 1719314
Thousands of auras
Betwien  Between
Memorindusm actounts Upto1 Tand 3 dand 12 Betweent More than Demand and
month months months and & S yosrs  undeterminsd Total
yesrs
Contingent risks - - - - - 836 B39 BBE B39
Drawabie by third parties - - - - - 17892689 1720208
Available immadiately - - - - - 1238448 1238448
With conditionalfy - - - - - 550 851 EE0 851
Total contingent Habitities and
commltments - - - - - 2676 138 2 676138
108




L

H
sl

(s TN s B e BN 2o

fod

Tha following table shows contracted maturity dates at 31 December 2012

Assets

Cash and balances at central banks
Financlal assets held for trading
Debt securitiea
Other eguity Instruments
Availabla-for-sale financial assets
Debt securities
Other equity instruments
Loans and receivablas
Loans and advances to credit
Institutions
Loans and advances to other debtors
Debt securities
investmant portfolio held to maturity
Debt securities
Investments
Insurance contracts linksad to penslons
Propetty, plant and equipment
Other assets

Total assets

Liablitties

Finanglal Habllitles heid for trading
Financlal lHabiitles at amortized cost
Deposits from Caniral banks
Deposits from credit institution
Deposits from other creditors
Debt securities
Subordinated liahilities
Other financial liabilities
Hedging derivatives
Provislons
Other liabilities

Total llabilities

Difference

MemorAndum accounts

Contingent trisks

Drawable by third partles
Available immediately
With conditionally

Totat contingent Habiilties and
commitments

Thousands of surps

Betwean Between Beatween 1

Upto1 1and3  Jand 12 and5 Morethan Demand and
month months manths years B years _ undetermined Total
- - - - - 518 418 518 419
17 2438 583 127112 52 - 115 B62
17 2488 £83 M271z2 52 - 115 862
366 584 365 610 17 848 831 481 222 90 724048 2578681
366 984 355 610 17 B48 491 481 222 890 - 1854813
- - - - - 724 048 724 048
4024846 2393684 2321624 G206M50 12327978 1068628 28 354 648
1242 379 457 501 86 621 204 753 3786 103073 2138523
27771467 1BBET7BY 2244503 5552501 11648114 968 585 25126 323
5000 - - 408 635 675 D66 - 1088 702
- 2184 834117 4672772 813 308 - 6322382
- 2184 B34 117 4872772 813 308 - 8322382
- - - - - 781 631 781 031
- - - - - 119 358 118 389
- - - - - 548 272 6549 272
- - - - - 1177 528 1177 628
4391847 2753576 3184072 11 B83 B55 13 364 027 4939286 40 617 062
- Thousands of auros

Batween  Hetwean Between 1

Upto1 1andd 3Jand12 and 5years Morathan Demand and
maorith meonths months SEyears _undetermined Total
5200314 12399514 3753626 14460056 4161604 9116 532 30 082 046
17 688 - - 8 000 000 - - G017 688
390 582 1580 41228 344 114 706 637 B2 748 634 BT0
4738478 1247268 3236 591 56812473 3751 867 B 185135 26971 810
52813 150 643 423 838 2 148 B3O 330000 #2250 3149 562
€33 45 51970 153578 - - 206 227
- - - - BO6 789 BOG 788
12 00D - - - - - 12 000
- - - - - 380 488 350 488
- - - - - 538 316 538 315
5212314 1399514 3763626 14460056 4161 604 10 D08 735 38 853 B4
B20 AET) 1 354 462 ! 589 5541 ! 2 876 201! 202 423 { 5067 450) 1523 213
Thousands of suros

Betwean  Between Betwesn 1

Upto1 1andd 3and12 and 5years More than BDemand and

month months months 6§ years  undetermined Total

LI I '}

[ S Y

1088 E6S 1 083 666
2154027 2184027
144B700 1448700

705327 _ 705327

3242882 3242682
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These maturity statements are based on the following criteria:

(o]

The dats presented are static; estimates do not include business growth scenarios, early repayments
or loan renewals, considering only contractual flows from loans actually arranged and recognized In
the Bank’s balance shest.

Accounting data are presented, i.e. they do not systematically reflect cash flows from operations,
uniike operations carried at fair value. All balances without maturity dates, or with maturities based on
a counterparty decislon, are included in the categories "held at call” or "undetermined™.

In the case of derivative financial instruments {the vast majority of which are subject to margin
requirements), the Unicaja Banco Group reports the estimated next net margin setttement as a cash
outfiow.

The cash outflows included in the above maturity table are the amounts stipulated In the relevant
contracts, and are based on past experience and the Group's current situation, so that the
prabability of early cancellation of deposits or other liabllity positions is deemed very low.

The Uniceja Banco Group provides information on contingent exposures (including financial
guarantees) and amounts drawable by third parties in the sbove tabla, A significant part of the
contingent exposures will reach maturity without generating any payment abligation, so that the tota!
balance of these commitments cannot be regarded as an actual future need for financing or liquidity
to be granted to third parties by the Group. The Unicaja Banco's liguidity management scenarios
include the utilization by third parties of drawable amounts although, based on past experience, this
dues not significantly affect the Group's structural maturity profile.

Finally, the above maturity table does not include forecast future cash flows because their
presentation would require rate curve and fiability structure scenarios and estimates. However, the
Unicaja Banco Group does not consider this information to be essential for the analysis of its liquidity
risk, since interest expense and similar charges are not significant in comparison with the balance
sheet total and are well below the interest generated by its assets.

The Group manages liquidity risk to ensures that its payment commitments are honoured, by adequately
controlfing cash flows and the assetfs that are available to cover any liquidity rnismatches. The Group thus
considers that the maturity tables present the most relevant picture of its liquidity situation at a given date.

The Bank establishes product policies and objectives addressing both ordinary market circumstances and
contingency plans for stress or crisis situations occurring internally or in the market. Three basic approaches
are combined to meet these objectives:

Asset management: analysis of maturities, possibility of sale, degree of liquidity, potential use as
collateral, among other aspects.

Liability management. analysis of maturities, diversification of business sources, maturities that differ
from contractual maturities, behavior in the avent of interest rate movemaents, etc.

Market access: financing capacity in wholesale markets and time required to obtain such financing,
among other aspects.
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The Group ensures that its consolidated balance sheet assets include a significant volume of liquid assets,
allowing liquidity risk to be easlly managed, the main liquid assets being:

- Balances held at call with central banks and credit institutions.

- Assets acquired under shert-term repo agreemants.

-  Fixed income securities discountable at the Furopean Central Bank.
Listed eguity securities.

The Group also has the capacity to issue coverad bonds and territorial bonds to obtain new funding Iif the need
arises.

25. Falrvalue
25.1 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities not carried at fair value

The estimate of the fair value at 31 December 2043 and 2012 of the financial assets and liabilities carried in
the consolidated balance sheet at amortized cost is performed as follows:

- For financial assets and liabllities referenced to a variable interest rate, the Group considers that
their carrying amount does not differ significantly from their fair value, as the initial counterparty credit
risk conditions have not varied significantly.

- In the case of un-hedged fixed-rate financlal assets and liabilittes, their fair valus each year Is
obtained by discounting cash flows at the risk-free interest rate (the rate for Spanish government
securities) for sach peried, adjusted to account for the credit spread on the instrument. In view of the
maturity period and relative balance of these Instruments, the difference between their amortized cost
and fair value is not significant at 31 December 2013 and 2012.

- Under the heading of Credit Investments is estimated that there are no significant differences
between thelr carrying value and their fair value since the Institution has quantified the level of the
provision for credit risk for its credit risk portfolio in accordance with the accounting norm applicable
and it considers this sufficient to cover this credit risk. Neveriheless, in an environment of economic
and financial crisis and since thera is not 2 market for these financial assets, the amount for which they
could be exchanged between interested parties could differ for the net value registered.

However, in an environment of economic and financlal crisis like the present, and since there is no market for
such financial assets, the amount by which the assets could be exchanged between interested parties may
differ to the carrying amount.

252 Listed instruments at amonized cost

At 31 December 2013 and 2012, the estimated fair value of financial assets and liabllities carried at amortized
cost In the balance sheet while iisted on markets does not differ significantly from the carrying amounts of the
instruments,

Howaver, in the specific case of debt securities recognized in the ifem “Loans and receivables”, fair value

cannot be determined in a sufficiently relfable manner, since there is no sufficiently liquid active market for
these Instruments. It should be noted that the Group has no plans to hold them for trading.
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Set out below Is a breakdown at 31 December 2013 and 2012 of the carrying amount and fair value of the
Unicaja Banco Group's financial instruments carried at amortized cost that are listed on markets:

Thousands of surcs

2013 2012
Sectlon of the balance Type of Instrument Buok valus _Falrvalue Bookvalue _Falr value
Credit Investments Securities representing debt 1108 644 ] 1089 702 {"
Held-to-maturity Investments  Securities representing debt 4242658 4382525 6325981 6356087
Financial Habilities at Marketable debt securities
amortized cost 2503648 2503646 3122101 3122101

(*} The fair value of these instruments cannot be determined in a sufficiently reliable manner.
253 Financial instruments carried at cost because there is no active market.

The aquity instruments in the portfolio of available-for-sale financlal assets the fair value of which cannot be
determined in a sufficiently reliable manner are carrigd in the Unicaja Banco Group's consolidated annual
accounts at cost, net of any impairment losses calculated as described in Note 2.7,

The consolidated carrying amount of these equity instruments at 31 December 2013 and 2012 totals €
176,014 thousand and € 136,277 thousand, respectively. The foliowing should be noted in connection with
these instruments:

o No information is disclosed in the notes to the consolidated annual accounts on the fair value of the
Instruments since it cannot be reliably calculated.

o These equity instruments have no listed price on active markets or reasonable measursment of fair
value (i.e. it is not possible to refiably apply a cash-flow discounting methed, a comparable company
multiple or an adjusted equity value that is sufficiently objective), and no market transactions or
acquisition bids have recently been completed or made.

There Is no sufficiently liguid active market for the instruments in this situation. However, the Group does not
plan to hold them for trading or to sell or dispose of them by other means.
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253 Fair value of the financlal assets and liabilities registered at fair value

The following shows a breakdown of the fair values of the headings on the balance sheets as at 31 December
2013 and 2012, divided by classes of assets and liabllities and at the following levels:

o Level 1; Financial instruments the fair value of which is determined by taking the quoted prices on
active markets or that corespond to recent transactions (latest twelve months) that have been
updsated to the current conditions.

o Level 2: Financlal instruments the fair value of which is estimated on the basis of quoted prices in
organised markets for similar instrumants or applying valuation techniques in which all the significant
Inputs employed are based upon data that are directly or indirectly observable on the market,

o Level 3: Financial instruments the fair value of which Is estimated on the basis of valuation
techniques in which some Inputs are not based on data observable on the market.

Thousands of suros
31 de diciembra da 2013

Fair value
Book value Total Level 1 Levsl 2 Level 3
Asset

Cash and balances with eentral banks 1813 257 1913 257 - 1913257 -
Working porifolio 28171 291 771 264 931 28 840 -
Flxed Income 277 108 277 1086 256 481 20625 -
Varitable Income 8428 8428 8428 - .
Derivatives 6237 6237 22 6215 -
Financlal assets avaliable for sale 2380023 2 350 023 1937 780 132 858 318 385
Fixed income 1951 956 1951856 1819088 132 B58 -
Variable income 438 067 438 067 118 682 - 310 385
Held-to-maturity investments 4 242 858 4 382 525 4 313 857 64 224 4 444
Debt securities 4 242 658 4 382 525 4313 857 64 224 4 444
Coverage derivatives 543 745 543 745 - 543 745 -

Liabiiity
Working pertfollo 11981 11981 738 11243 -
Derivatives 11 881 11 981 738 11 243 -
Coverage derivatives 44 088 44 (088 - 44 088 -
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Thousands of euros
31 de diciambre de 2012
Falr value
Book value Total Total
Asset

Cash and balances with central banks 518 482 518 482 - 518 482 -
Working portfolio 124 633 124 833 117 404 1040 5 189
Fixed Income 116 767 116 767 110 5680 30 6177
Variable income 5754 5754 5754 - -
Derivatives 2112 2112 1090 1010 12
Financlal assets available for sale 2 609 681 2 608 681 2 306 413 65 2683 238 005
Fixed Income 1924 259 1824 259 1681 853 65 263 177 043
Variable income B6BS5 422 685 422 624 480 - 80 862
Held-to-maturity investments 6 325 981 6 356 087 5 695 745 323 003 337 335
Debt securities 6 325 881 6 356 087 5695 745 323 003 337 339
Coverage derivatives 745 061 745 061 - 745 061 -

Liabitity
Working portfotio 7 580 7 580 738 6 828 14
Derivalives 7 580 7 580 738 6828 14
Coverage derivatives 164 456 164 486 - 164 456 -

Set out below are movements during 2013 and 2012 In the fair value of the different types of financial

instruments classed in Level 3 under IFRS 13:

Thousands of suros

Held-to-
Financial assets maturity
Trading portfolio avallable for sale investments
Debt Derivatives Derivatives Debt Equity
securitias (active} _{liabilitles) securities Instruments Debt securlties
Balance at 31/12/2012 6177 12 14 177 043 60 962 337 339
Addltions to Instruments - - - - - -
Casualties of Instruments { 175) - - { 23252) ( 60 982) -
Change in value - - - { 23 B33) - ( 45 110)
Transfers level (8 002) {(12) (14} (120 958) 310 385 ( 78}
Transfer to investment
credit - - - - - (287 708)
Transfer to portfolio
to-maturity investments - - - - - -
Balance at 3112/2013 - - - - 319 385 4 444
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Thousands of suros

Held-to-
Flnancial assets maturity
Trading portfolio avallable for sale  investments
Debt Derivatives Derivatives Debt Equity
securities {active) _ (liabilities) securitiss Instruments Debt securities
Balance at 31/12/2011 14 783 - - 448 264 45 948 367 638
Additions to Instruments 5322 - - 131 568 - 4 250
Casualties of instruments (14 783) - - { 58 981) - {157 218)
Change in value 8 12 14 { 24 478) 15013 69048
Transfers level 847 - - ( 23 244) - -
Transfer to invesiment
credit - - - {181 368} - -
Transfer to portfolio
to-maturily investments - - - (115 718) - 115718
Balance at 31/12/12012 6177 12 14 177 043 80 862 337 329

25.4 Valuation methods used

The following methods were used by the Unicaja Banco Group to calculate the fair value of the main financial
instruments recognized in the balance sheet:

s Debt securities: The fair value of listed debt instruments is determined on the basis of their price in
official markets (Bank of Spain's Book-Entry System), AIAF, AIAF panels (credit institutions), or by
applying prices obtained from information service providers, mainly Bloomberg and Reuters, whose
prices are bullt using the prices notified by contributors.

+ Equity instruments: The fair value of listed equity instruments is determined based on their price in
official markets. The fair value of unlisted equity instruments is determined taking into account
independent expert valuations performed using the following methods, among others:

o Discounted cash flows (free operating cash flows or dividends), applying a discount rate
based on each investee's operational and financial exposure, calculated using a risk-free
rate and including a risk premium.

o Multiple of comparable listed companies (EVIEBITDA, PER, Price/Book value,
Price/Pramiums), less an illiquidity discount.

o NAV (Adjusted Net Asset Value): Obtained by adding capital gains, calculated as the
differance between the market value and camying amount of assefs, to repored
shareholders' funds. For venture capital entities, NAV is calculated by the management
companies and generally estimated applying FEuropean Venture Capital Association
regulations and the provisions of CNMV Circular 5/2000 {19 September).

o Price resulting from market transactions or acquisition bids made or recelved near to the
valuation date.
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» Dorivative instruments: The fair value of interest rate derivatives is determined, for optional
financial Instruments (malnly swaps), by discounting future flows using implied money market curves
and the swap curve; for optional interest-rate derivatives, generally accepted valuation methods
based on the Black-Scholes model and implicit volatility matrices are used. In the case of derivatives
on equity instruments or stock market Indices contracted to hedge customers structured deposits
containing an embedded derivative, and currency derivatives without optional components, the fair
value is cbtained by discounting cash flows estimated using forward curves for the relevant
underlying instrument, listed on the market; for options, generally accepted methods based on the
Black-Scholes model are used, allowing oplions on these underlying instruments o be valued
applying a closed formula and using only market inputs. Where applicable, models and severities in
line with the market are used to calculate CVA and DVA. In order to obiain Unicaja Banco's spread,
generic spread vs. swap curves are calibrated on a recurring basis using ratings for different debt
issues by Spanish financlal institutions with differing priority levels, including senior debt.

256.5 Falr valua of property, plant and equipment

On 1 January 2004, the Group availed itself of the provisions of IFRS 1 to restate the majority of its real estate
assets, generating a gross gain of € 227,811 thousand. Subsequently, on 21 June 2013, revaluation reserves
recognized under Bank of Spain Circular 4/2004 relating to 516 own-use properties restated in the amount of
€ 54,850 thousand, already Included in equity, acquired tax effects (Note 23.7).

At December 31 of 2013 and 2012, the Group considers that there are no significant differences between the
bocok value and the fair value of these assets.

26, Credit risk exposure

Credit risk refers to the losses that the Entity would incur in the event that a customer or counterparty failed to
comply with the contracted payment obligations. This risk is inherent In the financial system's traditional
banking products {loans, credit lines, financial guarantees provided) and in other types of financial assets.

Credit risk affects both financial assets carried at amortized cost in the financial staterments and assets carried
at fair value. Irrespective of the accounting method used to record the Group’s financial assets in these
financial statements, the Group applies the same credit risk control policies and procedures.

The Group's credit risk control policies, methods and procedures are approved by the Entity's Board of
Directors. The Enfity'’s Control Committee, Audit Commitiee and Internal Supervision and Risk Control
Department are responsible, among other functions, for ensuring compliance with these policies, methods and
procedures, as well as for monitoring their adeguacy, effective implemnentation and regular review.

The Group's credit risk control activities are carried out by the Risk Control Department, which reports to the
Group's Planning and Control Division. This unit is responsible for implementing the credit risk control policies,
methods and procedures approved by the Group's Board of Directors. It menitors counterparty risk by
establishing, among others, the credit quality parameters to be assigned to the Group's operations, and credit
risk hedging requirements, in accordance with the Entity’s internal policies and applicable iegislation. The Risk
Control Unit is also responsible for applying the Entity's risk concentration limits, approved by the Board of
Directors.

The Group has policles and procedures to limit counterparty risk concentration for both Individual
counterparties and groups of companies. The Group establishes risk concentration limits taking into account
factors such as the counterparty's business activities, geographical location and other common features. The
Group performs sensitivity analyses to estimate the effects of possible changes in nen-perfarming loan ratios
in each risk concentration group, imposing limits on concentration based on the findings.
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After the segregation described in Note 1.1.2 of this consolidated report, financial business has been
transferred to Unicaja Banco. The Bank did not maintain concentrations of risk of a significant nature to
December 31, 2013 and 2012. Total mortgage-backed risk remained with the private sactor iiving In Spain
amounted to €12,782,848 thousand and €13,854,543 thousand at 31 December 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Therafore, Unicaja Banco has a “Credit scoring” system which considers the multiple characteristics of the
operations and the debtors, and, attending to the past experience and the best market practises, it provides a
mechanism for the Bank to distinguish, attending to credit risk, those operations that may be formalized by the
Bank from those that are not recommended to be formalized by the Bank. The criteria for distinguishing
operations at the contracting date, using this system, are approved by the Bank's executives and review
mechanisms are in place to ensure that the system is continuously updated.

The maximum credit risk to which Unicaja Banco Is exposed is measured at nominal value for financial assets
carried at amortized cost, The measurement of the Bank's maximum credit risk takes into account offset
agreements concluded with certain counterparties.

Notes 8, 9 and 10 provide details of the Bank's meximum credit risk exposure, As the Bank's credit risk
information provided in these notes does not take into account guarantees recelved, derivative financial
instruments contracted to hedge credit risk and other similar hedges, these data differ from the Bank's internal
analyses of exposure to credit risk.

Internally, the Bank classifies financial assets subject to credit risk based on the characteristics of each
operation, taking into account the specific counterparty and guarantees obtained, among other aspects,

Accrued uncollected financial income from financial assets deemed to be impalred as explainad in Note 2.7,
and recognized in individual financial statemants of Unicaja Banco at 31 December 2013 and 2012, amounted
to €40, 519 thousand and €31,268 thousand, respectively.

Financial assets recovery s considered remote

Set out below are movements during 2013 and 2012 in the Entity's Impaired financial assets that are not
carrled in the balance shest since the probabiiity of recovery is deemed to be remote, even though the Entity
has not discontinued actions to recovar the amounts receivable:

Thousands of gures

2013 2012
Balance of financial assets which recovery Is considered to be remote
at 1 January 628 355 583 809
Additions - 214 527 148 963
Balance considered for remote recovery during the year 214 527 146 863
Recoveries - ( 74 373) (72 417)
Baiances recovered during the year for operations’ refinancing or restructuring - -
Cash collections without additional refinancing { 17 867) { B155)
Assets awarded through foreciosure ( 16 363) (12 023)
Other causes { 40 443) (52 239)
Balance of financial assets which recovery is consldered to be remote
at 31 December 768 508 628 355

In 2013 and 2012, the recavery movement Identified as “for other causes” relates mainly to Joans that cease to
be treated as remote recovery assets when the Bank rules out any possibility of recovery,
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The net amount in the consolidated income statement for the years 2013 and 2012 as a result of movements
in these assets amounts a negative amount of € 2,357 thousand and € 23,016 thousand income, respectively.

These amounts are due mainly to:

o Loans that were classified during the period as “remote recovery assets” and had not been
provisioned; they were therefore written off the consolidated balance sheet directly through the
Income statemaent, having a negative impact of € 19,924 thousand and € 31,171 thousand In 2013

and 2012, respectively.

o Loan classified as "remote recovery assets" in the previous period in respect of which amounts have
been collected, having a positive effect of € 17,567 thousand and € 8,155 thousand in 2013 and

2012, respectively.

Exposure to sovereign risk

With respect to soversign risk, the breakdown of credit risk exposures to central governments held by the

Group at Dacember 31, 2013 and 2012 is as follows:

Thousands of eurcs

2013

Maturity
Financlal assets Investment Loans and
Trading portfclio availabie for salg portiollo advances
Spain 237 220 1023782 2750070 -
Hatly - 321779 - -
Ecuador - - - 108
237 220 1 345 561 2 750 070 106

Thousands of auros

2012

Maturity
Financial assets invastment Loans and
Trading portfolio available for sale portfolio advances
Spain 5813 1088 601 4 464 629 -
taly - 324 105 : - -
Ecuador - - - 239
5813 1412 706 4 464 629 239

Credit guality of debt securities

Set out below Is the accounting classification by portfolio of the debt securities recognized in the Unicaja

Banco Group's consolidated annual accounts at 31 December 2013 and 2012:

Thousands of suros

2013 2012

Trading portfolio 277 108 116 767
Financial assets avallable for sale 1 851 858 1924 259
Credit invesiments 1108 644 1088 702
Held-io-maturity investments 4 242 658 6 325 881
7 580 364 9456 709
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At 31 December 2013 and 2012, the balances included in the above table were not classed as doubtful,
impairment adjustments having been recognized only for general coverage purposes in the amount of € 67
thousand and € 107 thousand, respectively. Set out below Is a breakdown of these securities by credit rating

at 31 December 2013 and 2012:

Rating Aaa

Rating Aa1-Aa3
Raling A1-A3
Rating Baa1-Baa3
Rating Bat-Ba3
Rating B1-C

No credit rating

Quality of Loans and advances to customers

Thousands of auros

2013 2M2
12082 11884
135 106 320 978

§ 586 127 7219884
1678 843 1675854
6084 36 206

20 345 19105
131787 163 687
7 580 364 9 456 709

Pursuant to Bank of Spain Circular 4/2004, the Bank classifies its performing exposures as follows: no
material risk (public sector and cash guarantee), low risk (secured by finished housing with LTV below 80%
and companies rated A or higher), medium-low risk (other property guarantees), medium risk (personal
guarantee barring consumption, cards and overdraits), medium-high risk (consumption) and high risk (cards,
overdrafts and over-limit balanices). These exposures break down as follows at 31 December 2013 and 2012:

Thousands of euros

2013 2012
No material risk 17 792 449 16 520 068
Of which: Non-resident Public Administrations 299 621 299 488
Of which: Advances on pensions and salares 195 346 -
Of which: Personal guarantees 1 9818 B55 1602 043
Of which: Guaranteed by deposits and securities 25283 31038
Low risk 9 694 571 10 038 171
Of which: Guaranteed by monetary policy operations 63 350 68 312
Of which: Other highly-rated companles 18 477 20 607
Of which: Secured by real property 5612744 9 949 252
Medium-low risk 1 676 670 2 216 686
Of which: Finance leases 6944 8620
Mediim risk 2 884 364 3 550 B46
Of which: Other operations entered In Reglster of Forward Sales of
Moveable Property - -
Madlum-high risk B27 853 1 413 567
Of which: Acquisitions of goods and services 113 764 185 555
of which: Financing of land for property development or of
property construction 714 088 1248 012
High risk 225 720 222 252
32 881 627 33 660 570
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Risk concentration by activity and gecgraphic area

Set out balow s the carmying amount of the Unicajs Banco Group's total financing granted to customers at 31
Dacember 2013 and 2012, excluding exposures to public administrations, broken down by counterparty type,
collateral type and LTV ratio.

Thousands of suros
LTV Ratlo of credit with mal guarantes (f)
Excssding

Excaeding Exceading
Not  49% but not % and 0% and

Of which: Of which: exceading axcesding lass or kesa or
Mortaps Other or equal or sgual squal to wqualto Exceseding
Balancs at MH12/2013 Total{a) colistersi{e} colstarsfs} A% _o% 30% _100% 100%
Finandel insfifutions 3 24 904 10134 3498 482 5747 4 388 - - 3495483
Na-finendal companies and
sola traders 5 484 80 2347811 75 578 PET 450 850 q27 376 109 178123 a7m
Propedty construction snd
developmert (b) 1254 Bid 1 035 Ba5 18 578 242 B8O 470 052 197 157 141 261 72
Civil snginesring construchon 418 026 BB4S 2078 2642 7 053 530 385 o}
Cther purposes amm 1303 2 57 521 721708 472 §22 128 460 34 485 35
Largs companias (c) 17275582 86 453 - a0 208 30 247 - . .
SMES and sole
tracters (¢} 2 438 160 12337718 57 @21 881 602 433478 128 489 4 485 AL
Othar houssholds and non-profit
(natitutions serving houssholds
{IBFLEH} 11 B70 423 10 833 783 39 042 2572 487 3453 679 4 348 780 345 180 180
Hoursing (d) 10348748 10009 448 2 817 2100 821 3258 154 4243 882 KT T 44
Consumption {d) 1133 284 BIIT 27 21723 105 218 84771 12 503 1185
Other purposes (d) 388 413 311 142 4298 150 B43 83 307 48107 14013 170
21 180 OTD 13 041 502 34811102 J 45 a8 4411092 4 672548 £21303 _35018A8
Thousands of suros
LTV Ratio of cracit with real guarartee {f}
Excasding Exceading Excsading
Not  40% but not BO% and B80% andt
Of which: Of which: azcasting axceeding lantt or lesa or
Mortaga QOther or sgual or squal squal to squalto Excasding
Balance st 3112120412 Totsl (s} cotiatersl (s} _collatersie) 40% 50% 0% 100% 100%
Financial Institutiona 3 787 630 168 3704 485 1608 - - - 3704485
Hor-dnancial companies and
»0ie fradery 7175440 3154 853 24 484 1228829 1265040 490 180 199 404 159 093
Property construction and
davalcpmant (b} 1806 764 1541 180 14 151 402 072 888 433 304 804 158 472 3550
Chl srgineering construciion 531 587 11 004 2723 4109 8178 2835 as4 21
Other purposes 4732 089 1602618 208 082 820 44D 800 411 191730 42 578 155 822
Lwpe companiss (c) 2057 808 102 748 1810097 AQ 487 48723 11 000 2189 152 364
SMEs and sols
trade (c) 2874 491 14W 873 47 048 770653 BE1 708 180 730 40383 3138
Other housaholds and non-prodt
Instiuions senving housaholds
{ISFLSH) 12582438 11178714 £32m 25388 3303 472 4 882 281 £33 311 1878
Hausing (d) 10820540 10482 472 2183 2151631 J1B3BTS AT25034 404 117 198
Consurnption (d) 1257 403 378 34 34 024 3173 100 414 08 820 12 827 1485
Cthar purposes (d) 485 523 235 852 8111 164 172 100 383 80 464 18 887 283

I3E02 DG 14 333 47 8T2177 3 THS a4 4888 §12 5381 4% 832715 _ ) BE8 B84

{a) The definiiton of ans and advances to cusiomars and tha scops of ths Informaton (nciuded in this table & as used 10 pregam the balence sheet, The camying
amound of the loans s used, Le, after value adustments mads to provision speaiic losna.

{b) This Hem Inciudes afl acivittes related 0 propacty construction and devslopment, Inckxdng tha finendng of land for property devalopmant.

(c) Non-financial compenies am dvided inio "Larps companies’ and "SMES’, In accordance with tha definiion eppiicabis to SMEs whan caladaling sharsholders’
funcs. Sola tader actvities are parformed by indhviduals in the courss of their business activities.

{d) The acivitisa of housshalds and non-proft Instiiudons sening housshokis are dastifled based on thelr purposa, as sipuisted In Rule 71.2.0) of Bank of Spain
Clrouler 412004,

(®) Includes the camying amount of all loar secured by real property and by other property guaranisss, (rmespecive of the LTV ratio,
{f} Loan-to-vedue (LTV) In the retio cbisined by dividing the ioan's carrying amaunt st the reporing dats by the amount of the [etest appraisad value of the collsiarsl.
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There follows aggregate information at 31 December 2013 and 2012 on the Unicaia Banco Group's risk
concentration by geographic area and business segment, excluding exposures to public administrations,

Thousands of surcs
Rest of
Balance at 311272013 Total {a) Spain _Eurcpean Union America Rest of World
Financial instituticns 7774 527 ¥ AB3 023 171 132 117 878 2484
Non-finarcial companies and
sole traders 55665119 5 B48 757 87 368 24 B48 4145
Property construction and
development (&) 6 936 840 8625013 10415 - 1812
Civil ergyineering construction 1592 367 1 582 367 - - -
Crthar purposes A72 511 472 511 - - -
Large companies (c} 4 871 862 4 BB0 135 10015 - 1812
SMEs ant sole
traders {c) 1671 117 1860711 9 547 - BS9
Other housshalde and nan-grofit
Institutions serving households (ISFLSH) 3 200 B45 1199 424 458 B 853
Housing {d} 11 682 072 11 BO5 BE3 49 460 17 830 16 B28
Cansumation (d) 10 354 318 10 288 270 44 472 31 1B 473
Other purposes (d) 1141 831 1128 046 26825 10 853 207
Financial institutions 395 925 388 537 2363 3878 148
32 668 558 32 162 645 17 975 60 657 27 280
Thousands of puros
Rest of
Bafance at 31/12/2012 Total (a) Spain _Europsan Union Amaerica Rest of World
Financial Institutions 4 291 897 3808 087 254 689 125 365 2 566
Non-finencial companies and
sole tradars 5944 512 5 645 094 264 384 25904 4230
Property construction and
devaiopment (b) B 987 624 B 540 734 25724 16 628 4538
Civil engineering construction 2 142 327 2 141 507 B20 - -
Other purposes 560 868 588 475 - 1383 -
Larga companias {c) 6275 429 & 230 752 24 904 15 235 4 538
SMEs end sola
tradars (&) 2705475 2593 929 11 546 - -
Cther households and non-profiy
institutions serving houssholds {ISFLSH) 3589 954 3536823 13 3568 15235 4 538
Heusing (d) 12 624 248 12 558 403 52 280 3032 10 6§24
Consumption {d} 10 874 481 10 812 262 45 113 287 10 145
Other purposss {d} 1264 878 1262 611 1418 61 187
Financial instiutions 485 180 483 230 1758 “ 182
31 848 082 31 054 218 597 087 174 919 21 858

(a) The definition of risk for the purposes of this table includes the following balance sheet ilems: Loans and advances to credit institutions, Loans and advances to
custamers, Dabt securiiies, Equity instruments, Trading derlvativas, Hecging dervatives, Equity inve! and Contingent sxpasunes. The emounta of the assets
refiect the camying amounts of the loang, i.e. efter value adjusiments made to provision speclfic lnans, Business |s distibuted by geogrephic area based on the
countty or sutonomous region of residence of the jenders, sacurities issuers end counterparties of dervatives and contingent sxposures.

(b) This itarm includes all activities related i property construction and development, including the finanging of land for property develspment,

{c} Non-financlal companies are classed as "Large comparias” and “SMES”, in accomanca with the definition of SMEs contéined in Commission Recommendatien
2003RB1/EC (6 May 2053} on the definition of micro-entarprises, smali companies and medium-sized companias, Loans to sale traders mlate exclusively 1o joans to
incividuals to fintnce thelr busiress activies, whether performed dirsctly as sole traders or through entities without legel personality,

{d) The activities of househalds and non-profit instituions serving households are classified based on thelr purpose, as stiputated in Rule 71.2.0) of Bank of Spain
Clreular 472004,
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There follows a breakdown of the Unicaja Banco Group's loans and advances to customers at 31 December
2013 and 2012 by autonomous region and by business segment, excluding exposures to public
administrations:

Thousands of euros

Rest of
autonomous
Balance at 31/12/2013 Total {a) Andalucla Mudrid Catalufia communities
Financial instiutions 7483 023 78730 G467 778 188 285 887 220
Non-financial companlas and
sole traders 5 B4B 757 190 288 5635178 11813 11 380
Proparty canstruction and
develaprment (b) 6825013 4223813 1628 557 212 336 860 307
Civil engineeting construction t 592 367 1082 171 336 BBS 3258 158 043
Other purposes 472 511 154 855 295 674 - 21982
Lerge companies (c) 4 880 135 2876 787 993 888 208078 B0 282
SMES snd sole
traders (c) 1660711 641742 521 232 135 293 362 444
Other househoids and non-profit
institutions serving households IBFLSH) 3190424 2335045 472 756 73785 317 83a
Housiag (d 11 BOS B53 10 448 385 4B8 577 30 887 B27 004
Consumption {d} 10 268 270 8 058 252 457 786 35732 736 480
Qther purposes (d) 1128 048 1042 t54 21774 22359 61759
Financial institutions 388 537 348 8689 10017 1796 28 7585
32 162 648 14 943 214 14 171 090 452 431 2 595 911
Thousands of euros
Rest of
autoromous
Balance at 31/12/2012 Total {a) Andalucla Madrid Catalufia gommunities
Financial institutions 3 906 087 338 241 2 570 347 177 588 822 813
Nor-financial tcomparies end
sole traders 5645 994 72315 1777 621 3716640 78 418
Properly construttion and
development b} 8040734 5202 423 2284 578 283 693 1 070 040
Civil enginsering construction 2141 507 1384 535 501742 8275 248 955
Othar purposes 588 475 172 910 366 887 3t 26 237
Large campanies (¢) 6230752 3734978 1423 B39 275087 786 B43
SMEs end sole
traders (c) 2883929 1036 271 1000 163 198 672 457 B23
Sther households and nor-profit
Institutions earving households (ISFLSH) 3 536 823 2698 707 423 676 75415 338 025
Housing (d) 12 558 403 11 350 789 283 209 41618 gaz2 vy
Consumption {d} 10 812 262 9765 811 237 434 37 364 771653
Other purposes (d) 1262811 1159 148 24 008 2337 7417
Financial institutions 483 230 425 840 21766 1817 33 707
31 054 218 17 053 778 6 825 758 4 219 537 2855 148

(@) The definition of sk for the purpeses of this tabla includes the following balence sheet items: Loans end advances to credit institutions, Loans and advances io
customers, Debt securities, Equity instruments, Trading derivatives, Hedging derivatives, Equity Inveatmants and Contingent exposures. The amounte of tha assets
refiect the camying amounta of the loans, l.e. after value adjustments made to provision specific loans. Business is distributed by geographic area based on the
couriry or autonomous region of residence of the Jenders, securities issuers and counterparties of derivatives and contingent expesures.

{b} This Hem inciudes all activities related to property construttion and development, inciuding the financing of tand for property development,

{c) Non-financial comparnies are classed as "Large companies" and "SMEs", in accomance with the definition of SMEs contained in Commission Recommandation
2003/361/EC (& May 2003) on the definiion of micro-sntarprises, small companies and madium-sized companies. Loans to sole traders relate exclusively to loans to
individuals $o finance their business activitias, whather perfarmed directly as sole tradars or through entities without lagal persanality.

{d} Tha activities of households and non-profit instifutions serving households are classified based on their purpose, as stipulated In Rule 71.2.e) of Bank of Spain
Clreular 5
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27.  Interest rate risk exposure

individual balances of the Parent represent substantially all of tha consolidated assets, being representative
the information of interest risk in individual terms for the Group.

Interest rate risks are controlled on an integrated hasis by the Asset and Liability and Budget Committea
(COAPP), This unit is responsible for implementing procedures to ensure that Group complies at alf times with
the interest rate risk control and management policies approved by the Board of Directors.

Sensitivity measurement and scenario analysis methods are used fo analyse, measure and conirol the
Group's significant interest rate risks.

The Group hedges interest rate exposure on an individual basis for all significant financial instruments that
could generate equally significant risks.

The following tables contain a breakdown of maturity or interest rate review dates at 31 December 2013 and
2012, The carrying amounts of the financlal assets and liabllities are grouped together by interest rate review
date or by maturity, whichever is the earlier date, as follows:

31 December 2013 - Thousands of euros
Betwean Betwaen Between2 Between Beitwesn

Uptot 1andd 3and12 Betwesn1 and 3 dand 4 4and 6 Over§

Assets manth _ months months and 2 years years yeRrs yaars yoers

Financial asseta B304 608 6651732 13148268 5367 705 1128 303 332 165 486 182 BOS 501

After adjustments for coverage 8904606 65651732 13148258 5517705 1120300  5B2165 465182 BOS5 501

31 Decermber 2013 Thousands of euros
Betwaen Batwuen Between2 Between Bstween

Uptod 1and3 Jand12 Between1 and 3 dand4 dandb Over &

Liabitities month months months and 2 yaars yoaars yoars yoars years

Financial [labilities 13777836 1836045 5B43 221 3250608 1583830 457 875 450059 2549788

Affer adjustments for coverage 12077836 3157502 B54t812 4 638 758 421808 107 875 42 801 876 884

31 December 2012 Thousands of suros
Batween Batween Betwsen 2 Between Batwesn

Upto1 tand 3 dand12 Betwsen1 and 3 3and4 4and$ Ovar b

Assets month __maonths months and 2 years yaars years yesars years

Financial assets 71332317 6302735 12894 880 3642738 2825704 1045126 B71 551 1644 473

After adjustments for coverage 7288322 65342785 13044 580 3842738 2825704 585 126 835 551 1398 768

31 Decamber 2012 Thousands of euros
Betwesn Betwaen Betwean2Z Between Between

Upto1 1and3 Jand12 Batwean 1 ancd 3 Jand 4 4and B Qver§

Llabilitles merith months months and 2 years years yedrs years yaars

Financial Hiabilities 12 862 053 2494 B61 4077 756 214774 1638574 1415493 455980 29BBOT2

After adjustments for coverage 10882053 3715418 6875246 3214774 2919824 553268 105880 900993
The above tables reflect, for each period, the adjustments to fixed-rate assets and liabilities derived from the

relevant derivative financial instruments contracted by Unicaja for hedging purposes, in order to present
overall exposure to interest rate fluctuations.
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At 31 December 2013 and 2012, the sensitivity of the entity's balance sheet to an unfavourable horizontal
movement in the interest rate curve totalling 100 basis polnts and a scenario of maintaining the balance sheet
is as follows:

2013 2012
Financial income expected In 12 months Inferior al 7% Inferior al 7%
Economic valus Inferior al 4% Inferior al 5%

28. Exposure to other market risks

Market risk relates to the losses that the Entity could incur in the event of changes in the value of its trading
portfolio and available-for-sale financial assets as a result of unfavourable fluctuations in market prices or
foreign exchange rates, or price volatility.

Such changes depend mainly on factors such as Interest rates, in the case of fixed-income instruments.
Options ara subject to a number of risk factors, one of the most relevant being volatility.

The Group’s market risk control policies, methods and procedures are approved by the Board of Directors.
The responsibilities of the Risk Control Depariment, through its Market Control Unit, include the supervision of
compliance with the Group's risk control policies, methods and procedures to ensure their adequacy, effective
implemantation and regular review.

The unit respansible for financial risk monitoring and contro! is the Market Control Unit, which is basically
entrusted with ensuring that risks assumed are correctly identified, analysed, valued and reported, cooperating
in the implementation of suitable risk management tools, improving position valuation models to bring them
into line with the actual market context, and controlling compliance with the risk limits defined. This unit also
systematically controls and monitors treasury and capital market transactions.

in order to ensure adequate market risk managemient, the Group uses a software application to define market
risk calculations and authorized fimits. For each group of portfolios managed, limits are defined for “Open
positions”, "Stop losses” and "VaR" so as to avoid any significant adverse impact on solvency or on results, in
view of the complexity of the risks assumed.

Exposure to market price fluctuations

Price risk is the risk that the falr value of equity securities may decline as a result of changes In market indices
or stock prices. Price risk arises on paesitions in financial assets or liabilities held for trading and in available-
for-sale financial assets.

Set out below is an analysis of price risk sensitivity derived from the Group's equity positions in financial
markets at 31 December 2013 and 2012;

Thousands of suros

Impact on
Impact on valuation Total impact on
Decline In the market price {quotations) resuits adjustments equity
Impact at 31 December 2013 of a8 1% degrease In the
market price 59 30686 3125
Impact at 31 December 2012 of a 1% decrease in the
matket price 40 4798 4838

One percent variance in the relevant equity price fluctuation risk variables was assumed because this “impact’
is & standard measurement in both the financial sector and in the Unicaja Banco Group to ascertain the level
of risk exposure.
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In the current context of high market volatility, it is very difficult to determine what constitutes a “reasonably
possible change” in risk variables. However, we consider it to be appropriate to report on sensitivity to a 1%
"impact” so that public information users may rescale this effect based on their market expectations,

The above table does not include equity instruments recognized in the portfolic of available-for-saie financial
assets for which there Is no active market and that are carried in the consolidated annual accounts at cost, net
of any impalmment losses, since their fair value cannot be determined in a sufficiently objective manner. The
consolidated carrying amount of these instruments at 31 December 2013 and 2012 totals € 176,014 thousand
and € 136,277 thousand, respectively.

Exposure to foreign exchange risk

Structural foreign exchange risk arises basically from exposure to exchange rate fluctuations on securitles
investments in non-euro currencias,

The Unicaja Banco Group manages structural foreign exchange risk to minimise potential adverse impacts of
foreign exchange fluctuations on capital adequacy ratios and on contributions to the results of foreign currency
investmants.

At 31 December 2013 and 2012, exposure to foreign exchange fluctuations in the Unicaja Banco Group is
immaterigl, since there are no significant assets or liabilities in the consolidated balance shest that are
denominated in non-euro currencies. The equivalent value in euros of the Group's total assets and Hablilties
denominated in foreign currencies at 31 December 2013 and 2012 is analysed below:

Thousands of surps

2013 2012

Equlivalent value of the assets In forelng currency 38 000 43 697
Of which:% in U.S. doliars 75% 73%
Of which:% in sterling 14% 18%
Of which:% quoted in other currencies in the Spanish market 11% 8%
Equivalent valus of forelgn currency Habilities 14 617 14 129
Of which:% in U.S. dollars 80% B86%
Of which:% in steriing 17% 30%
Of which:% gquoted in other currencies in the Spanish market 4% 4%

The equivalent value in euros of assets denominated In foreign currencies accounts for 0.09% and 0.11% of
total consolidated zssets at 31 December 2013 and 2012, respectively, while the eguivalent value in euros of
liabilittes denominated in foreign currencies represents 0.04% and 0.03% of total consolidated assets at the
respactive dates.

29, Director's duties of loyalty
In accordance with the provisions of Article 225.2 and Adicle 230.1 of the Spanish Companies Act 2010
approved by Legislative-Royal Decree 1/2010 (2 July), requires Directors to inform the Board of Directors and,

in its absence, other Directors or, in the case of a Sole Administrator, the General Meeting, of any direct or
indirect conflict of interast that could affect the Entity.
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In accordance with the aforementioned text, shareholdings held and the performance of activities by the
various members of the Board of Directors on their own behalf at 31 of December 2013, or on the behalf with
third parties, that are the same, similar or supplementary to the activities making up the Bank's corporate
purpose (Including Units held by persons related to them under section 231 of the Companies Act):

Narne

Direct indirect

Entity participation participation Position/ Function
Atencia Robledo, Manusl Monte de Piedad y Caja de Ahorros de - - Vicapresidente 1°

Ronda, Cédiz, Almeria, Mélaga y

Antequara (Unicaja)

Bance Europeo de Finanzas, S.A. - - Presidenta
Azuaga Moreno, Manusl| Cecabank, S.A. - “ Caonsejero

Banco Evropeo de Finanzas, 5.A. - - Caonsejaro
Dominguez-Adame Cobos, Elay Banco Santander, S.A. - 0.00021% -

Banco Bllbao Vizcaya Argentaria, S.A. - 0.00032% -
Fraile Cantdn, Juan Monte de Fledad y Caja de Ahoms de - - Viceprasidente 2°

Ronda, Cadiz, Aimeria, Mélaga y

Antequera (Unicaja)

Banco Europac de Finanzas, S.A. - - Conssjers
Lépez Lopez, Antonio Banco Santander, S.A. 0.00000% - -

Banco Popular Espafiol, 5.A. 0.00008% - -

Banco Bllbao Vizcaya Argentarig, S.A, 0.00001% - -
Mateps-Aparicio Morales, Petra Citigroup Inc. 0.00002% - -

Banco Santander, S.A. 0.00013% 0.00022% -

Banico Bitbap Vizcaya Argentaria, S.A. 0.00088% - -

Bankinter, S.A. 0.00852% - -

Credit Sulsse Group AG 0.00003% - -

Bance Poputar Espafiol, §.A. 0.00005% 0.60008% “

Banco Sabadall, S.A. 0.60003% -

UniCredit, S P.A. 0.00034% -
Mede! Camara, Braulio Monts de Piedad y Caja de Aharros da - - Presidente

Ronda, Cadiz, Aimeria, Mélaga y

Anteguera (Unicaja)

Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria, §.A. 0.00005% - -

Banco Santander, S.A. 0.00004% " -
Molina Morales, Agustin Monte de Piedad y Caja de Ahormos de - - Secretario del

Ronda, Cédiz, Almaria, Mélaga y Conssjo

Antequera {Unicaja)

Banco Santander, S.A. 0.00002% - -

Torre Colmenero, José M* de (a

Valle Sanchez, Victorio

Monte de Pledad y Caja de Ahoros de
Ronda, Cédiz, Almarla, Malaga ¥
Antequera (Unicaja)

Vicepresidenta 3°

In addition, the Bank's directors have confirned that no conflict of interest, dlrect or indirect, in the Interest of

the entity.
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30.  Other significant information

30.1 Contingent exposures

Set out below Is a breakdown of contingent exposures assumed by the Group at 31 December 2013 and
2012

Thousands of euros

2013 2012

Financlal guarantees 5175 48 475
Technical guarantees 698 262 802 503
Credit derivatives sold 150 000 150 000
Irrevocable documentary credits 1254 2106
Other commitments 8160 730
892 851 1103 6814

A significant portion of these guarantees will expire without any payment obligation for the entities and,
therefore, the aggregate balance of these commitments cannot be considered as an actual future need for
financing or liquidity to be provided by the Insfitution to third parties.

Income from guarantee instruments is recognized under “Fee and commission income” and “Interest and
similar Income” {in the amount actualized of the value of the commissions) in the income statement for the
years 2013 and 2012 and is calculated by the rate established In the refated contract to the nominal amount of
the guarantes.

Provisions registered to cover these guarantees provided, which have been calculated applying similar
principals used for impairment losses on financial assets valued at amortized cost, are recognized under the
heading *Provisions - provisions for contingent exposure and commitments” in the consolidated balance sheet

{Note 17).

30.2 Assets assigned and accepted as collateral

At 31 December 2013 and 2012 assets owned by the Group guaranteed operations, Eabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed. The carying value of the financial assets delivered as guarantes of these liabilities and
contingent liabilities and similar at 31 December 2013 and 2012 was as follows:

Thousands of euros

2013 2012

Pledge of securities 5162 574 G 534 927
Pledge of non-morigage [oans 226 798 1002131
5 389 372 7 937 058

At 31 December 2013 and 2012, these amounts relate mostly to pledged securities and non-mortgage loans,
under a Bank of Spain policy, for the obtainment of long-term financing maturing in 20185.

As regards the pledge terms and conditions, the guarantees furnished by Unicaja Banco to the Bank of Spain
will not be affected, and this is made extensive, by express, irrevocable agreement between the parties, to any
automatic or express extensions, renewals or novations of any fype that could affect the commitments
secured, and will remain in force until the full cancellation of the commitments and of any commitments into
which they may be novated or by which they may be replaced.
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The Bank has not received any assets as collateral that it is authorized to sell or pledge, irrespective of
whether or not there is any defauft on the part of the asset owner. Consequently, the breakdown required by
IFRS 7, paragraph 15 Is not applicable.

30.3 Drawable by third parties

At 31 December 2013 and 2012 the limits on financing contracts granted and the amounts utilized, for which
the Group has assumed any credit commitment above the amount recognized in assets in the balance sheet
at those dates, are set out balow:

Thousands of euros

2013 2012

Available Limit Available
amount granted amount _ Limit granted
With Immediate avaliabliity - 1232 580 1888 558 1427 422 2355611
Credht Institutions 263 15 087 26 334 70 081
Public entities 20427 58123 54 478 95 054
Other sectors 1202800 1814 348 1346 609 2180 476
Available sublect to conditions - 458 848 3279888 617 847 4 078892
Public entities 2280 39649 2773 39 649
Other sectors 456 668 3240249 615074 4 039 243
1 691 538 5 168 456 2 045 269 6 434 503

30.4 Party funds under management by the Group and securities held in custody

The breakdown of the funds out of balance managed by the Group at 31 December 2013 and 2012 is as
follows:

Thousands of suros

2013 2012

Mutua! funds 1833 444 1760 B11
investment funds 96 596 81618
Other financial Instruments 351 899 413 268
Assels under management 781 397 764 712
3 163 336 3020 408

Set out below is a breakdown of off-balance sheet customer funds marketed by the Group In 2013 and 2012;

Thousands of euros

2013 2012

Mutua! funds 1 967 158 1784 085
Investment funds 95 596 81616
Pension funds 761 684 £596 318
Assets under management 781 397 764 712
Insurance products 1 480 088 1261616
5076 224 4 598 348
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Additionally, following is a breakdown of the fair value of third-party funds held in custody of the Group at 31
December 2013 and 2012;

Thousands of suros

2013 2012

Debt securities and equity Instruments 4791 704 4 B34 520
Gther financlal instruments 78 350 42 066
4 B70 054 4 876 586

30.5. Financial instrument reclassifications

During 2012 the Group perfurmed some reclassifications of debt securities which, up to date, have been
classified under the heading financial assets held for sale to the portfolio of held-to-maturity investments, given
that the Group has the intention and financial capacity to maintain them until maturity (Note 9.4),

30.8 Assetsecuritization

The outstanding balance for transfers of financial assets made by the Group at 31 December 2013 and 2012
is as folfows:

Thousands of auros

2013 2012

Written off the balance before January 1, 2014 - -
Held entirely in balance shest (Nute 2.22)

AyT Unlcaja Financiacion |, F.T.A - 140 112

Unlcala AyT Empresas |, F.T.A. - 118 037

Unicala TDAVPO, F.T.A. - 145 631

Unicaja Andalucla FT Vivienda TDA 1, F.T.A. - 148 484

- 557 274

Set out below is a breakdown by nature of securitized loans entirely recognized in the Unicaja Banco Group's
consolidated balance sheet at 31 December 2013 and 2012;

Thousands of ouros

2013 2012
Securitized loans held entirely In the balance - 557 274
Mortgage securitized assets - 288 125
Other securitized assets - 255 148
Loans lo companias - 119 037
Consumer loans - 140 112
Liabllities assoclated with assets held In batance - {565 966)
Net position (difforence betwaeen assets and liabilities) - { B86952)
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The Bank is deemed to have retained substantially all the risks and rewards associated with the financial
asseis transferred, since it has acquired all the securitization bonds Issued, For this reason, the financial
assets transferred have not been written off the consolidated balance sheet and are carried on the same basis
as prior to the transfer. in accordance with applicable legislation, both the assets recognized in the balance
sheet and an associated financial liability in the same amount as the payment recelved, carried at amortized
cost, are recognized in the accounts without any offset; the income from the financial assets transferred but
not written off and the expense on the new financial liabifities are recognized in the consolidated income
statement.

The main characteristics of each securitization in the year 2013 and 2012 are the following;

Thousands of suros

Serial Amount M3 322 Retum Maturity
FUND

Series A 785 300 - 156688 Eurbor3m+ 040  23/04/2028

Series B 63 700 - 63700 Euriboram+0.70 23/01/2028

Seties C 40 900 - 40800 Furibor 3m + 1.25 23/01/2028

AyT Unicaja Financiacién |, F.T.A. Series D 20100 - 20100 Euribor 3m + 2.50 23/01/2028
910 000 - 140 368

Serigs A 213700 - 85321 Euribor 3m+0.30 10/07/2051

Series B 17 500 - 17 500 Euribor 3m + 1.00 10/07/2051

Unicaja AyT Empresas |, F.T.A. Series C 18 800 - 18 800 Euribor 3m + 1,25 10/G7/2051
250 000 - 121 621

Unicaja TDA VPO, F.T.A. - Series A 188 800 - 151 B75 Euribor 3m + 0.35 28/04/2051
188 8OO - 151 875

Unicaja Andalucia FT Vivienda Saries A1 40 000 - - Euribor 3m+0.35 2810472052

TDA1, FTA Saries A2{G})* 150 000 - 152 084  Euribor 3m+0.30 2810112052
200 00O - 152 084

{*) With a guarantee from the Reglonal Authorities of Andalucia.
{**} The carrying amount of the eriginal assets transfarred matches the amount of associated liabiiities jssued,

In 2013, the securitized assets were repurchased by the Bank and the securitization funds were cashed. The
financial assets transferred remained in the Bank's balance sheet, assoclated risks and rewards having been
substantially retained, such that the repurchase did not increase the Bank's loan portfolio; the financial
lisbilites recognized were cancelled in the amount of the cash received, in accordance with appliceble
regulations.

o On 10 July 2013, the securitization fund named “Unicaja AyT Empresas |, F.T.A." was liquidated in
advance. On that same date, the assets securitized through the fund were repurchased for a price of
€ 110,453 thousand, equivalent to the outstanding balance pending collection on the assets
repurchased, including related write-off assets, plus accrued unmatured interest.

o On 14 QOctober 2013, Unicaja Banco acquired from the securitization fund “Unicaja TDA VPO, F.TA"
the 3,000 mortgage bonds and 472 mortgage transfer certificates subscribed for by the fund, for a
price of € 143,177 thousand, which was the value of these securities at 30 September 2013,
including outstanding principal {matured and not paid, and not yet matured) and accrued unpaid
interest. On 28 October 2013, a contract cancellation agreement was concluded between Unicaja
Banco, S.A. and the asset securitization fund (represented by the management company) for the
funds advance liquidation.

130



 IAD S

£

b

I

Bt B

E,. g i‘.. ;

LI

e

o On 14 Octobaer 2013, Unicaja Banco acquired from the securitization fund “Unicaja Andalucia FT
Vivienda TDA 1, F.TA" the 2,008 morigage bonds and 1,524 morigage transfer cerfificates
subscribad for by the fund, for a price of € 138,490 thousand, which was the value of these saecurities
at 30 September 2013, including ocutstanding principal {matured and not paid, and not yet matured)
and accrued unpaid interest. On 28 QOctober 2013, a contract canceliation agreement was concluded
between Unicaja Banco, S.A. and the asset securitization fund (represented by the management
company) for the funds advance liquidation,

o On 23 October 2013, the securitization fund named "AyT Unicaja Financiacién [, F.T.A” was
liguidated in advance. On 21 Cctober 2013, the assets securitized through this fund were
repurchased for a price of € 88,707 thousand, equivalent to the outstanding balance pending

collection on the assets repurchased, including related write-off assets, plus accrued unmatured
interest.

30.7 Netting arrangements and guarantees

In addition to the amounts that may be offset in the accounts under IAS 32, there are other netting agreements
and guarantees which, though not netted in the accounts because the necessary requirements are not
fulfilled, effectively reduce credit risk.

There follows a breakdown at 31 December 2013 and 2012 of derivative financial instruments (Notes 8 and
11) in the situation described, showing separately the effects of these agreements and colfateral received
and/or furnished by the Group:

Thousands of eurog

2013 2012

Derivative financlal Instruments Assets Liahilitles Assots Liabilitles
Gross exposure (hook value) 549 982 56 069 74T 113 172 076
Netting agreemsents and coliaterals {537 020) {26 580) (658 B30) { 92 140)
Netting arrangements - - - -
Collateral recelvedffurnished (537 020) (26 580) {658 B30) { 92 140}
Net exposure 12 862 29 489 88 343 79 936

The amounts of collateral in the form of cash and financial instruments refiect fair values. The nstting rights
depend on counterparty default and relate to collateral in the form of cash and financial instruments.
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In connection with the Group's asset reverse repos and repos, there are other agreements entailing the
raceipt andfor submission of the following guarantees in addition to the guarantee buiit into these operations:

Thousands of euros

2013 2012

Guarantees associated with acquisitions and
temporary assignment of assets Delivered Recelved Delivered Recelved
In cash 92 589 250 2310 -
In stock - - - -
52 589 250 2 310 -

31.  Interest and similar income

Set out below Is a breakdown of the origin of the most significant interest and similar income accrued by the

Group in 2013 and 2012;

Thousands of suros

2013 2012

Balances at central banks (Note 7) 826 1283
Deposits with credit institutions (Note 10.1) 20 376 19 518
Maoney market operations through counterparties (Note 10.1) 12 288 18 287
Loans and advances to customers (Note 10.1) 671708 a18 008
Debt securities 3790683 302 124
Doubtful assets (Note 10.1) 8814 7 876
Rectification of revenues arising from accounting hedges { 6153) { 7551
Insurance contracts related to pensions and similar obligations 4721 4 B52
Other revenues 1427 1279
1103 267 1 166 687

Set out below is a breakdown of the amounts recognized in “Interest and similar income” in the consolidated
income statements for 2013 and 2012, classified on the basis of the relevant financial instrument portfolio:

Thousands of euros

2013 2012
Financial assets at fair value with change through profit and loss- Held for trading
{Note 8.1} 3376 439
Avallable-for-sale financial assets (Note 8.1) 100 770 897 021
Maturity investment portfolio (Note 8.4) 237 663 165 398
l.oans and receivables 740 313 876 433
Money market operations through counterparties 12 285 18 287
Rectification of revenues resulting from accounting hedges { 6153) { 7551
Other revenues 15 003 15 660
1103 267 1 166 687
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32. Interest expense and similar charges

The breakdown of the balance of this caption in the consclidated income statements for 2013 and 2012 is as
follows:

Thousands of euros

2013 2012

Deposits from central hanks (Note 16.1) 33625 48 309
Deposits from credit institutions (Note 16.2) 18 667 17 139
Money markel operations through counterparties {Note 16.3) 8758 13127
Depaosits from other creditors {Note 16.3) 482 218 483 326
Debt securitles issued (Note 16.4) 101 522 138 800
Subordinated liabilities (Note 16.5) 2 671 5380
Rectification of costs arising from accounting hedges (162 859) (156 619)
Costs attributable to pension funds arranged (Note 17) 5344 8199
Other Interests 1 355 2 380

491 201 557 061

Set out below is a breakdown of the amounts recognized in “Interest expense and similar charges” in the
consolidated income statements for 2013 and 2012, classified on the basis of the relevant financial Instrument
portfolio:

Thousands of euros

2013 2012
Financial llabilties at amortized cost 647 461 705 091
Rectification of costs arising from accounting hedges (162 859) {156 619)
Other interests g 889 8 588
481 201 557 061

33. Return on equity instruments

The hreakdown of the balance of this caption in the consolidated income statements for 2013 and 2012 by
portfolio and nature of the financial instruments Is as follows:

Thousands of euros

2013 2012
Equity Instruments classified as:

Financial assets held for trading 33 44
Avaliable-for-sale financial assets 24 B56 28 688
24 B89 28 732

Eguity instruments having the nature of;
Shares 24 441 28 102
Investments in Institulions of Collective Investment 448 830
24 B89 28 732
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34, Results of equity-consolidated entities

A breakdown by company of this consolidated income statement caption for 2013 and 2012 is as follows:

Thousands of euros

2013 2012
Autopista det Sol Congeslonaria Espafiola, S.A. { 1326) { 1353
EBN Banco de Negocios, S.A. { 1089) { 2 82B)
Unicorp Vida, Compafila de Seguros y Reaseguros, S.A. 18 876 16 541
Hidralia, Gestlén integral de Aguas de Andalucla, 8.A.

{previously, Aguagest Andalucia, S.A.) 3374 3080
Sacyr Vallehermoso, S.A. - (13 684)
Unema Promotores Inmobiiiarios, S.A, ( 7} -
Grupo Hoteles Flaya, S.A. { 1134) 200
Alestls Aerospace, S.L. - -
Deoleo, S5.A. 1223 .
Sociedad Municipal de Aparcamientos y Servicios, S.A. 3 2
Ingenleria e Integracién Avanzadas, S.A. (ingenia) { 562) ( 322
Autopista de! Guadalmedina, Concesionaria Espafiola, S.A. { 2163) { B57)
QOther entities { 2 256) { 3227}

16 627 { 2128)

35. Fee and commisslion income

Set out below is fee revenue accrued in 2013 and 2012, classified taking into account the main items involved,
together with the consolidated income statements for those years in which such revenue has been recorded:

Thousands of euros

2013 2012
Interest and simllar revenues
Origination fees 24 226 27 462
24 226 27 462
Fees recelved
Fees relating to contingent risks 6 B37 8030
Fees relating to contingent commitments 1863 1337
Fees relaling to collection and payment services B6 502 86 423
Fees relating to investment and complementary activities 25610 23086
Fees relating to foreign currency and note exchange 329 356
Fees relating to marketing of non-bank financial products 31988 33 830
Other 3287 3616
156 436 156 778
Other operating incoms
Compensatory fees of direct costs (Note 38} 1503 2081
1 503 2 081
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36. Fee and commission expense

Set out below is fee and commission expense accrued in 2013 and 2012, classified taking into account the
main items involved, together with the consolidated income statements for those years in which such expense
has been recorded:

Thousands of euros

2013 2012

Fee and commission expense
Commissions paid to intermediaries 824 743
QOther commissions 152 426
976 1 189

Fees Paid

Deblt and credit operations 459 523
Commissions ceded to other Banks and cofrespondent banks 13786 15 734
Commission expense on securities transactions 1103 937
Other Fees 4138 3 630
18 497 20 824

37. Gains or losses on financial assets and liabllities

The breakdown of the balance of this caption in the consolidated income statements for 2013 and 2012 by
portfolio of the financial instruments involved is as follows:

Thousands of euros

2013 2012

Trading portfolio 2 966 (15 675)
Available-for-sale financial assets (Note 9.3) 141 585 27 114
Equity instruments 6425 1688
Debt 135 170 25428
Credit Investments 283 -
Held-to-maturity investmenis (Note 8.4) 93 044 -
Financial llabfities at amortized cost - -
Hedging derivatives 3518 278
241 406 11 717

in the years 2013 and 2012, the amount coliected under the heading "Results from financial operations -
assets held for sale - Equity instruments” mainly comprises disposal operations described in Notes 9.1 and
9.3.

In 2013, profits recognized in refation to held-to-maturity securities, totalling € 83,044 thousand, relate to the
sale of a part of the debt securities included in the portfolio (Note 8.4). The transaction fulfils the reguirements
of paragraph GA22 of IAS 39 and therefore the remainder of the held-to-maturity debt securities need not be
reclassified to the avallable-for-sale portfolio {Note 2.2.4).
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38. Other operating income

The breakdown of the balance of this caption in the consolidated income statements for 2013 and 2012 is as
follows:

Thousands of euros

2013 2012

Income from property Investments (Note 13.2) 6610 84860
Commissions offsetting direct costs (Note 35) 1503 2 081
Sales and Income from non-financial services 33088 27 320
Insurance premium income 23 260 7
Cther 4 244 7925
68 705 43 793

At 31 December 2043, the item “Other non-recurring income” inciudes the amount of € 23,250 thousand
obtalned from the assignment on 31 December 2013 of exclusive rights to distribute home insurance for a
five-year period.

39.  Other operating expense

This breakdown of this heading in the consolidated income statements for 2013 and 2012 is as follows:

Thousands of euros

2013 2012

Operating expenses on Real State 259 137
Contribution to the Deposlt Guarantee Fund (Note 1.8) 27 477 31 807
Other 29 962 42 054
57 738 73 998

The heading "Other” includes the cost of the sales services that constitute the core aclivity of the non-financial
subsidiaries consolidated with the Group.

40. Administrative expenses
40.1 Staff costs

The breakdown of “Staff costs” in the consolidated income statements for the years 2013 and 2012 is as
follows:

Thousands of euros

2013 2012

Wages and salaries 198 350 204 599
Social securities casts §4 257 49 874
Appropriations to defined benefit pension plans a1 805
Apprapriations to defined contribution pension plans 9320 9430
Indenisations 64 318
Staff tralning expenses 890 932
Other staff costs B 747 7578
269 938 273 £36
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The average number of Group's employees, by professional category, at 31 December 2013 and 2012 Is as
follows:

Averagie number of Employees

2013 2012
Men Womsn Men Women
Group 1 2814 1 805 2 661 1815
Level [ 15 1 15 1
Level i 44 5 53 4
Level lll 136 17 139 14
Level iV 37 687 312 84
Level V 676 241 643 226
Level Vi 384 151 g7 154
Level VH 4M 308 435 30
Level Vill 2490 313 283 310
Level IX 96 156 98 140
Level X 50 151 62 148
Level X! 168 347 172 365
Level X1 K| a9 49 72
Level Xli| 3] g 3 7
Group 2 20 7 18 7
Level 3 - 3 -
Level |l 12 5 11 4
Level {ii - 2 - 3
Level IV 4 - 3 -
Level vV 1 - 2 -
Cleaners - 13 - 15
Total Parent 2634 1 825 2 680 1 837
Other subslidiaries 253 185 257 201

During 2013 and 201 the average number of people employed with a disability of at least 33% is 90 and 91,
respectively, in compliance with Law 13/1982 of 7 Apifl, the social integration of disabled persons.

The table below details a breakdown by concepts of the amounts recognized in the headings "Provisions -
provisions for pensions and similar obligations” and “insurance contracts linked to pensions® in the
consolidated balance sheets at 31 December 2013 and 2012

Thousands of suros

2013 2012

Provisions - Provisions for pensions and similar obligations - 183 950 184 267
Post-employment benefils 141 453 130 782
Other long-term benefits 42 487 53 485
Insurance contracts linked to penslons 132 097 119 358
Post-employment benefits 132 097 119 358

Changes in the provisions recognized by the Group during the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 are
detailed in Note 17.
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40.1.1 Post-employment commitments

During 2002 the Entity agraed with its employees to modify and transform the employee pension supplement
systamn into a mixed model of defined contribution and defined benefit system extemalized to Unifondo
Penslones V, Fondo de Pensiones. To finish this modification and transformation, the Institution surrendered
the insurance policies that before covered the actuarial liabilities. Simultansously, funds were appropriated to
the internal pension fund, a part of which was subsaguently externalized to Unifondo V, Fondo de Pensiones.

At 31 December, 2013 and 2012, the balance of Unifondo Penslones V, Fondo de Pensiones amounted to
€281,156 thousand and €270,921 thousand, respectively. This amount covers needs of defined contribution
and defined benefits commitments calculated in Note 2.12.

A40.1.1.1 General information on post-employment commitments

Set out below are different commitments of post-employment, such as defined contribution and defined benefit
commitments assumed by the Entity;

Defined benefit plans

The contributions made by the Group to the fund of external pension funds in 2013 amounted to €9,320
thousand (€8,430 thousand in 2012} and are recognized in “Staff costs” in the income statement.

Defined contribution plans
The present value of the commitments has been defined by qualified actuaries as follows:

- Calculation method: “projected credit unit method”, whereby each year of service an
additional unit of right to benefits is generates and valued separately.

- Actuarial assumptions used: consistent and compatible assumptions, The specific
actuarial assumptions employed are stated in Note 2,12,

- Estimated retirement age of employees: calculated for each employee using the best
information avallable at the reporting date.

The fair value of non-plan assets covering pension commitments includes the falr value of the insurance poficy
taken out by the Group with the insurer Unicarp Vida, Compafila de Seguros y Reaseguros, S.A. to cover
commitments with employees who are guaranteed a supplemantary benefit on retirement, as explained
previously. As this insurance policy is contacted with a company related to the Bank (Note 12), it is recognized
at fair value in the item "Insurance contracts linked to pensions” In assets, as itis not deemed to be a “plan
asset’. The policy's fair value has been calculated using actuarial methods, discounting payments fiows
stipulated in the policy at the discount rate applicable according to the IBOXX AA Corporate curve, based on
the financial term of the commitments,
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At 31 December 2013 and 2012 the fair value of the assets allocated to cover post-employment remuneration
is as follows:

Thousinds of euros
2013 2012

Nature of assets allocated to cover commitments
Assets of the plan covered by insurance policy with Unicorp Vida, S.A. 35 061 37 606
Assels of the plan covered by pensicn plans In other independent entities . -
Insurance policles contracted by the plan with Unicorp Vida, S.A. and allocated

to cover defined benefit commitments 132 087 118 359
External defined contribution pension plan 212 072 176 028
a7¢ 230 332 8892

40.1.1.2 Infarmation on defined-contribution post-amployment commitments

Pension commitments arranged under defined contribution plans are settled by means of annual payments
made by the Group to beneficlaries, who are almost exclusively serving employees. The contributions are
charged to the consoclidated income statement for the period (Note 2.12.1) and do not therefore entall the
recognition of a liability in the accompanying consolidated balance shest.

The amounts recognized in the accompanying consolidated income statement in respect of contributions
made to these plans in 2013 and 2012 fotaled € 9,320 thousand and € 8,430 thousand, respectively {Note
40.1.1.1).

40.1.1.3 Information on defined-benefit post-amployment commitments

Actuarial losses and gains on defined benefit plans recognized in the 2013 consolidated statement of
recognized income and expenses as items of other recognized income and expenses that will not be taken to
the income statement total a gross ioss of € 519 thousand, entalling a net loss of € 363 thousand after the tax
effect.

Set out below is the reconciiiation between the opening and closing balances of the present value of Unicaja
Banco's defined benefit commitments for 2013 and 2012:

Thousands of euros

2013 Plan 1 Pian 2 Total
Present value of obligations at January 1, 2013 83 016 37 708 130 724
(i} Cost of current serviges 273 38 3N
(i) Borrowing costs 4 009 859 4968
{i#)) Contributions made by ptan participants - - -
{vi) Actuarial losses and gains 16 810 ( 785 16 115
iv.1. Due to changes in demographic assumptions - - -
iv.2. Due to changes In financial assumptions 15 185 { 228) 14 957
Iv.3. Adjustments due tc experience 1725 ( &567) 1158
{v) Exchange rate changes - - -
(vi) Benefits pald { 9134) { 1532) { 10 656)

{vii} Cost of past services
(vii)) Business combinations
(ix) Reductions

(x) Plan settlements

b

Present value of obligations at December 31, 2013 1056 074 36 378 141 452
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2012
Prasent value of obligations at January 1, 2012

(i) Cost of current services

(i) Borrowing costs

(iii) Contributions made by plan participants

(vi) Actuarial lesses and gains
iv.1. Due to changes In demographlc assumptions
iv.2, Due to changes in financia! assumptions
iv.3, Adjustments due to experience

(v) Exchange rate changes

(vi) Benefits paid

{vii) Cosl of past services

{viii} Business combinations

(ix) Reductions

{x} Plan setllements

Present value of obligations at December 31, 2012

Thousands of suros

Plan1 Plan 2 Total
95 814 37 503 133 317
284 78 62

4 706 1493 6199
836 62 898
635 62 808

(B 424) {1 428) { 9862)
93 018 a7 708 130 724

Set out below is the reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of the fair value of the plan
assets and the opening and closing balances of any reimbursement rights capitalized by Unicaja Banco In

2013 and 2012;

2013
Falr value of assets at January 1, 2013

{i) Cost of current services

{ii) Borrowing costs

(i} Contributions made by plan participants

{(vi) Actuarial losses and gains
iv.1. Due to chenges In demographic assumptions
iv.2. Due to changes in financia! assumptions
iv.3. Adjustments due to experience

{v) Exchange rate changes

{vi) Benefils paid

(vii) Cost of past services

{vili} Business combinations

(ix) Reductions

{x} Plan settlements

Fair valug of assets at December 31, 2013

Thousands of suros

Plan 1 Plan 2 Total

91 764 27 534 119 358

2 360 729 3 089
4011 710 4721

15 07'; 518- 15 59é
14 438- 855- 18 091:1
639 ( 137) 502

( 913;) (1 532-) { 1066(;)
104 078 28 019 132 087
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Fair value of assets at January 4, 2012

{i) Cost of current services

(i) Borrowing costs

{iii} Contributions made by plan participants

(vl) Actuarial losses and galns
iv.1. Due to changes in demographic assumptions
iv.2. Due to changes In financial assumptions
Iv.3. Adiustments due to experience

(v) Exchange rate changes

(vi) Benefits paid

(vii) Cost of past services

{viii} Business combinations

{ix) Reductlons

(x) Plan settlements

Fair value of assets at December 31, 2012

Thousands of euros

Plan 1 Plan 2 Total
84 608 27 451 122 059
1627 1 558 3185

4 180 882 4 852

{ 208) { 678) { B85
{ 206) { 679) { 885)
{ 8425) { 1428) ( 9853
91 764 27 584 119 358

Set out below is the reconciliation of the present value of the defined-benefit post-employment commitments
and the falr value of the plan assets (excluding insurance contracts linked to pensions), against the assets and
liabilities recognized in Unicaja Banco's balance sheet at 31 December 2013 and 2012:

2013
Present value of obligations at December 31, 2013

(i) Cost of past services not recognized in the balance sheet
(i) Any amount not capitaiized
(i) Fair value of any reimbursement right
capitalized
{iv) Other amounts recognized in the balance sheet

Falr vatue of assets at December 31, 2013

2012
Prasent value of obligations at December 31, 2012

{i) Cost of past services not recognized in the balance sheet
{ii) Any amount not capltalized
(iif} Fair value of any reimbursement right
capitalized
(iv) Other amounts recognized in the balance sheet

Fair value of assets at December 31, 2012

Thousands of euros

Plan 1 Plan2 Total
105 074 36 378 141 452
{ 1818) {36 378) { 38 196)
103 256 - 103 256

Thousands of euros

Plan 1 Plan 2 Total
83 047 37 709 130 726
{ 2080) {37 709) ( 39 799)
a0 927 - 80 927
141



S

I

b 2

Set out below is a breakdown of the total expense recognized in the consolidated income statements for 2013

and 2012:
Definition According to IAS 19
a) Cost of current services Staff costs
ty) Borrowing costs Interest expense and similar charges
t) Expected retun on assets Interest and similar income
d) Cost of past services recognized during the period Charge to provisions (net)
: Thousands of eurcs
2013 Plan 1 Plan 2 Total
&) Cost of current services 273 38 3N
b) Borrowing costs 4009 €59 4 658
c) Expected return on assels (4 011) (710} (4 721)

d) Cost of past services recognized during the period
e) Past service costs recognized in the year - - -

‘Thousands of euros

2012 Plan 1 Pian 2 Total
a} Cost of current services 284 78 382
b) Borrowing costs 4706 1 483 6168
¢) Expecled return on assets (4 160} ( 692) {4 852)
d) Cost of past services recognized during the period

e} Pasl service costs recognized in the year

B42 741 1583

Set out below are the main actuarial assumptions used by Unicaja Banco at 31 December 2013;

Plart 1 Actuarial Assumptions:

D
o]

=]

Updated tables: PERMF 2000-P
Discount rates:

- Market rate as per the financial term of commitment flows and applying the IBOXX AA
Corporate curve at 31 December 2013 for highly-rated Eurozone corporate bonds.

- Each commitment has a term of between 17.73 and 8.93 for the commitments and between
11.47 and 4.43 for the assets.

-~ The rates applied to each commitment fluctuate between 3.08% and 2.78% for the
commitments and 2,92% and 1.91% for the assets.

Salary growth rate: 2%
Social Security pension growth rate: 0
Contribution base growth rate:

- Contribution bases increase until they reach the actual salaries, up to the limits of the
maximum contribution base for each rate group.

- Maximum contribution base growth rate: 1%

Pension Increase rate: 1%
Expected yield on plan assets;

- For assets covering commitments insured under the Group Il policy (Defined Benefit,
Collective Bargaining Agreement for Savings Banks. Former Unicaja), a rate of 2.15% Is
applied.

- For assets covering commitments insured under the Group I} policy (Defined Benefit,
Employees from Baneco Urguijo), a rate of 2.14% is applied.

- For assets covering commitments insured under the Group V! policy {Plan beneficiarles)
with cash-flow matching, a rate of 4.87% is applied.

-  For assets covering cornmitments insured under the policy for Beneficiaries from Groups |
(Mixed. General System), il and IIl that receive actuarial income, a rate of 2.88% is applied.

- For assets covering commitments insured under the policy for benefits not financed by the
Plan due to contribution limits, a rate of 2.15% is applied.
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Rate of yield on any reimbursement right recognized: 0

Estimated retirement age: 65, except for participants in respect of whom the retirement age is
brought forward.

Turnover: No

Plan 2 Actuarial Assumptions:

=]
o]

o

Q
o]
o

Updated tables: PERMF 2000-P
Discount rates:
- Market rate as per the financial term of commitment flows and applying the IBOXX AA
Corporate curve at 31 December 2013 for highly-rated Eurozons comporate bonds.
- Each commitment has a term of between 17.49 and 9.78 for the commitments and between
14.36 and 1.09 for tha assets.
- The rates applied to each commitment fluctuate between 3.07% and 2.83% for the
commitments and 3.02% and 0.86% for the assets.
Salary growth rate: 5%
Soctal Security pension growth rate: 0
Contribution base growth rate:
~  Contribution bases increase until they reach the actual salaries, up to the limits of the
maximum contribution base for each rate group.
- Maximum contribution base growth rate: 3%
Pension increase rate: 3%
Expected yield on plan assets:
- For assets covering commitments Insured under the policy for commitments arising from the
Collective Bargaining Agreements for Savings Banks and Banks, a rate of 2.13% is applied.
- For asssts covering commitments insurad under the policy for early-retired employees with
cash-flow matching, a rate of 2.59% is applied.
-  For assets covering commitments insured under the policy for two groups of liabliities, rates
of 2.39% and 3.02% are applied.
Rate of yield on any reimbursement right recognized: 0
Estimated retirement age: 65.
Tumnaover: No

Set out below are the amounts for 2013 and for the preceding four annual periods representing the present
value of defined benefit commitments, the fair value of plan assets and experience adjustments under
paragraph 1204, letter (f) of IAS 19 arising from plan assets and liabilitias,

Thousands of suros

Present value of obligatlons Falr value of assets
Plan 1 Plan 2 Total Plan 1 Plan 2 Total
Year 2008
Experience adjustments 1204 { 429) 775 { 685) 1594 809
Value at December 31, 2008 100 833 36 928 137 761 88 755 28038 127 7984
Year 2010
Experience adjustments { 248) 219 { 27 { 109) ( 81 ( 200)
Value at December 31, 2010 §7 853 36 458 134 411 96 764 27 342 124 106
Year 2011
Experience adjustments ( 2685 {1398) ( 4083) { 260 316 56
Velue at December 31, 2011 95 815 37 504 133318 94 608 27 451 122 059
Year 2012
Experience adjustmenis ( 11885) { 612) ( 1797 ( 199) { 678) ( B78)
Vaiue at December 31, 2012 83 017 37 709 130 726 91765 27 5b4 119 359
Year 2013
Experience adjustments { 1725) 567 { 1158) 639 { 137} 802
Value at December 31, 2013 105 074 36 378 141 452 104 078 28019 132 097
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Sat out below are sensitivity data for the present value of the commitments at 31 December 2013 In relation to
interest rate and salary growth fluctuations:

Percentage changes
Incroase Pecrease
Change In present value of commitments In the event of
a 0.5% fluctuation in salaries 408 { 376)
Change in present value of commitments in the event of
a 50 bp interest rate fluctuation (7 465) 8188

On the basis of the mortality tables employed, life expectancy for a person retiring at year-end 2013 is 26.31
years and 21.82 years for women and men, respectively, Life expectancy for a person retiring 20 years after
year-end 2013 is 28.55 years and 24.17 years for women and men, respectively,

The main categories of assets for plans financed externally as a percentage of total plan assets are as follows:

Thousands of suros

2013 % 2012 %

Equity instruments 13 180 741 13176 7.53
Debt Instruments 124 023 §8,72 132 647 75,81
Investment funds 40 806 22,83 19 898 11,37
Financial derfvatives { 9647 { 542} - -
Other assets 9712 548 9 245 5,29
177 B74 100,00 174 966 100,00

in all cases, the instrument contracted is an Insurance policy.
The fair value of plan assets includes the following financial instruments issued by the Unicaja Banco group:

Thousands of euros

2013 2012
Equity instruments - -
Debt Instruments - -
Beposits and current accounts 8118 7408
8118 7 408

Estimated payments of post-employment commitment benefits in the coming 10 years are as follows:

Thousants of suros

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019-2023
Post-employment benefit 6 876 B 823 8738 8 652 8 5a1 41433
Other long-term benefit 12 550 10 759 7 586 5035 2724 3668
Total banefits 21 426 19 562 16 324 13 687 11 315 45 101

As regards benefits estimated for the following year:
o For the defined retirement benefit, the amount of contributions wil be equal to the ordinary cost and

supplementary cost, if applicable, identified in the latest actuarial valuation performed by the plan
actuary at the previous year end.
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o For the disabliity, widowhood and orphanhood defined benefits of defined benefit groups,
contributions will be equal to the annual premium necessary for coverage purposes, under a group
life insurance policy, the amount of which is budgeted based on the amounts paid in the previous
year.

o For the disabllity, widowhood and orphanhood defined benefits of defined contribution groups,
contributions will be equal to the cost of the Insurance premium for these benefits stipulated by the
insurer, in the amount necessary to reach the amount of the benefits, net of capitalization funds
formed. In general, they are estimated based on the amounts paid in the previous year.

40.1.2 Death and disabliity

The amount accrued by defined contribution insurance policies to cover employes death and disability of
employees amounted to €1,565 thousand in 2013 (€1,410 thousand in 2012) and is recognized in *Staff costs”
in the income statement (Note 2.12.3).

40.1.3 Age awards

The amounts recognized for commitments with employees that reach 20 and 35 years of service at the Group
amounted to approximately €4,328 thousand and €4,314 thousand, respectively at 31 December 2013 and
2012 and are recognized in "Provisions - Provisions for pensions and similar liabliities” in the balance sheets.

40.1.4 Other benefits

The amount of these commitments and assets included in the table above was calculated by qualified
actuaries as follows:

- Actuarial assumptions used: for the calculation of commitments to employees resulting from that
agreement, the Bank applied the curve IBOXX AA Corporate depending on the duration of the commitments,
having been estimaled other assumptions applied in accordance with the conditions market and the
characteristics of the covered group.

- The duration for aach commitment varies between 6.91 and 1.24.

- The rates applied for each commitment ranging from 2.53% to 0.88%.

- The estimated retirement age of each employee are as specified.

40,2 Other general administrative expenses
The breakdown of this consolidated income statement line for 2013 and 2012 is as follows:

Thousands of eures

2013 2012

Buildings and facilities 15 051 17 375
Rent 3856 4525
Information technologies 18 880 212352
Communications 12 451 14 275
Advertising 4 998 6617
Legal costs 655 508
Technical reports 7025 6718
Security services 5188 5248
Insurance premiums 2966 1293
Govemning bodles 1363 1058
Representation costs 2708 2712
Assuclation charges 2520 2 568
QOutsourcing - -
Taxes 9 468 8110
Other ltems J BBD 3 335
B89 087 96 692
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The balance of "Other administrative expenses" includes the fees paid by the Group for the audit of the annual
accounis, amounting to € 330 thousand in 2013 (€ 334 thousand in 2012). In 2013, costs of services provided
by companles using the PricewaterhouseCoopers brand for other accounting verification and regulatory work,
basically relating to the acquisition of Banco CEISS, totaling € 1,260 thousand (€ 504 thousand in 2012), and
{o other services amounting to € 48 thousand (€ 68 thousand in 2012).

41. Impalirment losses on the rest of assets (net)

The breakdown of the heading “Impalment losses on the rest of assets (net)” In the consolidated profit and
loss account for the years 2013 and 2012 is as follows:

Thousands of euros

2013 2012

Impairment losses
Goodwill and other Intangible assets (Notes 4) 1807 1807
Investments (Note 12) 7837 38 261
Other assets 52 008 297 057
61 852 338 225

There follows an itemized breakdown of the consolidated balance sheet caption “Other asset impairment
losses” for 2013 and 2012:

Thousands of suros

2013 2012

mpairment of tangible assets for own use (net) ( 69 { 79)
lmpairment losses on investment property {net) 8008 7888
Impaiment losses on inveniories (net) 44 0B6B 289 238
52 008 207 057

The balance of “Other assets” includes the amounts provided by the Group under the concept of impairment
of assets in participated companies, fundamentally of those with activities related to the real estate business,

42. Gains and losses on disposal of assets not classified as non-current assets held for sale

The breakdown of this heading in the consolidated Income statements for the years 2013 and 2012 is as
follows:

Thousands of euros

2013 2012

Galns Losses Galng Losses

On disposal of tangible assets 776 (568) (3127 (562)
On disposal of investments a3 ( 12} 927 {153)
Other ltems - { 24) - {158)
809 {604) 1623 {873)
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43, Gains and losses on disposal of non-current assets held for sale not classified as discounted
operations

The breakdown of this heading in the consolidated income statements for the years 2013 and 2012 Is as
follows:

Thousands of euros

2013 2012

Galns Lossas Galns Losses

On disposal of tanglble assets 7137 {10 031) 8690 { 5015}
Other items {Note 15) - {10 401) - {25 243)
7137 {20 432) 8 690 (30 258)

At 31 December 2013 and 2012, "Other" relates mainly to impairment losses on non-current assets for sale
{Note 15).

44, Related partles

In addition to the information presented in Note 6 relative to the balances and transactions with tha members
of the Group's Board of Directors and key management persannel, set out below is the detall of the accounts
registered in the consclidated balance sheets and income statements for the years 2013 and 2012 arising
from transactions with related parties:

Thousands of euros

2013 2012
Group Group :
entities, Members of the entitias, Members of the
assoclates board of associates hoard of
and jointly- directors and and jointly-  directors and
controfied general Other related  cantrolled general Other related
- entlties managars parties gntitles managars parties
ASSETS:
Loans and advances 285 279 1204 39 538 157 694 1585 47 443
Securities portfolic 279 579 . - 253 541 - -
Other asseis 8118 - 13 5570 - 47
Insurance contracts finked to pensions 132 097 - - 118 369 - -
LIARILITES:
Deposits 851 €88 4 482 6588 863 032 2242 5373
Subordinated Habiities 252 - - 38 - -
Cther iabilitias 27 - - 30 - [
Provisions for pensions end simitar
obligations B8D - - 134 - B
Debt cortificates including bonds - 78 - - 863 161
INCOME STATEMENT:
Expenssa-
Interest expense and similar charges 13512 1] 88 14 053 57 87
Commissions and impairment losses 9274 - 34 2588 - 35
Income-
Interest and similar income 7662 24 1417 7328 40 1673
Commissions 2331 22 78 1512 1B 84
OTHER:
Contingend risks and commitments 58 062 162 28 194 63 568 188 44 807

Agaregate information is presented in the above table since in all cases the fransactions with related parties
have no significant impact on the understanding of the financial information provided, in view of the amount or
relevance.

The related party transactions were made on nomnal market conditions.
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45. Mortgage market information

On 30 Navember 2010, the Bank of Spain issued Circular 7/2010 developing certain aspects of the mortgage
market as a result of the approval of Law 41/2009 {7 December), which broadly amended Law 2/1881 (25
March) on the mortgage market, and of Royal Decree 716/2008 (24 April}, which developed the latter Law.

The Board of Directors declares that the Entity has specific policies and procedures encompassing all the
activities performed in the context of the morigage market issues carried out, guaranteeing rigorous
compliance with the mortgage market regulations applicable to thase activities.

The policies and procedures include the following criteria:

- Relationship between the amount of the loan and the appraised value of the morigaged building,
including the effect of other collateral and selection of valuation companies.

- Relationship between the debt and the borrower's income, as well as the verification of the inforrmation
furnished by the borrower and the borrower's sclvency.

- Avcidance of imbalance between the flows from the underlying portfolio and the payment flows on the
securities issued.

Article 3 of Law 41/2007 (7 December) stipulates that valuation companies providing services to credit entities
of the same group of entities must have adequate mechanisms in place to favour the independence of the
valuation activity and avoid conflicts of interest, provided that any of the group’s credit entities have Issued and
outstanding mortgage-backed securities, These mechanisms will consist, at minimum, of an internal code of
conduct establishing the incompatibllities of executives and administrators, and other matters that the entity
deems fit based on its size, business type and other characteristics.

Accordingly, on 10 September 2010 the Executive Commitiee of Monte de Piedad y Caja de Ahorros de
Ronda, Cédiz, Almerla, Méalaga, Antequera y Jaén (Unicaja) created the Entity's Technical Commitiee in
connection with the Group's valuation company Tasaciones Andaluzas, S.A. (TASA), formed by three
members representing the units Internal Supervision, Legal Advisory Services and Regulatory Compliance.
Under the resolutions adopted by the Board Member of Unicaja Banco, at its meeting on 2 December 2011,
there has been continuity in the Bank, its compaosition and functions of that Technical Committes.

On 27 September 2013, the Technical Committee issued the report on the 2012 activities of Tazsaciones
Andaluzas, S.A. (TASA), in relation to the adequacy of the mechanisms in place to favour the independence
of the valuation activity and to avoid conflicts of interest. Set out below is a brief summary of the content of
these annual reports:
- The internal control and IT procedures applied by Tasaciones Andaluzas, S.A. (TASA) to guarantea
the fuifilment of its internal code of conduct are analysed.

- The actual independence of the valuation company with respect to the Entity is analysed in
accordance with applicable regulations.

The report was submitted to Unicaja Banco's Board of Directors on 20 December 2013 and to the Bank of
Spain on 10 January 2014,

On 9 December 2008, the Board of Directors of Tasaciocnes Andaluzas, S.A.U. (TASA) approved the
company's internal code of conduct,
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As an issuer of mortgage covered bonds and ordinary morigage bonds, there follows certain relevant
information pursuant to the provisions of mortgage market regulations:

A) Active operations
At 31 December 2013 and 2012 the breakdown of the nominal value of mortgage loans and credit supporting

the issue of mortgage bonds or which have been included in mortgage shares or morigage transfer cerlificate,
is as follows:

Thousants of euros
2013 2012
Loans held in the asset transferred - 389 062
Mortgage participations - 208 088
Morigage transfer certificates : - 178 074
Affects mortgage loans as collateral for loans recelved - -
Loans backing the Issuance of bonds and mortgage bonds 15 507 376 16 052 582
Loans ineligible 3601 511 3 628 688
Meet the eligibility requirements, except for the limit
Article 5.1 of Royal Decree 716/2009 1 280 508 1 386 949
Rest 2321003 2242749
Eliglble loans 11 805 B85 12 423 284
Amounts not eligible 165 309 173 078
Amounts eligible 11 740 556 12 250 205
Loans covering mortgage bond - -
Loans efigible for coverage of morigage bonds 11 740 556 12 250 205
15 507 376 16 442 044

At December 31, 2013 and 2012, the nominal value of outstanding loans and morigage loans backing the
issue of morigage bonds totals to an amount of €15,507,376 thousand and €16,052,882 thousand,
respectively, and the value outstanding principal of ioans and mortgages that meet the characteristics of being
eligible under the issuance of such support mortgage amounts to an amount of €11,805,865 thousand and
€12,423,284 thousand, respectively.

At 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Entity has not Issued ordinary mortgage bonds.

At 31 December 2013, there are no loans or morigage loans which, while remaining in the portfolio, are
subject to mortgage bonds or mortgage transfer certificates. At 31 December 2012, the nominal value of these
ioans and mortgage loans totaled € 389,062 thousand.

The nominal value of all ineligible mortgage loans and credit that do not meet the limits established by Article
5.1 of Royal Decree 716/2000 which, however, comply with the rest of the reguirements for eligible items, as
indicated in Article 4 of that Law, totals €1,280,508 thousand at 31 December 2013 (€1,386,949 thousand at
31 December 2012),

The breakdown of loans that support the issue of morigage bonds classified in accordance with diverse
criteria at 31 December 2013 and 2012 Is as follows:

149



 E—

o2 & o ¢

i

I S S

I

 SURIG B S

v SN wuse B e SR s S o S o

-

[ -

Nominal value of the total outstanding mortgage loans and credits

By origin:
- Group
- Surrogate for other entities

By currency:
- In euros
- Other currency

According the payment situation:
- Nemmality
- Other sltuatlans

According to the average maturily:
- To 10 years
- More than 10 years and to 20 years
~ More than 20 years and o 30 years
- More than 30 years

According to the Inlerest manner:
- Fixed
- Variable

Holders:;
- Legal entities and individuals
Of which: property development
- Households

Depending on the warranty:
- Assets/ buildings completed
© = Residential
Of which: officlal protection
- Commercial
- Rest

- Assets/ buildings under construction
- Residentia!
Of which: official protection
- Commercial
- Rest

- Lands
- Urbanized
- Rest

Thousands of suros

2013

Loans backing
the issuance of bonds

Of which: Loans

and mortgage bands eligible
15 507 376 11 805 865
15 507 376 11 905 865
15 151 036 11 600 213
356 340 305 652

15 507 376 11 906 BG5S
15 507 380 11 905 849
16 16

16 507 378 11 805 865
15223 925 11 9065 865
283 451 -

15 607 376 11 805 865
6614 456 4015277
4 888 721 4 421 898
3394 985 2 522 708
609 214 546 184
15 507 376 11 905 865
182 068 110 188

15 325 308 11 795 666
15 507 376 11 805 865
4120 322 2156238
1067 078 570 384
11 387 054 8748 627
15 507 378 11 805 865
13 572 493 10 857 731
12 366 840 10 165 449
671224 635 355
608 275 405 223
§96 378 387 059
450 056 333700
413 190 312 846
11552 10 161
31349 20282
5517 562
1484 827 614 434
928 392 250 387
556 435 364 D47
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Thousands of suros

2012

Loans backing
the Issuance of bonds

Of which: Loans

and mortgage bonds sligible

Nominal value of the total outstanding mortgage loans and cradits 16 052 982 12 423 284
By origin: 16 052 982 12 423 284
- Group 15 678 868 12 095 565
- Surrogate for other entities 374 114 327719
By currency: 16 D52 982 12 423 284
- In euros 16 052 949 12 423 251
- Other currency 33 33
According the payment situation: 16 052 882 12 423 284
- Nomatity 15 784 842 12 423 284
- Other situations 268 040 -
According to the average maturity: 16 052 BR2 12 423 284
-To 10 years 6 206 374 37956 849
- More than 10 years and to 20 years 5038 330 4 480 198
- More than 20 years and to 30 years 4 004 425 3 431 382
- More than 30 years 803 853 714 875
According to the Interest manner: 16 052 982 12 423 284
- Fixed 137 385 75 065
-Varable 16 915617 12 348 219
Holders: 16 052 882 12 422 284
- Legal entities and Individuals 4 5§80 834 2 559 945
Of which: properly devslopment 1344 505 768 548

- Households 11 463 048 9 B63 328
Depending on the wamanty: 16 052 982 12 423 284
- Assets/ bulldings completed 13434 277 10 883 681
- Residential 12 680 973 10 454 BOG

Of which: official protection 470 949 407 445

- Commerclal ) 625 267 447 191

- Rest 128 037 &1 684

~ Assels/ buildings under construction 538 587 376 878
- Residential 491 580 346 761

Of which: official protection 9911 9 058

- Commereial 37 551 25688

- Rest 8 466 4431

- Lands 2080 108 1082728
- Urbanized 928 801 311098

- Rest 1151 307 751 627
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At 31 December 2013 and 2012 the breakdown of the nominal value of all eligible mortgage loans, based on
the ratio between the amount of the transactions and the appraised values in accordance with the latest
available appraisal of respective mortgage assets, is as follows:

Thousands of euros

2013
Greatar than Groater than
40% and less 60% and less
Less or or equal to Greater or equal to Greater
equal to 40% 60% _ than 80% 80% al 80% Total
Loans eligible
- On housing 2 363 829 3519 765 - 4 594 501 - 10478295
- On other goods 805 357 594 111 28102 - - 1427 570
3 169 286 4113 876 28 102 4 594 601 - 11905 865
Thousands of euros
2012
Superlor al Superior al
Inferioro  40% e Infarlor  Superlor &0% einferior  Superior
_lgual al 40% _o lgual al 60% al 60% o lgual al B0% al 80% Total
Loans eligible
- On housing 2 294 457 3 480 966 - 5016 144 - 10801 587
- On other goods B20 202 767 748 337686 - - 1621717
3 114 659 4 258 715 33 766 5016 144 - 12423 284

Information relating to the nominal value of morigage loans and credit that have been eliminated or added to
the porifolio in 2013 and 2012 is set out below:

Beginning balance

Disposals
Cancellations due maturity
Advanced cancellations
Subrogation of other entities
Rest

Additlons
Originated by Group
Subrogation of other entities
Rest

Final balance

Thousands of suros

2013 2012
Loans eligible Loans not Loans eligible Loans not
eligible oligible

12 423 284 3 629 698 12 765 900 4161 414
{1502521) { 792 193) {1 669 339) {1 120 870)
{ 12350) { 8120) { 45851) { 31481)
{ 150089) ( 176 &67) ( 245382} ( 147 843)
{ 17386) - ( 5564854) -
{1338 338) { 607 506) {1322 D42) ( B41 546)
985 102 764 008 1326 723 588 154
369 000 133 450 314 880 52 B&g
8453 2520 8172 1938

607 649 828 036 1003 571 534 327

11 905 865 3 601 511 12 423 284 3 629 698
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The movements included In the item “Cther”, when assoclated with “Disposals for the year’, relate basically to
the following flows that generate changes in the nominal balance of eligible and non-eligible loans and are
applicable to movements in both 2013 and 2012:

o Transfers between the eligible and non-eligible pertfolios, representing additions to the item "eligible
ioans" and disposals from the "non-eligible loans" portfolic or vice versa. This change is common to
movemeants associated with “Additions for the year® {with the opposite sign). Transfers are due to
changes in the fulfilment of eligibliity requirements in accordance with applicable regulations {mainly
the change in the LTV ratio for the utilization/repayment of loans or the review/update of appraisals).

o Repayment of loans that remain outstanding with respect to the total ioans declared in the previous
period and are not therefore treated as repayments at maturity or early repayments.

The movements included in the item “Other”, when assoclated with “Additions for the year®, relate basically to
the following flows that generate changes in the nominal balance of eligible and non-eligible loans and are
applicable to movements in both 2013 and 2012:

o Transfers betwesen the eligible and non-eligible portfolios, representing additions to the item "eligible
loans" and disposals from the "non-eligible loans” portfolio or vice versa. This change Is common to
movements associated with *Disposals for the year” {with the opposite sign). Transfers are due o
changes in the fulfilment of eligibility requirements in accordance with applicable regulations (mainly
the change In the LTV ratio for the utilization/frepayment of loans or the review/update of appralsals).

o Effect of the liquidation of securitization funds described In Note 30.6.

The avallable balance of morigage ioans that support the issue of mortgage bonds at 31 Dacember 2013 and
2012 is as follows:

Thousands of euros

2013 2M2

Potentlally eligible 270 280 417 363
inedigible 145 985 156 186
416 265 573 549

The nominal value of the available amounts (committed amounis not drawn down} relating to all mortgage
ioans and credit potentially eligible at 31 Decembar 2013 and 2012 totals €270,280 thousand €417 363
thousand, respectively, and the amount that is not potentially eligible totals €145,985 thousand €156,186
thousand, raspactivaly.

At 31 December 2013 and 2012 the Group does not have any replacement assets assoclated to issues of
mortgage bonds or debentures.
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B) Liability transactions

The breakdown at 31 December 2013 and 2012 of the nominal aggregate value of morigage bonds in force
issued by the Bank and the mortgage funds and morigage transfer certificates that are active at that date,

based

on their residual terms, is as follows:

Mortgage bonds

Mortga

ge bonds issued

Issued for public offering

Residual maturity to 1 year

Residual maturity more than 1 year and to 2 years
Residual maturity more than 2 years and to 3 years
Resldual maturity more than 3 years and to 5 years
Residual maturity more than 5 years and to 10 years
Residual meaturity more than 10 years

Rest of issues

Depos

Shares
Issued

Reslidual maturity to 1 year

Resldual maturity more than 1 year and to 2 years
Resldual maturity more than 2 years and to 3 years
Resldual maturity more than 3 years and to § years
Residual maturity more than 5 years and to 10 years
Resldual maturity more than 10 years

its

Resldual maturity to 1 year

Residual maturity more than 1 year and to 2 years
Residual maturity more than 2 years and o 3 years
Residual maturity more than 3 years and to 5 years
Residual maturity more than 5 years and to 10 years
Residual maturity more than 10 years

Issues morigage
by public offering

Other issues

Mortgage transfer certificates [ssued

fssued

by public offering

Other issues

Thousands of suros

2013 2012

B 569 184 9 176 526
2 250 000 2 250 000
1 000 000 -
750 000 1000 000
500 000 750 000

- 500 000

400 000 550 000

- 150 000

140 000 70 000
260 000 330 000
5919 184 6 376 826
468 292 457 741
314 744 468 283
914 074 314 744
1451 258 1714 074
1331 883 1783 151
1438 823 1638 923
- 2090 988

- 200 98B

- 179 074

- 178 074
T
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46.  Information transparency in connection with finanting for construction, property development,
home buying and assets acquired In payment of debts

46.1 Qualitative information

The following should be noted In relation to the minimum information that must be disclosed by consoclidated
groups of financial institutions and by individual financial institutions that do not form part of a group:

- With respect to the financing of construction and property development, financial institutions are asked
to disclose their policies and strategies implaemented in connection with problematic assets in this Industry,
with a view to the short, medium and long term. These exposures must also be evaluated in terms of the
resistance tests published before the summer, if the entity participated in them.

- Financing needs in the markets and in the short, medium and long-term strategles implemented must
also be evaluated (without prejudice fo tha fact that the Bank of Spain may send at a later date detalls relating
to minimum Information on financing and liquidity needs).

Unicaja Banco, as part of its risk policy, particularly in connection with construction and property development,
has a number of specific policies and strategies in place to favour the fulfiiment of borrower obligations and
mitigate the Group's exposure. Alternatives are sought to permmit the completion and sale of property
developments, analysing the renegotiation of exposures if this improves the Group's credit position and
basically to allow the borrower to continue to do business.

This takes into account prior experience with the borrower, compliance record, declared intention to pay,
capacity to generate cash flows and new collateral furnished before existing guarantees are exceeded.

Firstly, provided there is a cerain payment capacity and after exhausting all possihilities of collecting the past
due debt, the Group studies the grant of principal grace periods to allow development of the land financed,
completion of property under development and sale of finished units. The analysis performed pricritises

project feasibility so as to avoid an increase In the investment in properties for which future sales are clearly
possible,

If support measures are not possible or sufficient, other alternatives are sought, such as dation in payment or
asset purchase, the final option being a court claim and the subsequent repossession of the properties
through the enforcement of the mortgage guarantees. All irregular assets included in the Group's consolidated
balance sheet are managed ultimately for the purposes of divestment or leasing.

To this end, the Unicaja Banco Group has special-purpose companies specialized in the management of
property development projects, selling of properties and leasing of investment properties (Note 1.1.3). The
Group also has specific units responsible for developing these strategies and coordinating the actions of the
special-purpose subsidiaries, office network and other agents involved. Finally, the Group has the website
www.unicafainmuebles.com, one of the main tools employed to present these assets to the general public.
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46.2 Quantitative information

Set out below is a breakdown of financing for construction and property devalopment (1), and of assets
backing such financing (1), at 31 Dacember 2013 and 2012:

Thousands of suros

Chart1 2013 2012
Excuss over Excess over

de value of Specific de value of Specific

Groas  the colfateral coverage Gross _thecollateral  poverage

Registered credit {business In Spain} 2014 717 118 871 633806 2387 687 156 572 722 149

Which doubtfut 714 627 118 871 440 638 731542 158 572 ans 207

Of which substandard 580 143 - 193 268 454 472 - 121 885
Memorandum item

Total general aliowance (total business} (3) - - 15 280 - - 18013

Bad assets (4) 257 287 - - 184 557 - -

Memorandum Item {5} Book value

2013 2012

Total lending to costumers excfuding Government {business in Spain) 17 427 546 19 354 534

Total consolidated assets {total business) 41 242 921 40 714 264

() This entalls, for example, that if the debtor is: (8) & property company that uses the financing granted for a purpose other than construction
or property development, it will not be included in this table; and (b} a company whose core business is nol construction or praperty
development, but the credit is employed {o finance bulldings for use in property davelopment, it will be Included in this tabla,

(?) This is the amount of the excess of the gross amount of each loan over the value of the real property rights received as collateral, if
applicable, calculated as stipulated in Exhiblt IX of Clreular 4/2004. [Consequently, the value of the real property rights Is the lower of the cost

of the assets and thelr appraised vaiue in thelr current condition, weighted using percentages that range from 70% to 50%, depending on the
nature of the assets mortgaged].

{3) This is the total amount of the general provision recognized for any item by the consulidated group (total business).

{4) Groas amount of the loan used to finance construction and property development recognized by the group's credit entitiss {business in
Spain) and written off the balance shest due to being classified as a “write-off assets”.

{5) The earrying amount is the amount at which these assets are recognized in the balance sheet afier deducting any provisions,
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Set out below is a breakdown of Financing for construction and property development, operations recognized
by credit entities (business in Spain) at 31 December 2013 and 2012:

Thousands of euros

Chart2 Gross amount (B)

2013 2012

Without morigage 4968 812 521 841
Whit mortgage (7} 1517 80§ 1 B75 B46
Bulidings completed (8) 822 787 1089 147
Housing 775 766 872 716

Rest 147 001 126 431
Buildings under construction (8) 187 374 238 614
Housing 183 646 225701

Rest 3428 12 913

Soit 407 764 538 085
Developed land 348 688 442 140
Other soil 59 076 85 845
Total 2014 717 2 397 687

€) The gross amount In the Table 1 line “Credit recognized by the group's credit entities (business in Spain)® Is equal to the amount in the
Table 2 iine “Total",

(7 including all mortgage operations, irespective of the percentage of outstanding risk with respect to the laiest-avaiiable appraised vatue,

(B) If a building is used for both residential (housing) and commercial (offices and/or pramises) purposes, the financing will be included in the
category that predominates,

Set out below is a breakdown at 31 December 2013 and 2012 of Home-buyer loans, operations recognized by
credit entities (business in Spain):

Thousands of euros

Chart3 2013 2012
Gross Doubtful Gross Doubtful

Credt for house purchase 10 033 348 570 647 10 372 781 454 723
Without morigage 11 457 787 15 404 1773
With mortgage (7) 10 021 888 569 860 10 357 357 452 950

Set out below is a hreakdown of Home-buyer morigage credit showing total risk as a percentage of the latest-
available appraised value (LTV), operations recognized by credit entities (business in Spain) at 31 December
2013 and 2012;

Levels of LTV (10
Chart 4 31 December 2013
LTVSE0% 60%<LTVEB0% BO%<LTV<100% LTV>100% Total
Gross 5 067 502 4431 615 450 325 72 447 10 021 888
Doubtful (8) 136 415 311 206 82 085 40 144 560 B8O
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Levels of LTV {10}

Chart4 31 Decamber 2012
LTVSE0% 60%<LTVS80% B80%<]. TVS100% LTV>100% Total

Gross 4 977 554 4 805 830 514 761 59 112 10 357 357
Doubtful () 103 566 253 243 70138 26 (002 452 950

(8) The sum of the gross ameunts and doubtful foans in each range of this table matches the amounts shown on the Table 3 line for mortgege
credit,

{10) LTV Is the ratio ohtained by dividing risk cutstanding at the reporting date by the |atest-available appraisad value,

Set out below is a breakdown of assels awarded to the consolidated group entities (business in Spain) (11} at
31 Dacember 2013 and 2012:

Thousands of euros
Cuadro 8 2013 2012
Book valus Coverage Book value Coverage
Real Estate assets from fund intended to 1552 023 BE3 161 1 308 460 691 821
Buildings compieted 415 234 155 185 381 646 126 230
Housing 343 834 126 421 332 268 106 338
Others 71400 2B 764 59 380 19 B8
Buiidings under construction 119 882 84 741 77 988 42 522
Housing 116 621 63 256 76 114 41 394
Other 281 1485 1872 1128
Soil 1017 087 633 235 B38 826 523 069
Developed land 540 287 332 513 4609 102 288 627
Other 478710 300 722 368 724 234 442
Real Estate mortgage financing from

325 620 144 038 327 263 135 510
Othar Real Estate assets {12) 102 688 43274 21718 121 200

Equity instruments, shares In and financing granted to entittes
holding rea! estate assets (13) 363 I3 502 -
1 980 705 1040 784 1 857 943 §4B 631

{11) This will include assets awarded, acquired, purchased or exchange for debt deriving from financing granted by the group companies
during business in Spain, and shares in and financing granted to non-consolidated entities holding such assets.

(12) This will Include real astate assets that do not derive from loans to eonstruction and property development companies, or home-buyer
Icans.

{13) All assets of this kind will be recognized, including equity instruments, shares in and financing granted to entities hoiding real estate
assets, mentioned in lines 1 to 3 of this table, and equity instruments and ehares In construction or property development companies received
in payment of debts.
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47. Information on the deferral of payments to suppliers. Additional Provision Threa - Duty of
informatlon - Law 15/2010 (& July)

in accordance with Law 15/2010 (5 July}, which amended Law 3/2004 (25 December) on measures to combat
late payment in commercial transactions, as further developed by the Ruling of 29 December from the Institute
of Aceounting and Auditing (ICAC) on information to be included in the notes to annual accounts in connection
with the deferral of payments to suppliers in commerclal transactions, the following should be noted:

- In view of the Entity's core activities, the information on the deferral of debt relates basically to
payments to supplier for services and sundry supplies received, other than payments to deposit
heolders and holdars of securities issued by the Entity, which have been made, in any event, in strict

compliance with contractual and legal deadlines in each case, whether debts payable on demand or
on a deferred basis.

- Payments made by Unicaja Banco to suppliers solely for the provision of sundry services during 2013
totaled € 101,120 thousand (€ 93,350 thousand in 2012); the services were provided within the legal
deadiines and as contractually stipulated, At 31 December 2013 and 2012, the balance pending
payment to suppliers is immaterial and complies with the payment pefiod requirements of Law
152010 (5 Juily).

48. Customer service

As a result of desegregation operation described in Note 1.1.2 of these Notes to the consolidated annual
accounts, tha Entity's Customer Service Department is responsible for handling claims and complaints relating
to Monte de Piedad y Caja de Ahorros de Ronda, Céadiz, Aimerla, Mélaga, Antequera y Jaén (Unicaja), and
Banco Unicaja, S.A. - Sociedad Unipersonal,

In compliance with Article 17.2 of Order ECO/734/2004, of 11 March, on customer departments and services
and protection of financial institutions, a brief summary is provided of the contenis of the report of the Group
Customer Service Department: 89.9% of the complaints and claims received in 2013 were resolved (83% at
31 December 2012); the remaining percentage pending at 31 December 2013 are expected to be resolved
during the first two months of the following year at maximum, in accordance with the Order and Unicaja’s
regulations governing the protection of customers.
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UNICAJA BANCO, S.A. - SOCIEDAD UNIPERSONAL AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
(UNICAJA BANCO GROUP)

DIRECTOR’S REPORT FOR THE YEAR 2013

At year-end 2013, the Unicaja Banco Group's capitalization level is among the highest of all Spanish financial
institutions. Shareholder's funds reached € 2,110 million, with a 13.2% capital adequacy ratio. The majority of
shareholders' funds consists of core capital (Unicaja has never issued preferred shares), representing 12.9%
of risk-weighted assets. Core capital exceeds the minimum reguirements stipulated in Spanish legislation by €
619 million (9%} at the year end.

Unlcaja Banca's discountable [lquid assets Milfions of euros
Baslc Equity 2081
Equity Second Category 45
Total Computable Equity 2110
Risk Walghted Assats 16 017
Percaentage of risk-welghted assets (RWAs) 13,2%
Minimum Required (% of APRs) 8.0%
Surptus over minimum required (in Millions of euros) 828
Princlpal Capital- 2080
Parcentage of risk-welghted assets (RWAs) 12,9%
Minimum Required (% of APRs) 9,0%
Surptus over minimum reguired (in Milions of euros) 618

In a complex, demanding environment with declining GDP, the Unicaja Banco Group posted a profit after tax
of € 71.7 million in 2013,

Miltions of euros
Decamber December Annual rate

Income Statement Unicaja Bank Group 2013 2012 of change
Net interest 612,1 609,6 0,4%
% Of average total assets (ATMs) 1,5% 1.5%
Net fees and commissions 136,58 136,0 0,7%
Dividends and other shares results 40,5 26,8 52,3%
Resutt frorn financial transactions and exchange differences 241,2 12,5 n.s.
Other products operating income / expenses - 11,0 { 302 n.s.
Gross Margin 1044,7 754,5 381%
% Of average total assets (ATMs) 2,5% 1,8%
Operating expenses { 393,8) { 407.4) ( 3,3%)
Net operating Incoms hefore loss provisions 547,9 3471 B6,7%
Provisions and other results { 578,3) (1 204,4} (52,09%)
Profit before tax 69,6 { 857.3) n.g,
Income tax 22 280,1 n.s.
Consolidated profit 7,7 { §77,2) n.s.
Average Total Assets (ATMs) 41 070 40 051 2,5%
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The 2013 was generated by maintaining high net interest income (€ 612.1 million), slightly above the prior-
year figure, representing 1.5% of average total assets. Contributions were made by a reduction in financing
costs and an increase in the volume and profitabiiity of market investments, offsetting the decline in financial
income in a context of diminishing global credit volume, rising foan definquency and low interest rates.

Millions of euros

2113 2012

Yiold. / Yleid. |
Detall Net Intarest and Averago Average Average Average
Medla Types Unlcaja Banco Group balance (1} _ Result (2) cost balance (1) _Result (2) cost
Assets:
Credit Institutions and money market
operations 7449 428 0.,57% 5045 40,1 0,79%
Fixed-iIncome securities 8 568 3731 3,80% B 681 204,7 3,38%
Loans and advances to customers naot
doubiful 18 854 6736 3,57% 20 859 821.,2 3,04%
ATMs / Total Interest Income 41 070 1103,3 2,69% 40 051 1 166,7 2,91%
Liabliities:
Credit Institutions and money market
operations 10 604 66,8 0,63% g9 541 81,0 0,85%
Deposits 16 964 270,89 1,60% 15 538 2547 1.64%
Emissions 8993 1413 1,57% 10028 2099 2.09%
ATNMs / Total interest paid 41 070 481,2 1,20% 40 051 5571 1,38%
ATM / Net Interest 41 070 612,1 1,48% 40 051 608,6 1,52%

{1} Calculated based on quarter-end balances,
{2} Including provisioning adjustments.

Net fee and commission income rose 0.7% on 2012, due basically to the increase in the investment fund and
pension plan businesses, offsetting the decline in other business areas.

Net gains/{loss) on financial assets and Habllities totaled € 241.4 million, due mainly to the partial realisation of
gains accumulated in the fixed income investments portfolio.

A rigorous cost containment and contral policy brought a further reduction in operating expenditure (3.3%) with
respect to 2012. The sound performance of expenses and income resulted in an efficlency ratio (operating
expenses divided by gross margin) of 37.8%. Overall, the increase in ordinary income, reduction in operating
expenses and profits from fixed income portfolio sales lead to a profit of € 647.9 million before write-downs in
2013, 87% above the 2012 figure.

In accordance with the prudent approach traditionally adopted by the Bank, funds generated during the year
were used mainly to consolidate high risk coverage levels, writs-downs totalling a net amount of € 578 million,
charged to results. Most of these write-downs relate to provisions for loans and advances to customers, fixed
assets deriving from debts and investments in real estate companies.
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Milllons of euros

Extreme downs and othsr results 2013 2012
Extreme downs and other results 48,8 37.8
tmpaiment on financial assets (net) 454,86 807,6
Impaiment of non-financial assets {net) 61,9 338,2
Gaine and losses on disposa! of assets not classified as held for safe 02 0.8
Gains and losses on non-current assets held for sale not classified as discontinued

operations { 13,3 ( 218)
Total writedowns and other results 578,3 1204,4

Despite the difficult economic scenario, the Unicaja Banco Group's financial strength has allowed it to focus
on personalised customer management. As an example of this commercial dynamigm, funds managed
reached € 35,712 milfion, 5.9% up on year-end 2012, as a result of the growth in customer deposits (B.5%
year-on-year) and funds captured through off-balance-sheet instruments (investment funds, pension funds,
savings insurance and customer portfolios managed), which grew 10.4%. Funds captured through Issues
{coverad bonds, promissory notes and subordinated debentures) decreased by 21.6%.

Mitlions of suros

December December Relative
Managed Resources Unicaja Banco Group 2013 2012 variation
Total Balance Resourcas 30 618 29 110 5,2%
Deposits from customers 28 094 25893 8,5%
Government 1108 7 43,6%
Private Sector 26 986 25122 7.4%
Demand deposits 7429 6972 6,6%
Tetm deposits 13753 13 040 55%
Temporary assigments on assels 5804 5111 13,6%
Emisslons 2522 3218 (21,6%)
Notes 88 §57 (B4,0%)
Morigage Securities 2342 2 455 {4,6%)
Other values - 1 (92,8%)
Subordinated liabiiities 91 204 (55,4%)
Ofi-balance sheat 5076 4 598 10,4%
Total Managed Resources 35692 33708 5,9%

In the past vear, in the current deleveraging context in which the Spanish economy is immersed, affecting both
companies and households, loans and advances to customers shrank by 8.8% (excluding measurement
adjustments), which may be considersd to be in line with Spanish financial institutions as a whole {setting
aside the effect of loans transferred to the Sareb by some banks).
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Millions of euro

December Decembear Absolute Ralative
Customer Credit Unicaja Banco Group 2013 2012 varlation _ varlation
Public Administration 597 910 { 313) (34,4%)
Private Sector 22 580 24 515 {1 935) {7,9%)
Commerclal ipans 173 256 { B3) {32,4%)
Secured loans 12 501 13677 (1176) (8,6%)
Temporary purchase of assels 3818 3 852 { 238) {B.1%)
Other tem debtors 3 583 4314 { 751) {17,4%)
Bormrowers in sight and cther 2727 2416 311 12,8%
Total loans to customers excluding valuation
adjustments 23177 25425 (2 248} (8,8%)
Impaiment losses and other valuation adjustiments { 1410) {12370 { 173 14,1%
Total loans to customers 21 766 24189 {2 423) {10,0%)

The decline in loans and advances to customers in 2013 relates to both public administrations and the private
sector. Lending to public administrations fell -34.4%; In the private sector, lending to companles (-15.3%)
decreased more than lending to individuals (-4.3%), which consisted mostly of home loans with longer
maturities. At year-end 2013, home loans account for 87% of lending to Individuals and 45% of total loans and
atlvances to customers (excluding measurement adjustments).

Millions of euros

Credit to the private sector as cred[t risk classification December December Absoluta Relative
Unicaja Banco Group (1) 2013 2012 variation variation
Companles . 6 B5B 8 097 (1 241) {15,3%)
Development and construction 2015 2398 { 383) (16,0%)
Other companles 4 841 58899 { B858) (15,1%)
SMEs and the self (2} 3073 3028 45 1.5%
Corporations (2) 1307 2006 { 789) (37,6%)
Civil works 481 575 { 114) {19.8%)
Individuals 12 065 12 607 { 542) (4,3%)
Dwelling 10488 10 897 { 409) (3.8%)
Rest 15877 1710 ( 133) {7,8%)
Credit to privata sector 18 821 20 704 {1 783) (8,6%)

(1) Not including asset reverse repos amenged through counterparty entiies, or other financial assets, Also excluding measurement
adjustments,

(2) Annua! changes In lending o SMEs and large companies affected by legal changes ic the definiticn of SMEs, pursuant to Bank of Spain
Circular 4/2013 {explained in Note 1.8.1 of the nates to the consolidated annual accounts).

The evolution of customer deposits and loans and receivables has significantly reduced the need to obtain
structural financing in markets, as reflected by an LTD (Loan to Deposits) ratio that is virtually balanced at
year-end 2013,

Ratle evolutlon LTD of Unlcaja Banco Group (1) Ratlo %
December 31, 2011 133%
December 31, 2012 122%
Pecember 31, 2013 101%

(1) LTD ratie: ratio of loans to deposits, Loans including measurement adjusiments. Neither loans nor deposits include money market
transactions through counterparty entities, or wholesale Issues. Deposits nchude provisione for indirect subsidised financing,



Lo

At year-end 2013, liquid assets discountable at the ECB (net of amounts
Unicaja Banco's balance shest.

Unicaja Bance's discountable liquid assets

utilized} accounted for 18% of

Miillons of euros

Liquid assets:
Treasury surplus (1)
Discountable assets acquired under repo agreements
Fixed income portfolio and other assets discountable at European Central Bank
Total Hquid assets (discount value at European Central Bank)

Liguld assets utilized:
At European Central Bank
Assets sold under repurchase agreements
Total liquid assets utilized

Drawable discountable liquid assets
Percentage of total assets

{1} Includes interbank deposits and surplus balance in central banks.

1584
8 263
8 559
19 406

4 500
7 341
11 841

7 565
18,2%

In 2013, the Unicaja Banco Group repaid in advance € 1.5 billion of the financing obtained from the ECB
through the LTROs (Long-Term Refinancing Operations) completed at the end of 2011 and beginning of 2012.
The levet of liquid assets reached business prospects for 2014 and 2015 will allow issue maturities to be
settled and the remaining LTROs to be repaid without any need for new market financing.

Millions of suros

Matured markets for funding In 2014-205 Emisslons LTROs Total
Prospects for 2014 131 - 1319
Prospects for 2015 830 4 500 5430
Total 2241 4 500 8741

The Unicaja Banco Group s one of the credit institutions with the lowest non-performing loan ratio {8.4%),
which is approximately 35% below the industry average; according to the latest avallable data, the industry's
volume of doubtful assets accounts for nearly 13% of fotal ioans and advances to customers. The Unicaja
Banco Group ended 2013 with a coverage ratio of 71.0%, placing it among the banks with the highest
coverage.

In 2013, the performing loan profile improved once again. At the year-end balances classed as "no material
risk" and "low risk" (public sector, cash guarantee and secured by finished housing with LTV below 80%)
accounted for 83.6% of the total, 5.4% above the figure for 2012,

MiHions of suros

Classification of credit risk In normal 2013 2012 Variation
sltuation Balance _ Estruc. % Balance _ Estruc. % Balance  Estruc. %
Negligible risk (1) 17 792 54,1% 16 520 48,6% 1272 5,5%
Low risk {2) 9685 28,5% 10038 29,6% { 344) (0,1%)
Medium-low risk (3} 1677 51% 2218 6,5% ( 538) (1,4%)
Medium risk {4) 2664 8,1% 3 551 10.5% ( 886) (2,4%)
Medium-high risk (5} 817 2,5% 1414 4,2% ( 586} (1,.6%)
High risk (6) 226 0.7% 222 0,7% 3 0,0%
Total risk in normal siuation 32 BB2 33 961 g1 079!

{1} Public smctor and cash guaraniee,



{2} Secured by finlshed housing with LTV below 88%.

{3} Other properly guarantees,

{4) Personal guarantee, barring consumption, cards, overdrafts and aver-limit balances.
(5) Consurner financing.

(8) Cards, ovardrafts and over4imit balances.

In 2014, the Unicaja Banco Group expects customer deposits to continue to rise at a considerable pace, while
the decline in credit volumas should slow once the majority of business deleveraging processes have besn
completed. This combined with the Spanish economy's decreasing risk premium and a return to normal in the
capital markets, with stable interest rates, will allow the favourable evolution of the Group's recurring income
and fund generation capacity.

The clean-up efforts made in recent years to reach a level of risk coverage that includes expected losses in
unfavourable scenarios, together with the expected recovery in Spain's ecenomy, which is being reflected in
more moderate growth in irregular assets, points to a significant reduction in write-downs in coming periods.

Globhal risk control

The Entity applies rigorous measures to maintain a permanent, prudent and bafanced risk profile so as to
preserve its solvency, profitability and liquidity. The Entity's integrated risk management model allows service
quality to be assured during the application of the lending policy and in all investment lines.

The Group continues fo improve and upgrade the systems used in the management of general credit or
counterparty risk, markat risk, operational risk, interest rate risk and liquidity risk.

Unicaja Banco Group implements individual actions and participates in sector Global Risk Caontrol projects led
by the Spanish Confederation of Savings Banks in order to enhance the procedures, systems and
methodologies necessary to manage the different types of risks to which the Entity is exposed on an
integrated and effective basis.

As regards capital adequacy, the Unlcaja Banco Group has plans to adapt to Eurepean Union Capital
Requirements Directives (CRD), following the recommendations contained in the agreements adopted by the
Basel Committee on Banking Supervision. On 1 January 2014, Regulation No. 575/2013 of the European
Parllament and of the Council (26 June) (CRR} came into effect on prudential requirements for credit
Institutions and investment firms, bringing in more demanding capital requirements. At 31 December 2013, the
Unicafa Banco Group has capital levels that will allow it to fulfil these requirements. The application as from 1
January 2014 of the capital requirements stipulated in the CRR will entail the abolition of lower-ranked laws
requiring additional capital requirements and, in particular, of the core capital requirements stipulated In Bank
of Spain Circular 7/2012,

In December 2011, the European Banking Authority (EBA) pubiished a Recommendation for additional capital
reguirements applicable to the main European credit institutions. These requirements form part of a package
of measures adopted by the European Council in the second half of 2011 to restore stability and confidence in
the European markets. The Institutions selected were required to have a tier-1 core capltal ratio of at Ieast 9%
by 30 June 2012, calculated applying EBA rulas. Gn 22 July 2013, following the publication of CRD IV and the
CRR, the EBA issuad a new Recommendation replacing the previous requirement expressed as a percentage
with an equivalent capital foor expressed in nominal terms.

Finally, on 5 February 2014, Bank of Spain Circular 2/2014 (31 January) was Issugd to credit institutions, on
the exercise of various regulatory options contained in Regulation (EU) No. 575/2013 of the European
Parliament and of the Council (26 June 2013) (CRR) on prudential requirements for credit institutions and
investment firms, and amending Regulation (EU} No, 648/2012. The purpose is to establish which options
must be fulfiled immediately by Spanish credit institutions, as from the effective date of the new capital
adequacy regulatory framework, and the scope of these options.

Having regard to credit risk, the Group has Implemented scoring systems for ceriain products (private
individuals, consumption, mortgages and credit cards), allowing the automatic approval of loans up to certain
amounts for the retail segment and providing support for decision-taking by the risk analyst.
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With respect to market risk, I.e. the risk of a change in value of financial assets or liabilities held for trading due
to adverse movements in market prices or price volatility, Unicaja Banco Group uses tools to measure and
control market risk, as well as permanent and systematic controls over fransactions that arg particularly
complex from an operational and accounting viewpoint.

Unicaja Banco Group has integrated operational risk management, i.e. the risk of loss resuiting from the
inadequacy of or fallure in processes, personnel or internal systems, or from external events, In its risk control
policy and has rolled out the relevant procedures across all areas of the organisation,

Global interest risk arises from the temporary mismatch of asset and liability maturiies and interest rate
reviews. )t may be measured in terms of the impact that a certaln change in markst rates would have on the
entity’s net interest Income in a given period. Structural interest rate risk Is actively managed and permanantly
controlled by the Assets, Liabilities and Budgeting Committee {(COAPP).

Unicaja Banco Group aiso assesses and manages liquidity risk from both a current or short-term viewpoint
(controliing dally lquidity needs to cover deposit maturities and customer credit demands) and from a
structural viewpoint, entailing the evaluation of the possible need for capital market financing in the medium
and long term in order to maintain the planned rate of business growth.

Events after the reporting date

During 2014, to the issue date of these consolidated annual accounts, there have been new developments in
connection with the acquisition of Banco de Caja Espafia de Inversiones, Salamanca y Soria, S.A. (Banco
CEISS8) describad in Note 1.2.

During the period between the end of the year on 31 December 2013 and the date these director's report were
prepared, no event of special relevance has taken place that has not been mentioned in the notes to the
annual accounts,

Research & Development

The Entity did not engage in significant research and development activities during 2013 and 2012,
Environmental impact

The Group's overall transactions are governed by the Laws on environmental protection (Environmental
Laws). The Parent Entity believes that it substantially complies with such legisiation and it implements
procedures to ensure and promote compllance.

The Parant Entity has adopted the relevant measures to protect and improve the environment and to minimize
its environmental impact and complies with relevant legisiation. The Group did not make significant
environmental investments in 2013 and 2012, nor did it consider it necessary to record any provision for
environmental risks and charges, and does not consider that there are significant contingencies relating to
environmental protection and enhancement,

Own shares

At 31 Dacember 2013 and 2012 the Bank did not hold any treasury shares. In 2013 and 2012 the Bank did not
carry out any transactions involving the treasury share portfalio.

Annual Corporate Governance Report

Below is attached the Annual Corporate Govemance Report of Unicaja Banco, SA - Single Shareholder
Company for the year ended Dacember 31, 2013, as an integral part of this consolidated management report.
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Appendix i
Subsidiaries at 31 December 2013
% Share owned by the Group
Company Name Registersd domicila Activity % Share
% Share
Direct Indirect
Alleria Corparacidn Unicaja, S.LU, C/ Baolsa n® 4, planta 5% Malaga investment on assets, real estata and financial 100,00% 0.00% 100.00%
societies
Altos de Jonloya Residencia para Mayores, S.L.LL Flaza Jaén por la Paz, n® 2 Jaén Gerlatric care 0.00% 100.00% 100.00%
Analistas Econdmicos de Andalucla, S.L.U. C! Granada n® 13, Entreplanta Studies and analysis 100.00% 0.00% 100,00%
Andaluza de Tramitaciones y Gestiones, S.A. ! Angosta del Carmen, 2, Malage Managemant of documents and deeds 0.00% 100.00% 1B0.00%
Cartera de Inversiones Agroalimentarias, 5.1 Plaza Jaén por la Paz n® 2 Jaén Food industry H2.50% 0.00% 0.00%
Consultora Técnica Tasa, S.L.U. C/ Bolsan® 4 - 5, Malega Consudling, advisory, management and technéical 0.00% 100.060% 100.60%
development of land, urban planning ek building
Corporacidn Uninser, SAU. Cf Antlg, 2, 3°-1%, Malaga Financial services 0,00% 160.00% 100.00%
Escuela Superior da Estudios de Empresa, 5.A. C/ Calvo e/n Edificio Mena, Malaga Stubes and analysia {L0G% 50.00% 50.00%
Gestidn de Aclividades y Senvicios Empresariales, S.AL. Cf Fedetico Oreliana Toledano, 4, Milaga Electronic recording and data-processing &.00% 100.00% 102.00%
Gestion de lnmuebles Adguindos, S.L.U. Cf Mauricio Moro Pareto n° 6, 6* planta, Edf. Eurocom,  Real estate 0.08%  100.00% 100.00%
Mélaga
Inmotifiaria Acinipo, S.L.LL C7 Mauricio Moro Pareio n® 6, 8* planta, Edf, Eurocom,  Rea] estate 100,00% 0.00% 100.00%
Mélaga
Imobilieda Uniex Sur, S.L.U. C! Mawritio Momo Pareto n® 6, 6* plante, Edf. Eurocom,  Real esista 0.00% 100.00% 100.00%
Méalaga
Mijas Sol Resort, S.L.LL. C! Mauricio Moro Fareto, n° 8, Planta &%, Edificio Real estata 0.00% iBﬂ,DD% 1G0.00%
Eurocom, Mélaga
Pargua Industrial Hurilladero, §, 1. T/ Miguel Hemandaz n® 1, Malaga Industrial land davetopment 0.00% 82.75% B2.75%
PrivAndalus Inversionas | SICAV, 5.A. C/ Bolsar® 4, 1* Planta, Milaga Coilectiva Investmant [nstitution 61.90% £.00% 61.90%
Prometora Guadalnensdn, S.L.U. C/ Méndaz Nifiez, 1, 1*Planta, Sevilla Real estate 0.00%  100.00% 100.00%
Renta Perfolio, 5.L.U. C{ Mauricio Moro Pareta n® 6, 6* planta, Edf. Eurocom,  Renta! property 0.00% 100.00% 100.00%
Malaga
Segurindalus Mediadén, Cereduria de Seguros, S.ALL Cf Cuatieles, n° 51, Entreptanta, Mélaga Insurance brokerage 0.04% 1D4.00% 100¢.06%
Tasaciones Andaluzes, S.ALL Paseo de Almeris, B3 - 5"Plants, Almeria Resl estate valuation 0.00% 100.00% 100.00%
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Appendix [
Subsidiaries at 31 December 2013
% Share owned by the Group
Company Name Registered domicile Attivity % Share
% Share
Direct Indirect
Linicaja Gestién da Actives lnmobiliarios, S.A.U. Avda, Andalucla, 19-12, Malaga Desarrollo Inmebiliarie 100.00% 0.00% 100.00%
Unicartera Caja 2, 5.L.U. C/ Mauricio Moro Pareto n® 8, B* planta, Edf. Eurocom,  Promacién o financiacion de 1+D en &l campo de 100.00% LOG% 100.00%
Malaga Ia medicina

Unicarters Gestion de Attivas, S.L.U. C/ San Agustin, 2, 1* planta, Madrid Actividad de recobro y gestion de lifigios 0.00% 100.00% 100.90%
Unicartera Intemecional, S L., Avds, Andalucia, t10-12, Mélaga inversién en actives, velores mobiliaros y 100.006% 0.00% 100.00%

sociedades financieras
Unicartera Renta, S.L.U. Avda. Andalucia, 10-12, Malaga Inversién en aclives, valores mobikatos y 100.08% 0.00% 100.00%

sociedades financisras
Unic-as Promocionaes Inmobiliarias, S.L.LL C/ Lisan® 1, Pollg. Tres Caminos, Puerlo Real (Codiz)  Desamoflo Inmobifiario 0e0%  100.00% 100.00%
Uinicorp Carporacion Financiera, 5.L.U. C{ Bolsa, n® 4, 5* planta, Mélaga Prestacion de senvicios 000%  100.80% 100.08%
Unicorp Patrimonio, Socledad de Valores, 5.AL. Ci Bolse, n° 4, 5* planta, Mélaga Geslitn patdmoniat 0.00% 100.00% 100.00%
Unigest, 5.GLLE, SAL. Cf Belsa, n® 4, 5* planta, Malaga Geslora de Instituciones de Inversicn Colectiva 0,00% 100.60% 100.00%
Unitmediacidn, S.L.U. Cf Belsa, n® 4, planta 2, Malaga Corredwria de Seguros &.00% 1D00.00% 100.480%
Unimediterréneo de Inversiones, S.L.U, Cf Mauritia Moro Pareto n® &, 6* planta, £df. Eurpcom,  Invarsion en ectivos, vefores mobiliarics y 100.00% 0.06% 100.00%

Méalaga seciedades financieras

Uniwindet Parque Edlico Las LomiRas, S.L C/ Bolsa, n° 4, 5 planta, Mélaga Energlas ranovables 0,00% 71.44% T1.44%
Uniwindet Parqua Edico Loma de Ayals, 5. Cf Bolsa, n® 4, 5" planta, Malaga Energlas renovables 0.00% 71.44% T1.44%
Uniwindet Pargque Etlico Los Jarales, 5.L. C/ Bolsa, n" 4, 5" planta, Mélage Energias renovables 0.00% 71.44% 71.44%
Uniwindet Parque Edlico Tres Villas, S.1. C/ Bolsa, n® 4, £* planta, Malaga Energias renovables 0.00% 71.44% 71.44%
Uniwindet 5.1 £{ Bolsa, n“ 4, 5 planta, M&laga Energlas rencvables 0.60% 749.308% 78.38%
Urbasur Actuaciones tirban(sticas, S.L. Plaza Jaén por la Paz, n® 2, Jasn Desarroiio Inmobiliako 000%  100.00% 100.00%
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Appendix II
Joint ventures at 31 December 2013
Thousands of euros
% Bhare owned by the Croup
Individust Non- Non-
et profitf [~ t Current Total Total
Company Name Reglistered domiclle Activity % Share — s "'m e current pobiiniy I;uml et Hevemme expenditure
net profit/ year nssats bilitles.
loss for the
Direct tndirect year
Hanco Eumpen de Finanzas, Cf Severe Dchoa, n° 5, Credi inatitiion 120% 29.52% 40.72% 74 251 11337 35 25 7T 2 {3y
BA, MaAlags
Compahia Andafiza de Cf Ancim, n® 2, Mataga Investmant in assety, 0.06% 31.39% 33.29% 543 69 643 4 D69 3560 L] 5574 [ 141}
Rents e inversiones, SA. aeciriies end finance
compenies
Detun Viviendas Sociakes, Cf Muliez Okvé, 1, Portal Resl exfnte Q.00% 40.00% 4D.00% - - - - - - -
5L %1% C, Sevilla
Espacio Medina, 5L, 9 Pasec de ia Cestellana, Rea] estate 0.00% 30,00% 30.00% { M 29 54 519 1880 18 5685 - { &)
81, Piso 9, Madrid
Hidrocaitera, 5.1 Avda. Ardalucss, 10-12, AS-embracing water cycle T0.00% 0.00% 70.00% 4004 B9 437 3548 - 7 4 ( 8)
Malaga
Tnnovacidn Desarcolos ©f Angel Gelan, n° 2, Tieol estate .00% 48.00% 48.00% { 528 247 17 480 & 800 B 86T 85 { 5T}
Utbanos del Sur, SA.™ Sevilln
Liquidémbar inversiones Pageo de Recoleins, n® Imvestment In esseta, 14,74% B.O0% 14.74% {28220 17 34568 - 42 210 {28 487}
Finantieras, BL 29, kindrid securiffes and fnance
companies
Muelle Una - Puedo de Avda, e Andakucia 21, Rexl estats 000% 2928% 29.28% [ 2445} 58 BDS 7103 41 499 8723 4820 ( 7285}
Milsgn, B.A, Entieplanta, Malags
Finares tis) Sur, 51, @ Avenids Behia Blanca 3, Renl estate 0.e0% 50,00% 50.00% { t513} 2227 36 ABA J2758 10 822 2378 { 4281}
Bajo, Cadiz
Bocledad de Gesfon Ban C/ Rlitante Feintinn Renl estate 0.00% 50.32% 5032% { 428 - 14 248 7738 2582 - { 428)
Cailos, SA Ruiz, 2, A1, Cadiz

{f)  Coempary iniquidation,
{2) Forecast the compaty b dose December 31, 201 3,
{3)  Finandels ot November 30, 2013,
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Associates at 31 December 2013
Thousands of euros
% Share owned by the Group Financial Statements at year end
Company Name Registered domicile Activity % Share
Total Total assats Equity Current Profit from Profit for
atend Tiahilities cperations the yesr
Direct Indirect

ALE. Alione I C lé’::n"'é."‘::n:' B, L Paimes ds E“ﬁz:"’;"” and company 33.60% 0.60% 2A0% 108 108 - - -
ALE. Alcions IV £t o Morote. 6, Loa Peiman de  Finandial services and compety 3380% 2.00% 380% 121 121 - - -
ALE, Naviera Area tirmvn d m:r;';d}‘;g{',f“ £di, Financinl services and campany 35.00% 0.00% 35.00% 78 10 16 . -
ALE. Naviara Atiia ™ ©f L Morate, "8, Laa Paimas de  Financlalservlces and tompany 21.00% 0.00% 21.00% 33728 (= nm - -
ALE, Haviem Eabo Uden ™ & i,‘;}zmi‘:;‘::“- Edt. Financial services and company 28.00% 0.05% 26.00% 13230 33 12882 {112 112y
ALE. Naviess Etectra @ [~} Ié‘al:nMca:‘!:i:' 8, 1ms Paimns de Fin:!rﬂr;in;:'mltn end company 21.00% 0.00% 24 .80% 27 127 _ . _
ALE. Naviers Malpica o i‘,‘e"j;' Tnchacr, b 29, £, Fingncial services and company 28.00% 0.00% 26.00% 13788 a2 13304 [ san )
ALE. Naviera Cmpla ™ cf i;:;’;‘:’;’:"m"‘;ff’ Eadt, Finacciad services and company 26.00% 0.00% 28.00% 13802 a0z 13 200 { 51 { =
ALE. Nevieta San Simén @ o ﬁ,‘:} Francizon, o' 29, Ed. Finanelsl sevices snd company 26.00% 0.00% 26.00% 12 448 450 12078 { 1055 ¢ 105%)
Alests Aerospace, 5.4 7 g’;;j;;“;':;fﬂ“*"- snlsladels b oenace indusy 15.88% 2.60% 10.48% A2200 w07 31404 {29 004} (23 04)
Antehiis Econdmica, 8.4, ™ ¢/ Diego de Riang, 11. Sevila Publcations, grephic arts and 2180% B.00% Z350% 95 58 310 7 1
Aretne, BL. e a’;’,"_‘;‘"‘" Lehmberg. n* 4, New technologies 48.00% v00% 4050% 31 258 %) {1 { =
B ., G7Los Pefloncilon ® 14, Magz  Highveys an.so% ooon  3000% ;0202 Tasas 315538 840 (7208
Autapista del Bol, Concesionaria Piaza Manued Gémez-Morena, n* 2,

Eala, oA e Highways 20.00% 0.00% 20.00% 695 280 mans 01398 20281 { oEzmy
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Appendix Il
Associates at 31 December 2013
Thoussnds of euros
% Share owned by the Group Financlal Statements at year end
Company Name Hegistered domictle Activity o Share
Tolal asseis Current Profit fom Profit far
Yotal Equity
ut end liabiiities operations the year
Direct Indirect
I Avda. Juan Lopez Pefalver, a/h, Bervicima de inveraiin y
B.C. Eurcnove, S.A. Maiage Sratmocian 20,00% 0,00% 20,00% 1837 112 ns t 1% [
Cementerto Parque de Martox, BA, ® & Toredonimenc 5/N, Jaén Semvicins eolectives 20,00% ooy 2000% 2244 103 241 Fi { ]
Erencién de Suels e Infmestructras, Sy, ne 28, Piao 80 €. Macrid Desamalia Inmabisdo 0,00% 24885 2495% 13574 BT 120m {1 { 3
Decled, 54,7 Of Matle Cusie, 17, Reffcio feta, nchustria Agrosimentaria B.89% 00E% 1005% 1683 174 €10 141 1044 032 T ecd 12611
Desairello Lrbanisticos Camo de Plaza Jadn por la Paz, n° 2, Jagn Bresamodla ok Bario 0.00% % 412% 1534 asm 3 10 7
EEN Banco de Mepocios, 8 A Paseo de Recolelos, n* 2%, Madrid Banca 21,08% 0,00% 2L09% 1 168 .GBa 5A §22 1109 578 { 4483} 438
Grupo Holeles Plays, 8A. ™ Caitetera Faro Snhinad, g/n, Almeria Hoteles 15,55% 0.00% 18,55% LAY Nx 180: 258 234 5858 {odady { 701}
ve
Hermera Catering. S.L. o 'é;gg;i‘;{'::“ﬂ“' L Bervicios de Calering 0.00% n02% 31,82% 23] 130 2% { {
Hidraks, Gestitn Integral da Aguss de
Andehucln, 5.A. {antetiaments &/ Mlsc, Eddifcio Ocasa, o 1, Cicla Imegref del Agua 8,00% 15,p0% 35,00% 322 108 188 196 124 Hinz 9829
Aquagest Andahucia, BA) ¥
Ingerieria v Surigy ¥ Explotacitn de Auda, Pasen o Coca, i, Huehs Industria Meners W0.96% 0,00% 000% PETTN 207 14e37 1310 887
Inggnieris & inteqracién Avenzadas. SA o/ gever ches, n* 43, Malnga Nuevas tecriotogias 10,00% 0.00% A000% Az s . { 1254 ( 1404)
. -lluén S‘IW : - Pi!;l’a::al '35::? Hckem 10, 88 Desamsilo suelo industrial 0,00% 30,00% 10,00% 142 54 54 { 8 { 8
) 3
La Resetva de Sapwo Golf, 8L ™ CJ Principal n® 45, planta 2 Malaga Desarrnlto inmobEarlo 0,06% 38.00% 34,00% 161t { 4483} 8074 [ 543 { &BI}
Masinas Puerta de Malaga, Sociadad Edificio Inshuto de Estudios
Promolors del Plas Especial def Portumiics, Musle de Canouas, Sesvicios colectivos 28.98% 8.08% 29 98% 362 381 1 [ 14 { 14}

Puerta de Malaga, 5.A.

w1, Miilaga
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Associates at 31 December 2013

Theosands of eurns

% Share owned by the Group Financlal Statements at year end
Company Neme Registered domicile Activity % Sh
are Total Total assets Exuity Carrent Profil trom Profit lor
atwnd 1labiltles opsmtions the year
Direct Indirect

M-Cepital, S.A ™ Plaza da Toros Vieja, n* 2, Mélagn s";f"' de Inversidn y 201% 2.00% 2% 11571 2443 9128 [ 301 | asm
Ghenque, $.A. ©f Zushann, n* 78, Madkid Desartolta inmobiiarin 0.00% 2t25% 2% 18 364 15 B8 22704 1004 w
Olecmedie, &, ! Plaza te ln Constiueion 42, 0. juevs acnolalss no% 0.00% 40,00% 268 265 - - -
Parqua Cientifice-Techolfigico de Avenida de [a Innovacion, n® 15,

Atmezla, A, Alrmeils Desarrolie inmobiiiario 6.009% 30,00% 30,00% B4 452 18 4dg 36 022 {1241} { 260N

CR Nijas, n* 129, EdH. Muebles
Setyicios Femeraina Indafcos, §.4. ™ Maguplf 321, B Alquian, Servicios cofectivos 20.00% b10% 20,00% 538 3n 228 - -
Almeria

Servicion, 54 i Y Pirzn La Alcazaba, sin. Mélaga Aparcamienios 28.50% 0.00% 24,50% 70 807 33488 aret 180 1233
Thulizaciin de Acivos, Becedad Gestera . Socledad Gestota de Fondos de

'l Fondos de Titulizacisn, 8.A, C! Qrense, n® 69, Madsid Tetubzacian 0,06% IMETH 35T 15 108 9889 5226 5484 aBok
Uness, 5.L. " € Ibizn, n* 35, §° C, Madsid Desarolia fnmebiaria 0.00% 75,00% 23.00% 6468 { 1782) 10 260 { 43 (]
Unema Prothotoves imabliarios, S.A, I=f Suachan, n® 1, Flanta 1, Malega Desarrsito inmabiliaric 0,00% 40,60% 40.061% B4 " - [ 17 { 1n
Unicorp Vida, Compafla de Begens y €712 Bolsa, 4, 3* plants, Malega Beguros £2.40% 780% 50,00% 2422137 111 830 22503207 42558 15 752

Reaseqans, SA.

(1}  Company in Fquidation. No updated financial data,

(F  The resch of e deferred ]

(3} Forecasithe company bo dose December 31, 2013,

(4)  Financials st November 30, 2013,

{5)  Financials st September 30, 2013,

{6] Finencials st August 31, 2013,

{1)  Finansials ! May 38 2011,

{8) Company without sigrifcent nctivity during the year 2013,




